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Managing Director & CEQO’s Report
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“We have @ unique culture

centred on engaged people

who genuinely care about
customers and each other.

Our people and our culture

are our competitive
advantage and enable us
to deliver great service
o our customers.”

@afd (e, Memrging Birestior & GE0

@ Managing Director & CEQ’s Report Chairman’s Report 1@ Financial Overview

§2 We're with St.George 2% Executive Directory 2 Review of Operations 2 People and Service

34 Community Support 8% Shareholder Friendly Financials 42 Board of Directors
44 Corporate Governance Statemen t B0 Risk Management &2 5 Year Financtal Summary
&8 Concise Financial Report €9 Supplementary information

EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE

OOOOOOO




Managing Director & CEQ’s Report (continued)

I am delighted to report an outstanding  Highlights for the year Strategic direction

result for the St.George Group, with (All ratios are based on cash AIFRS™) These results continue the Bank's
cash profit after tax increasing 14.5 per strong and consistent record of

cent and exceeding $1 billion for the achievement. Over Lhe past six years
first time in its history. we have delivered robust earnings

* Revenue growth of 9 per cent, with
a particularly strong second half
performance.

Our profits have grown significantly . per share growth and continue to

from $376 million i 2001. This has * Increased return on equity to 22.91 develop our reputation for sustainable,

enabled us to increase dividends by per cent from 22.10 per centin 2005 high-quality earnings.

132.3 per cent, from 65 cents in that e Industry leading expense to income The strategy that underpins our

year to $1.51 this year. ratio at 44.0 per cent. performance is one of differentiation

A further major milestone achieved e Total lending assets increased by based on people and customer

during the year was exceeding $100 15.4@ per cent to $93.4 billion. gxpegen("e- Our culture isv?l strolng one,

billion in assets, compared to $52 billion . ased on genuine caring. We value

in 2001. Earnings per share were up ¢ :‘;g‘; Io:rnsérr:tclt'ga;gczj ?)[)illion transparency, flexibility, responsiveness

13.1 per cent and our return on equity =P ' ' and 'gaing the extra mile’. The following

was its best ever al 22.9 per cent. » Middle Market commercial simple formula assists us in driving
receivables increased by our strategy:

These achievements are the result of

L . . 23.9 per cent to $19.0 billion.
substantial investment in our business,

engaged people + great customer

a consistent organic growth strategy and ~ ® Managed funds increased by experience = superior financial results
the dedication of St.George’s people. 20.3 per cent to $39.3 billion.

Looking forward, we are well positioned e Retail deposits increased by

to continue delivering superior returns 10.7% per cent to $43.1 billion.

to shareholders. e Robust credit quality - bad and

doubtful debts 0.23 per cent of
average gross receivables.

—

Cash AIFRS excludes significant items, hedging
and non-trading derivatives volatility and goodwill
impairment, Comparative figures are prepared on
a consistent basis.

(2) Excluding New Zealand.
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Left: Gail handing out
presents at the Childcare
Centre's Christmas Party.
Right: Happy Dragon’joins
a3 team at the St.George
Foundation Golf Day.
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Managing Director & CEQO’s Report (continued)
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Financial Overview
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betore significant ttems
weas $1,026 millio,
up 14.5 per cent

ende d305 pt ember
IBiresg ificant items and goadwall)

Previous
AGAAP
Cash
AIFRS

ﬂm $mitlion

Bpense (o income retio
is an fndustry leading
44,0 per cent, down
frem 47.1 per cent the

[750] )

I vy
Cash
AIFRS

Year ended
30 September

The total dividend
increesed by
10.2 per eent to $1.51
from the previous year
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We’re witn St.GGeorge because

o

U's a great place to work.

These pictures have been supplied by St.George staff and customers.
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Training staff to g
deliver great customer™
- experience. L

G

e
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We’re with St.George

We’re with St.George because

of the fantastic level of training
we receive. From the moment we
came on board, we were provided
with all the learning tools needed
to ensure our customers receive
the highest level of customer
service. All customer-facing staff
receive over four full weeks of
training before beginning their
careers in the branches, meaning
they are able to immediately
assist with customer needs.
Career development is strongly
encouraged at St.George, allowing
us to grow on both a personal and
professional level.
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We're with St.George

“We're with St.George because
they care. Funds we have received
from the St.George Foundation
have enabled us to offer support
to children with additional
needs and families experiencing
difficulties. St.George's funding
assisted children in our Steps to
School Program. This program
works directly with disadvantaged
and vulnerable children, aged 0-5,
to develop the skills necessary for
early success at school.”

Jennifer Evans, CEQ, The Infants’ Home,
Ashfield, NSw
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We're with St.George.

These pictures have been supplied by S1.George statt and customers.
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Home loans to get
everyone started.
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g're with St.George be\cause
of the greatlproducts on offer
St.George's{complete range of‘
home loanslallowed us ta buy our
first home earlier than anﬁmpated
St.George otffers innovative and e
affordable sblutions that are %
especially designed for first home/
buyers. The{No Deposit home (
loan was perfect for us because
it allowed u$ to buy the apartment
of our dreams and still have money
3 left over forj the:government
.and legal costs. The loan ¢ comes-
-packed wnth\features mcludmg
\ Repayment[Redraw and Interest
Offset, so itymeets our cufrent
and future needs.

¢ \,___,_f
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I'm with St.George

“I'm with St.George because of
the exceptional level of customer
service | receive. Nothing is ever
too much trouble. Qur customer
service representative, Shadey,
has really taken the time to
understand my business and
consistently goes the extra mile

B! to ensure | am a satisfied
customer. | can relax and
concentrate on my customers
knowing that my business needs
are in safe hands. | have learnt

3 lot from Shadey about how to
relate to and communicate with
my own customers.”

Nicole Petrovic, Manager,
Everafter Beauty, Enfield, NSW
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We’re with St.George

We're with St.George because

of the innovative products and
services available. We love the
convenient new service that
enables us to locate the nearest
St.George ATM wherever we are,
saving us the cost of using another
bank’s ATM. This is particularly
helpful to us when we are on
holidays or interstate. All we

have to do is SMS the suburb

and state we are currently in to
199 44 ATM (286) and we receive
an instant SMS back with details
of the closest ATM*. Now that's
what we call service!

. * This serfice costs 50.40 per SMS, billed by the
customer’s mobile phone carrier. .
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Executive Directory
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Gail Kelly DipEd BA MBA (with distinction}
SF Fin became St.George Group Managing
Director & Chief Executive Officer in
January 2002. She came to St.George
from the Commonwealth Bank of Australia,
where she was head of the Customer
Service Division, Mrs Kelly migrated to
Australia in 1997 after holding & number
of senior management positions with one
of South Africa’s major banks, Nedcor.
She is a Fellow of the Financial Services
Institute of Australasia.

Lechensisin
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John Loebenstein FCIl joined St.George's
Executive Management team in 1995,
having previously worked in insurance
broking, underwriting and risk management
in South Africa, the UK and Australia.

He brings more than 30 years experience

in information technology, with a particular
focus on business systems and customer
requirements, achieved through efficient
project management.

GeglBagtlet
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Greg Bartlett was appointed Group
Executive Institutional and Business
Banking in 1999 after roles as Group
Treasurer and Chief General Manager,
Group Treasury and Capital Markets.
He has been a member of St.George's
Executive Management Committee for
17 years and has more than three
decades of experience in the financial
services industry.

StevelMeKenhan)
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Steve McKerihan BComm {Hons) CPA
MBA is Group Executive responsible for
Finance and Risk Management.

He has been with the St.George Group
since 1985, holding a range of positions
including Chief Manager, Financial
Development, and Chief Manager,
Balance Sheet Risk and Capital Markets.
Before working at St.George, he worked
at the Commonwealth Bank of Australfa.
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Brett Wright BE (Hons) M EngSc MBA PhD
joined the St.George Group in July 2000.
He has a PhD in organisational behaviour
and an extensive background in human
resource management derived from
working in a range of line management,
academic and consulting roles. He is
responsible for alt aspects of the peopie
strategy covering the Group's more than
8,500 employees.

DavidlGall
Sy Paaashe X9 ST

David Gall BSc BBus MBA (Exec) F Fin
was appointed Group Executive Retail
Business in 2005 after 15 years with the
Group, including five years with Barclays
Bank Australia. He has worked in senior
roles in Institutional and Business Banking,
including Head of Corporate and Business
Bank in Victoria and General Manager
Sales and Distribution of the Corporate
and Business Bank. In 2000 and 2001,

he played a leading role in the design

and implementation of the successful
Best Bank program.

(Ri@?@kﬁ@
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Peter Clare BComm MBA MAICD ACIS

F Fin FCPA became Group Executive
Strategy in February 2002. He is
responsible for Group Strategy,
Corporate Relations and Group Property
and Procurement, He came from the
Commonwealth Bank of Australia,
where he was head of the Strategy
Implementation Group, responsible

for the integration of Colonial Limited,
following a number of senior operational
roles. His earlier experience encompasses
management consulting, corporate
reconstruction and insolvency.

@iﬁmﬁm
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Rob Chapman Assoc Dip Bus MAICD

A Fin became Managing Director of
BankSA in July 2002 after an extensive
career in the financial services industry.
Most recently, he was the Regional
General Manager of the Commonwealth
Bank of Ausiralia’s aperations in

South Australia, Northern Territory

and Western Australia. Earlier he filled

a number of senior roles with Colonial
State Bank and Prudential Corporation
Australia. Rob is the President of Business
SA, South Australia’s formal Business
Association. He received the 2005 SA
Great Award for Business.

Paull
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Paul Fegan MBA F Fin GAICD was
appointed Group Executive Wealth
Management in June 2002 and assumed
responsibility for Retail Financial Services
in November 2004. Prior to joining
St.George, Mr Fegan was based in the
United Kingdom as Chief Operating
Officer of Yorkshire Bank, Mr Fegan
was a Director of both Yorkshire Bank
and Clydesdale Bank. Mr Fegan's career
covers a range of senior appointments
in Australia, the US, Hong Kong, the UK
and ireland.
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Review of Operations

Retail Bank

The Retail Bank comprises the Retail
Business and Retail Financial Services
business units. Retail Business covers all
customer contact points including retail
branches, call centres, ATMs, mobile
lenders, St.George financial planners

and third parties such as home loan
brokers. Retail Financial Services includes
product management, customer segment
management, Group brand and retail
marketing, risk management, operations

and finance.

Highlights

» Profit before tax for the Retail
Bank increased by 16.4 per cent to
$697 million, contributing 46 per
cent of the Group’s total profit.

* Costs, measured as an expense to
income ratio, fell to a record low of
46.6 per cent.

¢ Total Group home loans increased
by 12.2 per cent."”

e Total Group retail deposits rose
10.7 per cent despite market
competition,

e Bad and doubtful debts for the
Group remain low at 0.23 per cent
of average gross receivables.

{1} Excluding New Zealand.

Awards

e Best new product: No Deposit home
loan - Austrolian Banking & Finance
Awards

s Credit Card Issuer of the Year
- Money magazine

e Best Call Centre - Australian
Teleservices Association

o (Cali Centre of the Year - Customer
Service Institute of Australia

¢ Widest Product Range - InfoChoice.

Results

The Retail Bark again performed very
strengly as a whole despite the slower
rate of growth in the New South Wales
economy felative to the other states.

Profit before tax rose 16.4 per cent as
key productivity and sales management
programs implemented by the Bank

over the past few years are bearing fruit.
These include our successful local market
strategy to empower and train Branch

ST.GEORGE BANK CONCISE ANNUAL REPORT 2006

Group Executive Retail Business

David Gall

Managers and other front-line staff to be
more responsive to customers' needs.

Group home loans

Home loans grew 12.2 per cent this year,
increasing 1otal residential lending to
$62.7 billion, representing a very sokid
performance for the year.

This result was particularly pleasing

given that 59 per cent of aur residential
lending is in New South Wales. The Bank
also grew strongly in Victoria, Queenstand
and Western Australia, which grew haome
lending receivables 13 per cent, 18 per
cent and 26 per cent, respectively.

Our Low Doc home loan and the award
winning No Deposit home loan have
proved successiul and represented

8.2 per cent of home loan settlements
in the year, Credit quality has been
preserved through targeted policies
and strategies.

The Retail Bank's product mix remained
relatively stable this year, with fixed rate
products showing some increase due to
the rising interest rate environment.

The percentage of new foans originated
through the broker channel has also
remained stable, at 45 per cent for the year.

During the year, we launched an
additional distribution channel called
Mortgage Connect, 1o increase our

reach and ensure our suite of home

loan products is readily accessible to
customers. This initiative will provide
additional mobile lenders who can visit
customers in their homes, or any location,
and at the time that suits them best.

Group deposits and

consumer lending

Our position in the highly competitive
retail depasit market remained strong

Group Executive Weatth Management

and Retail Financial Services

Paul Fegan

with balances growing 10.7 per cent to
$43.1 billion as at 30 September 2006.

Particularly strong growth was achieved
in business deposits, which grew 16.2 per
cent during the year. Online account
deposits through dragondirect rose by
.3 per cent, while transaction account
balances increased 14.8 per cent to $15.2
billion.

The Bank continued its track record of
innovation, unveiling a new Internet
Banking platform, multilinguat ATMs,
three ‘branches of the future’ and SMS
updates when a custorner’s credit card is
used. in November we launched a suite
of Freedom transaction accounts featuring
Visa Debit cards with flat fees to meet
peeple’s changing needs and attract

new CUStomers.

The Group boosted its position in credit
cards with the Jaunch of the Vertigo
card, targeted at existing customers.
This sirglegy has seen St.George exceed
overall market growth since May.

Total Group consumer lending, including
credit cards, margin loans and perscnal
loans, increased by 27.8 per cent for the
year (o reach $6.4 bitlion,

People and service

The Bank further developed its customer
relationship management systems Lo give
staff the real-time information needed to
best service customers.

We introduced an updated rostering
syslem across the network to ensure
we have the right staff in our branches
at the right time. The Bank is furiher
empowering Branch Managers to help
customers by making more decisions
locally, and training them in how to run
branches as small businesses.




Institutional and Business Banking (IBB)

St.George continues to be a growing force in business banking.

The Institutional and Business Banking (IBB) division provides a full
range of banking products and services to its corporate and business
customers. It is also responsible for automotive finance and financial
markets, which includes liquidity and risk management, foreign
exchange and international trade, securitisation, wholesale funding

and capital markets.

Highlights

¢ Recognised as ‘Business Bank
of the Year' in Money magazine’s
Consumer Finance Awards in
June 2006.

e Profit before tax for IBB increased
by 11.1 per cent to $421 million,
contributing 28 per cent of the
Group's total profit.

e Middle Market loans increased
23.9 per cent to $19.0 billion.

* Strong rise in retail deposits,
to $10.9 billion.

s Significant strengthening in
transactional business banking.

¢ Continuing excellent credit quality
with bad and doubtful debts expense
at 0.13% of gross receivables.

Results

St.George has continued its exceptional
market share growth in the Middle Market
segment, This was achieved in 2006,
despite the relative weakness of the New
South Wales econemy and property sector.

Revenue for IBB grew by 8.6 per cent

to $704 million. Group Middle Market
business loans increased by 23.9 per cent
- well above the industry as a whole,

Middle Market - market share

Year ended 30 September”
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This success has come from strengthening
relationships with existing customers,
winning new business and expanding

in new geographies. Cver the past two
years, Middle Market customer numbers
have increased by 3C per cent. In the
latest year, Queensland middle market
receivables increased 48 per cent,
Victoria was up 32 per cent and Western
Australia increased by 39 per cent.

In our Automotive Finance business, we
increased our dealer relationships by

11 per cent.

IBB's intense focus on customer service
and relationship banking also led to very
high rates of customer retention and
effective cross-selling, In a recent survey,
zero per cent of St.George business
customners said they were considering
changing banks, compared to 18 per cent
of major bank customers. The number

of products per customer increased to
5.1and to 8.2 for our key accounts.

Qur strong customer service focus led
to the expansion of our Working Capital
Services team, which includes our
transacticnal banking, cash flow
financing and business and equipment
finance businesses.
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Greg Bartlett
Group Executive IBB

Best Business Bank

Since late 2004, the Best Business

Bank program has been central to
achieving growth threugh productivity,
new sales tools, new products, industry
specialisation, growth in the corporate
and business banking team and extending
our geographic reach.

During the year, we opened four new
business banking sites and expanded
three cenires. The division was also
reorganised around two units: IBB
Product and Commercial Business, and
Sales and Distribution. This is a more
logical alignment that is driving team
collaboration, sales effectiveness and
increased cross-selling activities.

Capital Markets

Our Capital Markets group completed
several key funding transactions totalling
$12.2 biltion during a busy vear, including:

« St.George's largest-ever issue of AUD
fixed and floating rate transferable
deposits, worth $1.3 billion;

« (BP375 million and Euro 600 million
in floating rate note benchmarks, both
oversubscribed by UK, European and
Asian investors;

+ 3 $300 million subordinated notes
issue, our first domestic Tier-2 capital
raising since 2003; and

» arecord volume of $8.2 billion in
home loans securitised through the
Crusade Securitisation Program in
2005/06.

St.George continues to be Australia’s
largest issuer of mortgage-backed
securities.

Ratings upgrades were received from two
key rating agencies, Standard & Poor’s
and Moody’s, improving the Group's
wholesale funding capacity in global
markets.
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Review of Operations {continued)

BankSA

BankSA is the largest financial institution in South Australia.

It employs more than 1,220 staff and has an extensive network
comprising 113 branches, 180 ATMs and 114 electronic agencies
across South Australia and the Northern Territory.

Highlights

¢ Profit before tax for BankSA
increased by 14.5 per cent to
$213 million, contributing 14 per cent
of the Group’s total profit.

e Revenue rose 9.4 per cent, reflecting
strong growth in lending assets.

¢ Expense to income ratio was down
to 42.3 per cent from 45.2 per cent
in 2005.

» Total lending (including securitised
loans) increased 15 per cent to
$12 billion.

Results

Even as a leader in South Australia,
BankSA has increased its market share
and in many areas of the business grew
faster than the state's banking seclor as

a whole. This outstanding performance
was achieved through a localised business
strategy with a focus on service excellence
and a disciplined approach to costs.

The Bank has strategically repositicned
the business by building the commercial
banking division, which now represents
41 per cent of (otal lending assets.

This deliberate shilt created new business
appartunities at a time of intense
competiiion in retail banking and during

a softer housing market.

Profit before tax

Year ended 30 September

BankSA’s growth also came from BankSA
Private Bank. Launched in July 2005,

the premier banking service has grown
44 per cent.

For the year, BankSA's total assets grew
by 15 per cent te $12.0 billicn, while
deposits increased by & per cent to

$5.8 billion. Cperating expenses
increased by 2.5 per cent to $163 million.

[nvestment

Key 10 BankSA's success is its close
relationship wilth customers, sustained
through regular conversations and
face-to-face contact. BankSA continues to
employ more people to deal directly with
custamers through its branch network,
which is the largest in South Ausiralia.

During 2006, BankSA invested in
maintaining and improving its netwark.
This included opening a specialist
business banking centre at Mile End,

a *branch of the future’ at Glenelg and
investing in staff development with

the opening of a purpose-built training
facility catled 'The Learning Zone'.

This is in addition to its ongoing roll-out of
branch renovations, an increase in branch
security measures and expansion of its
regional New South Wales and Victorian
rural business banking.
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Managing Director BankSA

Rob Chapman

At the same time, customers are
benefiting from leading technology,
enjoying new Internet Banking facilities
and SMS banking aterts - an industry first.

Other investments that have contributed
to the Bank’s performance this year
include implementation of the Group's
Best Business Bank program, Customer
Relationship Management {CRM) program
and imprevements to the Customer

Calt Centre to reduce waiting times and
iIMprove service.

Community

With a more than 150-year history,
BankSA prides itself on being an
importani part of the local community.

In addition 10 supporting hundreds

of grass-roots evenis throughout the
year, the Bank recommitted to BankSA
CrimeStoppers and will provide

$1.5 million over five years to help fund
the program.

It became the Principal Partner to the
Adelaide Fringe international arts lestival,
with a $1.6 million sponsorship until 2010,
BankSA alsc received the prestigious
Australisn Business Arts Foundation
National Business Arts Partnership of the
Year Award for its successful partnership
with the Adelaide Fringe.

The Bank has also reaffirmed its
commitment lo regional South Australia,
launching the BankSA People’s Choice
Kural Business Awards presented by the
Stock fourndal.

Since World War |1, staif have alsc made
a direct contribution 1o the community
through the BankSA and Staff Charitable
Fund. This tradition remains strong, In the
pasl year, $192,000 scurced from staff
and the Bank was donated to more than
110 loeat charitable organisations.
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Wealth Management

Wealth Management includes funds management and administration,
financial planning and dealer group solutions, margin lending, private
banking and general and life insurance. Key brands include Asgard
Wealth Solutions {(formerly SEALCORP), Ascalon Capital Managers,
Advance Funds Management, St.George Margin Lending and

St.George Private Bank.

Highlights

* Profit before tax for Wealth
Management increased by
25.0 per cent to $180 million,
contributing 12 per cent of the
Group's total profit.

» Total managed funds rose to
$39.3 billion - an increase of
20.3 per cent over 2005.

+ Margin lending receivables increased
by 62.8 per cent to $2.6 billion.

Awards

» Margin Lender of the Year -
Smart Investor magazine
(third consecutive year)

¢ Margin Lender of the Year -
Money magazine

s Platform of the Year - AFR Smort

fnvestor Blue Ribbon Awards 2006,
for Asgard eWRAP Super/Pension

s Assirt/Wealth Insights Service
Leve! Survey 2006 - Winner Asgard
eWRAP

e Best online service for financial
advisers - Investment Trends.

Total managed funds

Year ended 30 September
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Results

In an oulsianding year for Wealth
Manggement, profit before tax increased
by 25.0 per cent to $180 million.

The division also achieved strong net
inflows, with total managed funds
growing by $6.6 billion to $39.3 billion.
St.George is now the fifth largest player
in the Australian platform market and
fifth in terms of net inflows.

The Wealth Management division
provides products and solutions that
enable investors to feel inspired by their
financial future, and be confident that
they can plan for and live comfortably
in retirement.

Asgard Wealth Solutions

Asgard Wealth Solutions had its fastest
growing 12-maonth period over the year,
with total funds under administration
increasing 23.9 per cent to $29.0 biltien.
This reflects favourable market conditions
and Asgard's strength in sales, service
and distribution management.
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Group Executive Wealth Management

and Retail Financial Services

Paul Fegan

The past year saw significani growth and
rebranding within funds management.
SEALCORP (which incorporates the award
winning wealth management platform
Asgard and our highly-regarded financial
adviser dealer group Securitor) was
rebranded to Asgard Wealth Solutions.

Margin Lending, Insurance and
Private Bank

The Bank’s margin lending receivables
increased by 62.8 per cent in 2006
to $2.6 billion, This included around
$398 million in loan receivables
gained from buying HSBC’s margin
lending assets.

Income from life and general insurance
products increased by 10.5 per cent
during the year, assisted by the launch of
new products such as Home Loan Protect.

The Privale Bank grew assets by 3.9 per
cent, deposits 6.8 per cent and funds
under advice 5.2 per cent to $311 million.

Advance Funds Management
Advance is the specialist investment
management arm of the St.George Group.
Under its strategy 1c be a ‘'manager of
managers’, it has now formed strategic
partnerships with 21 ieading boutique and
specialist funds managers. During 2006,
Advance grew funds under management
by 10.2 per cent to $7.1 billion.
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People and Service

St.George is Australia’s fifth
largest bank and one of the
country’s top 20 publicly listed
companies. Our award winning
Human Resources division works
with our business units to build

a customer focused, performance
driven organisation.,
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Highlights

» Launched careers@stgeorge, taking
full control of recruitment to ensure
we are identifying and selecting the
best people.

¢ Upgraded and implemented our
StaffSmart program to ensure
optimum staffing of retail branches.

» Followed the launch of new learning
facilities at Kogarah with the
opening of a state-of-the-art learning
environment in Adelaide.

* Empowered our Branch Managers
to better meet customer needs.

Resuits

At S1.George, our people are aur
competitive edge. They care about
custemers and the organisation and we
continue to employ people wha fit into
our warm, friendly culture.

This year we focused more than ever

on customer service. We enhanced our
recriilment, training and customer service
systems to ensure that the special human
touch of St.George continues to win new
customers and to deepen our relationship
wilh existing customers.

In line with its increased focus on the
customer, the Group expanded its
business banking centres nationwide and
increased the number of its customier-
facing staff during the year.

Leveraging in-house recruitment
expertise

The launch of careers@stgeorge in July
involved setting up a team of expert,
in-house recruitment consultants.

This new approach allows us to more
effectively manage our talent and
recruitment needs across the Group,
ensuring we are identifying and attracting
the best candidates for our current and

future needs.

“Fm with St.George because of the fantastic childcare facilities
on-site. A sensible work/life balance is really encouraged,
which is rare in today’s fast paced environment.”

Al Pastor, Operations Analyst, 1T Production




Further benefits of careers@stgeorge
include reducing the time required

to fill vacancies, strengthening cur
recruitment practices and employment
brand, reducing costs and expanding
the Group’s multiple sourcing strategy.
For example, a new website lists
permanent job vacancies and invites
candidates to register their interest in
working ior St.George or apply for jobs
online. This is creating a ready talent pool.

Customer service is the key

Once we have found the right people,
we have an extensive and demanding
induction process that gives them the
information and tools to perferm to our
high standards,

We operate on the principle of ‘engaged
pecple + greai customer experience =
superior financial results’. In keeping with
this powerful equation, we have upgraded
StafiSmarl, This Is our system for
optimising roslering in branches 1o ensure
we have the right people available at the
right time to meet customer demands
and expectations, thus building on our
reputation for high quality, friendly and
persanalised service.

to work.”

Kellie Tomney, Executive Manager,
Recruitment and Branding Strategy
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“I'm with St.George because the values of the
organisation reflect my own personal values.
The commitment to people, change and
culture from the most senior level was critical
for me in terms of deciding where | wanted

Our Star Awards recognise individuals

in the Group who ge above and beyond
what is expected of them to provide

truly exceptional service, Those who are
selected as ‘SuperStars' are recognised at
special functions atlended by their teams
and senior management.

Customer Service Officers have excellent
career progression opportunities, with

many career paths open to them and the
possibility of progressing to senior roles.

Better learning facilities

Following on from the launch of new
learning facilities at Kogarah in early
2005, we have apened a new learning
environment in Adelaide. This offers the
Iatest in facilities and supplements cur
award winning e-fuminate online
learning systerm.

The development of our managers
and leaders remains 3 high priority.
We have three main development
programs that offer comprehensive
learning experiences and have direct
relevance to real work challenges.
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Power to the branches

Branch Managers have been empowered
to make more decisions 1o help
customers, including increased credit
authority to beiter meet the needs of
their local communities.

Under this local market strategy, we are
training Branch Managers to be able to
run their branches as businesses, and
employing managers who previously
ran their own businesses. This enables
them to better relate to our customers,
including business pecple.

A new induction program aimed al
better equipping Branch Managers is
largely based on scenarios and case
studies depicting real-life challenges and
activities. This has proven to be highly
successful in having new managers
work-ready from day one.

“I'm with St.George because of the continual
opportunities for career development. | have recently
completed one of three management development
programs run in-house, which has equipped me with
the strategies and skills | need to effectively manage

my team. In addition to developing my own skills,
it's also important to ensure | can help my team to
develop their own skills.”

lan Parkes, Chief Manager, Group Financial Control
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Community Support

St.George Bank is not only good
with people and good with money,
it is a good corporate citizen. We
are open and honest in the way
we do business, environmentally
aware and play a helping role in
the community by supporting
charities, the arts, sporting clubs,
business programs and disaster
relief initiatives. We also seek to
make a positive impact as a major
employer and caring financial
services provider.

Highlights

¢ $1.2 million donated to 60 charitable
organisations across Australia by the
5t.George Foundation.

¢ A substantial increase in the number
of our people becoming payroll
donors of the St.George Foundation.

e Special assistance to our customers
who were victims of Cyclone Larry.

¢ Muitilingual ATMs introduced to
cater for the needs of a diverse
range of customers.

s Continued support for the Sydney
Symphony Orchestra and the BRW
Carporate Triathlon National Series.

» St.George OpenAir Cinema was the
NSW winner in the Sponsorship
category of the Australian Marketing
Institute’s 2006 Awards for
Marketing Excellence.

¢ Strengthened relationship with the
local community through various
initiatives including continued major
sponsorship of the St.George-
lllawarra Dragons.

St.George Foundation

Founded in 1990 with an initial donation
of $1 million from St.George Bank, the
St.George Foundaticn has provided over
$8 million to projects for disadvantaged
children or those with disabilities.

Over the last financial year, the
Foundation distributed $1.2 million to
over 60 organisations across Australia.
These funds were raised through events
such as the Foundatior Golf Classic and
Gala Dinner in Sydney, donations from
Foundation sponsars and support from
our people on Happy Hai Day.

Money raised by the Foundation has
helped change the lives of hundreds

of young people through funding early
intervention programs, respite care, drug
and alcohol rehabilitation programs, and
activity days and holiday programs for
children with disabilities.

St.George Bank absorbs all the
administration costs, meaning
100 per cent of the money raised
goes 1o young Australians in need.

Funding growth

The Foundation's income increased

40 per cent this year, partly thanks to
an increase in the number of employees
making payroll donaiions. We also saw

a 40 per cent increase in granis, assisted
by the introduction of an online grants
application system.

A fresh look and website were launched
for the Foundation, and its 2005 annual
report was produced as a calendar to
generate additional income.

Sponsorships

We are proud of the strong relationships
we have forged with people and
organisations from different sectors of
the community.

St.George is proud to sponsor
the Taronga Park Zoo 'St.George
Zoomobile’, which helps educate

the community about Australian
wildlife by providing hands-an
experiences to over 16,000 people
each year.
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The Bank supports several arts initiatives,
business programs, sperting and
community events. In 2006, we entered
our fourth year as major sponsor of the
St.George-lllawarra Dragens Rugby League
1eam, deepening a relationship between
parties with so much in cormmon.

The award winning St.George OpenAir
Cinema, running for 36 nights in January
and February, has become one of
Sydney’s most papular summer events.
Set against a backdrop of the Sydney
Opera House, Harbour Bridge and the
city skyline, the event is a celebration

of film and the outdoor Sydney lifestyle.
Fetruary 2007 will see the launch of 3
St.George OpenAir Cinema in Melbourne.

We also support the Wesley Mission
Credit Line counselling service for families
in financial difficulty and g Taronga Park
Zoo 'Zoomabile’. This goes to schools
and other venues to showcase native
animals and encourage environmental
conservation.

Disaster relief

We are commitied o helping Australian
communities through times of hardship.
Following the devastating impact of
Cyclone Larry in Queensland in March,
we helped our customers by offering
deferrals cn home loan repayments,
emergency credit limit increases and the
ability to restructure business loans.

Auction support

Over the past four years, we have offered
silent auction technology developed

by the Bank’s 1T department to varicus
charities across Australia. Using a highly
efficient bidding system involving portable
PCs linked by a wireless network, this
has contributed to the success of charity
events in Sydney and Adelaide.

In addition to using the system at
St.George events, our volunteers helped
sel up and run silent auctions at:

Pink Ribbon Ball (Flinders Medical
Research Centre, Adelaide)

+ NISAD - Sparks of Genius Ball
(Schizophrenia research, Sydney)

« Adelaide Crows Gala Aucticn
(Adelaide Crows Foundation)

* SA Olympic Appeals Committee
(Adelaide)

+ Ronald McDenald Children’s Charities
Gala Dinner (Sydney)

= Autism Spectrum Australia
{ASPECT) (Sydney)

+ Cure Cancer Australia (Sydney)

» Redkite (formerly Malcolm Sargent
Cancer Fund for children) (Sydney)

» Cystic Fibrosis NSW (Sydney).

Making life easier

Making our services accessible to all
Australians is part of our caring culture.
We actively participate in the Disabled
Access Working Group of the Australian
Bankers' Association, ensuring that our
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branches, ATMs and other facilities are
accessible to the disabled.

We have Jaunched a new Internet Banking
platform featuring many improvemenis
and increasing the range of functions
which customers can perform online.

We are also the first bank in the country
to introduce an SMS service to help
people locate their nearest St.George
ATM, The introduction of muitilingual
ATMs reflects our desire 10 cater for

a diverse range of customers.

A greener dragon

St.George is commiited to being

a greener dragon. We are working

with government agencies and business
partners to reduce our consumption

of energy, water and waste.

Last year, St.George appointed a new
property services contractor (o manage
its properties across Australia. Under this
new Conlract, we expect 1o see reductions
in energy and water usage. I is also
anticipated that an upgrade of our critical
infrastructure will deliver savings,

While environmentally sustainable
business practices are vital, our people
play a pivotal role. They are helping

us to implement a range of initiatives
focused on better ways of recycling
wasle, sourcing more energy efficient
office equipment and encouraging wider
community invclvement.

Picture courtesy of St.George-lllawarra Dragons/
Action Photagraphics.

In-screen image from ‘Mad Hot Ballroom'’ courtesy of Icon Film Distribution.
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Shareholder Friendly Financials

We think financials As in previous years, to enable
shareholders to belter understand

should be €asy to the financia! results of the Group, the

understand. following explanations and tables have

been orovided.

1. Australian Equivalents to
International Financial Reporting
Standards (AIFRS)

The financial results of St.George have,
for the first tirne this year, been prepared
in accordance with AIFRS,

Comparative figures for 2005 contained
in St.George’s audited financial
statements do not reflect the impact

of ali AIFRS standards and hence care
should be taken when comparing current
year results to the 30 September 2005
financial year.

To assist shareholders in assessing the
undertying performance of St.George
compared to the 30 September 2005
year, comparative figures contained in
these Sharehelder Friendly Financials have
been adjusted for all AIFRS standards.

2. Key AIFRS impacts on St.George
are as follows:

(i) Profitability - Under AIFRS,
St.George’'s reported profit is
calculated differently due to the
following:

(a) Goodwill amortisation - under AIFRS,
goodwill is no longer amartised.
This is a significant change, as
previously St.George charged
approximately $100 million each
year 10 its profit and loss for
goodwill amortisation.

{b)Share based compensalion - under
AIFRS, Si.George is required 10
expense the value of oplicns
and shares offered to staff after
7 November 2002 under its various
incentive equity compensation plans.
The value of these options and shares
is charged evenly 1o the profil and
loss over the applicable vesting
period, which is generally between
two 1o three years. An expense of
$12 million has been recognised in the
30 September 2006 year for share
based compensation.
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{c) Derivatives and certain financial
instruments are required to be
recognised at their fair value. The fair
value of these instruments changes
in accordance with movements
in interest rates and also foreign
currency exchange rates where
derivatives relate to the Group's
overseas borrowings. These derivalive
contracts are entered into by the
Bank to protect the Bank's earnings
from volatility arising primarily from
movements in the fair value of loans
and berrowings used to fund these
loans. These derivatives are designed
1o offset the volatility that arises
from ihese assels and liabilities. Such
derivatives are referred to as hedges.
Under AIFRS, where derivatives do
not satisfy strict hedging rules, the
fair value movement is recognised in
the profil and loss. This may lead to
more vclatility in St.George's earnings.
In the 30 September 2006 year, a
$14 million gain was recognised in
other income in respect of fair value
movements in derivatives and cerain
financiat instruments that did not
satisfy strict hedging rules. This result
will vary depending upon movements
in interest rates and exchange rates
and may switch from a gain to a loss
in any particular year, depending upon
haw these factors move. This valatite
item is excluded when calculating
the Group's ‘cash AIFRS per share’
performance measure. as the volatility
cannot be directly controlled by
management.

{d)Bad and doubtfut debts - under
previous accounting, rules, bad debt
expense comprised movements in
specific provisions for douBtful debts
and the general provision for doubtful
debits. Specific provisions were raised
where an individual loan was in default
and it was doubtful that the full amount
would be repaid by the borrowers.

A general provision was raised for
loans and receivables that were not
in default at balance date but, based
on past lpan loss experienced by
St.Gearge, may default in the future.
Hence, St.George made provision
for both loans actually in default and
loans on its balance sheet which may
default in future.
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Under AIFRS, bad and deubtiul
debits, particularly as they relate te
the general provision, are calculated
differently. Under AIFRS, the general
provision is called a collective
provisicn and a collective provision is
only raised where there is evidence
of deterioration in the credit quality
of the loan, such as a delerioration in
economic conditions.

As a result of this different
methadology, there is a lower

level of provisions for future

expected losses under AIFRS
compared [0 previous requirements.
To salisfy APRA's prudential loan loss
provisioning requiremenis, St.George
established and maintains a General
Reserve for Credit Losses lo ensure
its callective orovision and general
reserve for credit losses represent
0.5 per cent of risk weighted assels
an an after tax basis. This level of loan
ioss provision and reserve is consistent
with the tevel held vnder previous
accounting rules.

(i) Classifications of income - under
AIFRS, the classification of items
included in net interest income
and nen-interest income changes
significantly as follows:

{a)Bill acceptance fee income - under
previous accounting rules, this type
of income was included in non-interest
income. Under AIFRS, such income
is included in net interest income.
In the year ended 30 September
2005, St.George had $93 million
in bill acceptance fee income.

{(b)Securitisation fee income - under
previous accounting rufes, this type
of income was included in non-interest
income. Under AIFRS, securitised
foans are brought back on to
St.George's balance sheet. Income
from these loans is classified as net
interest income,

(¢)Loan fee income and origination costs
- under previous accounting rules,
upfront fees charged o cuslomers
laking out loans with the Bark were
classified as non-interest income.

This fee income was recognised at

the time of the origination of the loan.
Where loans were introduced to the
Bank by mortgage brokers, any upfront
fees paid were deferred against non-
interest income over the average life
of the loan.

Under AIFRS, upfront loan fees are
netied against the loan balance

and recognised as interest income
over the estimaied life of the loan.
Upfront fees paid to mortgage brokers
are recognised on the same basis.

{iii) Balance sheet
{a) Consalidation - St.George securitises

or assigns some of its residential
mortgages to Lrusts on a periodical
basis. Securitisation represents an
important source of funding for
the Bank.

Under previous accounting rules, when
loans were securitised, they were

no longer recognised as loans and
receivables cn St.George's balance
sheet. Under AIFRS, trusts holding
securitised loans and certain other
entities are required to be consolidated
on to St.George's balance sheet.

At 30 September 2006, (otal assets
include $19.5 billion of assets, and
total liabilities include $19.1 billion
of funding relating to these trusts
and entities. This change has had no
impact on St.George’s nel profil.

{b)Depositary Capital Securities (DCS)

- under previous accounting rules,

the DCS were classified as Minority
Interests in St.George's balance
sheet. Under AIFRS, the DCS are
regarded as debt rather than equity
instiruments and have been reclassified
to ‘liabilities at fair value through the
income statement’ in the balance
sheel. Distributions on the DCS have
also been reclassified from preference
share dividends to interest expense.

(c)Preferred Resetting Yield Marketable

Equity Securilies {PRYMES] - under
previous accounting rules, PRYMES
were classified as equity in St.George's
batance sheel. Under AIFRS, PRYMES
are classified as ‘bonds and notes'.
The PRYMES were converted into
ordinary shares in February 2006.
Distributions on the PRYMES have
been reclassified from preference
share dividends to interest expense.

(d)Trading securities - under AIFRS,

trading securities have been
rectassified (o ‘assets at fair value
through the income statement’.

{e)Derivative assets and derivative

liabilities - under previous accounting
rules, the movement in the market
value of derivatives held for trading
purposes, and also gains/losses on
derivatives used for hedging purposes,
were recognised in other assets

when favourable. Any unfavourable
movements were recognised in

other liabilities.

Under AIFRS, these items have been
reclassified from other assets/other
liabilities to derivatives assets and
derivative liabilities respectively on the
face of the balance sheet.

{f) Available for sale investments

- investment securities and equity
investments have been reclassified
from investment securilies and other
investments respeclively to a new
asset category called "available for
sale investments’. Assels held by
entities involved in custorner asset
securitisations which were not
previously consolidated by St.George
are now recognised as available for
sale investments. These entities are
not involved in the securitisalion of
St.George’s residential loans, which
are disclosed as part of loans and
other receivables.

For further information on the impact of
AIFRS rejer to Note 8.
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Sharenolder Friendly Financials {continued)
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Group Profitability Summary

The foliowing summary has been prepared on a cash AIFRS basis. The 30 September
2005 figures have been adjusted on the same basis. These comparative figures do
not agree with the financial statements, which have been prepared on a statutosy AIFRS
basis, which exclude the impact of AIFRS financial instrument standards. Cash AIFRS
is a definition of profit used by St.George when reporting its financial results Lo ihe
medlia and the Australian Stock Exchange. Cash AIFRS normalises St.George's profil
result by excluding items thal are volatile or not within the control of management.
On this basis, Cash AIFRS excludes significant items, volatility arising from non-trading
derivatives and hedging and goodwill impairment. Cash AIFRS is determined after
dividends paid an preference share capital.

2006 2005
For the year ended 30 September $m $m
Operating income
Net interest income 2,015 1,861
Other income 939 848
Total operaling income 2,954 2,709
Operating expenses 1,299 1,276
Bad and doubtiul debts
- collective provision 23 28
- specific provision ¥l 100
Add: Share of profit of equity accounted associates - 3
Profit before income tax 1,51 1,308
Incomg 1ax cxpense 466 400
Profit after income 1ax 1,045 908
Add: Minority interests 1 5
Profit after income tax and minority interests 1,046 913
Preference dividends 20 | 17
Profit available to ordinary shareholders 1,026 856

Net interest income

Net interest income - comprises interest income earned on lending, incfuding
securitised loans, bill acceptances, investments and trading securities classified as
"Assets at Fair Value through the Income Statement”.

Interest income also includes certain upfront loan artgination fee income net of fees
paid for broker introduced lozans.

Interest expense is recognised on deposits and other borrowings, loan capital,
securitisalion funding, depositary capital securities and PRYMES,

Net interest income grew by 8.3% during the year to $2,015 million
{2005: $1,861 million) reflecting 13.5% growth in average interest earning assels.
This growth was partially offset by a 10 basis point decrease in the interest margin.
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Other income

2006 2005
For the year ended 30 September $m $m
Financial markets income 70 60
Product fees and commissions 535 500
Managed funds 254 223
Other _ . ] o 80 65
Other income before significant items 939 848

Other income before significant items and volatility fror non-trading derivatives and
hedging was $939 million, an increase of 10.7% compared to lzsi year. This increase
reflects strong growth in managed funds, growth in customer transaction accounts,
increased Treasury trading income and revised product fee structures introduced in the
second half of the year to align with market.

Operating expenses

The Group's tolal operating expenses were $1,299 million (2005: $1,276 million),
an increase of 1.8%.

2006 2005
For the yeor ended 30 September $m Sm
Sialf expenses 738 690
Computer and equipment expenses 150 158
Occupancy cxpenses 142 138
Administration and other cxpenses ) 269 | 290 |
Total operating expenses before goodwill impairment
and significant items 1,299 1,276

These results reflect tight cost controf, together with disciplined investment in future
growth by increasing staff in customer facing functions. The small increase in operating
expenses was achieved by controlling non-staff related expenses, which overall decreased
by $25 million, mainly driven by lower computer and equipment expenses and a fall in
administration and other expenses.

Stafl costs befare significant items are mainly comprised of salaries and wages,
superannuation, payroll tax and share based compensaticn expense. Staff casts
increased by 7% to $738 million compared to last year. This increase reflects an
average salary and wage increase of 4.3%, effective 1 October 2005 and increased
staff numbers 1o drive business growth,

Bad and doubtful debts

Bad and doubtful debts expense (net of recoveries) for the 2006 year was $344 million.
This includes a collective pravision charge of $23 million (2005: $28 million) and a
specific provisioning charge of $121 million (2005: $100 million). The increase in the
specific provisioning charge primarily reflects growth in lending assets, increases in

the size of loss experienced on default for resigential loans and the adoption of an
earlier time frame for transferring problem unsecured loans between collective and
specific provisicns.
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Shareholder Friendly Financials (continued)

Significant items

Significant isems are income and expense items that have an unusual impact on the
Group's results due to their size or nature. They are generally of 8 non-recurring nature
and are separately identified to help readers assess the Group’s underlying resulls.
Deails of significant items excluded from the Group’s Cash AIFRS profit result are

as follows:
2006 2005
$m $m
Significant income items
- profit on sale of land and buildings 4 -
- profit on sale of fixed assets - 27
4 27
Significant expense items
- intangible assets impairment loss 32 16
- restructure costs 16 -
- loss from discontinued operation 6 -
54 16
Significant income tax items
-ingome tax benefit on profit on sale of land and buildings (10}
-income tax benefit on intangible assets impairment loss : (10) {s)
- income tax bengfit on restructure costs (5) -
- income tax expense on profit on sale of fixed asscts - 8
(25) 3
Net significant income 12 8

Refer Note 2 in the Concise Financial Statements for further information on
significant items.

Dividends
A final dividend of 77 cents (2005: 70 cents) has been declared by Directors.
This increase reflects the Group's growth in Cash Earnings per share.

2006 2005

Cents per share
Interim dividend 74 67
Fina! dividend 77 70
151 137
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Ratio analysis
Ratios are a useful aid in understanding the Bank's financial performance. Each of
ihe lollowing three ratios are calculaled on a cash AIFRS basis.

Earnings per ordinary share (EPS)

EPS shows an crdinary shareholder’s entitlement to current profits on a per share basis.
EPS does not necessarily equal the dividend per share, as not all profits are paid cut as
dividends and some dividends ¢an be paid out of prior year profits.

EPS is calculated by dividing the relevant profit figure by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares.

2006 2005
Cash AIFRS profit ($m) 1,026 896
Divided by: Weighted average number of ordinary shares (miHions) 524.281 | 517762 |
Equais:
Cash AIFRS earnings per share (_cenE)__ 195.8 173.1

Return on ordinary equity (ROOE)

The ROOE shows profit as a percentage of ordinary equity, that is, the relurn on each
dollar invested in the Bank's ordinary shares. The improved profitability of the current
year is reflected in cur ROOE, as shown in the table below.

2006 2005
Cash AIFRS profit {Sm) 1,026 896
Bivided by: Average ordinary equity {Sm) - 4479 1 4,055 |
Equals:
Cash AIFRS ROOE (%) i 22.9 221

Expense to income ratio

The expense to income ratio is calculated by dividing operating expenses by operating
income. This ratio measures the efficiency of the Bank's operations. It demanstraies the
amount of expenses incurred in generating income. A lower ratio means the Bank is
more elfficient. This year the ratio has decreased to 44.0% (2005: 47.1%), reflecting
the Bank’s commitment to beth cost containment and revenue growth and improving
shareholder value.

2006 2005
Operating expenses (Sm) 1,299 1,276
Divided by: Operating income (Sm) o o 2,954 | 2,709 |
Equals:
Cost o income ratio (%) 44.0 47,1
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Board of Directots
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John Michael Thame AAIBF FCPA
Chairman

John Thame, aged 64, was appointed 10

the Board in February 1997, having been

the Managing Director of Advance Bank
Australia Limited from October 1986 to
January 1997. His career with Advance
spanned 26 years. He was appointed Deputy
Chairman in September 2004 and Chairman
in December 2004, Mr Thame is a Director
of Reckon Limited, Abacus Property Group
and The Village Building Co Limited {Group).
Mr Thame was also a Directer of Permanent
Trustee Company Limited from 1597 to
2003, Chairman of The Trust Company of
Australia Limited from 2002 to 2003 and a
Director of AWB Limited from 1999 to 2005.
He is a member of the Bank’s Board Risk
Management Commitiee and is Chairman

of St.George Life Limited and St.George
insurance Australia Pty Limited.

Terry James Davis

Terry Davis, aged 49, is currently the Chief
Executive and Managing Director of Coca-
Cola Amatil Limited. He was appointed to this
role in 2001 and prior to this was with the
Foster's Brewing Group in various positions,
including Managing Director of Beringer Blass
Wine Estates, the wine division of Foster's.
Between 1987 and 1997, he was with the
Cellarmaster Wines Group as Managing
Director, He joined the St.George Board on
17 December 2004. He is currently a member
of the University of New South Wales Council
and the Business Council of Austrafia.

Mr Davis is Chairman of the Bank's Board
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Linda Bardo Nicholls BA (Econ)
MBA (Harvard)

Linda Nicholls, aged 58, was appointed to

the Board in August 2002. She is Deputy
Chairman of Healthscope and a Director of
Sigma Pharenaceutical Group and Insurance
Manufacturers of Australia. Mrs Nicholls is also
aMember of Council of the Walter and Eliza Hall
Institue of Biomedical Research, the Board of
Trustees of The Conference Board in New York and
a Director of The Smith Family. Mrs Nicholts was
a Director of Australian Postal Corporation from
1989 to 2006 and was its Chairman from 1997 to
2006. She was 2 Director of Perpetual Trustees
Australia Limited from 1996 to 2005 and of the
General Sir John Menash Foundation from 2004 to
2006. Mrs Nichalls has over 25 years experience
as a senior executive and company director in
banking, insurance and funds management in
Australia, New Zealand and the United States.

She was a member of the Wallis Inquiry into the
financial services industry in 1996. She is Chairman
of the Bank’s Board Risk Management Committee.

Gail Patricia Kelly

DipEd BA MBA (with distinction) SF Fin
Managing Director & Chief
Executive Officer

Gail Kelly, aged 50, was appointed as

the Bank’s Chief Executive Officer in
December 2001 and Managing Director

in January 2002. Mrs Kelly was previpusly
with the Commonwealth Bank of Australia
as Head of its Customer Service Division
and a member of its Executive Committee.
Prior to that, she served with Nedcor
Bank, one of the largest banks in South
Africa, as General Manager, Cards and
General Manager, Personal Banking.

Mrs Kelly is a Director of the Bank's funds
administration subsidiary, Asgard Wealth
Solutions Limited, and a Governor of the
St.George Foundation. Mrs Kelly is also

a Director of Melbourne Business Schoaol
Limited and a member of the Financial
Sector Advisory Council.

Richard Anthony Fountayne
England Fca MAICD

Richard England, aged 56, is a professicnal
company director and chartered
accountant. He joined the St.George
Board in September 2004. Mr England

is currently Chairman of GroPep Limited
and Deputy Chairman of Ruralcoe Holdings
Limited. He is also a Director of Choiseul
Investments Limited, Healthscope Limited,
ITL Limited and KH Feods Limited. He has
over 30 years experience in insolvency
and management advisory work and

is a former partner of Ernst & Young.

Mr England was also a Director of Peter
Lehmann Wines Limited from 1998 to
2003 and ABB Grain Limited from 2003
to 2004. Mr England is a member of the
Bank's Board Audit, Due Diligence and
Risk Management Committees.

Graham John Reaney 8Comm CPA

Graham Reaney, aged 63, was appointed
to the Board in November 1996.

Mr Reaney's business experience spans
30 years, during which time he has held a
number of senicr corporate appointments,
including as Managing Director of National
Foods Limited. Other former positions
included Managing Director of Industrial
Equity Limited, where Mr Reaney had
responsibility for managing a range of
businesses in the food and beverage

and resaurce and service sectors.

He is Chairman of PMP Limited and

a Director of the Australian Gas Light
Company Limited. Mr Reaney is

a member of the Bank's Board Risk
Management Committee, Nomination

and Remuneration Committee and the
BankSA Advisory Board.
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John Simon Curtis 8A LLB (Hons)

John Curtis, aged 56, was appointed to
the Board in October 1997. Since 1987,
he has been a professional company
director and is currently the Chairman
of Allianz Australia Limited and the
Chairman of Merrill Lynch Australia
Advisory Board. He is also the Chairman
of Sydney Cancer Centre Foundation
Limited. Prior to 1987, Mr Curtis was
responsible as a Chief Executive for the
operations of Wormald International
Limited at various times in Australia,
Europe and the Americas, Mr Curtis was
also a Director of Perpetual Trustees
Australia Limited from 1995 to 2004.
He is a Director of the Bank’s funds
administration subsidiary, Asgard
Wealth Sclutions Limited, and is a
member of St.George Bank's Board
Audit, Due Diligence and Nomination
and Remuneration Committees.

Paul Dean Ramsbottom
Isherwood AQ FCA

Paul Isherwood, aged 67, was appointed
to the Beard of Directors in Qctober
1997. He is a former partner and National
Chairman of Partners of Coopers &
Lybrand, Chartered Accountants, his
career with that firm spanning a period
of 38 years. He is Chairman of Globe
Internationat Limited and Stadium
Australia Management Limited and is a
Director of Australand Holdings Limited
Group. Mr Isherwood is alse Chairman
of St.George Bank New Zealand Limited
and St.George Bank Limited's Board
Audit and Due Diligence Committees.
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Corporate Governance Statement

Overview

The Australian Stock Exchange (ASX)
Corporate Governance Council's
Principles of Good Corpeorate Governance
and Best Practice Recommendations {the
Recommendations) require listed entities
to include a statement in their annual
report disciosing the extent to which they
have {ollowed the Recommendations
during the reporting period. We confirm
that, as at the date of this report,
St.George was in compliance with all

of the Recommendatians during the
reporting period.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible

for St.George's overall performance

and governance. The functions,
responsibilities, composition and
procedures of the Board are set cut in the
Board Charter. Under the Board Charter,
the Board's responsibilities include:

« overseeing the performance and
activities of the Bank through agreed
goals and strategy;

« assessing performance against
Board-approved budgets, targets
and strategies;

= overseeing the management of the
Bank’s business;

« gverseeing appropriale conircls,
systems and procedures within
ihe Bank to manage the risks of its
businesses and compliance with
all regulatory and prudential
requirements including, without
limitalion, occupational health and
environmental issues;

= reviewing malters of general corporate
governance;

» appointing and removing the Managing
Director;

« ralifying the appoiniment and, where
appropriate, the removal of the
Company Secrelary;

= monitoring senior management's
performance and implementation of
the Board-approved slrategies and
ensuring appropriate succession
planning is in place;
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» approving and monitoring the progress
of major capital expenditure, capital
management and acquisitions and
divestitures;

= approving and monitering material
financial and other reporting; and

» setting delegated spending limits,

Board composition and skills
There are currently seven Non-Executive
Directers and the Managing Director

on the St.George Board. St.George's
Constitution provides that there must

be a minimum of five and a maximum

of nine Directors and the Board Charter
provides that the Baard will only appoint
one executive Director to the Board,
that being the Managing Director. Al the
Bank's 2006 Annual General Mezting, the
Board will recommend to shareholders
that they vote to increase the maximum
number of directors to 10.

It is St.George's policy that the Chairman
of the Board must be an independent
Director and is not the Managing Director.
The Board comprises a majority of
independent Directors.

Mr Len Bleasel retired as a St.George
Bank Director on 16 December 2005.
The Bank will seek to fill the vacancy

on the Board caused by Mr Bleasel's

retirement during 2007.

Each Director is assessed regarding
their independence in light of interests
disclosed by them and on the basis of
criteria defined in the Board Charter.
Directors are required to provide the
Board with all relevant informaticn to
assess their independence.

For the purpeses of determining 3
direclor's independence, the Board
applies criteria that are based on those
suggested by the Recommendations.
A Director will be considered 10 be
independent if that Director:

(a)is a Non-Executive Director (i.e. is not
a member of management);

(b)has not been a substantial shareholder
of the Bank or an officer of, or
otherwise associated directly with, a
substantial shareholder of the Bank;

{c}has within the last three years not been
employed in an executive capacity by
the Bank ar another Group member, or
been a Director afier ceasing to hold
any such employment;

(d)has within the last three years net been
g principal of a material professional
adviser or a material consuitant to the
Bank or ancther Group member, or an
employee materially associated with
the service provided;

(e}has not been a material supplier or
customer of the Bank or other group
mernber, or an officer of or otherwise
associated directly or indirectly with a
material supplier ¢or customer;

{f) has no maierial contractual relationship
with the Bank or another Group
member other than as a Director of
Lhe Bank;

{g)has not served on the Board for
a period which could, or coutd
reasonably be perceived 1o, interfere
materially with the Director’s ability
to act in the best interests of the
Bank; and

{h}has been free from any interest
and any other business relationship
which could, or could reasonably be
perceived Lo, interfere materially with
the Director's ability to act in the best
interests of the Bank.

Materiality is defined, for the purposes

of paragraphs (d), {e) and ([} above, as

a contractual relationshio pursuant (o
which payments are made representing
grealer than 5 per cent of the revenues

of the supplier/adviser/consultant/
counterparty, or greater than 5 per cent
of the costs of the customer/caunterparty
in the relevant party’s financial year.
Materiality for the purposes of paragraphs
(g) and {(h) will be construed by the

Board as it deems appropriate in
shareholders' best interests as relevant
circumstances arise.

The Board has this year assessed each
of the Bireclors in office at the date of
this report against the above criteria and
considers that all of (he Non-Executive
Directors are independent. The names of
the Directers can be found on page 43.




The Board is satisfied that Mr John Thame
is an independent member of the Board.
Mr Thame's executive roles at Advance
Bank, including as Managing Director,
ended 10 years ago when Advance and
St.George merged. As a result,

Mr Thame's current role as Chairman
does nol involve the review of the
strategies or processes developed by

him or his former management team.

Directers are required to have a broad
range of conmercial expertise and
experience, particularly in a field which

is complemeniary to the Bank's activities
and strategy, or to have appropriate
professional qualifications, to provide
value 1o the Board's deliberations. Board
members must have proven ability

and capacity to make a meaningful
contribution to Board strategy and policy
and participale in the overseeing of the
proper functioning of management.

As set aut on page 43, all of the current
members of the Board have the skills,
experience and expertise relevant

1o their position.

Performance review

Each year, the Board reviews the
performance of the Board, the Board
Commitiees, Lhe Bank, its senior
executives, the relationship between the
Board and management and matters af
general corporate governance.

in addition, the Chairman of the Board
conducts an annual questionnaire and
interview with each Non-Executive
Director as part of the review of the
performance and contribution to the
Beoard of each Non-Executive Director.
The last review of the Board was
conducled in Sepiember 2006. The Board
as a whole reviews the performance of
the Managing Director at least annually.
The Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee facilitates

an evaluation by all Direclors of the
performance of the Chairman of the
Board. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee Chairman determines the
performance criteria to be considered

in these reviews.

Directors’ retirement and
re-election

One third of the Directors {excluding the
Managing Director) must retire each year
at the Annual General Meeting, but may
stand for re-election.

St.George policy is that ng Director can
be appointed to the Board if he or she
is aged 65 years or aver, and a Director
must retire at the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting following that
Director reaching the age of 72 years.
The Board's policy (except in special
circumstances, where the Board considers
itimportant Lo retain valuable skills or
knowledge} is thai no Director should
be appointed to fill a casual vacancy if
he or she would be over 60 years when
appointed.

Details of the current Directors serving on
the Board are provided on page 43.

Remuneration of Directors and
Senior Executives

The Neminaticn and Remuneration
Commitlee considers and makes
recommendations 1o the Board regarding
the composition and remuneration of

the Board and on any proposed Board
performance criteria, Details of the
remuneration paid to the Directors
{executive and Non-Executive) and
specified senior executives are set out in
the Remuneration Report contained in the
Directors’ Report on pages 54 to 66.

In accordance with section 250R of the
Corporations Act 2001, the agenda lor
the 2006 Annual General Megting of
the Bank will include a resclution for the
adoption of the Remuneration Report.
The vote on the resolution is advisory
only and does not bind the Directors ar
the Bank.

Retirermnent benefits

The Beard of Directors terminated its
retirement benefits scheme for Non-
Executive Directors, effective from

30 Septernber 2003, following the
approval of shareholders at the 2003
Annual General Meeting. Non-Executive
Directors appointed after 30 September
2003 are not entitled tc retirement
benefits. Payment of retirement benefits
for Directors in office at 30 September
2003 will not exceed the amount
accrued in respect of thal Director

as at 30 September 2003,

Independent professional advice
To assist in the performance of their
duties, Directors may, in consultation with
the Chairman and at the expense of the
Bank, seek independent advice on any
mailer before the Board, with such advice
being made available to all Directars.

Market disclosure policy
St.George is committed to best practice
disclosure policy, with properly detailed
and timely disclosure to the market of
relevant informaticn about St.George.

li recognises that keeping the invesior
comrmunity fully informed and resisting
pressure to give preferential access to
analysts, institutions or others enhances
corporate credibility and investar
confidence, with a positive influence

on share price.

This commitment is reflected in
St.George's Company Disclosure Policy
and Communications Sirategy, a copy

of which is available on the St.George
website, These written policies have been
designed to ensure compliance with ASX
Listing Rule disclosure requirements and
the Recommendations.

The policy provides that all material
information is to be immediately notified
to the investor community through the
ASX, without preferential access to

any individual or group. To ensure best
practice in disclosure, all new informaticn
in the first instance will be released 1o the
ASX. The General Counsel and Secretary
of the Bank is primarily responsible

for communicaiing with the ASX

and for ensuring all information is

clear, objective and factual and that

no material information is omitled.

The Policy also sets out guidelings relating
to the announcement of future earnings
or financial performance, meetings with
investors and analysts. shareholder
enquiries and inadvertent disclosure

of information.

Procedures are in place to ensure that

all information which could potentially
require disclosure is reported promptly to
the Managing Director through relevant
senior executives for assessment by

the Managing Director with the Group
Executive, Strategy, and/or the Chief
Financial Officer and General Counsel and
Secretary. Compliance with the Disclosure
Palicy is monitered on a quarterly basis
by the Board's Audil Committee and

the Policy is reviewed annually by

ihat Committee.
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Corporate Governance Statement (continued)

St.George endeavours (o IMprove access
to information by investers by using,
where reasonable, current technology to
ensure the widest possible dissemination
of information in a timely manner,

All ASX announcements are posted (o
ihe St.George website and Lhe Bank's
announcement of its vearly and half-
yearly financial results and shareholders’
meetings are webcast.

All media enquiries relating 10 issues
material to St.George are coordinated
by the Group Executive, Strategy, in
consuliation, if appropriate, with the
Chief Financial Officer, with only certain
nominated senior staff authorised 1o
make media comments.

Committees of the Board

The Board's structure of Board
Committees assists it in managing

its responsibility jor oversight ang
control. The Board has established four
Commitlees 10 assist in the execution
of ils responsibilities. These are the
Audit Committee {previously known as
the Audit and Compliance Committee),
the Nomination and Remuneration
Commiitee, the Due Diligence Commitiee
and the Risk Managemeni Committee.

Each of these Committees cperates
under Board-approved Charters which
are reviewed regularly by the Board.
The Charters deal with the purpose,
membership, responsibilities and
authorities of each Committee, together
with the quorum and frequency of
meetings. Copies of these Charters

are available on the St.George website.
Additional committees may be

formed from time to time t¢ deal

wilh specific matters.

Minutes of Committee meetings and
Committee recommendations are
provided to he Board.

Audit committee

Role

Previously, this commiitee had

both an audit and compliance role.
The compliance role as from July 2006
was transferred 10 the Board Risk
Management Committee.
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In discharging ils audit role, the
Commitiee receives and considers
reports and recommendaiions from

the Bank's management and makes
recommendations (o the Board in

respect of the Bank’s financial reporting,
Australian Prudential Regulation Authority
reporting, systems for internal control and
both internal and external audit processes.

In addition, the Audit Commitlee reviews
major disclosure documeniation prior 10
the issue to the market, such as financial
results disclosure and other significant
disclosures made o the market.

Composition

The Audit Committee has a membership
of at least three Non-Executive Directars,
the majority of whom are independent.
The Audit Committee Chairman is
independent and is not the Chairman of
the Board.

The current mermbers are ) S Curtis,
R AF England and P D R Isherwood
{who is the Chairman}.

The qualifications of the members of the
Audit Commiitee are set out on page 43.

Al the end of each reporling period, the
Audit Committee reviews the Group’s
half-yearly and yearly financial statements
pricr to submission 1o the Board.

The internal and external auditors have

a direct line of communication to the
Chairman of the Audit Committeg, with
the external auditor also having a direct
line of communication to the Board’s
Chairman. The external auditor is invited
to altend Audit Committee meetings
each quarter and addresses the Audit
Committee in the absence of members
of management. In addition, the external
auditor is invited by the Audit Committee
to attend the Annual General Meeting

of the Bank and be available to answer
sharehotder questicns about the conduct
of the audit and the preparation and
content of the auditor's report. The Audit
Committee is aiso responsible for making
recommendations 1o the Board regarding
the nomination cf external auditors to the
Group and reviewing the adequacy of
existing externat audit arrangemenis.

KPMG was appointed the Bank's external
auditor at its Annual General Meeting

in December 1998 and continues in this
rcle. The responsible audit partner must
be rotated at least every five years and
cannot work on the Bank’s audil for a
period of two years following a rotation.
The Bank’s previous responsible audit
partner, Mr John Teer, rotated away from
the Bank's audit in 2005/06 and was
replaced by Mr Paul Reid, also of KPMG.
Details of the total fees paid to the
auditor are set out in Note 38 of the

Full Financial Report.

Audit independence

St.George has a policy for the provision of
non-audit related services by the Bank's
auditor under which the prior approval
of the Chairman of the Audit Committee
is required where non-audit services are
sought frem Lthe Bank's auditor for which
the proposed fee exceeds a specified
level. The annual fees payable to the
Rank's auditor for nen-audit services

for which, under the pelicy, the Audit
Cornmitiee Chairman's approval is not
required, are reviewed by the Audii
Commiliee above specified levels.

The fees payable to the Bank's auditor
for non-audit services are also set out

in Note 38 of the Fult Financial Report.
The auditor cannot be engaged Lo
provide non-audit services that may
materially conflict wiih its obligations and
responsibilities as the Bank’s auditor.

In addition, the policy prohibits audit
fiem partners and professional staff {and
their famities) from directly investing in
the Bank's shares, borrowing from the
Bank or being a Director or holding an
executive position in the Bank which is
of significance to 1he audit.

It is one of the functions of the Audit
Committee to assess the performance
and independence of the Bank’s external
auditor and whether the independence
of this function is mzintained, having
regard to the provision of non-audit
related services.




Normination and Remuneration
Committee

Role

The Nomination and Remuneration
Commitiee meets as required 10 consider
and make recommendations to the

Board on the compasition of the Board,
appropriate criteria for Board membership
and performance, the tenure of Directors
generally, the remuneration framework
for Directors and, where required, the
suitability of nominations for the position
of Director.

Recornmendations are also made by
the Namination and Remuneration
Committee to the Board regarding

the Bank’s recruitment, retention and
lermination policies and procedures for
senior executives.

This consideration will involve an
assessment (with the assistance of
external advice, if appropriate) of the
qualifications, skills, experience and
value which the person may bring to
the Board and his or her ability to make
a contribution to the Board’s strategy,
policy and effectiveness.

The Nomination and Remuneration
Comnmittee also reviews and makes
recommendations to the Board on the
various Group compensalion, incentive
and reward programs, including the
remuneration for the Managing Director
and senior executives.

In addition, the Nominaticn and
Remuneration Committee makes
determinations as required of it under the
rules of St.George's employee share/
opticn plans. The Managing Director
does not attend parts of meetings which
refate o the assessment of the Managing
Director's remuneration,

Composition

The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee has a minimum of three
members, (he majority being indepandent
Directors and is chaired by the Chairman
of the Board, or an independent Director,

The current members are | S Curtis,
T ) Davis {who is the Chairman) and
G ) Reaney.

Remuneration policies

The Bank's remuneration policies are set
out in the Remuneration Report on pages
54 1o 66 of the Direclors’ Report.

Due Diligence Committee

Role

The Due Diligence Committee meets for
the purposes of reviewing the planning,
memorandum and/or other procedures
proposed by the Bank's management for
determining the content of disclosure
documents to be issued in connection
with capital raising or other major
transactions proposed to be undertaken
by the Bank. It oversees the due diligence
and verification conducted in relation

1o such disclesure documents and
recommends to the Board whether such
disclosure documents can be issued and
monitors compliance with the regulatory
regime applicable (o such documents.

Composition

The Due Diligence Committee comprises
the members of the Audit Committee;
membership is three Non-Executive
Directors. The Chairman of the Due
Diligence Commiitlee is the Director who
holds the position of the Chairman of the
Audit Committee.
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Risk Management Committee

Role

As from July 2006, the compliance role
of the Audit and Compliance Committee
(as it was then known) was transferred to
the Risk Management Committee.

The Risk Management Commiitee
oversees and monitors policies and
procedures in relation to credit, liquidity,
markel, balance sheet and operational
risks. In the area oi credil risk, the Risk
Management Commiltee reviews and
approves loan applications and credit
limits within tevels delegated by the
Board. In addition, it oversees and
monitors the Bank’s credit practices

and reporting procedures to ensure
adherence to policy. It also reviews the
Group's credit portfolios and provisioning
for bad and deubtful debts and the risk
managernent policies and procedures for
market, funding and liquidity risks, as well
as the strategies and positions taken 1o
manage interest ralg risk and the Bank's
balance sheet, H oversees and monitors
the Bank's compliznce with regulatory
capital requirements, the compliance
sysiems in place by which management
discharges its legal obligations in respect
of the Bank's business and the compliance
systems and procedures within the

Bank by which appropriate disclosure

can be made to the Board of the risks
just described.

Composition

The Risk Management Committee

has a membership of four Non-Executive
Directors.

The current members are R A F England,
L B Nichol's (who is the Chairmany),
G ] Reaney and ) M Thame.
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Corporaie Governance Statement (continued)

Attendance record of Board and Board Committees for 2005/06

Board

{Total number of meetings held: 15) Altended
G P Kelly 15
L F Bleasel (Retired as a Director on 16 December 2005) 4/5
] S Curtis 15
T} Davis 15
R AF England 15
P D R Isherwood 14
L B Nicholls 15
G ] Reaney 14
] M Thame 15
Audit Committee

(Total number of meetings held: 5) Atlended
L F Bleasel (Resigned as a member on 16 December 2005) /2
) S Curtis 5
R AF England 4
P D R Isherwood 5

Nominatien and Remuneration Committee

{Total number of meetings held: 4) Allended
L F Bleasel {Resigned as a member on 16 December 2005) 2/2
] S Curtis 4
T Davis 4
G ) Reaney 4

Due Diligence Committee
(Total number of meetings held: 6)
(This Committee considered matters via three (3)

circulated resolutions during the peried.) Altended
L F Bleasel (Resigned as a member on 16 December 2005) 0/2
] 5 Curtis 5
R A F England 6
P D R isherwood 5

Risk Management Committee

(Total number of meetings held: 12} Attended
R AF England 12z
L 8 Nicholls 11
G ) Reaney 1
) M Thame 12

*  There have been numerous individual proposals circulated to the Risk Management Corminittee for approval

between mectings, which have required consideration of up to twao days per month in lime for Direclors on
that Committee.
During the year, Mr Isherwocd attended eight (8) Board meetings of St.George Bank
New Zealand Limited and Mr Reaney attended four (4) meetings of the BankSA Advisory
Board. Mr Curtis attended five {5) Board meetings of the Bank's wealth management
subsidiary, Asgard Wealth Solutions Limited, and Mr Thame atlended three (3) Board
meetings of the Bank’s life insurance subsidiary, $t.George Life Limited.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, Michael Bowan
{BA, LLB {(Hons) ANU), was admitted as a
New South Wales solicitor in December
1989 and was appeinted te his current
role as General Counsel and Secretary of
St.George Bank on 1 October 2000,

Identifying and managing
significant business risks

The operaticnal and financial performance
of the Group is monitered by a reporting
structure which includes the Board and
its Committees. The Board also monitors
appropriale risk management strategies
developed to mitigate the identified risks
of the business. The Bank’s policies and
systems for dealing with market, credit,
balance sheet, and liquidity risks are
outlined in the Risk Management section
of this Annual Report.

Compliance, ethics and integrity
The Board has a Code cf Ethics which
sets oul the expectations of St.George for
Directors and staff in their business affairs
and in dealings with customers. Among
other things, the Code of Ethics requires
high standards of personal integrity and
honesty in all dealings, a respect for the
privacy of cuslomers, avoidance of any
conflicts ¢f interest and observance of the
law. Particularly, staff members should
maintain required records with integrity,
reflecting transaclicns in an accurate and
timely manner.

The Code of Ethics also encourages

staff to report in good faith suspected
unlawful/unethical behaviour in others,
and provides an avenue of communication
through the General Counsel and
Secretary for staff 1o report suspected
offences.

In addition, St.George has a
Whistleblower Policy which sets out the
procedure for dealing with reports of
suspected improper conduct within the
S1.George Group, and the protection of
the individuals making those reports.

All St.George staff have a responsibility
and are encouraged to report any known
or suspected incidences of improper
conduct by making a protected disclosure
in accordance with the Whistleblower
Policy. It is the responsibility of all
St.George personnel 1o ensure the welfare
of the whistleblower, by refraining from
any activity that is, or could be percetved
to be, victimisation or harassment of

the whistleblower.

In compliance with Section 195 of the
Corporations Act 2001, any Director

who has a material personal interest in

a matter that is being considered at a
Directors’ meeting must not be present
while that matter is being considered and
must not vote on the matter. Furthermore,
any Director who has a conflict of interest
regarding any malter being considered by
the Directors will not receive a copy of
the paper dealing with the matter,

St.George trading policy

The Board has established guidelines
incorporating governance policies
which deal, arong other matiers, with
disclosure of interests by Directors

and limitations on dealing in the Bank's
financial products by Directors and
senor officers. A copy of the St.George
Trading Policy is available on the
St.George website.

Direclors and employees are encouraged
lo be long-term holders of the Bank's
financiai producis. Directors, senior
management and those members of

stail with access to markel-sensitive
information, however, are only permitted
to deal in the Bank's financial producs in
certain window periods {and then cnly if
they are not in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information), namely within
six weeks following the announcement of
the Bank's interim and final resulis and
within four weeks following the Bark's
Annual General Meeting or the issue of

a prospectus.

Any Director or employee wishing 1o buy
or sell ihe Bank’s financial products or
gxercise options over the Bank’s financial
products must advise the Chairman (in
the case of Direclors) or the Bank’s
Secretary (in the case of an employee)
of their intention to do so before buying
or selling the financial products or
exercising options. Any employee who is
a member of the Bark's Group Executive
Management team or its equivalent must
obtain the Bank's Managing Director’s
consent before entering into any financial
products which operate to limit the
economic risk of a halding in the

Bank's securities.
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Directors and employees must not buy or
sell the financial products or exercise their
options until approval has been given by
the Chairman, the Bank's Secretary or the
Managing Direclor {(as the case may be).

The Bank is also cbliged to advise
the ASX of Directors' dealings in its
financial progucts.

For the purposes of this Policy, ‘financial
products’ includes the Bank's shares and
debt securitigs, financial products issued
or created over its securities by third
parties, and associated products which
operate 1o limit the economic risk of a
holding in the Bank's securilies.

Directers are required to have
shareholdings in the Bank. Under the
Constitution, a Director's required
shareholding is no less than 500 shares.

Further information

As part of its cammitment to achieving
best practice in corporate governance,
St.George regularly reviews its corporate
governance policies and, where
appropriate, updates them. St.George has
a Corporate Governance seclion on its
website al www.sigeorge.com.au, where
there is information on its corporate
governance arrangements, including
copies of the relevant St.Gearge policies
and the Board and Comimittee Charters.
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Risk Management

The consolidated entity in its daily
operalions is exposed 10 a range of

risks including credit risk, liquidity risk,
market risk, banking book risk and
operational risk {including fraud, theft
and property damage). These risks are
managed through specialised commiliees
responsible for policy setting and
moenitoring and analysing risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential for loss
arising from a debtor or counterparty
failing to meet their financial contractual
obligations. This risk is inherent in the
consolidated entity's lending activities,
as well as transactions involving
derivatives and foreign exchange.

Credit risk is managed principally
through embedded controls upon
individual lending divisions and business
managers who are responsible for the
lending. Lending is carried cut within
the parameters of lending policies
(covering approvals, documentalion
and management), which have been
developed having regard to statistical data
and historical risk experience.

To maintain the quality of the lending
portfolio, prudential standards and lending
policies have been established throughout
ihe consalidated enlity.

Credit processes are typically structured
s0 that loan origination, approval,
document preparation, settlement and
account monitoring and control are
segregated to different individuals or
areas, Credit must be evaluated against
established credit policies and within
authorities and be structured, particularly
in terms of security, to be prudent for
the risk incurred.
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The Group Credit division assesses credit
beyond the lending authorities of business
divisions and/or outside normal Group
Credit policies or guidelines. This division
assesses specific provision requirements
where loan default has cccurred and also
controls the Loans Managemnent Unit,
which manages large impaired assets with
the aim of achieving the eptimum result
from such assets.

Through its credit inspection function,
Group Credit tests internal controls
and adherence 10 credit policies

and procedures which are standard
throughout the Group and contained
in credit manuals administered by
Group Credit.

The consolidated entity applies
standard credit risk assessment

criteria to all extensicns of credit, frem
credit scoring systems for basic retail
products (o complete credit assessment
for commercial and trade related
transactions.

Standard risk grading methodologies
for commercial lending are set at the
transaction level and will drive pricing.

The portfolio maintenance function

within Group Credit monitors and refines
proprietary risk grading syslems 1o ensure
engoing predictability.

Various prudential limits are in place
10 assist with the diversification of
the porifolio. These include limits on
counterparties, individual securilies
or developments, industries and
geographies. Prudential limits are
approved by the Bank's Board Risk
Management Committee.

Group Credit regularly reporis to the
Management Credit Committee and the
Board Risk Management Committee on
the status of large impaired assels, arrears
and trend anglysis, compliance reports,
portfolio analysis and all approvals above
$25 million.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the inability to meet
financial commitments when they fall due,

Liquidity risk arises from mismatches in
the cash flows from financial transactions.

Liquidity is managed to policies and
strategies determined by the Bank’s Asset
and Liability Committee (ALCO).

These include:

« maintaining a core of high-gqualily and
readily liquefiable securilies;

= sourcing the majority of funds from the
retail sector and committed medium-
term wholesale facilities;

» maintaining a diversified used funding
capacity in wholesale and retail
markets; and

= monitoring liquidity flows while quickly
identifying any anomalies.

Market risk

(a) Funding risk

Funding risk is the risk of over-reliance
on a particular funding source. The risks
associated with such a concentration
include volatility in funding costs

or availability.

To minimise funding risk, the consclidated
entily raises whelesale funds from

well diversified sources encompassing
both international and domestic

capital markets.

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from a variety of
sources including mismatches between
the repricing periods of assets and
liabilities. Movements in interest rates
can affect earnings and the value of the
consolidated entity. Interest rate risk
management policy aims to minimise
fluctuations in earnings over time from
volatility in movements in interest rates
while maximising shareholder value.



(i) Interest rate risk in non-trading
activities

Accrual accounted interest rate risk is
monritored by the Bank’s Balance Sheet
Risk Management unit to ensure that
aggregate exposure to interest rate risk
is contained within policy guidelines,
defined limits and strategic objectives set
by ALCO.

The "gap position’ between on and

off balance sheet assets and liabilities
repricing is managed with derivative
products, particularly swaps and options,
and on balance sheet strategies.

Interest rate risk also arises from the
impact of interest rate changes on

pricing relationships between retail and
wholesale assets and liabilities. The risk is
manitored through simulation modelling
which estimates the impacl on net inleres!
earnings and value due to changes in
interest rates and/or the size and mix of
the balance sheet.

The simulation mode! integrales risk
parameters, product design and pricing
policies and balance sheet and yield
curve forecasts. The model’s key
assumptions are regularly reviewed

to take account of both historical
relationships and the current competitive
and interest rate environment.

(ii) Market risk from trading activities
Market risk is the potential for losses
arising from adverse movements in the
level of market faclors such as foreign
exchange rates, interest rates cr exchange
rate volatilities. Trading activities give rise
10 market risk. This risk is controlled by
an overall risk management framework
that ingorporates a number of market
risk measurements including value at risk
(VaR). VaR is a statistical estimate of the
potential loss that could be incurred if
the Bank's trading positions were
maintained for a defined period of time.
A confidence level of 99 per cent is used
at St.George; this implies that for every
100 days, the loss will not exceed the VaR
limit of 99 of those days. VaR is not an
estimate of the maximum loss the trading
activities could incur from an extreme
market event.

VaR measurements are supplemented

by a series of stress 1ests that are used

to capiure the possibility of extreme
events or market shocks. Additionally, the
market risk framework includes enforcing
stoploss limits on all portfolios, basis
point sensitivity limits, specific opticns
limits and control of large or unusual
trading activity.

St.George uses Maonte Carlo simulation
to calculate VaR. This model takes into
account all relevant market variables,
Itis approved by APRA for regulatary
purposes and is operated within the
overall framework outlined in the
APRA Prudential Standards. Actual and
hypothetical profit and loss outcomes are
monitored against VaR on a daily basis
as part of the model validation process.
Hypethetical profit and loss involves
holding a portfolio constant, thereby
excluding any intraday trading activity.

Operational risk

Operatienal risk is the risk of loss,
including reputation, resulting from failed
inernal processes, people and systems or
from external events. The operational risk
management function ensures the Group
has appropriate controls to mitigate
potential cperational risks.

Vartous techniques are utilised by the
operational risk management functions
to manage, mitigate, monitor and report
on operational risk exposures, related
controls and the trends associated

with various key risk indicators.

A documented framework includes
policy and procedures expected of the
operational risk management functicns
within the Bank.

The operational risk function facilitates
informed decision making and promotes
a consistent risk culture within the Group.
The Group intends to implement ihe
Advanced Measurement Approach under
Basel Il to calculate operational

risk capital.
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Derivative financial instruments

Definition

A derivalive is a financial insirument
praviding the holder with the ability to
pariicipate in some or all of the price
changes of an underlying financial asset,
reference rate or index.

Swaps

A swap is an agreement between

wo parties 1o exchange obligations
periodically, based on an underlying
financial asset, reference rate or index.

Options

An option is g contract that grants the
holder the right, but not the obligation,
to buy or sell the underlying asset at a
specific price on a specified date.

Business continuity and planning

St.George's business recovery policy
Business continuity management is 3 key
component of St.George's sustainability,
ensuring the Group can respond to and
recover from major incidents. The Bank’s
Business Recovery Plans document a
coordinated respense to facilitate the
recovery of critical business processes
and services in the event of major damage
or loss of service.
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5 Year Financial Summary

Full AIFRS Previous GAAP
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Statement of Financial Performance
Interest Income $m 6,814 5916 4,116 3,434 3,004
Interest Expense Sm 4,799 4,055 2,504 1983 1,731
Net Interest Income Sm 2,015 1,851 1.612 1451 1,333
Cther Income Sm 994 860 975 910 852
Bad and Doubtful Debts Expense Sm 144 128 Nz 102 87
Operating Expenses Sm 1,356 1,296 1,342 1,278 1,429
Share of Net Proiit/{Loss) of Equity Accounted Associates $m - 3 2 (3) (0
Profit before Income Tax $m 1,509 1,300 1,135 978 568
Income Tax Expense S 445 399 372 325 240
Profit after Income Tax Sm 1,064 S01 763 653 428
Net {Loss)/Profit Attributable to Minority Interests $m (4} (s {4 {5 1
Net Profit Attributable to Members of the Bank Sm 1,068 906 767 658 427
Preference Dividends Sm 20 17 50 52 58
Profit Available to Ordinary Shareholders Sm 1,048 834 717 606 369
Return on Average Assels
- before goodwill impairment /amortisation, significant items and non-trading derivalives % 1.05 1.03 1.30 1.3 1.26
- after goodwill impairment/amortisation, significant items and non-trading derivatives % 1.07 1.03 114 113 0.80
Return on Average Ordinary Equity
- before goodwill impairment/amortisation, significant items and non-trading derivatives % 22.91 2210 2142 20.30 19.54
- after goodwill impairment/amortisation, significant items and non-trading derivatives % 23.40 21.92 18.73 17.23 173
Return on Average Risk Weighted Assets % .03 2.00 1.92 1.91 1.38
Operating Expenses as a % of Average Assets ™ % 1.31 1.45 1.82 2.00 213
Expense 10 Income Ratio " % 44.0 471 475 45.6 52.4
(1) Before goodwill impairment /amortisation, signiticant items and non-trading derivatives
Net interest margin % Zn 2.21 270 2.76 2.80
Statutory
Full AIFRS AIFRS Previous GAAP
Statement of Financial Position
Total Assets Sm 107,002 92,359 69,560 62,714 55,004
Liquids and Treasury Securitics $m 9,996 3,451 7166 6,523 6,822
Loans and Other Receivables $in 81,516 72,949 54,782 48,904 42 767
Other Assels Sm 15,490 9,959 8.012 7,287 5415
Tetal Liabilities $m 101,659 86,972 64,931 58,349 51,166
Deposits and Other Borrowings $m 54,633 49175  46.083 457291 38,394
Bonds and Notes and Loan Capital $m 36,625 27.874 11,388 6.628 8,305
Other Liabilities Sm 10,401 9923 7,460 6,430 4,467
Total Sharcholders' Equity $m 5,343 5,387 5,029 4,365 3,838
Shareholders’ Equity as % of Tolal Assels % 4.99 5.83 719 6.96 6.98
Capital Adequacy
- Tier 1 Capital Y% 6.9 73 7.3 7.2 75
-Tier 2 Capital % 4.0 3.9 39 3.2 34
- Less: Deductions % o1 0.1} (0.1 (0.1} (0.1}
Total % 10.8 111 1na 10.3 10.8
Risk Weighted Assets $m 52,982 47564 42,581 36903 32,495
Receivables
Residential $m 62,697 56,292 39,273 34,991 30,527
Commercial $m 12,323 11,981 11,447 10,202 8975
Consumer Sm 6,120 4,719 4,070 3,610 3,104
Other Sm 644 176 201 277 313
Receivables before Collective/General Provision ul 81,784 73,168 54,99 46,080 42,919
Collective/General Provision Sm 268 219 209 176 152
Net Leans and Other Receivables Sm 81,516 72,949 54,782 48904 42,767
Full AIFRS Previous GAAP
Share Information
Dividend per Ordinary Share
- Interim Cents 74 67 50 45 38
- Final Cenls 77 70 62 50 42
Total Cents 1 137 122 95 80
Earnings per Ordinary Share
Basic
- before goodwill impairment/amortisation, significant items and nan-trading derivatives  Cents 195.8 173.1 160.8 142.2 124.7
- after goodwill impairment /amortisation, significant items and non-irading derivatives Cents 199.9 171.7 140.6 120.7 74.8
Ciluted
- before goodwill impairmentfomaortisation, significant items and non-trading derivatives  Cents 194.4 171.8 160.0 141.7 124.1
- after goodwill impairment/amortisation, significant items and non-trading derivatives Cents 198.4 170.5 1403 120.3 76.0
Dividend Payout Ratio % 75.7 80.0 87.4 79.2 107.6
Net Tangible Assels per Ordinary Share $ 6.73 6.01 5.58 4.86 3.68
Other Statistics
Branches 390 390 391 404 406
Staff 7,949 7.880 7,541 7325 7,342
Assets per Staff Sm 13.5 1.7 93 8.6 75
Stafi per $m Assels 0.07 0.09 on 012 013
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The financial statements and other specific disclosures are an extract of, and have been derived
from the St.George Bark Limited and its Controlled Entities (“Group™) Full Financial Report for the
financial year. Other information included in the Concise Financtal Report is consistent with the
Group's Full Financisl Report.

The Concise Financial Reporl does not, and cannct be expected 1o, provide as full an
understanding of the financial performance, financial position and financing and investing
activities of the Group as the Full Financial Report.

A copy of the Group's 2008 Full Financial Report, including the independent audil report,
is available to all shareholders, and will be seni to sharcholders without charge upon requést.
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Remuneration Report continued

shares to be transferred 10 the Managing
Director. The awards will be forfeited if the
Managing Dircctor leaves her employment
with the Bank before the end of the threc
year period and the dividend payments
will cease. In circummstances where the
Board exercises iis discretion 1o waive

this condition, for example, redundancy,
retircment or death, the shares held on
trust wili be transferred to her at the end
of the relevant three year period or earlier
st the Board's discretion;

(3) payment of termination benefits - there
is no specific entitlernent (¢ receive a
payment if the Bank is acquired, except
for a bona fide takeover where the options
and awards become cxercisable (refer
point (4)) or where there is a material
diminution in the Managing Direclor’s
role or responsibilities {refer point {8}).
STl shares held in trust may be transferred
to the Managing Director ai the Board's
discretion (refer point (2)};

—
=

1,000,000 options were granted

on 12 December 2001, subject to
performance conditions and vest over

4.5 years from the grant date. The first
tranche of 250,000 options vested and
were exercised on 23 November 2004,
The second tranche of 250,000 options
vested and were exercised on 7 November
2005. The third tranche of 500,000
options vested and were exercisable

from 12 lune 2006. On 1 October 2004,
500,000 options and 57,600 awards were
granted, subject to periormance conditions
as outlined in section A10. The first
tranche of 125,000 options and 14,400
awards vested and were exercisable from
30 September 2006. The second tranche
of 125,000 options and 14,400 awards
will be assessed on 30 Seplember 2007
and the final tranche of 250,000 options
and 28,800 awards will be asscssed on

30 September 2008. These oplions and
awards are exercisable at the discretion of
the Board if a bona fide takeover bid for
the 8ank becemes uncenditional;

—
(5]
-

should the Managing Director terminate
the service agreement (unless she does

so because there has been s material
diminution in her rale and responsibilities),
she will only receive statutory entitlements;

=
o

should the Bank terminate the scrvice
agreement because of a breach by
the Managing Director, only statutory
entitlements will be payable;
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{7) should the Bank 1erminate the service
agreement for reasons other than a breach
by the Managing Director, an amount
equal (o the base annual remuneration
then applying is payable by the Bank;

8

feg

should the Managing irccter terminale
the contract because there has been

a material diminution in her role and
responsibilities, an amount equal to
twice her base annual remuneration then
applying will be payable by the Bank as
well as statutory entitlements;

(5) in situstions (7) and (8), the Bank must
alse pay the Managing Director an amount
as approved by the Board to reflect both
the Managing Director's performance
and that of the Bank against the KPls
established by the Board for paying her
STI. In addition, should situation (7} or
{8) ocour, then within 12 months of that
occurrence, the Managing Director will
also be entitled 1o exercise some or all of
those awards and options referred 1o in
point (4) ahove, subject to satisfaction of
relevant performance conditions relating
10 Earnings Per Share (EPS} and/or Total
Shareholder Return (TSR) as applicable;

(10} the notice periods for terminaticn without
cause of the agreement relating to the
Managing Director's employment are:

(a) by the Board - twelve months; and

(b) by the Managing Dircctor - six months.

Group Executives’ At Risk Remuneration
The remuneration of the Group Executives
comprises base remuneration and at risk
remyneration. At risk remuneration includes
both short and long term incentives. The
Long Term Incentive (LTI} is delivered under
the Executive Performance Share Plan
(Performance Plan) and Executive Option
Plan {Option Plan).

STIA and STID

Each year, the Managing Director sets the
KPIs in the form of a Balanced Scorecard for
1he Group Executives that the Commitice
recommends for approval by the Board.

The KPIs generally include measures relating
to the Group. the Division and the individual,
and include Financial, Customer, People,
Risk and Compliance and Strategy oulcomes.
The KPIs have been chosen because they
directly align the individual's rewards ta the
key performance drivers of the Group that
are sel at the beginning of the financial year.
In 2ll cases, these KPIs are transparent,
chailenging and relevant to the Group's
strategy and performance.

At the end of the financizl year, the Committee
assesses the octual performance of the
Group, the Division-and the individual against
the KPIs set al the beginning of the financial
year. Based on the outcome, the Commitice
then recommends the STIA and STID to be
paid 10 the Group Executives for approval

by the Board. This method of assessment
was chosen as it provides the Committee
with an objective assessment of the Group
Executives’ performance.

Once the Board has approved the STIA

and STID amounts, the STIA is paid to the
participant as cash or salary sacrificed into
superannuation or shares (at the individual's
election). The STID is satistied through the
granting of an award under the Performance
Plan. Shares 10 satisfy this grant are purchased
on market, held in trust and restricted from
sale for a period of three years from the gran
date. The Group Executive will be entitled

1o receive dividend distribution payments
following the Board's determination. The grant
date for the STID is 1 October each year, being
the commencement of the STID perfermance
period, though the Group Executive must
remain an employee of the Bank for the
duration of the Whree year peried in order

for the beneficial interest in the shares to be
transferred to the Group Executive. The STID
will be forfeited if the Group Executive leaves
the Bank before the end of the three year
vesting period and the dividend distribution
payment will cease. In circumstances where
the Board exercises its discretion to waive this
condition, for example, redundancy, retirement
or death, the shares held on trust will be
transierred at the end of the relevant three year
period or earlier at the Board's discretion,

LTI

LTls are provided by participation in the
Performance and Option Plans, both
appraved by shareholders on 3 February
1998. LTI allocations are subject to tenure
ang performance hurdles established by
the Commitiee and approved by the Board
from time to time.

The existing performance conditions are
based on the achievement of EPS and TSR
outcomes over the measurement period,
and provide for substantial growth in
St.George's EPS as well as an appropriate
market focused TSR hurdle.

An gverview of the performance
conditions for cach grant of awards and
options impacling remuncraticn in the
2006 and 2005 years are outlined in
section A1Q.
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Other Senior Exccutives - At Risk Remuneration
Other senior executives’ remuneration comprises base and at risk remuneration. At risk remuneration includes both Shart and Medium Term
Incentives (MT1), The MTl is delivered under the Performance Plan.

Each year, participants have KPls established in the form cf a Balanced Scorecard. The KPis include measures relating to 5t.Gearge and the individual
and include Financial, Customer, People, Risk and Compliance and Strategy outcomes.

The performance against the Balanced Scorecard is used 1o determine both the quantum of the STIA and STID to be paid and the number of awards that
will be granted 10 the executive under the MTI. The grant date for purposes of establishing the five day VIWAP of S1.George shares awarded under the MTI
is T October each year, being the commencement of the performance period that the MTt s being assessed against.

Individual performance outcomes against Balanced Scorecard KPls are assessed at the end of the fingncial year and payment recommendations
submitted to the Managing Director for approval. Once the Managing Director has approved individual STIA and STID cutcomes, the STIAis paid to
the participant 2s cash or salary sacrificed into superannuation or shares at the individual's election. The STID will only be paid if the executive remains
employed one year from the end of the performance period.

The MTI component of the incentive plan is subject to the same performance measures outlined in the LTI, being EPS and TSR. The exercise conditions
provide for substantial growth in St.George’s EPS as well as market based comparative 1SR performance.

A5 - Relationship of ncentives to the Group’s Financial Performance - unaudited
Perfarmance conditions for payment of any STIA or STID comprise a mix of financial and non-financial measurcs. The financial measures include targets
for operating profit after tax, revenue growth, cost centrol, and financial ratios, and are tailored 1o the executive's responsibilities and accountabilities,

LTI performance conditions comprise the Group's financial measures including EPS and/or TSR hurdles. The hurdles are measured from the grant date
and arc tested over the vesting period. If the hurdles are not achicved on the prescribed cxercise date, they are capable of being retested up to the
final prescribed exercise date of the final tranche of the options or awards.

The Board considers that the above incentives are linked to and foster the achievement of the desired financial outcomes for the Group. The success
of these incentive arrangements is demonstrated by the Group's strong growth in operating profil after tx in recent years and improvements in key
financial ratios, resulting in increases in shareholder returns.

The improved financial performance and benefits for shareholder wealth derived from the Group's executive incentive arrangements are
demonstrated in the following results:

Previous Previous Previous

‘ , AGAAP AGAAP AGAAP

Year Ended 30 Seplember 2006 (i) 2005 ™) 2004 2003 2002
EPS () (cents) 195.8 177.5 160.8 142.2 124.7
Annual EPS Growth (i) (94} 10.3 10.4 131 14.0 227
Dividends per Share {cents) 151 137 122 95 80
Share Price Increase ) ($) 2.35 6.04 1.36 2.79 2.52

i) Before goodwill impairment and significant items. The 30 September 2006 year also excludes non-trading derivatives and hedging fair value movements.
i) Share price movement during the financial year.
i} EPS and EPS growth are not measured on 3 like for like basis as 30 September 2005 EPS excludes the impact of AIFRS financial instruments standards adopted
from 1 October 2005.
iv) EPSand EPS growth are not measured on a like for like basis compared to 30 September 2004, which has been prepared on a previous GAAP basis.
A6 - Service Agreements - Group Executives - audited
The Bank has entered into service agreements with each Group Executive that provide for the payment of benefits where the service agreement is
terminated by the Bank or the Group Execulive. The service agreements are not fixed term and generally provide for the following:
(1} where the Bank terminates the service agreement other than for misconduct, then a payment of between 12 and 15 months base remuncration is
payable by the Bank depending upen the conditions of each individual service agreement as well as statutory eniitlements;
{2) where the Group Executive terminates the service agreement because of a material diminution in his/her rale or respansibility, then in addition to
point (1) a further amount will be payable by the Bank as detailed below:
(a) 7 weeks base remuneration in respect of the first year of the Group Executive's service or part thereof; and
(b} 4 weeks base remuneration for each additional ycar's service between 2-10 years; and
{c) 3 weeks base remuneration for each additional year's service between 11-16 years; and
(d) 2 weeks base remuneration for each additional year's service between 17-25 years; and
(e) an additicnal 1 weck's base remuneration for each year of service where the executive is age 45 years or more;
provided any such payment does not exceed the maximum of 104 weeks of base remuneration;
(3) where the Group Executive is terminated immediately and without natice for misconduct, statutory entitlements cnly are payable.
Group Executives who exit the Bank during a given performance year (1 October to 30 September) will generally not receive an STIA or STID payment
for that year except in the circumstances of redundancy, retirement or death. In those circumstances a pro-rata payment may be made based upon
the length of service during the performance year and their performance.
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LTI grants are generally forfeited where the Group Executive resigns or is dismissed. In circumstances of redundancy, retirement or death, the Group
Executive or their estate, may be entitled to exercisc some or all of the awards and options that have been granted, subject to satisfaction of relevan
pesformance conditions refating Lo EPS and/or TSR as applicable.

The name, position held, employment commencement date and resignation date (where applicable} of the Bank's Group Executives are as follows:

Name Posilion Employment Commencement Date
Current
G Bartlett Group Executive - institutional and Business Banking 8 march 1982
R Chapman Managing Director BankSA 1july 2002
P Clare Group Executive - Strategy 25 February 2002
P Fegan Group Executive - Wealth Management and Retail Financial Services 22 July 2002
D Gall Group Executive - Retail Business 17 April 1989
] Loebenstcin Group Executive - Information Technglogy 20 February 1995
S McKerihan Chief Financial Officer 4 November 1985
B wWright Group Executive - Human Resources 3 July 2000
Former
A Thorburn Group Executive - Personal Customers {resigned 1 December 2004) 24 june 2002
A7 - Remuneration of Group Executives - audited
Details of the nature and amount of each major element ¢f remuneration for St.George’s Group Executives are as follows:
Post
Leng lerm £mployment
«————— Short Term Beneiits Benefits Benefits Share Based Payments
Base Short Term  Non Monetary  Long Service  Superannuation
Remtneration Incentive Benefits Leave  Contributions Options Shares
$'000 {A) () (cl {0} 0 () (@) () Total
2006
G Bartlett © 1) 706 650 10 49 12 102 253 1,782
R Chapman 503 450 - 15 12 81 139 1,200
P Clare 631 450 - 13 12 134 17 1,357
P Fegan ® 733 743 , 14 2 106 333 1.941
D Gall® 626 450 2 a5 12 93 123 1,341
) Loebenstein 626 400 - 19 12 55 179 1,297
S McKerihan ) 830 550 - 46 12 89 288 1,815
B Wright 571 375 - 13 12 107 82 1,160
5,226 4,068 12 204 96 767 1,514 11,887
2005
G Bartlett (B140) 597 600 9 28 12 106 137 1,489
R Chapman 468 400 - 16 2 78 63 1,037
P Clare 50 400 - 11 12 14 58 1,096
P Fegan (1) 637 650 - 13 12 97 186 1,595
D Gall 323 305 3 53 7 23 59 771
) Loebenstein 536 360 - 8 12 45 125 1,096
S McKerihan (0 726 475 - 35 12 70 194 1,512
B Wright 524 325 - 12 12 86 45 1,004
4,310 3,515 12 186 91 619 867 9,600
A Thorburn
{resigned 1 December 2004} 131 - - - 2 - - 133
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(A) Base remuneration comprises cash salary, available salary package options grossed-up by related Iringe benefits tax where applicable and annual
leave cxpense

(B) The Short Term Cash Incentive relates to the Group Exceutives’ performance in the nominated financial year.

{C) Includes the benclit relating to &n intcrest frec loan provided to Mr G Bartlett and Mr D Gall. £xcludes insurance premiums paid in respect of officers’
ligbility insurance contracts. The premium paid has not been allocated to individual officers covered by the insurance policy os, based on all available
information, the Directors consider that ne reasenable basis for such allocation exisis.

(D) Represents the long service leave expense recognised during the financial year.

(£) Includes applicable Superannuation Guarantec Charge. Fur Group Executives with defined benefit fund entitlements, includes the allocation of the expense
for the year determined in accordance with AASB 119: Employee Benefits. Mr G Bartleit and Mr § McKerihan are members of the defined benefit section of
the Bank's defined contribution superannuaticn plan. Their contributions are presently lunding their entitlements under this Plan.

(F) The fair value of aplions is calculated at the grant date using the Binomial method. The number of options used to determing the share based remuneration
value is adjusted for estimated forfeilure and then further adjusied lor actual forfeiture aver the vesting period. The resullant expense is allocated evenly Lo
each reporting period over the period frem the grant date to the prescribed exercise date. Tne iollowing faclors were used in determining the fair value of
options on the grant date:

Grant Date Date first Fair value Exercise  Price of sharcs Estimated Risk-free Dividend Expected

cxercisable per option price  ongrant dute volatility interest rate yield life (ycars)
$ 3 $ Y% % %

1-0ct-2003 30-Sep-2006 210 20.40 20.32 17.20 4.92 4.28 3.5

1-0cl-2003 30-Sep-2007 212 20.40 20.32 17.20 4.98 4.28 4.5

i-Oct-2004 30-5ep-2006 1.92 21.70 22.01 15.00 5.25 5.70 2.5

1-Oct-2004 30-Sep-2007 2.07 21.70 22.01 15.00 5.25 5.70 3.5

1-Oct-2004 30-Sep-2008 N 21.70 220 15.00 5.25 570 4.5

1-Mar-2005 30-5ep-2006 214 24.56 24.67 15.00 5.50 5.30 2.0

1-Mar-2005 30-8ep-2007 2.44 24.56 24.67 15,00 550 5.30 3.0

1-Mar-2005 30-Sep-2008 2.61 24.56 24.67 15.00 5.50 5.30 4.0

1-0ct-2003 30-Sep-2007 2.34 28.01 27.89 14.50 528 5.03 25

1-Oci-2005 30-Sep-2008 2.63 28.01 27.89 14.50 5.30 5.03 3.5

1-Oct-2005 30-Sep-2009 2.87 28.01 27.89 14.50 5.32 5.03 4.5
In accordance with the clection available under AASB 2: Share Based Payments, only options granted on or siter 7 November 2002 that vest on or after
1 January 2005 have beenincluded in remuneration.

{G) The fair value of awards is determingd as follows:

(1) Awards granted on 1 October 2003

- Awards with non-market related performance condition components have their fair value determined using the share price on the grant date.

- Awards with markel related performance condition componcnts have their fair value determined using the binomial mcthod at the grant date.
(2) Awards granted after 1 Qctober 2003

- These gwards require cither an EPS or TSR performance hurdle to be satisfied. The fair value is determined using the share price at the grant date.

The fair valug is discounted for the present value of dividends not reccived during the vesting period.

The number of shares used to determine sharc based remuneration is adjusted for estimated forfeiture at the grant date and then further adjusted over the
vesting period for actual forfeiiure. The resultant expense is allocated evenly Lo each reporting period over the period from the grant dale to the prescribed
exercisce date.
In accordance with the election available under AASB 2: Share Based Payments, only awards granted on or after 7 November 2002 that vested on or after
1Januvary 2005 have been included in remuneration.

{H) Includes the fair value of shares allotted under the Employee Reward Share Plan (Reward Plan) dusing the year. The Reward Plon provides eligible employees
with up to $1,000 of ordinary shares per annum at no cosl.

(1) Five highest paid oificers of the Bank.

In the year ended 30 September 2006, Group Execulives became entitled Lo receive between 100% and 113% of their STIA oppertunity and between
100% and 113% of their STID opportunity for that year (30 September 2005; entitlement was between 100% and 115% of the STIA opportunity for
those Group Executives who had not departed the Bank).
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Details of Remuneration - unaudited
(1) Short Term Incentives Annual {STIA)

Details of the vesting profile of the STIA awarded to each Group Executive on 26 October 2006 in respect of their performance in the 2006 year

are as follows:

Included in

remuneration % Vested % Forieited
Group Executive $ 000 (A) in year in year ()
G Bartlett 650 100 -
R Chapman 450 100 -
P Clare 450 100 -
P Fegan 743 100 -
D Gall 450 100 -
) Loebenstein 400 100 -
S McKerihan 550 100 -
B wright 375 100 -

{A} Amounts included in remuneration for the financial year represent the amount that vested during the financial year based on the achievement of
performance criteria established at the beginning of the financial year. No amounts vest in future financial years in respect of the 2006 STIA,

(B) There were ne amounts forfeited due to perfarmance criteria not being satisfied during the 2006 financial year.

(2) Short Term Incentives Deferred {STID)

Details of the vesting profile of the STID awarded 1o each Group Executive on 26 October 2006 in respect of their perfermance in the 2006 year

are as [ollows:

Included in
remuncration % Vested % Forfeited value yet Lo vest (3B
Group Executive $ (A Vesting date in year in year Min Max
G Bartleti 71,092 30-Sgp-2008 - - - 213,276
R Chapman 35,545 30-Sep-2008 - - - 106,635
P Clare 53,318 30-Sep-2C08 - - - 159,554
P Fegan 104,264 30-Sep-2008 - - - 312,792
D Gall 63,192 30-Sep-2008 - - - 189,576
) Loebenstein 39,500 30-Sep-2008 - - - 118,500
S McKerihan 63,192 30-Sep-2008 - - - 189,578
B wright 31,600 30-5ep-2008 - - - 94,800

(A) The STID plan was introduced with effect from 1 October 2005. An STID opportunity amaunt is cstablished at the beginning of the financial year for each
Group Exccutive. Actual entitlement is delermined at the end of the financial year subject to salisfying predetermined KPIs. The STID is satislied through
the granting of an award under the Performance Plan. Shares to satisfy this grant will be purchased on market and held in trust and restricted from sale for
a period of three years from the grant date. The Group Execulive must be an employee of the Bank at the end of this thre¢ year peried in order for the

beneficial interest to be transierred to the Group Executive.

(B) The minimum value of the STID yet te vest is $nil as the Group Executive will nol receive their STID if they do not satisfy applicable tenure hurdles.

The maximum amount represents the fair value ef the STID entitlement, calculaled in accordance with AASB 2: Share Based Payment that relates to

future years.

(3) Share Based Payments

Details of the vesting profile of options and awards granted as remuneration to each Group Executive that affect remuneration in the

30 September 2006 year or future financial years is as follows:

Oplions

Number % Vested % Forfeited Value yel to vest {3)
Group Executive granted Date in year in year Vesting date Min Max
G Bartlett 38,548 1-Qct-2003 50 - 30-Sep-2006 - 40,475
38.548 1-0c1-2003 - - 30-5ep-2007 - 81.722
18,000 1-0c¢t-2004 100 - 30-Sep-2006 - -
18,000 1-Oct-2004 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 37260
18,000 1-Oct-2004 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 39,780
14,564 1-0ct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 34,080
12,500 1-Oct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 32,875
11,364 1-0ct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2009 - 32,615
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Options
Number % Vested % Foricited Value yet to vest ($)
Group Executive granied Dote inyear in year Vesting date Min Maox
R Chupman 25184 1-0ct-2003 50 - 30-Sep-2006 - 26,443
25184 1-0ct-2003 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 53,390
16,668 1-Qct-2004 100 - 30-Sep-2006 - -
16,668 1-0ct-2004 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 34,503
16,668 1-0ct-2004 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 36,836
12,136 1-0ct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 28,398
10,418 1-0ct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 27,399
9,470 1-Qet-2005 - - 30-Sep-2009 - 27179
P Clare 30,838 1-0¢1-2003 50 - 30-Sep-2006 - 32,380
30.838 1-0ct-2003 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 65,377
30,334 1-0ct-2004 100 - 30-Sep-2006 - -
30,334 1-Oct-2004 - - 30-5ep-2007 - 62,79
30,334 1-0c1-2004 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 67,038
72,654 1-0¢t-2005 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 53.010
19,446 1-Qci-2005 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 51,143
17,678 1-0¢1-2005 - - 30-Sep-2009 - 50,736
P Fegan 30,04 1-0ci-2003 50 - 30-Sep-2006 - 31,609
30,104 1-0ct-2003 - - 30-5ep-2007 - 63,820
22,000 1-0ct-2004 100 - 30-Sep-2006 - -
22,000 1-0c1-2004 - - 30-S¢p-2007 - 45,540
22,000 1-0c1-2004 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 48,620
16,992 1-Qct-2005 - 30-5¢cp-2007 - 39,761
14,584 1-0¢ct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 38.356
13.258 1-Oct-2005 - - 30-5ep-2009 - 38,050 |
D Gall 15,786 +-Mar-2005 00 - 30-Sep-2006 - -
15,786 1-Mar-2005 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 38,518
15,786 1-Mar-2005 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 41,201
25.890 1-Oct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 60,583
22,224 1-Qct-2005 - - 30-5ep-2008 - 58,448
20,204 1-0¢1-2005 - - 30-Sep-2009 - 57,985
J Loebenstein 12,336 1-0ct-2003 50 - 30-Sep-2006 - 12,953
12,336 1-0ct-2003 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 26,152
12,000 1-0ct-2004 100 - 30-Sep-2006 - -
12,000 1-0c1-2004 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 24,840
12,000 1-Oct-2004 - 30-5¢p-2008 - 76,520
¢.710 1-Q¢t-2005 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 22721
8,334 1-0ct1-2005 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 21,918
7576 1-0¢1-2005 - - 30-Sep-2009 - 21,743
S McKerihan 18,724 1-Qct-2003 50 - 30-5ep-2006 - 19,660
18,724 1-0ct-2003 - - 30-Scp-2007 - 39,695
19,000 1-0ct-2004 100 - 30-8ep-2006 - -
19,000 1-Oct-2004 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 39.330
19,000 1-0ct-2004 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 41,990
16,992 1-0c1-2005 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 39,761
14,584 1-Oct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 38.356
13,258 1-Oct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2009 - 38,050
B wright 23128 1-0ct-2003 50 - 30-Sep-2006 - 24,284
23128 1-Oct-2003 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 49,031
23,334 1-0ct-2004 100 - 30-Sep-2006 - -
23,334 1-0¢t-2004 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 48,301
23,334 1-0ci-2004 - - 30-Scp-2008 - 51,568
19,324 1-0ct-2005 - - 30-5ep-2007 - 46,388
17,004 1-Qct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 44 747
15,468 1-0ct-2005 - - 30-5en-2009 - 44,39L

ST.GEORGE BANK CONCISE FINANCIAL REPORT 2006




62

St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entitics

Directors’ Report

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Remuneration Report continued

Awards

Number % Vested % Forfeited Value yet 1o vest {$)
Group Executive granted Dale in year inyear Vesting dote Min Max
G Bartlett 1,840 1-0ct-2003 50 - 30-Sep-2006 - 12,558
1,840 1-0¢t-2003 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 29,836
4,840 1-0c1-2004 100 - 30-Sep-2006 - -

4,840 1-0ct-2004 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 106,528

4,840 1-0ct-2004 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 106,528

2.500 1-Oct-2005 - - 3G-Sep-2007 - 62,975
2,500 1-0c1-2005 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 59,825

2,500 1-0ct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2009 - 56,875
34 18-Nov-2005 100 - 18-Nov-2005 - -

® Chapman 1202 1-0ct-2003 50 - 30-Sep-2006 - 8,204
1,202 {-0ct-2003 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 19,490
1,920 1-0ct-2004 100 - 30-Sep-2006 - -

1,920 1-0ct-2004 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 42,259
1,920 i-0cl-2004 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 42,259
2,084 1-Oct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 52,496
2,084 1-0¢t-2005 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 49,870

2.084 1-0ct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2009 - 47,111
34 18-Nov-2005 100 - 18-Nov-2005 - -
P Clare 1472 1-0¢1-2003 50 - 30-Sep-2006 - 10,046
1,472 1-0¢t-2003 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 23.868
1,498 1-0c1-2004 100 - 30-Sep-2006 - -

1,498 1-0c1-2004 - - 3G-Sep-2007 - 32,971

1,498 1-0e1-2004 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 32,974
716 i-Oct-2005 - - 30-5ep-2007 - 18,036

716 +0c1-2005 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 17,134
716 1-0¢t-2005 - - 30-Sep-2009 - 16,289
34 18-Nov-2005 100 - 18-Nov-2005 - -

P Fegan 3.350 1-0ct-2003 50 - 30-Sep-2006 - 22,863
3,350 1-0ct-2003 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 54,320
5,914 1-0c1-2004 00 - 30-Sep-2008 - -
5914 i-Oct-2004 - - 30-5ep-2007 - 130,167
55914 1-0¢1-2004 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 130,167
2916 1-0ct-2005 - - 30-5ep-2007 - 73,454
2916 1-0¢1-2005 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 69,780
2,916 1-0¢i-2005 - - 30-Sep-2009 - 66,339
34 18-Nov-2005 100 - 18-Nov-2005 - B
D Gall 2.286 1-0c¢t-2003 50 - 30-Sep-2006 - 15,602
718 1-Mar-2005 100 - 30-Sep-2006 - -
718 1-Mar-2005 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 17,713
718 1-Mar-2005 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 17.713
1,072 1-0ct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 27,004
1,072 1-0ct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 25,653
1,072 1-0ct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2009 - 24,388
34 18-Nov-2005 100 - 18-Nov-2005 - -
) Locbensiein 3.204 1-0c1-2003 50 - 30-Sep-2006 - 21,867
3,204 1-0ct-2003 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 51952
3.226 1-0ct-2004 100 - 30-Sep-2006 - -

3,226 1-0ct-2004 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 71,004

3,226 1-0¢1-2004 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 71.004
1,668 1-0ct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 42,017

1,668 1-0ct-2005 - - 30-5ep-2008 - 39915

1,668 1-0ct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2009 - 37,947
34 18-Nov-2005 100 - 18-Nov-2005 - -
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Number % Vesled % Forfeited Value yel to vest ($)
Group Executive granted Date in year in year Vesting date Min Max
S McKerihan 4,862 1-0ct-2003 50 - 30-Sep-2006 - 33,183
4,862 1-0¢t-2003 - - 30-8ep-2007 - 78,837
5,108 1-0ct-2004 100 - 30-Sep-2006 - -

5108 1-0ct-2004 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 12,427

5108 1-Oct-2004 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 12,427

296 1-0ct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 73,454

2916 1-Oct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 69,780
2916 1-0ct-2005 - - 30-Sep-2009 - 66,339
34 18-Nov-2005 180 - 18-Nov-2005 - -
B Wright 1104 1-0cet-2003 50 - 30-Sep-2006 - 7.535
1,104 1-0ct-2003 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 17,901
1152 1-Oct-2004 100 - 30-Sep-2006 - -
1,152 1-Oct-2004 - - : 30-Sep-2007 - 25,356
1152 1-0ct-2004 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 25.356
626 1-Ccl-2005% - - 30-Sep-2007 - 15,769
626 1-Oct-2005 - - 30-5ep-2008 - 14,980
626 1-0ct-2005 - - 30-S¢p-2009 - 14,242
34 18-Nov-2005 00 - 18-Nov-2005 - -

The maximum vaiue represents the proportion of the fair value of the options and awards granted in the 30 September 2006 year and prior financial
years that relates to future financial years. The minimum value of options and awards vet to vest is $nil as the applicable performance hurdles may
not be satisfied and consequently the options or awards may not vest.

(4) Proportion of Rermuneration at Risk
Details of the proportion of remuneration at risk for each Group Executive are shown in 1he table below. This table shows the short term incentive
payment and equity compensation as a percentage of their total remuneration.

Propertion of remuneration Volue of options as a proportion
al risk (%) of remuneration (%)

Group Exccutive 2006 2005 2006 2005
G Bartlett 56.4 56.6 5.7 7.1
R Chapman 55.8 52.2 6.8 75
P Clare 51.7 52.2 9.9 104,
P Fegan 60.9 58.5 55 6.1
D Gall 497 502 6.9 3.0
J Loebensicin 49.1 48.4 4.3 4.1
S McKerihan 513 489 4.9 1.6
B Wright 18.6 45.4 92 8.6

A8 - Non-Executive Directors’ Remuneration Policy - audited

The Bank's Constitution provides that the Directors shall be paid an aggregate remuneration as is determined by sharehelders at the Annual General
Meeting. The fees are determined having regard Lo advice from external consultants, Egan Associsles, on caompelitive market practice. The amount 5o
determined is divided between the Directors at their discrelion. The lasl determination made was at the Annual General Mecting held on 16 December
2005, where shareholders approved an aggregate ameunl to not exceed $2,500,000 per annuim, such sum being inclusive of all statutory
superannuation guarantee contributions that the Bank makes on behalf of Directors.

The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors is a total package, which comprises fees, superannuation, prescribed benefits and cost of shares
acquired under the Non-Executive Directors’ Sharg Purchase Plan.

Until December 2003, the Bank's Constitution made provision for the maximum retirement alfowance that the Board may approve for a Director

by reference to the maximum amount permitted to be paid under the Corporations Act 2001. However, al the Annual General Meeting held on

19 December 2003, shareholders approved an amendment to the Constilution such that no retirement benefits will be payable to any Non-Executive
Directors appoinied afler 30 September 2003 and the entitlements of each Non-Executive Director in office at 30 September 2003 wili not increase
from that amount accrued 1o Lthe Nen-Executive Director on 30 Septernber 2003.
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Directors’ Report
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Remuneration Report continued
A9 - Remuneration of Executive and Non-Executive Directors - audited
Details of the nature and amount of each major element of remuneration for St.George's Dircclors are as follows:
Posl
Long Term Employment
Short Term Benefits (1) Benefits Benefits Share Bused Payments
Base Fee/ Short Term  Long Service Superannuation Relirement
Remuneraticn Incentive Leave  Contributions Options Shares Provision
$'000 (A) (B) 1C) 1) I (G) {H} Total U}
2006
Executive Director
G P Kelly (MD and CEQ) 1,729 1,770 37 12 286 497 4,331 -
Non-Executive Directors
) M Thame (Chairman) 503 - - 12 - - 515 348
) § Curtis 224 - - 12 - - 236 340
T) Davis 195 - - 12 - - 207 -
R AF England 216 - - 12 - - 228 -
P D R Isherwood 229 - - 12 - - 241 342
L B Nicholls 213 - - 12 - - 225 145
G ) Reaney 223 - - 12 - - 235 367
L F Bleasel (retired) 46 - - 3 - - 49 -
1,849 - - 87 - - 1936 1,542
2005
Executive Director
G PKelly {MD and CEO) 1.527 1,725 31 12 286 386 3967 -
Non-Executive Directors
] M Thame {Chairman) 443 - - 14 - - 457 348
15 Curtis 200 - - 14 - - 214 340
T ) Davis 135 - - 12 - - 147 -
‘R AF England 193 - - 4 - - 207 -
P D R Isherwood 207 - - 14 - - 21 342
L B Nicholls 195 - - 14 - .- 209 145
G J Reaney 214 - - 14 - - 228 367
L F Bleasel 198 - - 14 - - 212 346
F ) Conroy (retired) 102 - - 3 - - 105 -
1,887 - - 13 - - 2,000 1,888
MU and CEQ: Managing Director and Chief Executive Ofiicer.
(A} Base fees lor Non-Executive Direclors are inclusive of the cost of shares acquired under the Non-Executive Directors” Share Purchase Plan. During the
year, 13,299 shares were acquired and allocated to 4 Directors under this plan. Brokerage of $778 was paid by the Bank in acquiring these shares.
(B) Base remuneralion for Mrs G P Kelly comprises cash salary, available salary package oplions grossed-up by related fringe benefits 1ax, where applicable,
and annual leave expense.
(C) The short term incentive rclates to Mrs G P Kelly's performance in the 30 September 2006 year. Mrs Kelly's STl opportunity for the 30 September 2006
year was 120% of her base remuneration. Based on the Group's and Mrs Kelly's performance during the year, Mrs Kelly became entitled 1o receive 100%

of her STl opportunity. As approved by shareholders ot the Bank's 2005 Annual General Mecting, any ST1 payable to Mrs Kelly which exceeds 100% of her
base remuneration will be granted to Mrs Kelly as an award with shares to satisfy this grant held in trust for a period of three years from the effective grant
dale of 1 October 2005, Subject to remaining employed by the Bank, the shares will be transferred to Mrs Kelly three years from the grant date.

g

Remuneralion in respect of short term benefits excludes insurance premiums paid by the Group in respect of Directors' and officers' liability insurance
contracts. These conltracts cover both current and former Directors and officers. Under the terms of the insurance policy, the Group is prohibited from
disclosing the total premium paid. The premium has not been allocated to individuals covered by the insurance policy as, based on all available information,
the Directors consider that no reasonable basis for such allocation exisis.

(E) Represents the long service leave expense recognised during the financial year,
(F) Includes superannuation guarantee charge applicable to Directors under 70 years of age.
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Remuneration Report continued

(G} Intihe case of the Managing Director, the iair value of options is calculated at the gramt date using the Binemial method. The number of options used 10
determine share based remuneration is adjusied ior estimated {orfeiture and then further adjusied for actuai forfeiture ever the vesting period. The resullant
expense is allocaled evenly to each reporting period over the period from the granl date to the prescribed exercise date. The following factors were used in
determining the fair value of opticns on the grant date:

Date first Fair value Exercise  Price of shares Estimaled Risk freg Dividend Expected
Grant date exercisable per option $ price 3 an grant dale $ volatility % interest rate % yield % lifc (years)
1-0ct-2004 30-Sep-2006 1.92 2170 22.01 15.0 5.25 570 2.5
1-Qct-2004 30-Sep-2007 2.07 21.70 22.01 15.0 5.25 5.70 3.5
1-0¢1-2004 30-Sep-2008 2.2 21.70 22.01 15.0 5.25 5.70 4.5

(H) In the case of the Managing Director, the fair value of awards, comprising rights over unissued shares granted under the Performance Plan, has been
determined using the share price of the Bank’s ordinary shares on the grant date. The number of shares used to determing share based remuneration is
adjusted for estimated forfeiiure at the grant date and then further adjusted over the vesting period for actual forfeiture. To determine the amount disclosed
as remuneration in gach year, the fair value is allocated evenly o each reporting period over the period from the grant date to the prescribed exercise date.

(1) Atthe Bank's Annual General Meeting on 19 December 2003, shareholders approved a resolution that Non-Executive Directors appointed after
30 September 2003 would not be entitled to retirement benefits. Payment of retirement benefits that have already been accrued will not exceed the
entitlement at 30 September 2003.

The value of options included in remuncration as a percentoge of total remuneration for Mrs G P Kelly in the 2006 year is 6.6% {2005: 7.2%).
The proportion of tatal remuneration at risk far Mrs G P Kelly in the 2006 year was 58.9% (2005: 60.4%?.

Share Based Payments - unaudited

No options or shares have been granted to Non-Executive Directors.

Details of the vesiing profile of options and awards granted us remuneration to Mrs G P Kelly that affect her remuneration in the 30 September 2006
year or future financial years is as fcllows:

Number % Vested % Forfeited Value yet to vesl (3)
granted Date in year inyear Vesting Date Min Max
Options
G P Kelly 125,000 1-0ct-2004 100 - 30-Sep-20C6 - -
125,000 1-Oct-2004 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 258,750
250,000 1-Oct-2004 - - 30-5ep-2008 - 552,500
Awards
G P Kelly 14,400 1-0¢1-2004 100 - 30-Sep-2006 - -
14,400 1-0ct-2004 - - 30-Sep-2007 - 316,944
28,800 1-0c1-2004 - - 30-Sep-2008 - 533,888

The maximurn value represents the proportion of the fair value of the options and awards granted in the 30 September 2006 year and prior financial
years that refates to {uture financial years. The minimum value of options and awards yet to vest is $nil as the applicable performance hurdles may
nol be satisfied and consequently the options or awards may nol vest.

A10 - Performance Conditions for Options and Awards - audited

1. Managing Director - Options and Awards granted on 1 October 2004

500,000 options were granted to the Managing Directlor on 1 October 2004, which vest in three tranches, comprising two tranches of 125,000
options and one (ranche of 250,000 options. 57,600 awards were granted to the Managing Director on 1 October 2004, which vest in two tranches
of 14,400 awards and one tranche of 28,800 awards.

Subject to tenure, each tranche will fully vest if:

» the Group achicves greater than or equal to 10% compound growth in £PS over the financial years from the grant date until the first prescribed
exercise date or, if not achieved at that date, inciusive of each subsequent financial year until the final prescribed exercise date of the relevant
tranche; or

» TSR for the Group meels or exceeds the 75th percentile of the S&P ASX 50 Accumulation Index aver the period from the grant date until the first
prescribed exercise date or, il not achieved at that date, on the last trading day of any subsequent month until the final prescribed exercise date
of the relevant tranche.
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Remuneration Report continued

I neither of the above outcomes are achieved
and:

« TSR for the Group meets or exceeds the
S&P ASX 50 Accumulation Index either at
the first prescribed exercise date or on the
last troding day of any subscquent month
until the final prescribed exercise date
of the relevant tranche, then half of that
tranche will vest; or

« 10 percent growth in EPS is achieved in
the financial year pricr to the prescribed
exercise date then thal tranche will
fully vest.

2. Group Executives - Options and Awards
granted on 1 October 2003

EPS Entitlement

Subject 1¢ lenure, half of the relevant tranche's
options and awards will vest if the following
EPS condilions are satisfied:

Haif of Tranche 1
EPS for the year ended 30 Scptember 2005
must exceed:

(a) the EPS for the year ended 30 September
2004 by more than 10 percent; or

(b} that figure which EPS would have reached
had EPS for the year cnded 3C September
2003 grown at an gnnual rate of
10 percent compounded annually.

If the half oi tranche 1 does not vest it is carried
forward and rclested with tranche 2.

Half of Tranche 2
EPS ior the year ended 30 Septernber 2006
must excecd:

(a} the EPS for the year ended 30 September
2005 by more than 10 percent; or

{b) that figure which EPS would have reached
had EPS for the year ended 30 September
2003 grown al an annual rate of
10 percent compounded annually.

If the tranche 1 and tranche 2 halves have not
vested they are carried ferward and retested
wilh tranche 3.

Half of Tranche 3
EPS for the year ended 30 September 2007
must exceed:

(a) the EPS for the year ended 30 September
2006 by more than 10 percent; or

(b) that figure which EPS would have reached
had EPS for the year ended 30 September
2003 grown at an annual rate of
10 percent compounded annually.
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Final Test
If the tranche 1, 2 and 3 halves remain unvested
they will vest where:

EPS for the year ended 30 September 2008
either:

(a) exceeds EPS for the year ended
30 September 2007 by more than
10 percent; or

(b} at least equals the figure EPS would have
reached had EPS for the year ended
30 September 2003 grown at an annual
rate of 10 percent compounded annually.

TSR Entitlernent

Subject te tenure, the remaining 50% of the
Tranche 1, 2 and 3 options and awards will
vest if the Group's TSR is equal to or exceeds
the S&P ASX 50 Accumulation Index over

the period from the grant date until the first
prescribed exercise date if not achieved at

that date, on any subsequent month until the
final prescribcd exercise date of 30 September
2008, as measured on that date.

3. Group Executives - Options and Awards
granted on 1 October 2004
Subject to tenure, each tranche will fulty vest if:

«  The Group achieves greater than or equal
to 10 pereent compound growth in EPS
over the financial years from the grant date
until the first prescribed exercise date or, if
not achieved at that date, inclusive of each
subsequent financial year until the final
prescribed exercise date of the relevant
tranche; or

» TSR for the Group meels or exceeds
the 75th percentile of he S&P ASX 50
Accumutation Index over the period from
the grant date until the first prescribed
exercise date or, if not achicved at that
date, on the last trading day of any
subsequent month untit the final prescribed
exercise date of the relevant ranche.

If neither of the above oulcomes are achieved
and:

» TSR for the Group meels or exceeds the
S&P ASX 50 Accumulation Index either at
the first prescribed exercise date or on the
last trading day of any subsequent month
until the final prescribed exercise date
of the relevant tranche, then half of that
tranche will vest; or

= 10 percent growth in EPS is achieved in
the financial year prior lo the prescribed
exercise date then that tranche will
fully vesl.

4. Group Executives - Shares granted under
the Employee Reward Share Plan on
18 November 2005
The performance hurdles for the 2005 year
subject to Board discretion were:

(1) EPS (before goodwill and significant itemns)
equals or exceeds the £PS of the previous
year by 10 percent ar more, then 50% of
the shares will vest; and

(2} Customer Service

(a) obtaining an cverall Group Customer
Satisfaction rating of at lcast 78%, then
25% of the shares will vest; and

(b) divisions achieving their service 1argets,
then the remaining 25% of the shares
will vest.

5. Group Executives - Options and Awards
granted on 1 QOctober 2005

Subject Lo tenure, each tranche of options

and awards will vest if, as measured from the

grant date:

« the Group achieves greater than or equal
to 10 percent compound growth in EPS
either at the prescribed measurement date
or on subsequent measurement annually
over the vesling period; or

*  TSR{cr the Group is greater than or
equal lo the 75th percentile of the S&P
ASX 50 Accumulation Index at the
prescribed measurement date or on
subsequent monthly measurement during
the vesling period.

if neither of the above outcomes are achieved,
half of the tranche will vest if, as measured
from the grant date:

» TSR for the Group is greater than the
S&P ASX 50 Accumulation Index at the
prescribed measurement date or on
subsequent monthly measurement during
the vesling period.

As per the rules of the Share and Option Plans,
the Board retains overall discrction 1o waive
all or part of the exercise conditions of awards
and options, For example, the Board could
exercise its discretion where certain events
occur, such as redundancy, retirement, death,
where a bona fide takeover offer becomes
unconditional or where it forms the view that
the exercise condilions do not properly reflect
the financial performance of the Group over
the performance perod.
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Directors' Shareholdings
The relevant interest of each Cirector in the share capital of the Bank at the date of this report is outlined in the fallowing 1able. Fach interest is held
beneficially by the relevant Director.

Fully paid Options granted
Name ordinary shares SAINTS aver ordinary shares Awards (
J M Thame 150,216 - - -
G P Kelly 525,000 208 1,000,000 57,600
]S Curtis {2 22541 318 - -
T) Davis 1,623 - - -
R A F England 2,601 - - -
P D R Ishcrwood 27948 263 - -
L B Nicholls 5.819 - - -
G ) Reaney 47,516 - - -

(1) Awards granted under the Executive Performance Share Plan thal represent a right over ordinary shares.

{2) Mr] S Curtis alse holds an interest in 15,000 instalment warrants in fully paid ordinary shares of the Bank.

Directors’ Interests
Detalls of the intercsts held by Directors of the Bank in registered schemes offered by the Group at the date of this report are as follows:

MName Registered scheme Units helg
J M Thaime Advance Imputation Fund 27,981
Share Options

On 1 October 2005. 366,142 options were granted 1o § Group Execulives. No oplions have been granted since the end of the financial year and up
10 the date of this report. 513,522 ordinary shares were issued as a result of exercising options granted under the Executive Option Plan. The number
of options outstanding at the date of this report is 2,407,503,
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Corporate Governance

The Managing Director and Chief Financial
Officer have provided a written statement to
the Board that in their respective opinions:

() the financial records of the Group have
been property maintained in accordance
with section 286 of the Corporations
Act 2001,

(i) the financial statements and accompanying
notes comply with accounting standards
and give a true and fair view of the
financial condition and operational results
of the Group and the Bank for the year
ended 30 September 2006;

{iii

—

the financial statements of the Group
are founded on o sound system of risk
management and internal compliance
which implement the policies adopted by
the Board; and

e

(iv) the risk management, compliance and
control framework adopted by the Group
as it relates 1o financiat reperting is
operating cffectively and clficiently,

in all material respecls.

Non-Audit Services

During the year, KPMG, the Bank's auditor
performed certain non-corporate statutory
audit services for which they were paid
$4.528 million (2005: $4.033 million).

The Board has considered the non-audit
services provided during the year by the
auditor and in accordance with written advice
provided by resolution of the Board Audit
Commitiee, is satisfied that the provision

of those non-audit services during the year
by the auditor is compatible with, and did

not compromise, the auditor independence
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001
for the following reasons:

(i) all non-audit services were subject to the
corporate governance procedures adopted
by the Group and have becn reviewed
by the Board Audit Commiltee {0 ensure
that they do not impact the integrity and
objeclivity of the auditor;

(i) the non-audit services provided do not
underming the general principle relating
to suditor independence as set out in
the Accounting and Professional Ethical
Standards Board's APES 110 “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants™
which replaces Professional Statement Fi
Professional Independence, as they did not
involve reviewing or auditing the auditor's
own work, acting in a management or
decision making capacity for the Group,
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acting as an advocate for the Group or
jointly sharing risks and rewards.

The lead auditor's independence declaration
as required under section 307C of the
Corporations Act 2001 is attached to and
forms part of the Directors’ Report.

Principal Activities of the Group

The principal activitics of the Group during the
financial year were undertaken by the following
business segments:

Retail Bank (RB)

RB is responsible for residential and consuimer
lending, provision of personal financial services
including transaction services, call and term
deposits and small business banking and
financial planners. This division manages retail
Branches, call centres, agency networks and
electronic channels such as EFTPOS terminals,
ATMs and internet banking.

Institutional and Business Banking {(IBB)
IB8 is responsible for liquidity management,
securitisation, wholesale funding, copital
markels, reasury market activities including
foreign exchange, money market and
derivatives, corporate and business relationship
banking, international and trade finance
banking services, lcasing, hire purchase,
auvtometive finance, commercial property
lending and cash flow financing including
facloring and invoice discounting.

BankSA (BSA)

854 is responsible for providing retail banking
and business banking services (o customers in
South Australia and the Northern Territory.
These services have been extended into
couniry New South Wales and Vicleria.
Customers are serviced through branches,
electronic agencies, ATMs, call centres,
EFTPOS terminals and Internet banking,

Wealth Management (WM)

WM is responsible for providing wealth
management administration, asset
management, dealer group services, margin
lending, investment advice, private banking
services and general and life insurance.

Group’s Objective

The Group's low-risk, organic growth straiegy
continues to deliver supericr returns to
shareholders, and the Stralegic Framework
developed in 2002 is still guiding the

Group today:

+ Deepen and strengthen relationships with
customers in our chosen markets

+  Leverage specialist capabilities for growth

«  Crentively differentiate an service

«  Accelerate and empower relationship
selling

« Build team and performance culture
« Optinise cost structure.

Building on this fromework. the Group has
remained focused on a number of key areas:

* Home Loans

«  Middle Market

« Wealth Management

e Productivity Management
«  Customer Service

= Victoria, Queensland and Western
Awstralia Expansion

» Engaged People.

Emphasis continues te be placed on the
Group's customer service strategy, founded on
the basic principles of:

Engaged People + Greal Customer Experience
= Superior Financial Qutcomes

The Group’s focus remains on developing and
empawering staff, whilst ensuring that new
recruits possess 1he skills, attitude and values
that support the warm and friendly culture that
underpins the Group’s sirategy.

The Group has continued to deliver a
differentiated customer experience L0 its key
chosen segments of Middle Market, Business
and Enterprise Customers, Private Bank

and Gold Custormers. The Group has also
strived to aitract new customers through its
third party pariners, Morigage Brokers and
Independent Financial Planners. The 2006 year
has seen specific programs targeting further
IMprovements in cuslomer experience via
expansion and refurbishment of the branch
netwark, targeted efficiency improvemenis
in processing and contact centre channels.
The Group continues to invest in its Best
Business Bank, Local Market Retail Model,
Customer Relationship Management (CRM)
and Integrated Sales and Service tools.

Operating and Financial Review

Overview of the Group

The net profit of the Group for the financial
year after income Lax, minorily interests,
poodwill impairment, significant itcms and
before preference dividends was $1,068 million
{2005: $978 million). The net prolit available
to ordinary shareholders was $1,048 million
{2005: $915 million).
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Operating and Financial Review continued

The solid increase in net profit is driven from increased profit contributions from all business segments as demonstrated helow:

Net profit before 1ax (0

2006 (9 20050 Increase
Business Segment $m $m %
Retail Bank 701 661 6.1
Institutional and Business Banking 421 404 1.2
BoankSA 213 189 127
Wealth Management e 180 146 233
1,515 1,400
(1) Before goodwill impairment and significant items,
(2) Docs not reflect impact of AIFRS financial instrument standards adopted from 1 October 2005,
{3) Before goodwill impairment, significant items and hedging and non-trading derivatives volatility,
The follewing table provides details of returns to shareholders over the past five years:
Previous Previous Previous
GAAP GAAP GAAR
2006 2005 (3} 2004 2003 2002
Net profit available to shareholders $m 1,048 915 717 606 369
Basic earnings per share (V Cents 197.6 177.5 160.8 142.2 124.7
Dividends per share Cents 151 137 122 95 80
Share price () $ 30.24 27.89 21.85 20.49 17.70

{1} Belfore goodwill amortisation/impsirment, significant items and after prefercnce share dividends.
{2} Share price at 30 Seplember.
{3} Docs not reflect impact of AIFRS financial instrument standards adopled from 1 Qclober 2005,

Review of Financial Condition

5t.George’s shareholders’ equity decreased from $5.4 billion to $5.3 billion. This decrease is primarily due 1o the reclassification of the Group's

$334 million Depositary Capital Securities from equity to debt in accordance with AIFRS requirements applicable from 1 October 2005 and the issuance
of $150 million of Step-up Preference Shares in June 20086. The final dividend for the year ended 30 September 2006 has not been provided forin the
financial statements and as a result has not been deducted from retained earnings.

St.George’s capital position remains strong with a total capital adequacy ratic of 10.8% at 30 September 2006 (2005; 11.196). This ratio s abave
APRA’s minfmum requirement of 10.0%. At 30 September 2006, S1.George's Adjusied Coammaon Equity (ACE) ratio was 5.0% (2005: 5.19%).

Dividends
Information regarding dividends paid or declared by Lhe Bank since the end of the previous financial year is included in Note 3.,

Review of Operations
Areview of the operations of the Group is contained in the *Chairman’s Report™, “Managing Director & CEQ’s Report” and “Sharehoider Friendly
Financials™. These sections are 1o be regarded as incorporated inic this report.

State of Affairs
Significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group during the firancial year were as follows:

Securitisation
The Bank securitised a total of $8.2 billion of housing loans in March, June and September 2006 through the Crusade Program (2005: $5.6 billion).
The total value of securitised receivables outstanding at 30 September 2006 was $17,998 million (2005: $13,225 million).

Borrowing Transactions
In January 2006, the Bank issued GBP 375 million of floating rate nates, maturing in January 2011,
in April 2606, the Bank issued AS900 million of floating rate and A$40C million of fixed rate Lransferable deposits, maturing in April 2071,

In June 2006, the Bank issued EUR 600 million of floating rate notes, maturing in June 2011
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State of Affairs continued

In july 2006, the Bank issued A$300 million of
subordinated notes that qualify as Tier 2 capital
for capital adequacy purposes, maturing in

July 2016.

Capital Management

In February 2006, the Bank converted
$300 millign of Preferred Resetting Yield
Marketable Fquity Securities (PRYMES) into
10,309,170 ordinary shares based on a
conversion price of $25.07.

In February 2006, the Bank completed a buy
back of 11,677,657 ordinary shares at a price
of $25.69 per share. In June 2006, the Bank
issued 1,500,000 Step-up Preference Shares
(SPS) ot an issue price of $100 per share,
raising $148 million (net of associated costs).
The Bank may elcct to redecm, cancel, buy
back or convert the SPS on 20 August 2016
or any dividend payment date thereafler.

SPS are classified as Innovative Ticr 1 copital for
APRA capital adequacy purposes.

Margin Lending Acquisition

Effective August 2006, the Bank acquired
HSBC Ausiratia’s $398 million margin
lending business.

Credit Ratings

In January 2006, Standard & Poar’s upgraded
its long term counterparty credit rating on
SLGeorge to A+ from A. The A-1short term
counterparty credit rating was reaffirmed.

At the same time, Standard & Poor’s upgraded
its Bank Fundamental Strength raling on
St.George 1o B+ from B. St.George Insurance
Pte Limited, the Bark's captive mortgage
insurance subsidiary, had its credit rating raised
o A+ from A.

In May 2006, Moody's upgraded SL.George's
long term deposit ond debt rating to A1 from
AZ and its Bank Financial Strength rating to
B- from C+.

St.George Insurance Pte Uimited had its rating
raised to A1 from AZ.

$t.George Bank New Zealand (SGBNZ)

In August 2006, St.George announced it
would cease its supermarket banking

venture in New Zealand with Foodstuffs.
SGBNZ's residential loan portiolio was sold in
August 2006. SGBNZ's retall deposits were
either transferred 1o Kiwibank or repaid to
customers by September 2006, in accordance
with customer preferences.
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Environmental Regulation

Other than stated below, the operations of the
Bark and its controlled entities are not subject
to any particular or significant environmental
regulation under a Jaw of the Commonwealih
or of a State or Territory. The Bank may
however become subject to environmental
regulation when enforcing securities over
properties Lo recover outstanding debts.

The Bank plans to submit to the New South
Wales government a stralegy of energy use
reduction in conformity with the Energy
Administration Amendment (Water and Energy
Savings) Act 2005.

Events Subsequent to Reporting Date
Since 30 September 2006, the Bank has
proposed a final dividend on ordinary

shares (Note 9). The Bank intends Lo issue

2 $300 million Non-Innavative Tier 1 capital
instrurnent in December Z006.

Direclors are not aware of any other matter
or circumstance that has occurred since the
end of the financial year that has significantly
affected or may significantly affect the
operaticns of the Group, the results of those
operations or the state of aifairs of the Group
in subsequent financial years.

Likely Developments

The Bank's risk management framework
continues o be enhanced as it progresses with
the implementation of the Basel Il advanced
approaches for credit and cperational risk.

The Basel Il framewcrk contains three
approaches for calculating the capital
requirements for credit risk, being the
standardised, foundation and advanced
approaches. St.George lodged its application
with APRA in September 2005 Lo apply the
advanced approoch for credit risk with regard
1o 115 retail lending portfolio and the foundztion
approach for credit risk with regard to its
corparate lending portiolio.

The Basel ! frameweork introduces a capital
requirement for operational risk under three
options being basic, standardised and advanced
approaches. St.George is aiming 10 adopt the
advanced approach for operational risk and in
September 2006 lodged its application with
APRA. For both credit and operaticnal risk, the
timing of adoption of these approaches are
subject 10 satisfying APRA’s advanced level
Basel Il accreditation requirements.

Further details of likely developments in

the operations of the Group in subsequent
financial years are contained in the *Chairman’s
Report’ and the *Managing Director & CEQ's
Report’. These sections arc to be reparded as
incorporated inta this report.

Further information regarding likely
developments in the operations of the Group
and the expected resulis thereof, has not been
included in this report because the disclosure
of the information would be likely to result in
unreasonsble prejudice towards Lhe interes(s
of the Group.

Indemnification and Insurance of
Directors and Officers

The Bank's Constitution provides for an
indermnnity o each person who is or has been

a Director, principal executive officer or the
secretary of the Bank against any liability
which results directly or indirectly from facts
or circurnstances relating Lo the person serving
or having served in that capacity, incurred on
or after 1 April 1994 to any person whether or
net arising from a prior contingent liability and,
which does not arise out of conduct involving
a lack of good faith and conduct known to the
person to be wrongful.

in addition, such indernnity alse extends to
costs and expenses incurred by the person in
defending civil or criminal proceedings in which
judgement is given in favour of the person or
in which the person is acquitted or the courts
grant relief.

The Constitution also provides, to the extent
permitied by law, for the Cireclors to authorise
the Bark to entcr into any documentary
indemnity in favour of, or insurance policy for,
the benefit of a person who is or has been a
Director, executive officer, secretary, auditor,
emptoyee or other afficer of the Bank, which
indemnity or insurance policy may be in such
terms as the Roard of Direclors approves.




St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entitics

Directors’ Report

For the ycar ended 30 September 2006

Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance

The Bank hos paid a premium in respect of a
contract of insurance insuring certain officers
of the Bank and its controlled entities against
those liabilities for which insurance is permitted
under the Corporations Act 2001. Such officers
consist of the Directors named earlier in this
report, the company secrctaries, executive
officers, Bank officers appointed on the Bank's
behali to external directorships, and all persons
deemed to be officers of lhe Bank and related
bodies corporate under 1he provisions of

the Corparations Act 2001, together with all
other former and future Directors, company
secretaries and officers. Disclosure of the
nature of the liabilities and the amount of the
premium is prohibited under the conditions of
the cantract of insurance.

Rounding of Amounts

The Bank is a company of the kind referred
to in Australian Sceurities and Investments
Commission class order $8/100, as amended
by class order 04/667 dated 15 july 2004
and 05/641 dated 26 July 2005. Accordingly,
amounts in this report and the accompanying
Concise Financial Statements have been
reunded 1o the nearest one million doilars
excepl where otherwise indicated.

Signed in accordance with 4 resolution of
the Directors.

} M Thame
Chairman

.

G P Kelly
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Signed at Sydney, New South Wales
7 November 2006
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‘IJL

Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001

To: the dirggtors of 1. George Bank Limited

| declare that, 10 the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit for the financial

year ended 30 September 2006 there have been;

{1}  no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the
Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

() no contraventions of any applicable code of prefessional condust in relatien 1o the

audit.

KPm e

KPMG
ondl9
P M Reid

Sydrey

7 November 2006

PG, i Azt ireaine, 0o o i K9G inaamescral
PREACE, LPRAG ICEMTA0 4§ $ampd. tc M
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St.George Boank Lirited and its Controlled Entities

Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Consolidsted
2006 2005
Nolte $m Sm
Interest income 6,781 5,474
Interest expense 4,768 3.677
Net interest income 2,013 1,797
Other income 2 994 988
Total operating income 3,007 2,785
Bad and doubtiu! debts expense 144 109
Opcrating expenses 2 1,341 1,279
Share of profit of equity accounted associales - 3
Goodwill impairment - 4
Profit before income tax 1,522 1,396
Income tax expense 2 445 413
Profit after tax and before loss of discontinued operation 1,077 983
Loss of discontinued operation, net of tax 2 13 10
Nel loss of discontinued operation attributable 10 minority interest 2 (5) (5)
Minority interest - continuing eperations 1 -
Net profit attributable to shareholders of the Bank 1,068 978
Dividends per ordinary share (cents)
Interim dividend paid 3 74 67
Final dividend proposed 3.9 77 70
Earnings per share from continuing operations:
Basic {cents) 4 201.4 1777
Diluted (cents} 4 199.9 176.2

The consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noles. Comparative figures exclude the impact of AASE 132 and

AASBE 139 financial instrumenl accounting standards, which were adopled from 1 October 2005,
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Consolidated Balance Sheet

As a1 30 Scplember 2006
Consclidated
2006 2005
Note $m $m
Assets
Cosh and liquid assets 1,081 1,184
Receivables due from other financial institutions 1,182 1,111
Assets at fair value through the income statement 6,192 6,007
Derivative asseis 1,093 -
Available for sale investments 1,541 -
Investment securities - 1,149
Laans and other receivables 81,516 72,949
Bank acceptances of customers 11,908 7,098
Investment in associated companies 28 -
Other investments - 45
Property, plant and equipment 334 452
Intangible assets 1,291 1,268
Deferrcd tax assets 193 93
Other assets 643 1.003
Total assets 107,002 92,359
Liabilities
Deposits and other borrowings 54,633 49,175
Payables due to other financial institutions 401 91
Liabilities al fair value through the income statement 390 -
Derivative liabilities 1,190 -
Bank acceplances 7,287 7,098
Provision for dividends 3 12
Current tax liabilities 160 157
Deferred tax liabilities 172 217
Other provisions 125 109
Bonds and notes 34,593 25,918
Loan capital 2,032 1,956
Bills payable and other liabilities 673 2,239
Total liabilities 101,659 86,972
Net assets 5,343 5,387
Shareholders' Equity
Share capilal 5 4,376 4,105
Reserves 151 23
Retained profits 6 798 906
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Bank 5,325 5,034
Equity attributable to minority interests 18 353
Total Shareholders' Equity 5,343 5,387

The censolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes, Comparative figures exclude the impact of AASE 132 and AASE 139
financial instrument accounting standards, which were adopied from 1 Oclober 2005.
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entitics

Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense

For the jear ended 30 September 2006

Consolidated

2006 2005
$m $m

Foreign currency translation reserve
Foreign exchange translation differences {net of tax) (5) 2
Cash flow hedge reserve
Gains on cash flow hedging instruments (net of 1ax)
Recognised in cquity 20 -
Fransferred to the income statement Q)] -
Available for sale reserve
Losses on available for sale investments (net of tax)

Recognised in equity {1 -
Net income recognised directly in equity 13 2
profit for the year 1,064 973
Total recognised income and expense for the year 1,077 975

Total recognised income and expense for the year attributable to:

Members of the Bank 1,081 980
Minorily interests {4 (5)
Total recognised income and expense for the year 1,077 975

Effect of change in accounting peolicy - financial instruments
Net decrease in retained profits {131) -
Net increase in reserves 54 -
1,000 975

The consolidaled statement of recognised income and expensc should be read in conjunction with the accempanying notes. Comparstive figures exclude the impact
of AASB 132 and AASB 139 financial instrument accounting standards, which were adopted from 1 October 2005.
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SL.George Bonk Limited and ils Controlled Entitics

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Consolidated
2006 2005
$m Sm
Cash flows from operating activities
Interest received 6,746 5,508
Interest paid (4,813) (3,692}
Other income received 850 891
Operating expenses paid {1,201) {1,168}
Income tax paid (457) (456}
Proceeds from sale and redermnption of investment securities - 285
Purchase of available for sale investments (1,715) -
Proceeds from sale and redemption of available for sale invesiments 1,330 -
Net increase in assets
- balance due from cther financial institutions {not at call) (82) (335)
- trading securities/assets at fair value through the income statement {181 {802)
- loans and other receivables (13,332) (7.726)
Net increase/(decrease) in liabilities
- balance due to other financial institutions {not at call) 135 (42
- deposits and other borrowings 5,515 2,021
- bonds and notes 7,624 6,121
Net cash provided by operating activities 119 605
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of controlled entity 23 -
Increase in investment in associated companies (25) -
Dividends received 6 5
Payments for shares 1)) 2
Proceeds from szle of shares 8 20
Proceeds from sale of other investments - 7
Proceeds from sale of businesses 4 A7
Payments for property, plant 2nd equipment (59) (68)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 158 39
Net increase in other assets (142) (148)
Net cash used in investing activities (28) {100}
Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase/{decrease) in liabilities
- other liabilities (20) 19
- loan capital 34 495
Net proceeds from the issue of perpetual notes 3 2
Net proceeds from the issue of Step-up Preference Shares 148
Proceeds from the issue of shares 9 6
Buy back of shares (300) -
Issue costs (1 -
Dividends paid (excluding Dividend Reinvestment Plan) (585) (594)
Net purchase of Treasury shares (10) -
Net cash used in financing activities (722) 72
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (331) 433
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,738 1,305
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,407 1,738

The consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes, Comparative figurcs exciude the impact of AASB 132 and
AASB 139 financial instrument accounting standards, which were adopted from 1 Qctober 2005.
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St.Geerge Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 1: Basis of Preparation of the Concise Financial Report

The Concise Financial Report has been prepared in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standard AASB 1039 Concise Financial
Reports and applicable Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views. The financial statements and specific disclosures required by AASB 1039 have been
derived from the Group’s Full Financiat Report for the financial year. Other information included in the Concise Financial Report is consistent with
the Group's Full Financial Report. The Concise Financial Report does not, and cannot be expected to, provide as full an understanding of the financial
performance, financial position and financing and investing activities of the Group as the Full Financial Report. As noted below, comparative figures
have not been adjusled for the impact of financial instrument accounting standards AASB 132 and AASB 139.

The financial report is prepared on the historical cost basis except that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value: derivative
financial instruments, financial instruments held for trading, financial instrumenis classified as available for sale, assets and liabilities at fair value
through the income statement and defined benefit plan assets and liabilities.

The significant accounting policies adopled in the preparation of this Concise Financial Report have been consistently applied to alt periods, unless
otherwise slated.

A full description of the accounting policies adopted by the Group may be found in the Group’s Full Financial Report.
The presentation currency is Australian dollars.

The Group has applied he exemption available under AASB 1 First-time adopticon of Australian Equivalents te International Financial Reporting
Standards lo apply AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation and AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
from 1 Qctober 2005. The transition adjustments recognised in respect of these standards at the transition date of 1 October 2005 are disciosed in
Note 8 Explanation of Transilion to AIFRS.
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St.George Bank Limited and its Centrolled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 2: Significant ltems

In accordance with accounting standard AASB 101, items of income and expense which are material by quantum or nature are disclosed separately to
assist in understanding the financial performance of the Group.

Consolidated

2006 2005
$m Sm
Non-interest income
Non-interest income before significant items 953 872
Significant items '
- profit on sale of land and buildings @ 1 -
- profit on sale of fixed assets - 27
- write-off of deferred home loan broker commissions & - (m
1 16
Total nen-interest income 994 988
Operating expenses
Operating expenses before significant items 1,293 1,263
Significant items
- intangible assets impairment {ik. tvii 32 16
- restructure costs ) 16 -
48 16
Total operating expenses 1,341 1,279
Income tax
Income 19x expense before significant items 470 13
Significant items
- income tax benefit on profit on sale of land and buildings () (10) -
- income tax benefit on intangible assets impairment logs (. il (10) (5)
-income tax benefit on restructure costs W) (5) -
-income tax expense on profit on sale of fixed assets ¥ - 3
-income tax benefit on write-off of home loan broker commissions &) - {3)
(25) -
Total 1ax expense 445 M3
Discontinued operation
Exit costs associated with discontinued operation (il 9 -
Minarity interest applicable to discontinued operation (i) (3 -
6 -
Summary of significant items
Total pre-tax (loss) from significant items (7 -
Add: total tax benefit attributable to significant items 25 -
Less: net (loss) of discontinued operation (5) -
Net income from significant items 12 -

2006 Year

(i) InScptember 2006, the Group completed the sale and leaseback of its head cffice building at Kogarah. As a result of the sale, the Group recognised
a profit of $41 millien before tax ($51 million after associated tax benefit}.

(iy During the year, 3 $32 million {$22 million after tax) impairment was recognised on intangible assets relating to capitalised computer software.

This impairment comprises software that has been developed internally where the timing of realisaticn of asscciated benefits is uncertain or the value
of future benefits are not expected to be fully realised. The impairment also includes software systems that have become obsolete during Lhe vear.

(i) As a result of intense cempetition in the New Zealand market, the Bank and i1s joint venture pariner Foodstufis agreed in Avugust 2006 10 discontinue their
supermarket banking joint venture. Costs associated with the discontinuation of this business totalled $9 million before and afier tax. A $3 million minority
intcrest loss has been recognised in respect of these costs, reflecting Foodstuffs' share of loss. The total loss incurred in respect ¢f the joint venture
{including these costs) amounted to $13 mitlion, of which an amount of $5 million was attributable to the minority interests,
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entites

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 2: Significant ltems continued

{iv) A $16 million ($11 million after tax) restructure provision has been recognised during the year in respect of s1aff redundancies. [he redundancics are
primarily attributable to dewnsizing information technology development teams in line with reduced business demand, consolidating interslate loan
servicing sites and outsourcing certain administrative functions.

2005 Year
(v) The Bank sold its nan-core unbranded ATM network to Customers Ltd. The sale resulled in a profit on sale before Lax of $27 million {319 millien after tax).

{vi) From 1 October 2004, the Bank ceased 1o defer home !oan broker commissions on new introductory loan business and has recognised an adjusiment of
$11 millicn {$8 million after tax) during the year that represents 1the unamortised balance of deferred commissions relating to this loan portfolic.

{vii) The Bark rccognised 3 $6 million ($4 mitlion after tax) write-off of obsolete systems or systems in the process of being decommissioned and a $10 million
{37 million after tax) write-cff representing a refinement of St.George's deferred expenditure policy to write-off deferrad expenditure whereby the
unamortised balance of deferred expenditure is written oif immediately when the carrying value reduces 10 $500.000.

Note 3: Dividends Provided for or Paid

Cents  Consolidated Date of Franking Percentage
Type per share Sm payment rale 0% franked
2006
Interim 2006 - erdinary shares 74.0 388 4-Jul-2006 3C 160
Finzl 2005 - ordinary shares 70.0 364 14-Dec-2005 30 160
Subordinated adjustable income non-refundable tier 1 securities 2 21-Nov-2005 30 100
Subordinated adjustable income non-refundable tier 1 securities 4 20-Feb-2006 30 100
Subordinated adjustable income non-refundable dier 1 securities 5  22-May-2006 30 100
Subordinated adjustable income nen-refundable tier 1 securities 5 21-Aug-2006 30 100
Subordinated adjustable income non-refundable tier 1 securities () 2 20-Nov-2006 30 100
Step-up preference shares (3 1 21-Aug-2006 30 100
Step-up preference shares (4 1 20-Nov-2006 30 100

772
2005
Interim 2005 - ordinary shares 67.0 347 4-Jul-2005 30 100
Final 2004 - ordinary shares 62.0 319 17-Dec-2004 30 100
Depositary capital securities (€ {10) (10 6 31-Dec-2004 - -
Deposilary capital securities 14 30-Jun-2005 - -
Depositary capital securities (5 7 31-Dec-2005 - -
Preferred resctling yield marketable equity securitics 8 (1) 7 21-Feb-2005 30 100
Preferred resetting vield marketable equity securitics 10 22-Aug-2005 30 100
Preferred resetting yield marketzble equity securities 7 2 20-Feb-2006 30 100
Subordinated adjusiable income non-refundable tier T securities 3 22-Nov-2004 30 100
Subordinated adjustable income non-refundable tier 1 securities 4 21-Feb-2005 30 100
Subordinated adjustable income non-refundable tier 1 securities 4 20-May-2005 30 100
Subordinated adjustable income non-refundable tier 1 securitics 4 22-Aug-2005 30 100
Subordinated adjustable incaime non-refundable ticr 1 securitics 2 21-Nov-2005 30 100
729

{1} Atotal dividend of $4 million was paid of which $2 million relates to the 2006 financial year and $2 million related to the 2005 financial year,

(2} Aotal dividend of $4 million will be payable on 20 November 2006 of which $2 million relates to the 2006 financial ycar.

(3} 1,500,000 Step-up Preference Shares were issued on 20 June 2006 at 2n issue price of 5100 each, raising $148 million {net of associated costs).
{4) A total dividend of $2 million will be payable on 20 November 2006 of which $1 millien relates 10 the 2006 fingncial year,

(5) A total distribution of $14 million was paid of which $7 million is classified as interest expense and relates Lo the 2006 financial year and $7 million is
a dividend related to the 2005 financial year.

{8} A total dividgend of $14 million was paid of which $6 million related 1o the 2005 financial year and $8 million related to the 2004 financial year.

{7) Atotal distribution of $8 million was paid of which $2 million is a dividend related to the 2005 financial year and $6 million is classified as interest expense
related to the 2006 financial year.

(8) A total dividend of $9 million was paid of which $7 million related to the 2005 financial year and $2 millien related 1o the 2004 financial year.
(9} Atotal dividend of $4 million was paid of which $3 million related 1o the 2005 financial year and $1 million related to the 2004 financial year.
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlted Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fer the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 3: Dividends Provided for or Paid continued

{10) Distributions paid on Depositary Capital Securities (DCS) will be paid by St.Geerge Funding Company LLC to the holders of the securilies, out of profits o
which no franking credits are attached.

(11} In accordance with AIFRS, PRYMES and DCS have been reclassified as liabilities and distributions are included in interest expense from 1 October 2005,
The PRYMES were converted into 10,309,170 ordinary shares in February 2006,

Dividend franking account
It is anticipated that the batance of the consolidated franking account will be $506 million {30 September 2005: $555 million) sfter adjusting for:

(i} franking credits that will arise from the payment of income tax payable as at the end of the year;

(i) franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as a fiability;

(iii) franking credits that will arise from the receipt of dividends recognised as receivables al the reporting date; and
(iv) franking credits that the Group may be prevented from distributing in the subsequent year.

After also alfowing for the 30 September 2006 final ordinary dividend, the consolidated franking account will be $332 million
{30 September 2005: $401 million).

Note 4: Earnings Per Share
Consolidated

2006 2005

Basic - ordinary {cents)

- from continuing operations 2014 1777

- from discontinued operation (1.5) (1.0)
Dituted - ordinary (cents)

- from continuing operations 199.9 176.2

- from discontinued operation (1.5} (0.9
Weighted average number of shares

Basic ordinary (000} 524,281 517.762

Diluted ordinary (000) 542,285 542,416

There were 244,574 (30 September 2005 nil) weighted average ordinary Treasury shares outstanding during the year which have been excluded
when caleulaling basic and diluted earnings per share. Treasury shares relate 1o shares purchased on behall of employces thal are held in trust to
satisfy grants under the Group's Execuiive Perfarmance Plan.

Note 5: Share Capital
Consolidated
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m $m No. of shares  No. of shares
Capital
Fully paid ardinary shares (0 3,878 3,454 526,578,573 520,407.464
Treasury shares (10) - (331,213) -
Fully paid PRYMES () - 29 - 3,000,000
Fully paig SAINTS 345 345 3,500,000 3,500,000
Fully paid SPS (3 148 - 1,500,000 -
General rescrve 15 15
4,376 4,105
Issued and uncalled capital
Borrowers' shares unpaid - - 3,382 4,088
Depositors' shares unpaid 4 - - 236,981 256,180
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entitics

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 5: Share Capital continued

(1) In February 2006, the Bank completed its ofl market buy back of ordinary shares. A total of 11,677,657 ordinary shares were bought back at a price of
$25.69, atotal cost of $300 million. An smount of $6.54 per share of the consideration paid 10 buy back the shares was charged 1o share capital
{total $76.7 million including associated buy back costs). The difference between the buy back price of $25.69 and the capital component of $6.54 was

deemed to be a fully franked dividend for tax purposes and charged to retained earnings ($223.6 million).

For capital gains tax purposes, the deemed disposal price applicable to shareholders (other than corporate tax entities) participating in the buy back is

$10.59 for each share sold into the buy back.

(2} InFebruary 2006, the Bank's 3,000,000 PRYMES were converted into 18,309,170 ordinary shares at a price of $29.07.

(3} InJune 2006, the Bank issued 1,500,000 Step-up preference share (SPS) at an issue price of $100 cach, raising $148 million after related issue costs.

{4) These shares were originally issved to borrowers and depositors when the Bank was 2 building society 1o enable them to open a loan or deposit account.
Borrowers and depositors shareholders have certain rights as set out in the Constitution, including the right 1o vote on issues that affect their rights,

and have cerlain obligations on a winding up.

Note 6: Retained Profits

Consclidated

2006 2005

$m $m

Opening balance 906 619
AIFRS transition adjustments (1) (131 38
Operating profit sttributable to members of the Bank 1,068 978
Total avzilable for apprepriation 1,843 1,635
Transfer to general reserve for credit losses {49) -
Buy back (224) -
Interim dividend - cash component (329) (282)
Interim dividend - dividend reinvestment plan (59) (65)
Final dividend - cash component (237) (249)
Final dividend - dividend reinvesiment plan (127) (70
Preference share dividends (z0) 63
Closing balance 798 906

(1) AIFRS transition adjustments include:
= recognition of defined benefit plan deficit
« deferral of leveraged lease income
= recognition of share based payment expense

« transfer of asset revaluation reserve {net of tax} to retained earnings

« deferral of previously recognised fee income

« fair value recognitien of financial assets and liabilities

« fair value recognition of derivatives

» recagnition of share issue and conversion costs

+ implementation of AIFRS loan impairment methodology including establishment of a general reserve for credit losses.

Refer Note 8 ior further details.
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 7: Segmental Results

{a} Business Segments
Business segments zre based on the Group's organisational struclure. The Group comprises four business divisions, namely:

= Retail Bank (RB) - responsible for residential and consumer lending, provision of personal financial services including transaction services, call and
term deposits, small business banking and financial planners. This division manages retail branches, cafl centres, agency networks and electronic
channels such as EFTPOS terminals, ATMs and Internet banking.

+  Institutional and Business Banking (18B) - responsible for liquidity management, securitisation, wholesale funding, capital markets, treasury market
activities including foreign exchange, money morket and derivatives, corporate and business relationship banking, intermational and trade finance banking
services, leasing, hire purchase, automotive finance, commercial property lending and cash flow financing including factoring and invoice discounting,

= BankSA (BSA) - respensible for providing retail banking and business banking services ta customers in South Australia and Northern Territory.
These services have extended into country New South Wales and Victoria as part of the Group's initiative to expand rural banking. Customers are
serviced through branches, electronic agencies, ATMs, call centres, EFTPOS terminals and Internet banking,

+  Wealth Mznagement (WM} - responsible for providing funds management and administration, margin lending, inveslment advice, private banking
services and general and life insurance.

Segmental results arc not comparable to prior pericds as comparative figures do not reflect the impact of AIFRS financial instrument accounting
standards that have been adopted from 1 October 2005.

Institutional
& Business Wealth
Retail Bank Banking BankSA  Management Cther  Consolidated

For the year ended 30 September 2006 Sm Sm Sm $m $m $m
Segment revenue
Net interest incorme 1,063 ° 569 303 78 - 2,013
Non-interest incorne 436 135 82 286 14 953
Significant item - - - - 1 1
Total segment revenue 1,499 704 385 364 55 3,007
Segment expenses
Bad and doubtful debts 105 29 9 1 - 144
Operating expenses

- Oiher provisions 27 27 6 14 - 74

- Depreciation 49 7 9 2 - 67

- Deferred expenditure amortisation 24 3 4 1 - 32

- Other expenses 593 217 144 166 - 1,120
Total operating cxpenses 693 254 163 183 - 1,293
Significant items - - - - 48 48
Total segment expenses 798 283 172 134 48 1,485
Profit before income tax expensc from coentinuing operations 701 4721 213 180 7 1,522
Income tax expense 445
Profit after income tax from continuing operalions 1077
Loss of discontinued operation after tax 13
Minarity interest - continuing operations 1
Minority interest - discontinued operation (5)
Profit after income tax and minority interests 1,068
Segmental Balance Sheet
As at 30 September 2006
Investment in Associates - - - - 28 28
Other Assets 54,237 33,267 12,025 4,834 2,607 106,974
Total Assets 54,237 33,267 12,029 4,834 2,635 107,002
Total Liabilities 26,002 65,600 777 1,025 1,261 101.659
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Si.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entitics

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 7: Segmental Results continued

Retail Bank
For the year ended 30 September 2005 $m

institutional
& Busingss
Banking BankSA
$m $m

Wealth
Management
$m

Other
$m

Consolidated
$m

Segment revenue

Net interest income 1,057
Non-interest income 366
Significant items -

Total segment revenue 1,423

Segment expenses
Bad and doubtful debts
Operating expenses
- Other provisions
- Depreciation
- Deferred expenditure amortisation
- Other expenscs

Total operating expenses
Significant item
Goodwill impairment

Total segment expenses

Share of profit of investment in associates

Profit/(loss) before income tax expense
frem continuing operations

Income tax expense

Profit after income tax from continuing operations

Less of discontinued operation after tax
Minarity interest - continuing operalions
Mingrity interest - discontinued operation

Profit after income tax and minority interests

Segmental Balance Sheet
As at 30 September 2005

Total Assets

26,530 10,441

3,806

2,304

92,359

Total Liabilities

53,307 6,785

1,027

1,051

86,972

(b) Geographical segments
The Group predominantly operates in Australia,
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 8: Explanation of Transition

to AIFRS

These are the Group's first consolidated
annual financial statements to be prepared in
accordance with AIFRS.

The pelicies set out in the significant
accounting policics section of the Full Financial
Report have been applied in preparing the
financial statemenis for the year ended

30 September 2006. With the exception of
accounting standards dealing with financial
instruments, the comparative figures in respect
of the 30 September 2005 year and opening
AIFRS halance sheet at 1 October 2004 have
been prepared in accordance with AIFRS,

The Group has taken the exemption available
under AASB 1 First-time Adoption of Australian
¢quivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards (AIFRS) to only apply
AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosure
and Presentation and AASB 139 Financial
Instrurments: Recognition and Measurement,
from 1 October 2005. Accordingly, AIFRS
adjusiments refating 1o these standards have
only been included in the 1 October 2005
balance sheet reconciliation,

In preparing its opening AIFRS batance shect
and comparative period results, amounts
reported previously in financial slatements
prepared in accordance with the previous basis
of accounting (previous GAAP) have been
adjusled. An explanation of how the transition
from previous GAAP 1o AIFRS has affected

the Group's financial position and financial
performance is sct out in the following tables
and the notes that accompany the tables.

In explaining the impact of adopling AIFRS,
adjustments have been categorised into
reclassifications of existing assets, liabilitics
and equity, consolidation of new entities inte
the Group and changes in the recognition and
measurement of items in the income siaterment
and balance sheet,

(i) Reclassifications

In accardance wilh AIFRS classification
requirements, assets and liabifities reported
under previcus GAAP have been reclassified.

Key iterns reclassified for periods prior to
1 Octeber 2005 include:

=  Deferred computer software expenditure
has been reclassified from other assets to
intangible assets (refer note (X)),

«  Deferred tax asscis and liabililies have
been separately identified within the
balance sheet {refer note (vii)}.

Key items reclassified from 1 October 2005
include:

» Derivative assets and liabilitics recognised
under previous GAAP have been
reclassified from olher assets and other
liabilities to derivative assets and derivotive
liabilities respectively (refer note (xii)}.

» Trading assets and part of other
investments have been reclassified to
assets at fair value through the income
stalernent (refer note (xiv)).

« Investment sccurities and parl of other
investmenis have been reclassified
1o available for sale investments
{refer note (xiv)).

« Deferred origination costs previousty
recognised within other assets have becn
reclassified to loans and other reccivables
{refer note (xi}).

+ Reclassification of Depaosilary Capital
Securities included within minerity
interests under previous GAAP to liabilities
at fair value 1hrough the income slatement
(refer rote (x)).

» Reclassification of Preferred Resetting
Yield Marketable Equity Securities included
within shareholders® equity under previous
GAAP to bonds and notes {refer note (x)).

s Reclassification of income earned ¢n bank
acceptances from other income to interest
income (refer nole (xvi)).

(i) Consolidation

AIFRS has resulted in the consolidation of
both St.George’s securilised assets and
certain assel-backed conduit vehicles.

The consolidation of these vehicles from

1 Oclober 2004 results in a “gross-up” of the
bualance sheet and income statement, however
there is no significant impaci on profit or
shareholders’ equity.

{iii} Recognition and measurement

AIFRS has required a change from previous
GAAP recognition and measurement praclices
for both income staternent and balance

sheet items,

Key items for periods prior to 1 Qctober 2005
include:

= Goodwillis no longer amortised, instead
being subject to an annual assessment
for impairment.
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The fair value of equity instruments
granted to employees after 7 November
2002 which are unvested at 1 January
2005 is recognised as an expense over the
vesting period.

Leveraged lense income is recognised
over the lease term on an effective pre-tax
yield basis.

« Land and buildings are recognised at

deemed cost, with the previous asset
revalustion reserve transferred to retained
carnings and the recognition of a deferred
tax liability.

The defined benefit plan deficit is
recognised as a liability.

Certain items previously included within
deferred expenditure are no longer eligible
for recognition within intangible assets and
have been written off.

Income lax deferred assets and liabilities
are recognised based upon 3 “bafance
sheel approach”.

Key items from 1 October 2005 include:

Share issue and redemption costs relating
(o the PRYMES arc included in the
measurement value of the liability.

Certain fees previously recognised as
income are deferred and recognised on
an effective yield basis.

All derivatives are recognised at fair
walue, with hedge accounting applied
in circumstances where strict criteria
are satisfied.

Lean provisioning methodslogies have
changed. resulting in the wrile back

of general provisions under previous
GAAP and the recognition of AIFRS
collective provisions.

Certain financial instruments have

been recognised as available for sale
investments at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in an equity reserve,

Depasitary Capital Securities and related
derivatives are fair valued through the
income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 8: Explanation of Transition to AIFRS continued

Income statement reconciliation
The following table reconciles camparative income statement figures from previous GAAP to AIFRS.

+— AIFRS transition adjustments () —

Reclassification

Recognition and Total AIFRS  of discontinued
AGAAP Group  Consolidstion  measurement transition operation AIFRS Group
Year ended 30 September 2005 $m Fm $m $m $m $m
Interest income 4,686 819 - 819 (31) 5,474
lnterest expense 2,979 725 - 725 {27) 3,677
Net interest income 1,707 94 i) - 94 (4) 1,797
Other income 1,084 {96) G - (96) - 988
Total operating income 2,791 {2) - {2) (4) 2,785
Bad and doubtiul debts expense ne - - - (1} 109
Operating expenses 1,279 (2) i 15 W 13 {i3) 1,27%
Sharc of profit of equity accounted associates 3 - - - - 3
Goodwill amartisation and write-off 105 - (101 0 (101 - 4
Profit before income tax 1,300 - 36 86 10 1,396
Income tgx expense 414 - (1™ (m - 413
Profit after income tax 386 - a7 87 10 983
Loss from discontinued operation - - - - (10) (10)
Profit after tax and discontinued operation 886 - 87 87 - 973
Aitributable to:
Minority interests () - - - - (5)
Equity holders 891 - 87 87 - 978

(1} Further explanation of AIFRS transition impacts js sel oot on pages 90 1o 91.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 8: Explanation of Transition to AIFRS continued

Balance sheet reconciliation

«—— AIFRS transition adjustments (I} ——
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Recognition and Total AIFRS

AGAAP Group Reclassification  Consolidation  measurement trangition  AIFRS Group
10ctober 2004 $m Sm Sm Sm Sm Sm
Assets
Cash and liquid assets 1,180 - - - - 1180
Receivables due from other financial institutions 371 - 631 - 631 1.002
Assets at fair value through the income statement 5,200 - - - - 5,200
Investment securities 415 - 1,022 - 1,022 1,437
Loans and other receivables 54,782 - 10,552 {13) ¥ 10,539 65,321
Bank acceplances of customers 57132 - - - - 5,132
investments in associated companics 2 - - - - ?
Other invesiments 76 - (22) - (22) 54
Property, plant and equipment 472 - - - - 472
Intangiblc assels 1,165 103 (i< - {3) (x) 100 1,265
Deferred tax assets - 86 (vl - 2 88 88
Other assets 1,165 (189) Wik (x)  (50) - (239) 926
Total assets 69,950 - 12,133 (14) 12,119 82,079
Liabilities
Deposits and other barrawings 46,083 - 1,049 - 1,049 47132
Payables due to other financial institutions 758 - - - - 758
Bank acceptances 5132 - - - - 5132
Provision for dividends iZ - - - - 12
Income 1ax liability 365 (365) Wil - - (365) -
Current tax liability - 154 (i) - - 154 154
Deferred tax liability - 211 il - 22 (vt 233 233

{wii),(ix)
Other provisions 106 - - - - 106
Bonds and noles 9,769 - 10,347 - 10,347 20116
Loan capital 1,619 - - - - 1,619
Bills payable and ather liabilities 1,087 - 737 5 (i) 742 1.829
Total liabilities 64,931 - 12,133 27 12160 77,09
Net assets 5,029 - - (41 (41) 4,988
Shareholders' Equity
Share capital 3.964 - - - - 3,964
Reserves 87 - - (79) b (79) 8
Retained profits 619 - - 38 (hwen 38 657
(wi), (viid.{ix)

Shareholders’ equity attributable to members of the Bank 4,670 - - (41 (41) 4,629
Minarity interests in controlled entities 359 - - - - 359
Total shareholders’ equity 5,029 - - {a1) (41) 4,988

(1) Further explanation of AIFRS transition impacis is set oul on pages 90 to 91.

ST.GEORGE BANK CONCISE FINANCIAL REPORT 2006




86

St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entitics

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 8: Explanation of Transition to AIFRS continued

Balance sheet reconciliation
«— AIFRS transition adjustments () ———

Recognition and Total AIFRS

AGAAP Group Reclassification  Consolidation  measurement transition  AIFRS Group
30 September 2005 $m $m $m Sm im $m
Assets
Cash and liquid assets 1,184 - - - 1,184
Receivables due from other financial institutions 529 - 582 - 582 1M
Assets at fair value through the income statement 6,295 - (288} - (288) 6,007
Investiment securities 18 - 1,131 - 1,131 1,149
Loans and other reccivables 59,687 - 13,275 (13) W) 13,262 72,949
Bank acceptances of customers 7,098 - - - - 7,058
Invesiments in asscciated comparnies - - - - - -
Other investments 57 - (22) - (22} 45
Properly, plant and equipment 459 - - {7} W@ (7 452
Intangible assets 1,060 10 &) - g8 (iMix) 208 1,268
Delerred 1ax assets - 91 (il - 2 i 93 93
Other assets 1,192 (207) Wik (i) 12 - (189) 1,003
Total assets 77,589 - 14,690 80 14,770 92,359
Liabilities
Deposits and other borrowings 48,149 - 1,026 - 1,026 48175
Payables due to other financial institutions 2l - - - - N
Bank acceplances 7,098 - - - - 7,098
Provision for dividends 12 - - - - 12
Income 1ax liability 353 (353) Wit - - (353) -
Current tax liability - 157 i) - - 157 157
Deferred tax fiability - 166 {vii) - 21 (whivh 217 217

{vii}{ix)
Other provisions 109 - - - - 109
Bonds and notes 13,139 - 12,779 - 12,779 25918
Loan capital 1,956 - - - - 1,956
Bills payable and other liabilities 1,349 - 885 5 i) 890 2,239
Total liabilities 72,256 - 14,690 26 14716 86,972
Net assets 5,333 - - 54 54 5,387
Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital 4,105 - - - - 4,105
Reserves 94 - - (71) Gidv) (71) 23
Retained profits 781 - - 125 MG 125 906
(v fvin (i)

Shareholders' equily attributable to members of the Bank 4,980 - - 54 54 5,034
Minority interests in controlled entities 353 - - - - 353
Total shareholders’ equity 5,333 - - 54 54 5,387

(1) Further explanatian of AIFRS transition impacts is set out on pages 50 to 91.
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Note 8: Explanation of Transition to AIFRS continued

Balance sheet reconciliation

<AIFRS transition adjustments (2)»
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Total AIFRS Recognition and Total AIFRS
AGAAP Group  AdjustmentstV Reclassification  measurement Iransition  AIFRS Group
1 October 2005 $m $m m $m $m $m
Assets
Cash and liquid assets 1,184 - - - - 1184
Receivables due from other financial institutions 529 582 - - 582 1,111
Assets at fair value through the income statement 6.295 (288) (1.313) by (2) vy (1,603) 4,692
Derivative assels - - 368 i) 99 (i) 467 467
Available for sale investments - - 1170 & 7 v 1177 1177
Investment securities 18 1131 (1,149) Giv) - (18) -
Leans and other receivabies 59,687 13,262 73 i) (113) Gaidlsii) 13,222 72,909
Bank acceptances of customers 7.098 - 1,337 (i) (29) &) 1308 8,406
Investments in associaled companies - - - - - -
Other investments 67 (22} {45) tav) - (67) -
Property, plant and equipment 459 )] - - 7] 452
Intangible assets 1,060 208 - - 208 1,268
Deferred tax assets 91 2 - 155 i) 157 248
(xiii).(xvi)
Other assets 1,101 (98} {441) ik} {3) Gttt (547) 559
Total assets 77,589 14,770 - 114 14,884 92,473
Liabilities
Deposits and other borrowings 48,149 1,026 - - 1,026 49,175
Payables due to other financial institutions 91 - - - - 9
Lizbilities at fair value through the income statement - - 382 17 ® 399 399
Derivative liabilitics - - 1,558 i) 109  {xii) 1,667 1,667
Bank acceptances 7.098 - - {28) (xvi) (28) 7.070
Pravision for dividends 12 - - - - 12
Income tax liability 353 (353) - - {353) -
Current tax liability - 157 - - 157 157
Deferred tax liabilities - 217 - 47 0D 764 264
(xiv), (v
Other provisions 109 - - - - 109
Bonds and notes 13,139 12,779 293 12 (b 13,084 26,223
Loan capital 1,956 - - - - 1,956
Bills payable and other liabilities 1,349 890 (1,608) (e).Lxi) 34 il (684) 665
Total liabilities 72,256 14,716 625 191 15,632 87,788
Net assets 5,333 54 (625) (77} (648} 4,685
Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital 4,105 - (291) &) - (291) 3.814
Reserves 94 (71) - 54 (i} (17) 77
(xiii) {xiv)
Retained profits 781 125 - (131} (ol (g) 775
{xiii). (xiv)
Shareholders’ equity attributable e members of the Bank 4,980 54 (291) (77) (314} 4,666
Minority interests in controlled entities 353 - (334) ) - (334) 19
Total shareholders’ equity 5,333 54 (625) (77) (648) 4,685

(1) Represents the AIFRS impact as at 30 September 2005 of the application of all AIFRS standards from 1 October 2004 except AASB 132 and 139,

{2) Represents AIFRS transition impacts for AASB 132 and 139 which have been adjusted as at 1 Qctober 2005 (these are explained an pages 91 to 94).
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 8: Explanation of Transition to AIFRS continued

Reconciliation of Shareholders' Equity

The following table summarises the AIFRS transition impact on the components of shareholders” equity al each balance date shown.

As at Year ended As at
10c¢12004 30 Sept 2005 10ct 2005 Total
Note Sm Sm Sm Sm
Retained earnings
AIFRS transition adjustments:
Goodwill ()] - 101 - 107
Share based payments {ii) @) (13) - a7)
Leveraged leases (iv) {9 - - (9)
Property, plant and equipment v) 54 {1 - 53
Employee benefits (vi) (3) - - (3)
Income tax {wii) i - - 2
Intangibles {ix) {2 - - (2)
Hybrid financial instruments () - - (28) (28)
Transaction fees and costs {xi} - - {36) {86)
Hedging {xii) - - {20) {200
toan provisioning (xiii) - - 73 73
Loan provisioning (i) - - (68) 68)
Financial insteurments (xiv) - - (2) (2)
38 87 (131) ()
Share capital
AIFRS transition adjustments:
Hybrid financial instruments (x} - - (291) {251)
- - {291} {291)
Other reserves
AIFRS transition adjustments:
Share based payments (i) 4 13 - 17
Property, plant and equipment W) (83) (5} - (88)
Hedging (xii) - - {19} (19)
Financial instruments {xiv} - - 5 5
General reserve for credit losses (xiii} - - 68 68
79 8 54 (17)
Total AIFRS adjustments to equity attributable to members of the Bank 1) 95 (368) (314)
Minority interests
AIFRS transition adjustments:
Hybrid financial instruments (x) - - (334) (334)
- - (334) (334)
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entitics

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 8: Explanation of Transition to AIFRS continued

Reconciliation of Statement of Cash Flows
The adoption of AIFRS has impacied the statement of cash flows. The main differences to previous GAAP arise due 1o the consalidation of special purpose
entities (refer Note {iii})) and the reciassification of certain cash flows from investing and financing activities 1o operaling aclivities,

The impact of AIFRS is reflected below:

Previous GAAP Adjusliments AIFRS
For the year ended 30 September 2005 Sm $m sm
Cash flows {used)/provided by operaling aclivities (99 704 605
Cash flows {used in} invesling activities {4,622 4,522 (100)
Cash flows provided by/(used in) financing activities 5.203 {5.275) (72)
Cash movement 482 (49) 433
Cash at the beginning of the year 674 631 1,305
Cash at the end of the year 1,156 582 1,738
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S1.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 8: Explanation of Transition
to AIFRS continued

AIFRS impacts from 1 October 2004

(i) Goodwill

In agcordance with the election available
under AASB 1, the Group has not restated any
business combinations that occurred prior 10

1 Oclober 2004.

Goodwill is recognised under AIFRS at cost less
accumulated amortisation as at 1 Oclober 2004
and is subject 10 an annual assessment

for impairment. If there is any goodwill
impairment, it will be recognised immediately
in the income statement. There is no goodwill
impairment in existence as at 1 October 2004,
30 Scptember 2005 or 30 Scptember 2006,

Goodwill will no longer be subject to periodic
amortisation and the goodwill amortisation
charge recognised under previous GAAP

has been reversed. This has resulled in an
increase in profit after tax of $101 million

far the year ended 30 September 2005. In
addition, the carrying amount of poodwill

has been increased by $101 million as at

30 September 2005.

(i) Share based compensation

The Group did nol recognise an éxpense in
relation to its ermployee share and options
schemes under previous GAAP. Fallowing
transition to AIFRS, the fair value of equity
instruments granted to employees has been
calculated and recognised as an expense
through amortisation over the relevant vesting
period, adjusted for the expected and actual
level of vesting for non-rmarket related vesling
conditions.

In accordance with the election available under
AASB 1, the Group has only applied AASE 2
"Share-Based Payment” 1o equity instruments
granted aiter 7 November 2002 that vested
after 1 January 2005.
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Upon transition to AIFRS, a reduction

of $4 million te retained camings at

1 October 2004 was recognised, representing
the expensing of employee equity grants over
the vesting period o this date. In addition,

an expense of $13 million was recogniscd

10 restate the result for the year ended

30 Septemnber 2005. In canjunction with the
recognition of an expense for employee equity
grants, a corresponding increase is recognised
within an equity compensation reserve.

(iii} Consolidation

AIFRS introduces new requirements for the
recognition of financial assets, including those
transferred 10 a special purpose vehicle as

part of securitisation transactions. Existing
securitisations, bath of St.George's assets and
assets held in assei-backed conduit vehicles,
had not been consclidated within the S1.George
Group under previous GAAP. However, under
AIFRS the Group is considered to conltrol
these special purpose vehicles and therefore is
required 1o consolidate these entities.

The new AIFRS consolidation requircments
have resulted in a gross-up of assets

and liabilitics within the balance sheet

as at 1 October 2004 of $11.1 billion

{30 September 2005: $13.6 billion) in relation
1o the securitisation of St.George's assets and
51.0 billion (30 September 2005: $1.1 billion}
in relation to asset-backed conduit vehicles.

The consolidation of these vehicles has no
net profit impact however, it does result

in a reclassification of items within the
income staiement. For the year ended

30 Septernber 2005, net interest income
increased by $94 million, non-inierest income
decreased by $96 million and operating
expenses decreased by $2 million.

In addition, certain asset-backed canduit
vehicle assets recognised upon consolidation
are classified as available for sale investments,
with movements in their fair value recognised
in an available for sale reserve within equily
from 1 October 2005.

The consclidation of the Ascalon Funds Seed
Pool Trust has resulled in a reclassification
of §22 million from other investments 1¢
investment securities.

(iv} Leveraged leases

Incomne from leveraged leases was recognised
under previous GAAP progressively over the
lease term on an effective yield after tax basis,
with related upfront fec income recognised
upon receipl.

Under AIFRS, all income on leveraged leases is
recopnised progressively over the lease term
on an effeclive pre-tax yield basis.

A transitional adjustment was recognised at

1 Octaber 2004 1o increase unearned income
by $13 million and decrease deferred tax
liabilities by $4 million, resulting in a $9 millian
reduction to retained carnings.

There has been no significant impact on net
profit during 2005 as # result of the revised
AIFRS income recognition methodology.

(v} Property, plant and equipment

The Group recognised land and buildings
under previous GAAP al revalued amounts,
with revaluation increments and decrements
recorded in an asset revaluation and realisation
reserve.

In accordance with the election available
under AASB 1, the Group has used the
revalued amount for land and buildings under
previous GAAP as at 1 October 2004 g8
“deemed cost” under AIFRS. The balance of
the asset revaluation and realisation reserve

of $83 millien at 1 October 2004 has been
wransferred (o retained carnings and together
with the recognition of a deferred tax liability
of $29 million, has resulled in an increase in
retained earnings of $54 million. In additicon,
the movement in the assel revaluation reserve
under previous GAAP of $7 million (prior to
decrements recognised in she asset revaluation
reserve of $2 miflion) for the year ended

30 September 2005 has been reversed. At

30 September 2005, this resulted In a decrease
in land and buildings of $7 millicn, a decrease
in the asset revaluation and realisation reserve
of $5 million and a decrcase in retained
earnings of $2 million due to the recognition
of an impairment loss on land and buildings, as
discussed below.




St.Geerge Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 3C September 2006

Note 8: Explanation of Transition
to AIFRS continued

The previous GAAP results for the year ended
30 September 2005 has beer reduced by

$1 million after tax under AIFRS, reflecting

the combined impact of the recognition of

land and buildings impairment that was not
reflected in the previous GAAP Statements of
Financial Performance but was recognised in an
asset revaluation reserve of $2 million and the
reversal of a deferred tax liability of $1 million
on buildings sold during 2005.

{vi} Employee benefits

The Group did not recognise an asset or liability
in its balance sheet for the net position of

the defined benefit section of the defined
contribulion superannuation plan sponsored by
the Group.

On adoption of AIFRS, a deficit of $5 million

within the Group's defined benefit section of
the defined contribution superannuation plan
was recognised as a liability, together with a

$2 millior increase in deferred tax assets and
a decrease in retained earnings at 1 October

2004 of $3 million.

The revised AASB 119 (issued in December
2004) permits a number of options for
recagnising actuarial gains and losses on an
ongoing basis. The Group has adopted the
revised AASB 119 and has elected 1o apply the
option to recognise actuarial gains and losses
directly in retained earnings.

{vii) Income tax

Upon transition t¢ AIFRS, the Group has
changed from the liability method to 8 “balance
sheet approach” 1o tax effect accounting that
requires deferred tax balances to be recognised
where there is a difference between the
carrying value of an asset/liability and its tax
base. In addition, under AIFRS the tax effect
fellows the underlying transaction and hence
can be recognised in equity or as an income
tax expense.

The tax adjustments lo deferred tax assets and
liabilities that arise on transition to AIFRS as

at 1 Octaber 2004, comprise an increase of

$2 million in deferred tax assets associated with
the defined benefit superannuation deficit, a
decrease in deferred tax liabilities of $1 mullion
associsted with the write-off of intangible
assets relating to capitalised software, an
increase of $29 million in deferred tax liabilities
representing the tax effect of the balance of
the asset revaluation reserve transferred to
retained earnings and a decrease of $4 million
in deferred tax liabilities relating to the change
in revenue recognition for leveraged leases.

In addition, a net transitional adjustment
decrease to deferred tax liabilities of $2 million
and a $2 million increase ta retained earnings
at 1 October 2004 arises from the change in
method of sccounting for income taxes from an
income statement approach to a balance sheet
approach for items not previcusly required (o
be recognised. This represents the tax effect

of tax and accounting carrying value base
differences on buildings of $8 million.

Deferred tax assets have been separately
recognised on the face of the belance sheet,
resulting in a decrease in other assets of

$86 million at 1 October 2004 and $91 million
at 30 September 2005. Current and deferred
tax liabilities, previcusly recognised wilhin
income tax liability, have been separately
recognised on the face of the balance sheet.

{viii) Life insurance accounting

On transilion to AIFRS, the asset representing
the Excess of Net Market Value over Net
Assels (EMVONA) of a life insurance entity's
controlled entities can no longer be recognised.
As the Group's life insurance entity did not
recognise any EMVONA, this requirement has
had no impact.
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(ix) Intangible assets

On transition to AIFRS, certain items previously
included within deferred expenditure are no
longer eligible for recognition within intangible
asscls and have been written off. As at

1 October 2004, this resulted in a reduction
inintangible assets of $3 million, a reduction

in deferred tax liabifities of $71 million and a
decrease Lo retained earnings of $2 million.

In addition, the Group's deferred expenditura
has been reclassified to intangible assets,
resulting in a decrease in other assats and a
corresponding increase in intangible assets
of $103 million at 1 October 2004 and

$110 milfion at 30 September 2005.

AIFRS impacts from 1 October 2005

(x) Hybrid financial instruments

PRYMES and DCS, which were classified as
equity under previous GAAP, are reclassified
as debt under AIFRS. This resulted in a

$625 million decrease in shareholders' equity
on transition. The dividends payable (where
applicable) on these instruments are classified
as interest expense under AIFRS. The SAINTS
and the Perpetual Notes will continue to be
classified as equity under AIFRS.

The DCS include a number of embedded
derivatives that are required under AIFRS to be
carried at fair value. The Group has elected to
measure the DCS from 1 October 2005 at fair
value to the income statement in accordance
with the availsble alternative i AASB 139,
resulting in all changes in fair value of the DCS
and its embedded derivatives being recognised
in the income statement. The impact on the
income stalement will be partially offset by

the fair value recognition on the balance sheet
of the derivative thal was entered into at the
time of the issue of the DCS, whose changes
in fair value are also recognised within the
income statement. At 1 Ociober 2005, a fair
value adjustment to increase the DCS liability
by $17 million was recognised together with a
deferred tax asset of $5 millicn, resulting in the
reduction in retained earnings of $12 million. In
addition, $48 miltion of associated derivative
liabilities and distribulion provisions have been
reclassified from other liabilities to liabilities at
fair vaiue through the income stalement.

ST.GECRGE BANK CONCISE FINANCIAL REPORT 2006




92

St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 8: Explanation of Transition
to AIFRS continued

PRYMES are measured at fair value net of
transaction costs at initial recognition and
amortised cost in subsequent periods.

Share issue costs relating to PRYMES have
been netted against the proceeds from the
issue of these securities and classified as equity
under previous GAAP. Under AIFRS, share
issue costs are deferred and recognised as

an adjustment Lo the yield of the instrument.
At 1Qctober 2005, $15 million of share

issue costs and a redemption premium have
been recognised as a reduction to retained
earnings. In addition, the ameunts payable 10
holders of the PRYMES of $2 million have been
reclassified and included within the underlying
liability balance.

Share issue costs relating to the DCS had
heen deferred and amartised under previous
GAAP. Following the election 1o recognise

the DCS under the fair value option, the
remaining balance of deferred costs have been
recognised as a reduction to retained earnings
of $1 million at 1 October 2005.

(xi) Transaction fees and costs

AIFRS requires fee income that is integral to an
instrument to be recognised as an adjustment
to the yield of that instrument. AIFRS also
requires the deferral of directly attributable
incremental loan crigination costs and their
recognition as a yield adjustment net of

any fees received. The Group deferred and
ameortised certain home loan broker origination
costs under previous GAAP.

On transition, certain fees previously
recognised as income, have been deferred

in the balance sheet with a corresponding
adjustment to retained earnings. This
adjustment on transition at 1 October 2005 has
resulted in a decrease in loans and receivables
of $122 million, an increase In deferred tax
assets of $42 million, an increase in deferred
tax liabilities of $6 million, and a reduction in
retained earnings of $86 million.
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In addition, deferred origination costs
recognised within other assets under previous
GAAP of $73 million have been reclassified
within loans and other receivsbles from

1 October 2005.

The classification of certain fee income and
loan origination costs that are integral o

the yield of an instrument will change from
non-interest income under previous GAAP to
interest income under AIFRS.

(xi) Derivatives and hedging

Under AIFRS, all derivatives contracts, whether
used as hedging instruments or otherwise, will
be measured at fair value at initial recognition
and at each subsequent reporting date in the
balance sheet, with & corresponding entry o
the income statement or an equity reserve.
Under previous GAAP, St.George recognised
trading derivatives on a mark to market basis
on balance sheet and hedging derivatives on an
accruals basis.

AIFRS introduces new requirements in relation
to the application of hedge accounting

for derivative contracts. Amongst those
requirements, hedging instruments must satisfy
hedge effectiveness tests.

To the extent hedges are considered
ineffective, AIFRS requires such ineffectiveness
to be reflected in the income statement.
where ineffectiveness is outside a preseribed
range, AASB 139 precludes the use of hedge
accounting, which may result in volatility in

the income statement. St.George has adopted
cash flow hedging and a combination of

fair value and cash flow hedging methods

in relation to its interest rate and currency
hedges respectively. To the extent the fair
value hedges are effective, the fair value
maovement of the derivative instrument will
largely offsel the movement in the fair value

of the underlying hedged itemn for the risks
hedged, which will also be recorded in the
income statement. To the extent that cash flow
hedges are effective, the fair value movements
in derivative instruments will be taken to equity
rather than the income statement.

Certain derivatives used 1o manage short-term
balance sheet structural interest rate risks in
the banking book will nct be eligible for hedge
accounting such as Overnight Index Swaps and
Forward Rate Agreements. To the extent these
and any other non-trading derivatives do not
qualify for hedge relationships, additional
volatility will arise.

On transition at 1 October 2005, derivative
assets of $368 million have been reclassified
[rom other assets and separately recognised
and derivative liabilities of $1.558 billion
have been reclassified from other ligbilities
and separately recognised. In addition, the
recognilion of all derivalives at fair value,
together with the application of fair value and
cash flow hedging, resulted in an increase in
derivative assets and derivative liabilities of
$99 million and $109 million respectively, an
increase in deferred tax assets and liabilitics
of $35 million and $31 million respectively, a
hedge fair value adjustment reducing bonds
and rotes by $3 million, a decrease of other
assets of $2 million and an increase in other
figbilities of $34 million. This has resulted in a
decrease in retained earnings of $20 million
and the recognilion of 3 cash flow hedging
reserve of $19 million after tax.

(xii)) Loan provisioning

AIFRS adopts an approach known as “incurred
losses” for loan provisicning and provides
guidance on measurement of incurred

losses. Provisions are raised for losses that
have already been incurred for loans that

are known 1o be impaired. The estimated

cash flows on these impaired loans are then
discounted to their present value to determing
their recoverable amount and the associaied
provision. As this discount unwinds, there

is a resulling recognition of interest in the
income statement during the period between
recognition of impairment and recovery of the
written down amount.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 8: Explanation of Transition
to AIFRS continued

Loans found not to be individually impaired are
placed inlo poals of similar assets with similar
risks characteristics to be collectively assessed
for impairment. A collective impairment
provision may oe required where impairment
events have occurred bul these events cannoi
be attributed to individual exposures at the
reporting date. The collective impairment

loss is estimated on the basis of historical

loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the collective
peol. The historical loss experience is adjusted
based on current observable data.

The general provision under previous GAAP,
based on 0.5% of risk weighted assets,
together with certain portfolio provisions on
retail loans, have been written back against
retained earnings and replaced by a provision
based on collective assessment in accordance
with AIFRS that has been tax effected. Specific
provisions will continue but will be measured
based on AIFRS requirements.

A portion of the specific provision of

$35 million, an associated deferred tax asset
of $10 million, and the general provision of
$219 million, which was recognised under
previous GAAP, has been reversed to retained
earnings. This has resulted in an increase in
retained earnings of $244 million.

In accordance with the requirements

of AASB 139, a collective provision of

$245 million, topether with a deferred tax
assel of $74 million, has been recognised
under AIFRS. This has resulted in a decresse in
retained earnings of $171 million.

The difference between the after tax equivalent
of the former AGAAP general provision
{based on 0.5% of risk weighled assets)

and the after tax equivalent of the coliective
pravision has been appreprialed from retsined
earnings to a general reserve for credit losses
at 1 October 2005. This has resulted in a

$68 miltion increase in the general reserve for
credit losses and a corresponding decrease in
retained carnings. This decrease in retained
garnings offsets a net increase in retained
earnings of $73 million, which resulted from
the wrile-back of AGAAP loan provisions, and
the recognition of AIFRS loan provisions.

(xiv)Financial instruments

Financial assets carried at fair value and
amartised cost under previous GAAP, have
been reclassified to assets at fair value through
the income statement, with unrealised changes
in fair value recognised within the inccme
statemnent. Included within the reclassification
of these securities are trading assets of

$6,295 miflion and other investments of

$24 million as at 1 October 2005.

The use of quoted bid prices in the calculation
of the fair value of trading securitics has,

on transition at 1 October 2005, resulled

in a decrease in assets at fair value through
the income statemnent and a corresponding
decrease in retained earnings of $2 millicn.

Financial assets carried at amaortised cost
under previous GAAP, have been reclassified
under AIFRS to Available for Sale (AFS)
securities, with unrealised changes in fair
value recognised within an equity reserve.
Included within the reclassification of

these securities are investment securities

of $1,149 million and other investments of
$21 million as at 1 October 2005. On transition
at 1 October 2005, this has resuited in an
increase in available for sale investments of
$7 million, the recognition of 3 deferred tax
liability of $2 million, and the recognition of an
AFS equity reserve of $5 million.

93

{xv) Income tax

Adgitional tax effects have arisen in respect

of the 1 October 2005 AIFRS transitional
adjustments. The recognition of the Depositary
Capital Securities {DCS) at fair value resulted in
an increase of $5 million in deferred Lax assets
and Snil in deferred tax liabilities. The deferral
of transaction fees and costs resulied in an
increase in deferred tax assets of $42 million
and deferred tax liabilities of $6 million. The
recognition of hedging derivatives and existing
hedging derivatives not eligible for AIFRS
hedge accounting resulted in the recognition
of deferred 1ax assets of $35 millien and an
increase in deferred tax ligbilities of $31 million.
The recognition of asseis and liabilities at fair
value resulted in the recognition of a deferred
tax liability of $2 million for avsilable for sale
investments. The write back of loan provisions
under previous GAAP and recognition of
AIFRS collective loan provisions resulted in an
increase in deferred tax assets of $64 million.
The restatement of the bank acceptance
assets and liabilities 1o an amortised cost basis
resulted in a $9 million increase in deferred tax
assets and an $8 million increase in deferred
tax liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 Scplember 2006

Note 8: Explanation of Transition
to AIFRS conlinued

(xvi)Bank acceptances

Under previous GAAP, the Group accepted and
discountad bills for customers, classifying these
within trading securities at their market value.
Lipon their "on-sale”, customer discounted
bills were reclassified 1¢ bank acceptance
assets and recognised at their face value.

A correspanding liability was recognised
representing the Group’s obligation to the
holder of the on-sold bill. Interest income

on discounted bills was recognised within
interest income and bill acceptance fee income
recognised within other income.

Under the recognition requirements of

AASB 139, all bank accepted bills (including
both discounted and on-sold bills) and

the associated lisbility lor on-sold bills arc
recognised at amortised cost, with intcrest
income and axpense recognised using the
effective yicld methodology. Fee income on hill
acceptances is recognised on an effective yield
basis within intercst income.

Al 1 Qclober 2005, the Group's bank accepted
and discounted bills recogniscd within

trading securities of $1.337 million under
previous GAAP have been reclassified to bank
acceptances.

In addition, bank acceptance assets and
liabilities have been restated Lo an amortised
cost basis. As at 1 Oclober 2005, this has
resulted in a decrease in the bank acceptance
asset of $29 million, with the recognition of
an associated deferred tax assel of 39 million,
and a decrease in the bank acceptance liability
of $28 million, with the recognition of an
associated deferred tax liability of $8 million.
There is no significant impact en retained
earnings for these adjustments.
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Note 9: Events Subsequent to Balance
Date

Final dividend

On 1 November 2006, the Directors declared
a final dividend of 77 cents per ordinary share,
amounting to $405 million. This dividend has
not been brought 1o account in the Group's
financial statements for the year ended

30 September 2006.

Capital raising

The Bank intends to issue a $300 million
Nen-lnnovative Tier 1 capital instrument in
December 2006.
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S1.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors’ Declaration

For the year ended 30 September 2006

In the opinion of the Directors of St.George Bank Limited, the remuneration disclosures that are contained in the Remuneration Report on pages 54 1o
66 of the Directors’ Report are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001. The accompanying Concisc Financial Report of the Group, comprising
St.George Bank Limited end its controlled entities for the year ended 30 September 20086, set cut on pages 72 to 94:

{8) has been derived from or is consistent with the Full Financial Repaort for the financial year; and
(b) complies with Australian Accounting Standard AASE 1039: “Concise Financial Reports”.

For and on behali of the Board of Directors and in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

) M Thame
Chairman

o Ke

G P Kelly
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Dated at Sydney, New South Wales
7 November 2006
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St.George Bank Limited and its Centrolled Entities

Independent Audit Report on Concise Financial Report

For the year ended 30 Scptember 2006
To the Shareholders of St.George Bank Limited

Scope

We have audited the Congise Financial Report of $t.George Bank Limited (*the Bank™) and its controlled entities for the finoncial year ended

30 September 2006, consisting of the Income statement, statement of recognised income and expense, balance sheet, slatement of cash flows,
accompanying rotes 110 9, and the Directors’ Declaration set out on pages 72 ta 95. We have audiled information disclosed by the Bank, as
permitted by the Corporations Regulations 2001, about the remuneration of Directors and executives (“remuneration disclosures™) required by
Australian Accounting Standard AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures, under the heading “Remuneration Reporl” in the Directors’ Report and not
in the Concise Financial Report. The Bank's Directors are responsible for the Concise Financial Report and the remuneration disclosures. We have
conducted an independent audit of the Concise Financial Report and the remuneration disclosures in order Lo express an opinion on them to the
shareholders of the Bank.

Cur audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards to provide reasonable assurance whether the Concise Financial
Report is free of material misstatemnent. We have also performed an independent audit of the Full Financial Report and the remuneration disclosures
of St.George Bank Limited and its controlled entities for the year ended 30 September 2006. The Remuneration Report also contains information nat
required by Australian Accounting Standard AASB 124 which is not subject to our audit. Our audit report on the Full Financial Repert was signed on
7 November 2006, and was not subject to any qualification.

Qur procedures in respect of the audit of the Concise Financial Report included testing that the information in the Concise Financial Report is
consistent with the Full Financial Report and ¢xamination, on a test basis, of evidence supperting the amounts, and other disclosures which were
not directly derived from the Full Financial Report. These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion whether, in all material respects,
the Congise Financial Report is presented fairly in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1039 Concise Financial Reports.

The audit opinion expressed in this repert has been formed on the above basis.

Audit opinion
In our opinion the Concise Financial Repori of St.George Bank Limited and its controlled entities for the year ended 30 September 2006 complies
with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1039 Concise Financial Reports.

KPM G

KPMG

49

P M Reid

Sydney
7 November 2006
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Supplementary Information

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Capital Adequacy

Capital adequacy has been calculated in accordance with APRA's AIFRS regulatory requirements that applied from 1 July 2006. In accordance with
APRA’s transitional arrangements, the $261 million Tier 1 regulatory capital shortfall calculated as the difference between the Group's previous
GAAP capita! base at 30 June 2006 and AIFRS capital base at 1 July 2006, is subject to transitional relief until 31 December 2007.

Qualifying capital
Consolidated
2006 2005
$m Sm
Tier 1
Share Capital 3,868 3,454
General Reserve 15 15
Borrowers' and depositors’ redemption reserve 2 2
PRYMES - 291
SAINTS 345 345
Perpetual notes 34 3
Step-up preference sharcs 148 -
Depositary capital securitics 335 328
Minority interests (16) (12)
Assel realisation reserve - 33
Other reserves z 5
Equity compensation reserve 29 -
Retained earnings 798 781
Less:  Expected dividend () (344) (237)
Capitalised expenses(@ (295) (184)
Goodwill and other APRA deductions (1,513) {(1,366)
Add:  APRA AIFRS transilion adjustments( 261 -
Total Tier 1 capital 3,669 3,486
Tier 2
Asset revaluations 28 55
Subordinated debt 1,835 1,600
General provision for doubtful debts - 219
General reserve for credit losses/collective provision 265 -
Add:  APRA AIFRS transition adjustments (3) 7 -
Total Tier 2 capital ’ 2,135 1,874
Deductions
Investment in non-consolidated entities net of goodwill and Tier 1 deductions 27 27
Other 1 1
Total deductions from capital B 28 28
Total qualifying capital 5,776 5,332
Total risk weighted assets 52,982 47,864
Capital Adequacy Ratios % %
Tier | 6.9 7.3
Tier 2 4.0 3.9
Less deductions (0.1) (0.1
Total capital ratio 10.8 111

(1} Net of estimated reinvestment under the dividend reinvestment plan.

{2} In accordance with APRA's AIFRS regulatory capital requirements, capitalised software costs are also required to be deducted from Tier ¥ capital from
1)uly 2005.

(3} Fransitional relicf adjusiment approved by APRA to apply to 31 December 2007. In accordance with APRA's AIFRS regulatory requirements applicable
from 1 July 2006, the difference between the Group's previous GAAP capital base at 30 June 2006 and AIFRS capital base at 1 July 2006 is subject to
transiticnal relief.
ST.GEORGE BANK CONCISE FINANCIAL REPORT 2006
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Supplementary Financial Information

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Shareholder Information

Classes of Shares on Issue

The Bank has five classes of shares on

issue: fully paid ordinary shares, SAINTS
{Subordinated Adjustable Income Non-
refundable Tier 1 Securities) SPS (Step-Up
Preference Shares) (nen-cumulative unsecured
preference shares), unpaid borrower shares
and unpaid depositor shares, Further details arc
contained within the accompanying ‘Notes 1o
and forming part of the accounts’ and later in
this section.

The rights and restrictions atlaching to all
classes are contained within the Bank’s
Constitution, consisting of its Memorandum
and Articles of Association, a copy of which

is available 10 any shareholder on written
request 1o either S1.George’s share registry
(Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited),
orits registercd office. Contact details are
inside the back cover of this report,

Voting Rights
Subject to the Bank's Constitution, at generat
meelings of the Bank:

{3} each ordinary sharcholder entitled to vole
may either vote in person, by proxy, by
attorney or, where a body corporate, by
representative;

{b) on a show of hands, each ordinary
shareholder present in person, by proxy,
attorney or representative has one vote;

(c) ona poll, each ordinary shareholder
present in person, by proxy, representative
or attorney shall have one voie for every
ordinary share held by that shareholder.

In the case of joint holdings, only one joint
holder may vote and if both jeint holders
attend the meeting only the first named in
the register of shareholders may vote.

SAINTS and SPS holders will be entitled to
attend gencral meetings of the Bank, but

will not be entitled to speak of vole except

in limited circumstances prescribed by the
ASX Listing Rules. Borrower and deposilor
sharcholders will be entilled 1o atiend general
meetings, but will not be entitled 1o speak or
vote. Full details of voting entitlements for all
classes of shareholder are contained within the
Bank’s Constitution.

ST.GEORGE BANK CONCISE FINANCIAL REPORT 2006

Voting by Proxy

The Board strongly encourages shareholders
wha are not zble 1o altend meetings to
participate in the decision making process
through the completion and return of proxies.
If a shareholder appoints a proxy and still
altends the meeting, they may not vote unless
he or she revokes the proxy prior 1o the
commencemenl of the meeting,

Corporate sharcholders may:

¢ appoinl 3 representative; or
* appoint a proxy:

1o represent them at meetings.

If a representative of a corperate securityholder
or proxy is 10 atlend the meeting, the
appropriate “Ceriificate of Appointment of
Corporale Representative” should be produced
prior to admission. A form of the certificate
may be obtained from the company's share
registry and must be returned 1o either the
Bank’s share registry or its registered office {or
by specified facsimile numbers at such places),
no later than 48 hours before the meeting.

Australian Stock Exchange Listing

The Bank's ordinary shares, SAINTS and SPS
are quoted on the Australian Stock Exchange
(‘ASX") with Sydney being the Bank's home
exchange. The stock codes under which these
shares trade arc:

+ 'SGB’ for ordinary,
+ 'SGBPC' for SPS,
«  ‘SGBPA’ for SAINTS.

Trading results are published in most Australian
daily newspapers.

Option contracts against the ordinary shares
of the Bank are traded on the ASX Derivalives
Market. Further information can be obtained
from ASX Derivalives or a stockbroker.

In the United States, the Bank’s ordinary
shares may be traded in the form of American
Depository Receipts issued through Deutsche
Bank. Further enquiries should be directed to
Deutsche Bank. Contact details are inside the
back cover of this report.

Sharehalders or other interested parties
wishing 10 trade in St.George shares on the
ASX must do s¢ 1hrough a stockbroker. The
Corporate Relations office of the ASX con
arrange 2 referral lor persons who have had no
prior dealings with a stockbroker.

Investor Information on the Internet

Visit our Shareholder Centre section on the
S1.George website www.stgearge.com.au for
comprehensive sharehalder information such
as the Annual Reports, profit announcements,
News and ASX releases, current share price as
well as access Lo your shareholding on-line.

Receive Only the Information You Need
Sharehelders not requiring a copy of the
Concise Annual Report should advisc the
St.George share registry in writing, quoling
iheir Shareholder Reference Number or Holder
1dentification Number. All other mailings will
still be received if this option is selected.

Alternatively, shareholders may opt Lo receive
the End of Year Update, a brief version of the
Concise Annual Report. All reports are avaitable
via emall. To change your current selection or
to request a copy of the 2005 Full Financial
Report, contact the Bank's share registry,
Computershare on 18G0 804 457,
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Information Regarding Shareholdings

(i) Range Of Shares as at 30 September 2006
{a) Ordinary Shares

Number of

Number of Ordinary Pereentage
Range of Shareholdings Sharcholdings Shares of Total
1-1000 82,465 38,050,546 7.23
1,001 - 5000 93,015 117,322,243 22.28
5.001-10,000 8168 57,224,539 10.87
10,001 -100.000 5226 13,109,276 21.48
100,001 - 9,999,999,999 188 200,871,969 3814 |
Total 149,062 526,578,573 100.00

There were 1,182 shareholders who held less than @ markelable parcel of ordinary shares that equates 1o a markel value of less than $500 based
on the market price as at 30 September 2006.

(b) SAINTS
Number of
Number of Preference Percentoge
Range of Sharcholdings Sharcholdings Shares of 1otal
1-1000 anz 1,426,310 40.75
1,001 - 5000 219 455,559 13.02
5,001-10,000 N 167,007 4.77
10,001-100,000 17 597,252 17.06
100,001 - 9,999 ,999,999 2 854,072 24 40
Total 8,371 3,500,000 100.00
{c) SPS
Number of
. Mumber of Preference Percentage
Range of Sharcholdings Sharcholdings Shares of Total
1-1000 862 303,648 20.24
1,001 - 5000 70 184,106 12.27
5.001-10,000 13 103,233 6.88
10,001 -100,000 15 567,297 37.83
100,001 - 9,999 995,959 2 341,716 22.78
Total 962 1,500,000 100.00

(ii) Limitation on Share Ownership
The Constitution of the Bank imposes a prohibition on the ownership of more than ten percent (10%) of the issued shares in the Bank. From 1july 2002,
an amendment to the Constitution relating to the ten percent (10%) shareholding limitation, may be effected by a special resolution of shareholders
holding scventy-five percent (75%) or more of the Bank's ordinary shares voting in favour of the amendment whether in person or by proxy,

The Financial Sector (Sharcholdings) Act also contains shareholding limitations.
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{iii) Listings
The ordinary and preference shares of the Bank are traded on the Australian Steck Exchange {ASX), wilh Sydney being the Bank's home exchange.
The symbol under which the ordinary shares and SAINTS and SPS are traded is “SGB”, "SGBPA” and "SGBPC" respectively. Share details of
trading activity are published in most daily newspapers. The Bank also has the following two Transferable Deposit issucs listed on the ASX:
AS400 million Fixed Rate 6.00% Transferable Deposits due April 2011 under code SGBHA
A$900 million Floating Rate Transferable Deposits due April 2011 under code SGBHB

S1.George alsa has a US$10 billion Euro Note Programme listed on the London Stock Exchange Limited. The following Nates under the St.George
US$10 billion Euro Note Programme are listed on the London Stock Exchange:

EURS00 million Floating Rate Notes due January 2007
EURS0 million Floating Rate Notes due February 2007
GBP45 million Floating Rate Notes due March 2007
GBP200 millicn Floating Rate Notes due March 2007
FURSGO millicn Flosting Rate Notes due June 2007
EURSO million Floating Rate Noies due December 2007
GBPS0 million Floating Rate Notes due Aprii 2008
EUR100 million Floating Rate Notes due June 2008
EUR500 million Floating Rate Notes due June 2008
GBP70 million Floating Rate Notes due July 2008
GBP45 million Floating Rate Notes due March 2009
EUR7S0 million Floating Rate Notes due August 2009
US350¢ million Floating Rate Notes due February 2010
EUR7Z50 million Floating Rate Notes due June 2010
EUR250 million Floating Rale Subordinated Noles due Octaber 2015
GBP375 million Floating Rate Notes dug January 201
EURG0C million Fioating Rate Notes due Jung 2011

(iv) Substantial Shareholders
St.Gearge Bark has not been provided with a Notice of substantial shareholding during its 2005/2006 financial year.

{v} Top 20 Shareholders as at 30 September 2006
(a) Ordinary Shares

Number of Percentage
Sharehoider Ordinary Shares Heid  of Shares Held
JP Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 48,614,699 a3
National Nominees Limited 28,098,953 5.38
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 18,352,509 3.51
Westpac Custodian Nominees Limited 18,226,066 3.49
RBC Global Services Australis Nominees Pty Limiled 15,245,816 292
Cogent Nominees Pty Limited 8,692,361 1.66
Queensland Investment Corporation 5,490,578 1.05
ANZ Nominees Limited 5,410,712 1.04
Westpac Financial Services Limited 2,623,941 0.50
Australian Foundation Invesiment Company Limited 2,543,663 0.49
Argo Investments Limited 2,431,137 0.47
AMP Life Limiled 2,049,762 0.39
Milion Corporation Limited 1,807121 0.35
Bonds Street Custodians Limited 1,605,847 0.33
PSS Board 1,520,965 0.29
Djerriwarrh (nvestments Limited 1,371,968 0.26
Perpetual Trustee Company Limited 1,369,683 026
MecCusker Haldings Pty Limited 1,212,749 0.23
UBS Private Clients Australia Nominees Pty Limited 1,182,930 0.23
Australian Reward Investment Alliance 1 922,656 018
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(b) SAINTS

Sharcholder

101

Number of Percentage
Ordinary Shares Held  of Shares Held

JP Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 650,630 18.59
AMP Life Limited 203,442 5.81
Cogent Nominees Pty Limited 99,617 2.85
UBS Private Clients Australia Naminees Pty Limited 86,766 248
Westpac Custodian Naminees Limited 86,306 2.47
Goldman Sachs | B Were Pty Limited 45,913 1.31
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 43,355 1.24
ANZ Nominecs Limited 41,393 118
Camboaoya Pty Limited 36,550 1.04
RBC Global Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited 25,602 0.73
Australian Executor Trustees Limited 21,830 0.62
Cryton Invesiments No.9 Pty Ltd 21,050 0.60
Australian National University 20,000 0.57
Questor Financial Services Limited 19,841 0.57
Elise Neminees Pty Limited 18,594 0.53
Hastings Funds Management Limited 15,000 0.43
Bond Stregt Custodians Limited 12,954 0.37
Argo fnvestments Limited 12,000 0.34
Cambooya Piy Limited Foundation A/C 10,831 0.31
Kaytcal Pty Limited 10,000 0.29
(c} SPS

Number of Percentage

Shareheolder

Ordinary Shares Held  of Shares Held

JP Margan Nominees Australia Limited

National Nominees Limited

RBC Dexia Investor Services Australia Nominces Pty Limited
ANZ Nominees Limited

Australian National University

Dimbulu Pty Ltd

UCA Cash Management Fund Limited

UBS Private Clients Australia Nominees Pty Limited
Goldman Sachs | B Were Capital Markets Ltd
Meriten Property Finance Pty Ltd

OH) Holdings Pty Ltd

Questor Financial Services Limited

Citicerp Nominees Pty Limited

Invia Custodian Pty Limited

Cogent Nominees Pty Ltd

Fortis Clearing Nominees Pty Limited

Elise Nominces Pty Limited

Baptist Community Services

Inviag Custodian Pty Ltd

M F Custodians Ltd

238,716 1591
103,000 6.87
79,800 5.32
62,500 4.17
60,000 4.00
51,000 3.40
30,000 3.33
49,774 3.32
46,744 3.2
29,000 1.93
25,650 1.71
22,787 1.52
22,500 1.50
20,000 133
18,100 1.21
17,634 118
12,973 0.86
10,000 0.67
10,000 0.67
9,817 0.65
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(vi) Domicile of Sharcholdings as at 30 September 2006

(o) Ordinary Shareholdings
Numberof  Total Number

Locality Shareholders  of Shares Held
Australian Capital Territory 2,635 8,253,047
New South Wales N.647 312737612
Northern Territory 123 226,243
Qucensland 6,803 26,999,412
South Australia 4,671 16,413,455
Tasmania 609 1,972,868
Victoria 16,654 112,345,210
Western Ausiralia 2,868 7,502,320
Domestic Total . 76,010 486,454,167
Overseas Total ) 695 2,618,639
Total 76,705 489,072,806
(b} SAINTS

Number of  Total Number
Locality Shareholders  of Shares Held
Australian Capital Territory 172 51,855
New South Wales 2,51 1,667,158
Northern Territory 7 338
Queensland 366 65,760
South Australia 261 81,316
Tasmania 51 5,296
Vicloria 900 441,119
Western Australia M 33.670
Domestic Total 4,469 2,350,512
Overseas Total 5 410
Total 4,474 2,350,922
(c} sPS

Number of  Total Number
Locality Shareholders  of Shares Held
Australian Capital Territory 6 63,320
New South Wales 107 638,165
Northern Territory - -
Queensland 12 16,170
South Aystralia 10 22,650
Tasmania 1 85
Victoria 65 465,331
Western Australia 5 348
Domestic Total 206 1,205,479
Overseas Total - -
Total 206 1,205,479
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Supplementary Financial Information

For the year ended 30 Septernber 2006

Five Year History of Share lssues and Dividends

History of Ordinary Shares Issued

Issue/
Date of Issue Details Shares Issued ~ DRP Price ($)
28/03/01 Share Buy-Back (Cancelled Sharcs) (22,790.119) 16.50
29/03/01 Conversion of Preference Shares 28168,842
Jan 01 Employee Reward Share Plan 479,534 13.90
29/06/01 Dividend Reinvestment Plan 732,044 15.52
Aug O Primary STRYPES Receipts Exchange 18,440,000 13.9861
Oct 00 -Sep 01 Exercise of Employee Options 3,110,000 Various
Oct 00 -Sep O Exercise of Employec Awards 248,200 Various
14/12/01 Dividend Reinvestment Plan 8,299,338 16.28
1/01/02 Empioyee Reward Share Plan 340,312 17.79
02/07/02 Dividend Reinvestment Plan 3,598,233 19.22
Oct01-Sep 02 Exercise of Employce Options 1,768,333 Various
Oct 01-Sep 02 Exercise of Employee Awards 263,473 Various
22/11/02 Employee Reward Share Plan 348.516 18.30
13/12/02 Dividend Reinvestment Plan 2,547,485 18.18
02/07/03 Dividend Reinvestiment Plan 3,705,169 21.48
Qct 02 - Sep 03 Exercise of Employee Options 455,000 Various
Oct 02 -Sep 03 Exercise of Employce Awards 938,725 Various
21/11/03 Employee Reward Share Plan 312,571 20.07
19/12/03 Dividend Reinvestinent Plan 3,250,056 19.44
02/07/04 Dividend Reinvestment Plan 3,985,496 22.02
Qct 03 -Sep 04 Exercise of Emplayee Options 30,000 various
Oct03-Sep G4 Exercise of Employce Awards 617,11 Various
19/11/04 Employee Reward Share Plan 288,763 $24.25
17/12/04 Dividend Reinvestment Plan 2,893,267 $24.45
04/07/05 Dividend Reinvestment Plan 2,496,221 $26.02
QOct 04 -Sep 05 Exercisc of Employce Options 338,270 Various
0Oct 04 -Sep 05 Exercise of Employce Awards 602,893 Various
18/11/2005 Employee Reward Share Plan 241,366 $29.03
14/12/2005 Dividend Reinvestment Plan 448213 $28.38
21/02/2006 Share Buy-back {Cancelled Shares) (11.677.657} $25.69
21/02/2006 Conversion of PRYMES 10,309,170 $29 82
04/07/2006 Dividend Reinvestment Plan 2,033,263 $28.93
Qct 05 -8ep 06 Exercise of Employee Options 513,522 Various
Qct 05 -Sep 06 Exercise Of Employec Awards 269,314 Various

Balance as 30 September 2006

526,578,573
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Supplementary Financial Information

For the year ended 30 September 2006

History of Ordinary Dividends

Date Paid Type Franking Rate (cents} DRP ($)
05/01/98 Final 36% 26 799
02/07/98 Interim 36% 26 9.83
18/12/98 Final 36% 26 N/A
01/07/99 Interim 36% 26 N/A
17/12/99 Final 36% 26 N/A
03/07/00 Interim 34% 26 N/A
15/12/00 Finai 34% 29 N/A
29/08/01 Interim 34% 31 15.52
14/12/01 Final 30% 34 16.28
02/07/02 Interim 30% 38 19.22
13/12/02 Final 30% 42 18.18
02/07/03 'nterim 30% 45 21.48
19/12/03 Final 30% 50 19.44
02/07/04 Interim 30% 60 22.02
17/12/04 Final 30% 6?7 24 45
04/07/05 Interim 30% 67 26.07
14/12/05 Final 30% 70 28.38
04/07/06 Interim 30% 74 28.93
History of SAINTS

Date Derails

13/08/03 Initial issue of 3,500,000 SAINTS. Issue price $100.00.

22/11/04 Quarterly Dividend of $1.3146, fully franked at 30%

21/02/05 Quarterly Dividend of $1.1677, fully franked at 30%

20/05/05 Quarterly Dividend of $1.2033, fully franked at 30%

22/08/05 Quarterly Dividend of $1.2412, fully franked at 30%

21/11/05 Quarterly Dividend of $1.2268, fully franked at 30%

20/02/06 Quarterly Dividend of $1.2289, fully franked at 30%

22/05/06 Quarterly Dividend of $1.1868, fully franked at 30%

21/08/06 Quarterly Dividend of $1.2774, fully franked ai 30%

20/11/06 Quarterly Dividend of $1.3268, fully franked at 30%

History of SPS

Dale Details

20/06/06 Initial issue of 1,500,000 SPS. Issue price $100.00

21/08/06 Quarterly Dividend of $0.8277, fully franked at 30%

20/11/C6 Quarterly Dividend of $1.2827, fully franked at 30%
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St.George Bank Limited
ABN 62 055 513 070
AFSL 240997

Key Dates

Annual General Meeting (Sydney)
20 December 2006

Sharcholder Information Meeting
(Melbourne}
27 June 2007

Announcement Of Results

and Ordinary Dividend

» Imerim (hall year ended 31 March 2007)
2 May 2007*

= Final {ycar ended 30 September 2007}
30 October 2007

Ordinary Shares

Final Dividend (2006) paid

19 December 2006

« Ex-dividend trading 29 November 2006
» Record date 5 Deccmber 2006

Interim Dividend (2007) paid 3 July 2007*
» Ex-dividend trading 13 June 2007%
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SAINTS and SPS

Payment date 20 February 2007*
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Payment date 21 May 2007*
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= Record date 3 August 2007
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* Proposed dates only.

Contact Details
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St.George House

4-16 Mentgomery Street
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Pty Limited
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Customer Services
St.George Customer Service Cenire 133330
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St.George Financial Advice

Contact Centre 1300 367 240

St.George Margin Lending 1300 304 065
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Business Equipment Finance

Group Treasury

1300 301 315

and Capital Markels (02) 9320 5555
Advance Invesior Services 1800 819 935
Asgard Investor Services 1800 998 185
Customer Relations 1800 804 728

Email/Internet
Email: stgecrged@stgeorge.com.au
Internet: www.s1george.com.au

Auditor
KPMG
10 Shelley Street
Sydney NSwW 2000
Credit Ratings
Short Long
Term Term
Standard & Poor's Al At
Moody's P-1 Al
Fitch Ratings F1 A+

Full Financial Report (2006)

St.George's Full Financial Report is

availoble on the St.George Bank website

at www stgearge.com.au. Shareholders
wishing 10 be mailed o copy of the St.George
Full Financial Report should contact the
St.George share registry, Computershare
Investor Services, on 1800 804 457.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be hetd

al the Tumbalong Auditorium (Level 2},

Sydney Convention and Exhibiticn Centre
South, Darling Harbour, on Wednesday,

20 December 2006 al 10:00 am (Sydney time}.

Shareholder Information Meeting
The Shareholder Information Meeting will be
held at Crown Towers {Palladium A and B),

8 Whiteman Street, Melbourne on Wednesday,
27 June 20077,
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Full Financial Report

For the year ended 30 September 2006
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St George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Income Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Consclidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
Note $m Sm $m Sm
Interest income 2 6,781 5,474 5,568 4,586
Interest expense Z 4,768 3,677 3,855 2,955
Net interest income 2,013 1,797 1,713 1,591
Qther income 37 994 988 1,183 543
Total operating income 3,007 2,785 2,896 2,534
Bad and doubtful debts expense 144 109 127 108
Operating expenses 57 1,34 1,279 1,230 1,165
Share of proiit of equity accounied associates - 3 - -
Goodwill impairment - 4 - -
Profit before income tax 1,522 1,396 1,539 1,261
Income [ax expense 6,7 445 413 355 329
Profit after tax and before loss of discontinued operation 1,077 983 1,184 932
Lass of discontinued aperation net of tax 8 13 10 2 -
Net loss of discontinued operation aitributable to minority interest ] (5) - -
Minority interest - continuing operations 1 - - -
Net profit attributable to shareholders of the Bank 1,068 978 1,182 532
Dividends per ordinary share {cents)
Interim dividend paid 9 74 67
Fina! dividend proposed 9,54 77 70
Earnings per share from continuing operations
Basic (cents) 10 201.4 1777
Diluted (cents) 19 199.9 176.2

The income statements should be read in conjunctipn with the accompanying notes to the financial statements. Comparative figures exclude the impact of
AASB 132 and AASE 139 financial instrument accounting standards, which were adopted from 1 October 2005
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controiled Entities

Balance Sheets

As at 30 September 2006

Consolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
Note $m $m $m $m
Assets
Cash and liquid assets n 1,081 1,184 1,077 1175
Receivables due from ather financial institutions 12 1,182 1,1M 510 505
Assets at fair value through the income staterent 13 6,192 6,007 6,591 5,893
Derivative assets 1,093 - 916 -
Available for sale investments 14 1,541 - 1 -
Invesiment securities 15 - 1,149 - -
Loans and other receivables 18 81,516 72,949 58,901 55,576
Bank acceptances of customers 11,908 7,098 11,908 7.098
Amounts receivable from controlled entities - - 3,988 2,837
Investment in controlled entities 20 - - 2,492 1.834
Investment in assccialed companies 28 - 24 -
Other investments 21 - 45 - 2
Property. plant and equipment 22 334 452 316 348
Intangible assets 23 1,291 1,268 873 852
Deferred tax assels 24 193 93 163 a3
QOther assets 25 643 1,003 643 885
Total Assets 107,002 92,359 88,403 77498
Liabilities
Deposits snd other borrowings 26 54,633 49175 53,435 47,775
Payables duc 1o other financial institutions 27 401 N 4mn N
Liabilities at fair value through the income statement 28 390 - - -
Derivative liobilities 1,190 - 688 -
Bank accepiances 7,287 7.098 7,287 7098
Amounts payable te controlled entities - - 1,566 734
Provision for dividends 29 3 2 3 5
Current tax liabilities 160 157 140 145
Deferred tax lishilities 24 172 217 137 207
Other provisions 30 125 109 15 100
Bonds and notes 3 34,593 25,918 16,526 13,139
Loan capital 32 2,032 1,956 2,032 1,956
Bills payable and other fiabilities 33 673 2,239 561 1,168
Total Liabilities 101,659 86,972 82,891 72,418
Net Assets 5,343 5,387 5,512 5,080
Shareholders' Equity
Share capilal 34 4,376 4,105 4,420 4136
Reserves 35 151 23 169 18
Retaired profits 36 798 906 923 926
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Bank 5,325 5,034 5,512 5,080
Equity attributable to minority interests 37 18 353 - -
Total Sharehclders’ Equity 5,343 5,387 5,512 5.080

The balance sheels should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noles to the financial statements. Comparative figures exclude the impact of
AASB 132 and AASB 139 financial instrument acceunting standards, which were adopted from 1 October 2005.
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controiled Entities

Statements of Recognised Income and Expense

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Consolidated

2006 2005 2006 2005
Note $m $m $m 3m
Foreign currency translation reserve
Foreign exchange translation differences {net of tax) 35 5) 2 - -
Cash flow hedge reserve
Gains on cash flow hedging instruments (net of tax)

Recognised in equity 35 20 - 17 -

Transferred 1o the income stalement (1) - 0 -
Available for sale reserve
Losses on available for ssle investments (net of tax)

Recognised in equity 15 ] - - -
Net income recognised directly in equity 13 2 16 -
Profit for the year 1,064 973 1,182 932
Total recognised income and expense for the year 1,077 975 1,198 932
Tolal recogrised income and expense for the year attributable to:

Members of the Bank 1,081 930 1,198 932

Minorily interests 4 (5) - -
Total recognised income and expense for the year 1,077 975 1,198 932
Effects of change in accounting policy - financial instroments

Net decrease in retained prefits 52 (131) - (127) -

Nel increase in reserves 54 - 62 -

1,000 975 1,133 932

The statements of recognised income and expense should be read in conjunctien with the accompanying notes to the financiat statements, Comparative figures

exclude the impact of AASS 132 and AASE 139 financial instrument accounting slandards, which were adopted from 1 Gctober 2005.
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlleg Entities

Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Consolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
Note $m $m Sm Sm
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Interest received 6,746 5,508 5,584 4,588
Interest paid {4,813) (3.692) (3,87) (3,013)
Other income rececived 850 891 671 641
Operaling expenses paid (1,201) (1,168) {1,092) (1,057)
Incame tax paid (457) (456) (457) (368)
Proceeds from sale and redemption of investment securities - 285 - 382
Purchase of available for sale investments (1,715) - - -
Proceeds from sale and redempiion of available for sale investments 1,330 - - -
Net (increase)/decrease in assets
- balance due from other financial institutions {not at call) (82) (335} n (335)
- trading securilies/assets at fair value through the income statement (181) (802} (704) (1122}
- loans and other receivables (13,332) (7.726} (7,773) (3,679)
Nel increase/(decrease) in liabilities
- balance due to other financial institutions (not at call) 135 (42) 135 42
- deposits and other berrowings 5,515 2,021 5,672 2,010
- bonds and notes 7,624 6,121 3,087 3,290
Net cash provided by operating activities (a) 419 605 1,175 1,295
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Procecds from disposal of controlled entity ()] 23 - 23 -
Increase in investment in associated companies (b (25) - (25) -
Investment in controlled entities - - (647) (3)
Dividends received 6 5 415 210
Payments for shares m (2) - ]
Proceeds from sslc of shares 8 20 8 5
Proceeds from sale of other investments - 7 - -
Proceeds from sale of businesses 4 47 4 38
Payments for property, plant and equipment (59) (68) (57) (64)
Praceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 158 39 38 14
Net increase in amounts receivable from controlled entities - - (1,144) (523)
Net increase/(decrease) in amounts payable to controlled entities - - 772 (436)
Net (increase)/decrease in other assets (142) (148) (156) 201
Net cash used in investing activities (28) (100} (769) (559}
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Net increase/(decrease) in liabilities
- other liabilities (20) 19 {91) (101}
- loan capital 34 455 34 495
Net proceeds from the issue of perpetual noles 3 2 3 2
Net proceeds from the issue of Step-up Preference Sharcs 148 - 148 -
Proceeds from the issue of shares 9 6 9 6
Buy back of shares (300) - (300) -
Issue costs h)] - (1) -
Dividends paid {excluding Dividend Reinvestment Plan) {d) (585) (594) {585) (567)
Nel purchase of Treasury shares (10) - (10) -
Net cash used in financing activities (722) 72) (793) (165)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 331) 433 (387) 571
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,738 1,305 1,118 547
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (c) 1,407 1,738 731 1,118

The statements of cash flows should be read in conjuncticn with the accompanying notes to the financial statements. Comparative figures cxclude the impact of
AASBE 132 and AASB 139 financial instrument accounting standards, which were adopted from 1 October 2005.
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S1.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 September 2006

(a) Reconciliation of profit after tax to net cash provided by operating activities

Consolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m $m Sm $m
Net profit atiributable to shareholders of the Bank 1,068 978 1,182 932
Net profit on sale of preperty, plant and equipment (48) (30} (7) (30)
Net profit on sale of shares (10) {4) (10) {2)
Net profil on sale of businesses {4) ) C)] -
Treasury trading profit {70) (73) (51) (58)
Non-leading derivatives maovement (14) - (33) -
Bad and doubtiul debis expense 144 109 127 108
Share based compensation 12 13 M 12
Depreciation 67 67 57 56
Dividends received 6 5 {415} (210)
Amortisation of deferred expenditure 32 38 25 29
Impairment
- intangible assets - 4 - -
- deferred expenditure and computer equipment 32 16 32 16
(Increase)/decrease in assets
- interest receivable (35) yl 16 i
- other income receivable 12 7] 7 (20}
- balance due from other financial institutions {not at call) (82) (335) (77) {335}
- loans and receivables (13,332) (7,726) (7,773) (3,679}
- investment securities - 285 - 382
- available for sale securities (385) - - -
- trading securitics/assels at fair value through the incorne statement (181) {802) {704) {1.122)
- net position of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (145) (21 (88} {14}
increase/(decrease) in liabilities
~interest payable ral 12 {15) (18)
- acerued expenses 13 {1 9 {13)
- balance duz 1o other financial institutions {nct at call) 135 {42) 135 (42)
- provision for current income tax (3) (3) (5) (@
- other provisions (8) 3 15 3
- deposits and other borrowings 5,515 2,021 5,672 2,010
- bonds and notes 7,624 6,121 3,087 3,290
Net cash provided by operating activities 419 605 1,175 1,295
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Statements of Cash Flows

For the ycar ended 30 September 2006

(b} Disposal of contralled entity
On 15 March 2006, the Group disposed of its 100% interest in Ascalon Capital Managers Limited (ACML) Tor $23 million. ACML's contribution to net
profit from 1 October 2005 te 15 March 2006 was $0.5 million. Following this sale, the Group acquired a 50% interest in ACML for 525 million.

2006 2005

$m Sm

Disposal proceeds 23 -
Fair value of intangibte assets disposed 15 -
Profit on sale 8 -
Net inflow of cash 23 -

(c) Reconciliation of cash
Consolidated Bank

2006 2005 2006 2005

$m Sm $m Sm

Cash and liquid assets 1,081 1,184 1,077 1,175
Balances due from other financial institutions 765 776 93 165
Due to clearing houses (266) (90 (266) (91
Biils payable (173) (131 (173) (131)
1,407 1,738 FEY 1,118

(d) Dividends paid
There were 6,515,394 (30 September 2005: 5,389,488) shares issued pursuant to ihe Group's dividend re-investiment plan, raising $186 million
(30 September 2005: $135 million).
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St.George Bank Limited and its Centrolled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the yesr ended 30 September 2006

Note 1: Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

St.George Bank Lirited (the “Bank”) is
dormiciled in Australiz. The financial report of
the Bank for the year ended 30 September
2006 comprises the Bank and its controlled
entities (“the Group”) and the Group's interest
in associates.

The financial report was authorised for issue by
the Directors on 7 November 2006.

(a) Statement of compliance

This financial report is a general purpose
financial report which has been prepared

in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards, the Corporations Act 2001 and
the Banking Act 1959, International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS™) form the basis
of Australian Accounting Standards {*AASBs™)
adopted by the AASB, and for the purpose of
this report are called Australian Equivalents i
IFRS {"AIFRS ") to distinguish from previous
Australian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ("previous GAAP™),

This is the Group's first financial repont
prepared in accordance with AIFRS and AASB 1
First-time adoption of Australian Equivalents to
international Financial Reporting Standards has
been applied.

An explanation of how the transitioi 10 AIFRS
has affected the reported financial position,
financia! performance and cash flows cf the
Group and the Bank is provided in Note 52.

The financial reports of the Group and Bank
also comply with IFRS and interpretations
adopted by the international Accounting
Standards Board.

{b) Basis of preparation

The financial report is presented in Australian
dollars. The significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparalion of this financial
report are set out below. The accounting
policies which have changed as a result of
the adoption of AIFRS, have been applied
retrospectively and consistently by the Group
and Bank 10 all pericds presented in these
financial statements and in preparing opening
AIFRS balance sheets at 1 October 2004,
except for the foltowing AIFRS accounting
standards, which were adopted and applied
from 1 October 2005:

(i) AASB 132 Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentation.

(i} AASB 139 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.
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The following elections under AASB 1 have
been adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements:

{i} The Group has not restated any past
business combinations thai occurred prior
to 1 October 2004,

(i) The Group has elected to measure land
and buildings at 1 October 2004 at their
fair value and use that fair value as the
deemed cost as at that date.

(i The Group has applied the cequirements of
AASE 132 and 139 from 1 October 2005.

(iv) The Group has not applied AASB 2 Share
Based Payments to equity granls on or
before 7 November 2002 or equity grants
after 7 November 2002 that vested before
1January 2005.

The Group has applied its previous GAAP in
1he comparative information to the financial
statements in relation 1o these areas.

The Bank is a company of the kind referred

1o in Australian Securities and Investments
Commission {ASIC) Class Order 98/100 dated
10 july 1998 (as amended by ASIC Class Order
04/667) and in accordance with the Class
Order, amounts in the financial report and
Direciors” Report have been rounded off to the
nearest milkion dollars, unless otherwise stated.

The Bank has elected to carly adopt the
following revised accounting standards:

+  AASB 119 Employee Benefits
{December 2004).

«  AASB 2004-3 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards {December 2004)
amending AASB 1 First-time Adoption
of Australian Equivalents 10 International
Financial Reporting Standards {July 2004),
AASB 101 Presentation of Financial
Statements and AASB 124 Related Party
Disclosures.

«  AASB 2005-3 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards (june 2005)
amending AASB 119 Employee Benelits
(Decernber 2004).

The financial statements are prepared on the
basis of historical cost except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated at their fair
value: derivative financial instiruments, assets
and liabilities at fair value through the income
statement, available for sale investments and
defined benefit plan asseis and liabilities.
Recognised assets and liabilities thal are
hedged and are attributable to the hedged risk
are siated at fair value.

The preparation of a financial report in
gonformity with Australian Accounting Standards
requires management to make judgements,
eslimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reperied amounts
of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions

are based on historical experience and various
other faciors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumnstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that

are noi readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underfying assumptions

are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions

lo accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision afiects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future pericds if the revision
affects both cusrent and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of Australian Accounting Standards
that have significant effect on the financial
report and estimates with a significant risk

of material adjustment in the next year are
discussed in Note 1{hh).

The following new standards, amendments and
tnterpretations 1o existing standards have been
published that are mandatory for the Group
for accounting pericds beginning on or afier

1 October 2006 or later periods but which the
Group entity has not yet adopted:

AASB 139 (Amendment), the Foir Value
Option (effective from 1 October 2006). This
amendment changes the definition of financial
instruments classified at fair value through
profit and ioss and restricts the circumstances
when a financial instrument can be designated
as part of this category. This amendment is nol
expected to have a material impact, as the Bank
and the Group expect to be able to comply
with the amended criteria. This amendment will
be applicd from 1 October 2006.

AASB 139 and AASB 4 (Amendment),
Finoncial Guaromee Contracts (effective from
1 October 2006). This amendment requires
issued financial guarantees, other than those
previously asserted by the Group to be
insurance contracts, o be initially recognised
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at the higher of (a) the unamortised balance
of the related fees received that have been
deferred, and (b} the expenditure required to
settle the commitment at the balance sheet
date. This amendment is not expected to have
a material impact. This amendment will be
applied from 1 October 2006.




St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 1: Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies continued

AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, and
a complementary amendment to AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements - Capital
Disclosures (effective irom 1 October 2007).
AASB 7 introduces new disclosures 1o improve
the information about financial instruments.

It requires the disclosure of qualitative and
quantitative information about exposure Lo risks
arising from financial instruments, including
specified minimum disclosures sbout credit,
liquidity and market risk, inciuding sensitivity
analysis to market risk. The amendment to
AASB 101 introduces disclosures about the
level of an entity's capital and how it manages
capital. The Group expects that the main
additional disclosures will be the sensitivity
analysis 1o market risk and the capital
disclosures. This amendment will be applied
from 1 Oclober 2007,

Thesc accounting palicies have been
consistently applied by each entity in the Group.

(c) Consolidation

The consolidated financial report comprises
the financial report of the Bank and all entities
that are controlled by the Bank. Under AASB
127 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements, control exists when the Bank has
the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the
financial and operating policies of an cnlity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities. Under
UIG 12 Consolidation, control exists where the
Bank has the majority af the risks and benefits
of the entity.

Where an entity commenced or ceased to be

controlled during the year, its results are only

included from the date control commenced or
up to the date contro! ceased.

Associates are those entities for which the
Group has significant influence, as defined

in AASB 128 Investments in Associates, but
net control, over the financial and operating
policies. The consolidated financial statements
include the Group’s share of the total
recognised gains and losses of associates on
an equity accounted basis, from the date that
significant influence commences unlil the date
that significant influence ceases.

wWhen the Group's share of losses exceeds its
interest in an associate, the carrying amount of
the Group's investment is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of an associate.

All inter-entity balances and transactions
between Group entities have been eliminated
on censolidation.

Trusts involved in the securitisation of the
Bank's asscts and asset-backed conduit
vehicles have been consalidated from

1 October 2004. The trusts have been
consolidated on the basis that the Group has
retained the majority of residual benefits from
the trusts’ activities and the majority of residual
ownership risks related to the trusts’ assets.

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by
the Group {refer Note 1(p)).

investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost in the individual financial statements of
the Bank.

{d) Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are
wranslated at the foreign exchange rate at the
date of the transaction. All monelary assels
and liabilities held in foreign currencies are
shown in this financial report at the exchange
rates prevailing at balance date. Foreign
currency forwards, futures, swaps and options
are valued al fair value using the appropriate
market rates at balance date. Unrealised profits
and losses arising from these revaluations are
recognised in the income statement, subject
to the application of hedge accounting (refer
Nate 1(i)).

For foreign exchange trading activities, it is the
policy of the Group 10 maintain a substantially
matched position in foreign currency assets
and liabilities, hence the net exposure to
exchange cisk is not significant.

{e) Translation of controlled foreign entities
The functional currency of the domestic
operations of the Bank has been determined to
be Australian dollars (AUD), as this currency
best reflects the economic substance of the
underlying events and circumstances relevant
to the Bank. Each entity within the Group has
also determined their functional currency bascd
on their own primary ecenomic indicators.

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations
with an overseas functional currency are
translated to AUD (the Group's presentation
currency) at balance shect date at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at that date. Revenues
and expenses of these entities are translated
1o AUD at the spot exchange rate at the date
of the transaction. All resulting exchange
differences are recognised in the Foreign
Currency Translation Reserve as a separate
component of equity. They are released to the
income statement upen disposal.
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(f) Cash and liquid assets

Cash and liquid asscts are readily convertible to
cash and subject to insignificant risk or change
in value and comprise cash held in branches,
ATMs, cash at bankers, money at call, bills
receivable, remittances in transit and securities
purchased under agreement to resell. Interest
income on cash and liquid 2ssets is recognised
using the effective interest rate method in

the income statement. Cash and liquid assels
are recognised at the gross value of the
outstanding balance.

For the purpose of the cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents include highly liuid
investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of change in fair value.
Such investments are normally those with an
original maturity of less than three months.
Cash and cash eguivalents include cash and
balances with the Reserve Bank, short term
amounts included in receivables due from other
financial institutions, payables due to other
financial institutions and bills payable.

(g} Receivables due from other financial
institutions
Balances due from other financial institulions
are boans and recefvables, These include
loans, nostro balances and settlement
account balances due from other banks. They
are measured at fair value at inception and
subsequently measured at omortised cost using
the effective interest rate method. Interest
income is recognised using the effective
interest rale method in the income statement.

The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimaied fulure cash receipts
or payments and certain acquisition expenses
through the expected life of the instrument.
When calculating the effective interest rate,

the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument
but does not consider future credit losses.

(h) Assets at fair value through the income
statement

Assets at fair value through the Profit and

Loss is a new class of financial asset under

AASB 139. Such assets are described in these

accounts as assels at fair value through the

income statement.
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 1: Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies continued

From 1 October 2004 to 30 September 2005
Assets at fair value through the income
statement include assets held for trading that
are purchased for the purpose of selling in the
near term or held as part of a portfolic which
is managed for short term profit. The securities
are initiolly recognised and subsequently
measured at fair value based on quoted market
prices. Realised and unrealised gains and
losses are recognised in Lhe income statement,
Interest is included in net interest income.

Al acquisition, trading securities are recorded
on 3 seltlement date basis.

From 1 October 2005

Trading securities are purchased without

the intention of being held to maturity.

The securitics are recorded at fair value
hased on quoted market prices. Realised and
unrealised gains and losses are recognised

in the income: statement. Interest on trading
securities is included in net interest income.
At acquisition, trading securities are recorded
on a settlement date hasis.

Quoted bid prices, where available, are used
to account for the fair value of assets under
AIFRS, Quoted mid prices, where available,
are used to account for the fair value of assets
where there is an offsetting risk position in a
portfolio. There is no significant change in the
measurement of assets at fair value.

Realised gains and losses on disposal and
unrealised fair value adjustments continue

10 e reflected in gther income under AIFRS.
Interest income on assets at fair value through
the income statement continugs to be included
within interest income vsing the effective
interest rate method. Dividends conlinue to be
rcflected in other income when garned,

(i) Derivative financial instruments

The Group makes use of the derivatives market
for trading purposes and to hedge foreign
exchange, interest rate rigk and credit risk.

From 1 October 2004 to 30 September 2005
Derivotives purchased or sold for trading
purposes are measured at cost on initial

recognition and at net fair value at balance date.

Realised and unrealised changes in the net fair
volue are recognised in the income statement in
the periad in which the change occurs.

Derivatives bought or sold for the Bank's
hedging purposes are accounted for on the
same basis as the underlying exposure. Where
the underlying exposure is accounted for on an
accruals basis, any gain or loss realised on the
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derivative instrument is deferred and taken up
as an adjustrnent to the yield on the underlying
exposure over ils remaining life,

The market valuc of trading derivatives
and deferred gains and losses on hedging
derivatives sre recopnised as other assets
when favourable 1o the Group and cther
liabilities when unfavourable.

From 1 October 2005

All derivatives that do not meet the hedging
criteria under AASB 139 are classified as
derivatives held for trading, with changes in
fair value recognised immediately within the
income statement.

Interest income and expense on derivatives,
cxcept those used to manage underlying assets
and liabilities, is included within other income.
Interest income and expense for derivatives
used to manage underlying assets and labilities
are included with the interest flows of these
iterng within interest income or cxpense.

Derivatives are initially recognised at trade date
at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
derivatives are measured a1 fair value.

The method of recognising the gain or loss
on re-measurement of fair value depends

on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, the nature of the item
being hedged and whether the derivative
qualifies for hedge accounting. A positive
revaluation amount of a contract is disclosed
as an asset and a negative revaluation amount
of a contract is disclosed as a lisbility,

The Group has adopted cash flow hedging
or a combination of cash flow and fair value
hedging in respect of its asset and liability
management activities.

Fair values are obtained from quoted market
prices in gctive markets and valuation
techniques, including discounted cash

flow madels and options pricing models

as appropriate.

The Group documents, at the inception of the
transaction, the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as i1s
risk management objective and strategy for
underizking varicus hedge transactions. The
Group also documents its assessment, both
at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis,
of whether the derivatives that arc used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows
of hedged items.

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as fair value hedges
are recorded in the income statement within
other income, together with any changes in the
fair value of the hedged asset or liability that
are attribulable 10 the hedged risk. if the fair
valug hedge relationship is terminated, cther
than due to the derecagnition of the hedged
item, fair value hedge accounting ceases

and for interest earning assels or interest
bearing liabilities, the fair value adjustment of
the hedged item is amertised to the income
staternent over the remaining term of the
original hedge.

If the hedged item is derecognised, the
wnamortised fair value adjustment is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Cash flow hedges

The elfective portion of changes in the fair
value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised
in equity. The gain or loss relating 1 the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in the income statement, This represents Lhe
amount by which the changes in the fair value
of the expected cash flow of the derivative
differ from the fair value of the changes (or
cxpected changes) in the cash flow of the
hedged item.

Amounts from the cash flow hedge reserve are
transferred to the income statement when the
cash flows on the hedged item are recognised
in the income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is
sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteris for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in equity at that time
remains in equity and is amortised 1o the
income statement over the remaining term
of the original hedge. Where the hedged
item is derecognised, the cumulative gain

or loss is recognised immediately in the
income statement,

Derivatives that do not qualify for

hedge accounting

Derivatives cantracts entered into as
econcmic hedges that do not qualify for hedge
accounting arc held at fair value through the
income statement, Interest income on these
derivative contracts is recognised together
wilh the underlying item within inlgrest income
and expense.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year cnded 30 September 2006

Nate 1: Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies continued

Embedded derivatives

A derivative may be embedded within a host
contract, If the host contract is not already
measured al fair value with changes in fair
value reported in the income statement,

the embedded derivative is separated from
the host contract where the cconomic
characteristics and risks ol the embedded
derivative arc not closely related to the
economic characteristics and risks of the
host contract. This is then accounted for

as o sland alonc derivative instrument at fair
value. Otherwise, the embedded derivative
is accounted for on the same basis as the
host contract.

(j)) investments and other financial assets
From 1 October 2004 te 30 September 2005
Invesument securities are purchased with

the intention of being held to maturity.

The securities are recorded at cost plus
accrued interest and are adjusted for amortised
premiums and discounts. Premiums and
discounts are amortised from the date of
acquisition so that the securities reflect their
face value al maturity. The amortisaticn of
premiumns and discounts is recognised in the
income statements as net interest income.
Gains or losses on disposat of investment
securitics prior to maturity are brought to
account when realised. Unrealised losses

are nol brought Lo account unless the
recoverable amount fs less than the carrying
amount. Investment securities are recorded
on a seitlement date basis. Interest income
is recognised in the income statement

when earned.

Shares in entities and other investments
ore recorded as the lower of cost and
recoverable amount,

From 1 October 2005

Investiment securities, shares in entitics and
other investrments have becn reclassified into
available for sale investments.

Available for salc investments are non-
derivative assets intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time, including cornmercial
paper and equitics. They may be sold in
response to a need for liquidity or changes in
interest rates and exchange rates.

Available for sale investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus direct and
incremental transaclion costs. They are
subsequently remeasured at {air value and
gains and losses arising from changes in
fair value are recognised in equily in the

available for sale reserve until investments
are sold, otherwise disposed of, or until such
investments become impaired. Unquoted
equities and investments whaose fair value

cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost.

Interest income is recognised on available for
sale invesiments using the effective interest
rate method, calculated cver the assets’
expected life. Premiums and/or discounts
arising on purchase are included in the
calculation of their effective interest rate.
Cividends are recognised in other income
within the income statement when earned.

When a decline in the fair value of an available
for sale investment has been recognised
directly in equity and there is objective
gvidence that the asset is impaired, the
cumulative loss that had been recognised
directly in equity shall be removed from equity
and recognised in the income statement.

When available for sale investments are
sold, cumulative gains or fosses previcusly
recognised in equity are recopnised in other
income within the income statement.

(k) Loans and other receivables

£0ans and other receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed and determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
markel. They include residential, commercial,
credit cards, overdraits and other personal
loans, leasing, hire purchase, leveraged leases,
margin lending and structured financing.

From 1 October 2004 to 30 September 2005
Receivables referred to above are carried at
their recoverable amount, represented by the
gross value of the loan balance adjusted for
specific provisions for doubtiul debts, inlcrest
reserved and in respect of leveraged lcases,
unearned [ax remissions.

Interest and materfal yield related fees are
recognised in the income stalement when
garned.

Leasing receivables

Finance leases, in which the Group is the
lessor, are included in Loans and other
receivables. Al the beginning of the lease
term, the present value of the minimum lease
payments receivable plus the present value of
any unguaranteed residual value is recorded in
the balance sheet. Income attributable to the
leases is brought 1o account progressively in

the income statement over the lease term using

the effective interest method, which reflects a
constant rate of return.

Structured investments

Investments by the Group in eguity swaps
and participation in leveraged leases are
recorded at the amounts equat to the Group's
participation and included in Leans and other
receivables in the balance sheet. Revenue is
brought 16 account based on a methed that
yields a constant rate of return.

From 1 October 2005

Loans and other receivables include residential,
commercial, credit cards, overdrafts and

other personal loans, leasing, hire purchase,
feveraged leases, margin lending, structured
financing, securitised loans and asset-backed
conduit vehicle receivables.

Loans and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value plus direct and
incremental transaction costs. They are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method.

Note 1{in) prevides additional information with
respect to loan impairment, For more details on
revenue recognition, refer to Note 1ce).

Finance lease receivables

Finance leases in which the Group is the lessor,
are included in Loans and other receivables.

At the beginning of the lease term, the

present value of the minimum lease payments
receivable plus the present value of any
unguaranteed residual value accruing to the
lessor is recorded in the balance shect. Income
attributable 1o the leases is brought to account
progressively in the income statement over the
lease term on an effective yield basis.

Structured financing

Structured financing by the Group, including
participaticn in leveraged leases and equity
swaps, are recorded at the amounts equal to
the Group’s participation and included in Loans
and other receivables in the balance sheeat.
Revenue is recognised in the income
stalement based on an elfective yield basis.
Certain structured financing loans are
recognised at fair volue through the income
staiement rather than at amortised cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for 1he year ended 30 Septernber 2006

Note 1: Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies continucd

() Impaired financial assets
Impaired asseis are classified into the {oliowing
calegories:

(1) Non-accrual loans
Loans are classified as non-accrual where:

{a) contractual payments of principal and/or
interest are 90 or more days in arrears,
and where the value of sceurity is
insufficient to cover repayment of principal
and interest;

(b} a specific provision has been raised;
and/or

(c) there is reasonable doubt about the
ultimate callectability of principal and
interest within an acceptable timeframe.

(2} Restructured loans

These are loans where the original contractual
terms have been amended 1o provide
concessions of interest or principal as a result
of a customer's financial or other difficulties

in complying with the original facility terms.
These loans are measured at amortised cost
and interest and fees recognised as income
using the effective interest rate method, whilst
the cuslomer complies with the modified terms
and conditions.

{3} Assets acquired through security
enforcement

This category comprises assets where

ownership has been assumed in settlement of a

debt. These assets are recorded in the balance

sheel under Available for sale investments and

are measured in accordance with the Group's

intention for realisation of the asset (refer

Note 1(n}).

(m) Loan impairment

From 1 October 2004 to 30 September 2005
Bad debts are written coff as they arise.

For personal lending, residential lending and
commereigl lending, the Graup has a policy of
providing for possible losses on the basis of
amounts set aside to cover specific debts that
are considered doubtful.

The general provision for doubtful debts
{not 1ax effected) when combined with the
1ax cffected balance of Unearned Income-
Morlgage Insurance Premiums represents
0.50% of risk weighted assets.

Uncarned Income-Morigage Insurance
Premiums, disclosed in the balance sheet under
Bills payable and other ligbilities, represents
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a provision against polential defaults not
specifically identified in respect of the housing
loans insured by St.George Insurance Ple Lid.

In the insurance operation, 3 1083 provision is
maintaincd against potential claims where the
entity has been notified that a claim may arise.

From 1 October 2005

In accordance with the requirements of AASB
139, the Group assesses at each balance date
whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment. (f there is cbjective evidence that
impairment on an individual loan or portialio of
loans has occurred, an impairment assessment
is performed and a loss recognised where
appropriate.

The amaunt of the loss is measured as the
difference between the loan’s carrying amount
and the present value of the expected future
cash flows {excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred), discounted at the
Ioan's original effective interest rate. Short term
belances are not discounted. Loans and other
receivables are presenied net of provisions for
loan impairment.

The Group has loan impairment losses that
are assessed on boih a specific and collective
basis.

Specific loan provisions are recognised in
situations where, following an assessment of an
individual facility, there is objective evidence
that a loan is impaired. All other loans and
advances that do not have an indivigually
assgssed loan provision are assessed
collectively for impairment.

Collective provisions reflect the estimated
amount of Josses incurred on a collective basis,
but which have yet to be individually identified.

The expected future cash flows for portfolios
of similar assets are cstimated by management
on the basis of historical loss experience, for
assets with ¢redit risk characteristics similar

1o those in the Group. Loss experience is
adiusted on the basis of current observable
data to reflect the effects of current conditions
that did not sffect the period on which the

loss experience is based and te remove the
effects of conditions in the period that do not
exist at balance date. Increases or decreascs in
the collective provision are recognised in Lhe
income statement.

Changes in ossumpticns used for estimating
future cash flows could result in a change in
provisions for loan losses and have o direct
impact on 1he impairment charge,

(n) Assets classified as held for sale

This category includes investments and land
and buildings whose carrying amount will be
recovered principally through 2 sale transaction
rather than continuing use. These assets are
classified as held for sale when it is highly
probable that the asset will be sold within

the 12 months subsequent to being classified
as such.

Assets and liabilities, including those within a
disposal proup, classified as held for sale are
each presented separately on the face of the
balance sheel. The revenue and expenses from
disposal groups are presented net within the
income statement and notes 1o the financial
slalements.

Assels classified as held for sale are carried

al the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less cosls to sell. Assets classified as held for
sale, or included within a disposal group that is
classified as held for salc, are not depreciated.

Animpairment loss is recoghised for any

initial or subsequent write-down of the asset

to fafr valuc less costs to sell. A gain would be
recognised for any subsequent increase in fair
value less costs to sell, limited by the previous
cumulative impairment loss recognised. A gain
or loss not previously recognised by the date of
sale would be recognised at the date of sale.

{0) Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings are recognised at degmed
cost upon transition to AIFRS, less any
impairment losses and deprecistion. Deemed
cost represents the fair value of land and
buildings at 1 October 2004,

Land is not depreciated and buildings are
depreciated on a straight ling basis over their
estimated usefu! lives of 20 1o 60 years,

Plant and equipment is recognised al cost
less any accumulated impairment losses and
accumulated depreciation calculated on 8
straight fine basis 1o write off the assets over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful lives of items of plant and equipment
are between three and 10 years and leaseheld
improvermnenls are between one and 10 years.

Depreciation rates for property, plant and
equipment are reviewed periodically to ensure
they appropriately reflect residual values and
estimated useful lives.

All items of property, plant and equipment are
perodically reviewed for impairment as part of
the impairment testing conducted within cash-
generating units.




St.Geerge Bank Limited and its Conlrolled Entities
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Note 1: Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies continued

(p} Intangible assets

(1} Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cast

of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group's sharc of the net identifiable assets of
the acquired entity at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill on acquisition of controlled entilies
is included in intangible assets on the balance
sheet,

Business combinations prior to

1 October 2004

Gocdwill is included on the basis of its deemed
cost, which represents the amount recorded
under previcus GAAP. The classification and
accounting treatment of business combinations
that occurred prior to 1 October 2004 has

not been reconsidered in preparing the
Group's opening AIFRS balance sheet at

1 October 2004.

Business combinations since 1 October 2004
All busingss combinations are accounted for
by applying the purchase method. Goodwill
represents the difference between the cost

of the acquisition and the fzir value of the net
identifiable assets acquired.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated

lo cash-generating units and is no longer
amortised but is tested annually for impairment.
In respect of associates, the carrying amount of
goodwill is included in the carrying ameunt of
the investment in the associate.

Negative goodwill arising on an acquisition is
recognised directly in the income slatement.

{2} Software

Computer software costs Lhat are not integral
to associsted hardware arc recognised as an
intangible asset where they are identifiable,
can be reliably measured and it is probable that
they will lead to future economic benefits to
the Group. Certain internal and external costs
directly incurred in acquiring and developing
certain software have been capitalised and are
being amortised over their useful life, usually
a period of three to five years. Capitalised
softwarc is carried at cost less amortisation
and any impairment losses. Costs incurred

on software mainienance are expensed as
incurred. Impairment losses on capilaliscd
soflware are recognised in the inceme
statement when incurred.

(q) Bank acceptances

From 1 October 2004 to 30 September 2005
The potential liability arising as a result of

bank bill acceplances that are sold into the
market is recorded in the balance sheel as a
liability. An equal and offselling claim exists
against customers in the event of a call on this
potential lisbility and is recorded in the balance
shieet as an ossel. Bank accepiances generale
fee income that is recognised in the income
statement when earned.

Discounted bilis accepted by the Group are
recorded as parl of Trading securities as the
intention at the time of discount is to offer the
bills for resale.

From 1 October 2005

All bank accepied bills {including both
discounted and “on-sold” bills) and the
associated liability for on-sold bills will be
recognised at amortised cost, wilh interest
income and expense recognised using the
effective yicld methodology. Fee income on bill
acceptances will be recognised on an effective
vield basis within intcrest income.

(r) Deposits and other borrowings

Deposits and other borrowings comprise
negotiable certificates of deposit, term
deposits, saving deposits, cheque and other
demand deposils, unsecured guarantecd notes
and secured borrowings.

From 1 October 2004 to 30 September 2005
Interest is recognised in the income statement
when incurred.

From 1 Octlober 2005

Deposits and other borrowings are recognised
at inception at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs and subseguently
at amertised cost. Interest and yield related
fees arc recognised in the income statement
based upon Lhe effective vield method.

Where the Group has utilised derivative
instruments 1o hedge depasits and other
borrowings, hedge accounting policies as
outlined in Note 1(i) are applied.

(s) Payables due to other financial
institutions

Balances due to other financial institutions

include deposits, settlement account balances

and vostro balances.

From 1 October 2004 to 30 September 2005
They are brought 1o account al the gross
balance outstanding. Inlgrest is recognised in
the income statement when incurred.

From 1 October 2005
They are brought to account at inception al
fair value plus directly attributable transaction
costs.

Payables due to other financial institutions are
subsequently stated at amertised cost. Interest
and yield related fees are taken to the income
statement using the effective interest rate
method.

() Employee benefits
(1) Wages, salaries, annual leave, and nen-
monetary benefits
Liabilities for employee bengfits for wages,
salarics and annual leave that are expected to
be settled within 12 months of the reporting
date represent present obligations resulting
from emnployees’ services provided 1o reporting
date, sre calculated at undiscounted amotnts
based on remuneration wage and salary rates
that the Group expects 1o pay 8s at reporting
date including related on-costs, such as workers’
compensation insurance and payroll tax.

(2} Long service leave

The Group's net abligation in respect of long
term service benefits, other than pension plans,
is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods. The obligation s
calculated using expected future increases

in wage and salary rates including related
on-cosls and expected settlement dates, and
is discounted using the rates attached to the
Commonweslth Government bonds at the
balance sheet date that have maturity dales
approximating to the terms of the Group's
obligations.

{3) Retirement benefit obligations

The Group makes contributions to multiple
superannuation funds in accordance with
“Superannuation Choice of Fund”, including
the employer sponsored fund which has two
defined benelfit sections. The defined bencfit
section provides defined lump sum benefits
based on years of service and final average
salary. The defined contributions section
and fund receives fixed contributions from
Group companies and the Group's legal

or constructive obligation is limited to these
contributions.

Obligations for contributions to defined benefit
plans are recognised as an expense in Lthe
income statement as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 1: Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies continued

In relation to defined benefit plans,

any deficiency or surplus of the plan is
recognised as a liability or asset respectively.
Any deficiency or surplus is also recognised
in retained earnings.

(4) Share based payments

The Group opcrates several equity setiled,
share based compensation plans. Informaticn
relating to these plans is set out in Note 40.

Shares and options granted before

7 November 2002 and/or vested before
ijonuary 2005

No expense is recognised in respect of the
options or shares issued to employees for nil
consideration. Shares issued following the
exercise of options are recognised at that time
and the proceeds received allocated to share
copital.

Shares ond options gronted after

7 November 2002 and vested after

i joniary 2005

Where shares in the Bank are to be issued

to satisfy grants, the fair value is recognised
as an employec bencfit expense with a
corresponding increase in equity. The fair
value is measurcd at grant date and recognised
over the period during which the employees
become unconditionally entitled 1o the aptions
or shares.

At each balance date, the Group revises its
estimated forfeiture and recognises the impact
of any changes in the income slatement.

The fair value of options or awards {wilh
markel related performance conditions) 10 be
satisfied by the issuance of sharcs has becn
determined using the Binomial method at the
grant date. The fair value of awards with
non-market related conditions is based on

. the share price on the grant date, which is
discounted for the present valug of dividends
not received during the vesting period,

The Binomial method takes into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options
or awards were granted.

Wherc options or awards do not vest 05 a
result of not achieving non-market performance
hurdigs, then any expense previously
recognised is reversed.

(5) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminaled before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange
for these benefits. The Group recognises
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termination benefits when it is commitied to
cither terminating the employment of current
employees according to a detailed formaf plan
withaut possibility of withdrawal or providing
termination bencfits as a result of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefils
falling due more than 12 months after balance
sheet date are discounted to present value.

{u) Provision for dividends

From 1 October 2004 to 30 September 2005
This item comprises provision for dividends

in respect of Depositary Capital Securities
{DCS}, Preferred Reseiting Yield Marketable
Equily Securitics (PRYMES) and Subordinated
Adjustable Income Non-refundable Tier 1
Securities {SAINTS).

The provision for dividend relating to PRYMES
is calculated on a balance of $300 million at a
fixed rate of interest of 6.36% per annum for
the first five vears, after which the Bank has the
option ta reset the rate. The dividends are paid
semi-pnnually in February and August.

The DCS dividend provision is calculated on the
value of securities, being US$250 million, at

a fixed rate of interest of 8.485% per annum,
payable semi-annually in June and December
cach year,

The provision for dividend relating 1o SAINTS
is calculated on a balance of $350 million at
a floating rate of interest calculated as 70%
of the sum of the annualised 90 day Bank Bill
Swap Rate plus a margin of 1.35%. Dividends
are payable quarterly in November, February,
May and August each vear.

The provision for dividend relating to ordinary
shares is recognised in the reporting period in
which the dividends are declared.

From 1 October 2005

in accordance with AIFRS, both the PRYMES
and DCS have been rectassified from equity
10 debt, with distributions reclassified to
interest expense.

The provision for dividend relating to SAINTS
continues to be calculated on a balance of
$35C million at a floating rate of interest
calcutated as 70% of the sum of the annualised
90 day Bank Bill Swap Rate plus a margin of
1.35%. Dividends are payable quarterly in
November, February, May and August each year,

The provision for dividend relaling to ordinary
shares is recognised in the reporting period in
which the dividends are declared.

The provision for dividend relating to Step-up
Preference Shares (SPS) is calculated on a
balance of $150 million at a ftoating rate of
interest calculated as 70% of the sum of the

annualised Bank Bill Swap Rate plus a margin
of 1.10%. Dividends are payable quarterly in
November, February, May and August each

YEar.

(v} Income tax

Incorne tax expense on the income statement
for the year comprises current and deferred
lax. Income tax is recognised in the income
statement excepl to the extent that it relales
to items recagnised directly in equity. in which
case il is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantially enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustrment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance
sheet liability method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided
is bascd on the cxpected manner of realisation
or seltlement of the carrying amount of

assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.

A deferred tax asset is recagnised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which Lhe asset
can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realised.

Tax consolidation

The Bank and its whelly-owned Australian
resident enlities have formed a tax-consclidoted
group with effect from 1 October 2003 and are
therefore taxed as a single entity from that date.
The head entity within the tax-consolidated
group is St.George Bank Limited.

Current tax expense/income, deferred tax
liabilitics and deferred tax assets arising from
terporary differences of the members of the
tax-consolidated group are recognised in the
separate financial statements of the members
of the tax-consolidated group using & “group
allocation approach” by reference to the
carrying amounts in the separate financial
statements of each entity and the tax values
applying under tax consolidation.

Any current tax liabilities {or assets} and
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses of the subsidiaries are assumed by the
head entity in the tax-consolidated group and
are recognised as amounts payable (receivable)
lo (from) ather entities in the tax-consolidated
group in conjunction with any tax funding




St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the ycar ended 30 Septernber 2006

Note 1: Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies continued

arrangement amounts (refer beiow).
Any difference belween these amounts
is recognised by the Bank as an equity
contribution or distribution,

The Bank recognises deferred tax assels arising
from unused 1ax losses of the tax-consolidated
group to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits of the tax-consolidated
group will be available against which the asset
can be utilised.

Any subsequent period adjustments to deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses as a
resull of revised assessments of the probability
of recoversbility is recognised by the head
entity only.

Nature of tax funding arrangements and tax
sharing arrangements

The head entity, in conjunction with other
meinbers of the tax-consolidated group, has
entered inte a tax funding arrangement, which
sets aut the funding obligations of members
of the tax-consolidated group in respect of 1ax
amounts. The tax funding arrangements require
payments 1o/ from the head entity equal to
the current 1ax liability {asset) assumed by the
head entity and any tax-loss deferred 1ax asset
assumed by the head entity, resulting in the
head entity recognising an inter-entity payable
(receivable) equal in amount to the 1ax liability
(asset) sssumed. The inter-entity payables
(receivables) are at call.

Ceniributions to fund the currem tax liabilities
are salisficd via a credit or debit to the
member's infercompany acceunt with the head
entity and reflect the timing of the head entity’s
obligation to make payments for tax liabilities to
the relevant tax authorities.

The head entity, in conjunction with other
members of the tax-consolidated group, has
also eniered into a tax sharing agreement.

The tax sharing agreement provides for the
determination of the allocation of income tax
liabilities between the entities should the head
entity default on ils tax payment obligations. No
amounts have been recegnised in the financial
statements in respect of this agreement as
payment of any amounts under the tax sharing
agreement is considered remate,

{w) Bonds and notes

From 1 October 2004 to 30 September 2005
Bonds and notes comprise commercial

paper and other fixed and floating senior

debt securities issued under the Bank’s debt
instrument programme, Eurg note programme,
US commercial paper programme and other

private pfacements. Interest is recognised in
the income statement.

From 1 October 2005

Bonds and notes comprise commercial

paper and other fixed and floating senior

debt securities issued under the Bank's debt
instrument programme, Euro note programme,
US caommercial paper programme and other
private piacements. Bonds and notes alsc
include debt issues of consolidated trusts
involved in the securitisation of the Bark's
assets and asset-backed conduit vehicles.

They are recognised at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs at inception.
Bonds and notes are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Interest and yield related fees
are recegnised in the income statement based
on the effective interest rate method.

Where the Group has hedged the bonds
and notes with derivative inslruiments,
hedge accounting rules are applicd {refer
to Note 1 (i}).

(x) Loan capital

Loan capital comprises subordinated debt
issued by the Group that qualifics for inclusion
in regulatory capital in accordance with
Australian Prudential Regulation Authority
{APRA) prudential requircments.

From 1 October 2004 to 30 September 2005
Loan ¢apital is recorded at cost or amortised
cost.

From 1 QOctober 2005

Loan capital is recogniscd al fair value plus
directly attributable ransaction cosis at
inceplion. Unless the securities are designated
at fair value, loan capital is subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Interest and yield
related fecs are recognised in the income
slatements based on the effective interest
rate method. Where the Group has hedged
loan copital with derivative instruments, hedge
accounting rules are applied (refer Note 10}).

(y) Liabilities at fair value through the
income statement

Liabilities at fair value through the profit and

foss is a new class of financial liability under

AASB 139. Such liabitities are described in

these accounts as fiabilities at fair value through

the income statement.

The Group designates certain liabilities at

fair value through the income statement on
crigination where those liabilities are managed
on a fair value basis. Changes in the fair value
of liabilities through the income statement are
reported in other income within the income
statement. For quoted liabilities, quoted offer
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prices are used to measure fair value. Quoted
mid prices are used to measure liabilities at

fair value ihrough the income statement with
offsctting risk positions in a portfolio at fair
value. For non-market quoted liabilities, fair
values have been determined using valuation
techniques. Interest expense on financial
liabilities at fair value through the income
statemnent is recogniscd within interest expense
using the cffective interest rate method.

{(z) Shareholders’ equity

(1) Ordinary share capital - issued and paid up
Ordinary share capital is recognised at the
value of the amount paid up. Share issue and
share buy back costs are charged against
share capital.

Where a subsidiary purchases shares in the
Bank as part of the Group's cquity based
compensation scheme, such shares are
referred to as Treasury shares and deducted
from equity at cost.

(2) Preference share capital

From 1 October 2004 to 30 September 2005
Preference share capital is classified as equity
if it is non-redeemable and any dividends are
disereticnary and are convertible into a variable
number of ordinary shares at the holders’
option. Dividends on preference share capital
are recognised as distributions within equity.
Based on this policy, the Group’s Subordinated
Adjustable Income Non-refundable Tier 1
Securities (SAINTS), and Preferred Resetting
Yicld Marketable Equity Securities {PRYMES)
were classified as equity.

From 1 October 2005

Preference share capital is classified as equity
if it is non-redeemable, any dividends are
discretionary and are redeemable only at the
Group's oplion. Rividends on preference
shares classified as cquity are recognised as
distributions within equity. Based an this
policy. the Group's SAINTS and Step-up
Preference Sharcs (SPS) arc classified as
equity. The PRYMES, which were converted
into ordinary shares during the year, were
classilied as a liability from 1 October 2005 to
their conversion date.

Details of preference shares classified as equity
are as follows:

SAINTS

On 13 August 2004, the Bank issued 3.5 million
SAINTS at $100 each. The issue netted

$345 million after issue selated expenses.
Holders of these securities are entitied to

a fleating rate dividend which is payable at

the Direclors’ discretion. The floating rate is
determined each quarter by taking 70% of
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Note 1: Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies continued

the sum of the annualised 90 day Bank Bill
Swap Rale plus a margin ¢f 1.35%. If declared,
dividends arc payable in arrears on a quarterly
basis. On 20 November 2014 ar any dividend
payment datc thereafter, subject to APRA
aporoval, the Bank may converl the SAINTS to
ordinary shares, redeem, buy back or cance!
the SAINTS for their face value or undertake a
combination of thesec opticns.

SPS

0n 20 june 2008, the Bank issued 1.5 million
SPS at $1G0 each raising $148 million in Tier 1
regulalory capital after issue related costs.
Holders of these securities are entitled to

a floating rate dividend which is payable at

the Directors” discretion. The floating rate is
determined by taking 70% of the sum of the
annualised 9C day Bank Bill Swap Rate plus

a margin of 1.10%. Dividends are payable
quarterly in arrears. On 20 Augusl 2016, or any
dividend payment date thereafter, the Bank
may convert the SPS into ordinary shares, or
redeem, buy back or cancel (subject to APRA
approval) the SPS for their $100 face value, or
undertake a combination of these options.

(3) Reserves

From 1 October 2004 to 30 September 2005

{i) Depositors” and Borrowers' Share
Redemption Reserve - The purpose of this
reserve is Lo recognise the redemption of
all Borrowers” and Depositors’ shares.

{ii) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve -
The purpose of this reserve is to recognise
exchange difierences arising on translation
of foreign currency assets and liabilities of
foreign subsidiaries.

(iii

=

Equity Compensation Reserve - In
conjunction with the recognition of an
expense for employee equity grants, a
correspording amount is recognised within
the equity compensation reserve.

From 1 October 2005

{iv) General Reserve for Credit Losses
- In accordance with APRA's reguialory
treatment, the difference between 0.50%
of risk weighted assels and the after tax
balance of the collective provision not
relating 1o incurred loan losses, has been
appropriated from retained earnings 1o a
non-distributable general reserve for credit
losses.

{v) Cash Flow Hedge Rescrve - The effective
portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify
as cash flow hedges are recognised within
the cash flow hedge reserve.
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{vi) Available For Sale Reserve - Changes
in the fair value of financial instruments
designated as available for sale assets are
recognised within the available for sale
reserve,

{(4) Minority interests in controlled entities
Minority interests in the results and equity
of subsidiarics are shown separately in the
consolidated income statement and balance
sheel respectively.

From 1 October 2004 to 30 September 2005
Minority interests comprise Cepositary Capital
Sceurities (DCS) issued by St.George Funding
Company LLC, ordinary shares issued 1o
minority shareholders by St.George Motor
Finance Limited and perpetual notes issued by
the Bank.

(i} The DCS were issued on 19 June 1997
raising US$250 million. The securities
are on issue in perpetuity subject 0
redemption rights heid by the Bank in
2007, 2017, and 2022. APRA approval is
required to enable the redermption rights
of the Bank to be exercised. The sceurities
have no volting rights with respect to the
operations of the Bank and are treated
as Tier 1 capital for Capital Adequacy
pUFPOSES.

(i) The 8ank has issued perpetual notes raising
%34 million as at 30 September 2006
(30 September 2005: $31 million). The
notes have no voling rights or entitlement
to dividends or other payment. In a winding
up, the notes on issue are convertible into
ordinary shares of the Bank.

From 1 October 2005

Minority interests comprise ordinary shares
issued by St.George Motor Finance Limited and
perpetual notes issued by the Bank. The DCS
have been classified as a liability as the Group
has the abligation to redeem the DCS for cash
an 30 june 2017.

(aa)Life insurance business

The Group conducis life insurance business
through its subsidiary St.Geerge Life Limited
{SGL). SGL is accounted for in accordance

with the requirements of Accounting Standard
AASB 1038 Life Insurance Contracts (AASB
1038) and AASB 139 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement (AASB 139).
Amounts included in the results of the Group in
respect of SGL represent the total life business
of SGL, which includes underlying amounts that
relate Lo bolh policy holders and shareholders
of the life business.

All assels are carried at fair vatue through the
income statement. Life insurance liabilities
are measured as accumulated benefils 10
policy helders in accordance with AASB 139
and AASB 1038, which apply to investment
contracts and assels backing insurance
liabilities respectively.

(bb}Fiduciary activities

A number of controlled entities act as Trustee
and/or Manager, Administrater or Custodian
for a number of superannuation funds,
investment Lrusts, superannuation services,
approved deposit funds, life insurance funds
and managed client portfolios. The valug

of managed funds a1 30 September 2006
was $39,268 miilion (30 September 2005:
$32,642 million).

The assels and liabillties of these funds and
trusts are not included in the Group's balance
sheel as it does not have the capacity 1o
directly or indirectly contro! the funds and
trusts for the Group's benefit.

Commissions and fees derived by the
controlled entitics in respect of these activities
are included within other income in the income
statementl.

(cc) Qperating leases

Leases entered into by the Bank and Group as
lessee are primarily operating leases. The total
payments mace under operating leases are
charged o the income statement on a straight
line basis over the period of the lgase.

(dd)Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported on the balance sheet
when |here is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention o settle on 3 net basis, or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneausly.

(ee)Revenue and expense recognition

From 1 October 2004 to 30 September 2005
Interest income is recognised in the income
statement when earned on an accruals basis.

Fees, if material, are segregated between cost
recovery and risk related. The risk rclated

fees are taken to income over the period of
the underlying risk. The balance of fees is
considered 10 be cost recovery and is taken 1o
income when garned.
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From 1 October 2005

Interest income ond expense

fnterest income and expense are recognised
in the incorne statement for all interest
earning assets and interest bearing liabilities
based upon the effective interest rate on

the instrument. The effective interest rate

is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash reccipts or payments and certain
acquisition expenses through the expected
life of the instrument. When calculating the
effective interest rale, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of
the financial instrument but does not consider
future credit tosses. The calculation includes
all fee incore and expense and acquisition
costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate.

Interest income and expense on derivative
instruments that are used to manage underlying
assets and ligbilities are recognised together
with the underlying item within interest income
and expense.

Fee and commission income and expense
Fee income and acquisition costs relating to
loan origination are capitalised and included
in the effective interest rate and recognised
as interest income over the expected life of
the loan. Other fee and commission income
is generally recognised when the service has
been provided.

Fee expense is recognised when the service
has been received.

Net trading income comprises all gains and
losses from changes in the fair value of
financial assets held for trading.

Net income from non-trading derivatives and
fair value movements comprises all gains and
losses from changes in the fair value of financial
assets and financiat liabilities designated at fair
vatue through the income statement together
with hedge ineffectiveness recognised in the
income statement.

(fi) Segments

The Group is organised into four business
segments: Retail Bank, Institutional and
Business Banking, BankSA and Wealth
Management. The “other” segment

comprises hedge ineffectiveness and fair value
movements in non-irading derivatives and DCS.

(gg)Derecognition of financial instruments
The derecognition of & financial asset takes
place when the contractual rights to the cash
flows associated with the financial instrument
expire or when the Group transfers the
contractual rights, which is normally the case
when the instrument is legally sold, or when all
the cash flows attributable to the instrument
are passed onto another party and the risks and
rewards have substantially been transferred.
The derecognition of a financial liability takes
place when the contraclual ebligations are
discharged, cancelled or expire,

(hh)Critical accounting estimates and
significant judgements

The netes to the financial statements set out

areas involving a higher degree of judgement

or complexity, or where assumptions arg

significant to the Bank and Group financial

report such as:

(1) Estimates of impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwili has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with
the accounting pelicy stated in Note 1(p). The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value in use
calculations. These calculations require the

use of assumptions. Refer Note 23 for details
of these assumptions and potential impact of
changes to assumptions.

{2) Fair value of financial instruments
Methodologfes and significant assumptions
applied to determine the fair values of financial
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are set
out in Note 50.

(3) Income taxes

The Group recognises lisbilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final
outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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(4) Impairment losses on loans and
receivables

Individually assessed provisions are raised

wherg there is objective evidence of

impairment and full recovery of principal is

considerad doubtful.

The provisions are established based primarily
an esiimates of the realisable (fair) value

of security taken and are measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the expected future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate. Shert term
balances are not discounted.

Al foans and advances that do nat have an
individuatly assessed provision are assessed
collectively for impairment.

The collective provision is maintained to
reduce ihe carrying amount of portfalios of
similar loans and advances to their estimated
recoverable amounts at the balance sheet date.

The evaluation process is subject 10 a series of
gstimates and judgements.

In the individually assessed credit risk rated
segment, the risk rating system, including the
age of default and loss given default ratings,
loss history, and the size, structure and
diversity of individual credits are considered.
Current developments in portfolios (industry,
geographic and term) are reviewed.

In the statistically managed segment, the
history of defaults and tosses, and the size,
structure and diversity of portfolios are
considered.

In addition, management considers overall
indicators of portfolio performance, quality
and economic conditions.

Changes in these estimates could have a direct
impact on the ievel of provision determined.

(5) Consalidation of special purpose
entities (SPE)

When assessing whether the Group cantrols

a SPE, judgzement is required about risks and

rewards together with the Group's ability to

make operational decisions for the SPE.
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Note 2: Interest

Consolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m $m $m $m
Interest income
Cash and liquid assets 38 37 36 37
Receivables due from olher financial institutions 59 38 19 14
Trading and investment securities - 415 - 348
Assets at fair value 375 - 287 -
Loans and other receivables 6,309 4,984 5,001 4,020
Due from controlled entilies - - 225 167
Total interest income 6,781 5,474 5,568 4,586
Interest expense
Deposits and other borrowings 2,630 2,030 2,630 2,029
Bonds and notes 2,010 1,499 1,031 774
Loan capital 109 17 109 17
Payables due to other tinancial institutions 19 K] 19 K}
Due to controlled entities - - 66 44
Total interest expense 4,768 3,677 3,855 2,995
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Note 3: Other Income

Consolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m Sm Sm Sm
Nel trading income 70 72 41 48
Net trading income from controlled entities - - 1¢ 9
Net gain on sale of investment securities - 1 - 1
Net other inrcome from nen-trading derivatives and
financial instruments designated at fair value 14 - 14 -
Net other income from nen-trading derivatives and financial
instruments designated at fair value - controlled entities - - 19 -
Dividend income - other persons 6 5 - 5
Dividend income - conlrolled entities - - 415 205
Product fees and commissions
- lending 114 70 94 36
- deposit and other accounts 219 247 200 199
- electronic banking 202 188 202 187
Net gain on sale of land and buildings 48 3 7 3
Managed funds fees 254 223 -
Profit on disposal of shares 10 4 10 2
Nel gain on disposal of plant and equipment - 27 - 27
Profit on disposal of businesses 4 g 4 -
Factoring and invoice discounting income 20 1% - -
Bill acceptance fees - 93 - 93
Rental income 8 g 8 8
Securitisation services fee from controlled entities - - 42 30
Trust distributions 9 4 6 1
Management fees from controlled entities - - 101 80
Cther 16 14 10 9
Total other income 994 988 1,183 943

{a) Comprises all gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial assets and derivatives held for trading.

{b) Comprises all gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial asscts and financial lisbilities designrated at fair vatue through the income statement,
the impact of hedge ineffectiveness recognised in the incame statement and changes in the fair value of non-trading derivatives.

Note 4: Bad and Doubtful Debts

Consolidated Bank

2006 2005 2006 2005

$m $m $m $m
Charge to general provision for doubtful debis (refer Note 17} - G - (?)
Charge 10 collective provision for credit losses (refer Note 17) 23 - 7 -
Charge lo specific provision for credit losses (refer Note 17) V| 100 110 30
Charge to specific provision for credit losses controlled entities {refer Note 17) - - - 21
144 109 127 108
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Note 5: Operating Expenses

Consolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005

$m m $m Sm
Employment expenses
Salaries and wages 594 549 538 498
Contractor fees 5 9 - 5
Superannuation contributions 52 46 48 4z
Fringe Denefits tax 7 9 6 8
Payrall tax 39 35 36 32
Share based compensation 12 13 1 12
Other 42 24 39 22

751 685 678 619
Non-salary technology expenses
Depreciation: computer equipment 38 40 33 35
Amortisation of intangible assets 32 38 25 25
Impairment of intangible assets 32 16 32 16
Rental expense on operating leases 7 9 7 8
Other Al 69 63 62

180 172 160 150
Occupancy expenses
Depreciation: furniture, fittings and leasehold improvements 29 27 24 21
Rentals on operating leases 68 70 62 66
Rentals on operating leases payable to comrolled entities - - 13 13
Cther 44 a1 38 30

141 138 137 139
Administration and other
Advertising and public relations 48 46 44 41
Consultants 21 30 14 22
Fees and cammissions 26 28 25 23
Fees and commissions payable to controlied entities - - 16 3
Postage 21 18 20 18
Printing and stationery 37 36 )| 3¢
Subscription and levies 9 8 9 8
Telephone 10 9 8 9
Other* 97 109 88 98

269 284 255 257
Total operating expenses 1,341 1,279 1,230 1165

* Includes expendiiure of $6.165 1o the Australian Labor Party, $13,600 Lo the Liberal Party and $4,360 to the National Party, mainly resulting from functions

attended during the year.
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Note 6: Income Tax Expense
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Censolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m Sm $m $m
(a) Income tax expense
Current tax expense
Current year 489 431 387 352
Adjustments for pricr years 3 - - -
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences {47) (18) {32) (23)
Total income tax expense in income statements 445 413 355 329
Altributable to:
Continuing operations 445 413 355 329
Discentinuing operation - - - -
445 413 355 329
(b) Reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable
Profit before tax - continuing operations 1,522 1,396 1,539 1,261
Profit before tax - discontinued operation 13) (10) 2) -
Profit before tax 1,509 1,386 1,537 1,261
Prima facie income tax calculated at 30% of profit before tax (2005: 30%) 453 416 461 378
Increase in income tax expense due to:
Tax losses not recognised 4 3 - -
Goodwill impairment - 1 - -
General pravisions for doubtful debts - 3 - 0
Share based payments expense 4 4 3 4
St.George Insurance Ple Limited attributable income - - 8 5
Preference share dividends classified as interest expense 1 3 -
Non-deductible intercst expense - - 12 12
Underprovision for income tax in prior year 3 - - -
Current and deferred tax transactions of whoily-owned
subsidiaries in the tax consclidated group - - 33 3
Other 2 1 1 1
Decrease in income tax expense due to:
Deduction allowable on shares issued to employees (2) (2) ) {2)
Difference between accounting profit and assessable profit:
- on sale of shares (3) () @ {6)
- on sale of businesses - )] - -
- on sale of buildings (25) 1 3) 1
Rebatable dividends 2) (2 (124) (63)
Recovery in accordance with {ax funding agreements - - (33) (31)
Other - (2) - -
Total income tax expense 445 413 355 329
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S1.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Cntitics

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 6: Income Tax Expense continued

As advised in the Bank's 30 September 2005 financial starements, the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) has denied the Bank interest deductions on its
subordinated debentures issued 1o SLGeorge Funding Company LLC as part of the depositary capilal securities transaction undertaken in 1997. The ATO
has issued amended income tax assessments (otalling $137 million after tax. The Bank has commenced proceedings in the Federal Court 1o contest the
ATO's view. Resolution of this matter is likely to take some years. The Bank remains confident that its position in relatien ta the application of the taxation
law is correct. Accordingly, no amounts have been charged to the income statements in respect of the amended assessments. The Bank's auditor, KPMG,
concurs with this treatment.

Consclidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m Sm $m $m
(c} Amounts recognised directly in equity
Net deferred tax - debited directly to equity
- cash flow hedges 6 - 7 -
6 - 7 -
(d) Tax losses
Unused tax losses for which no tax benefit has been recognised 55 54 23 27
Potential tax benefit at 30% 18 16 7 8

The potential asset of $18 million {2005: $16 million) attributable Lo tax losses carried forward has not been brought 1o account in the Group as the
Directors do not believe the realisation of the 1ax asset is probable.
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In accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101, items of income and expense that are material by quantum or nature, are disclosed separately to

assist in understanding the financial performance of the Group.

Consclidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m Sm $m $m
Non-interest income
Non-interest income before significant items 953 972 1,183 927
Significant items
- profit on sale of land and buildings 41 - - -
- profit on sale of fixed assets @ - 27 - 27
- writc-off of deferred home loan broker commissions &7 R )] - o
U LI . - 15
Total non-interest income 994 988 1,183 943
Operating expenses
Operating expenses before significant itcms 1,293 1,263 1,182 1,149
Significant items )
- intangible assets impairment ioss 32 16 32 16
- restructure costs o 16 - 16 -
L a8 15 48 15
Total operating expenses 1,341 1278 1,230 1165
Income tax
Income tax expense before significant items 470 413 370 329
Significant items
- income tax benefit on profit on sale of land and buildings(‘) 7 (10) - - -
- income tax benefit on intangible assets impairment loss (i) {(10) (5} (10) (5)
- income tax benefit on restructure costs ™ {5) - (5) -
- income tax expense on prolit on sale of fixed asseis - 8 - 8
-income tax banelit on write-off of deferred home loan broker commissions ™7 - {3) - )
_ _ @5) : 0y ]
Total income tax expense 445 413 355 329
Discontinued operation 7
Exit costs associated with discontinued operation ™ 9 - 2 -
Minarity interest applicable to discontinued operation ™ {3) - - -
6 - 2 -
Summary of significant items
Total pre-tax {loss) from significant items (7) - (48) -
Add: total tax benefit attributable to significant items 25 - 15 -
Less: net (loss) of discontinued eperation o - ©) -t @ -
Net income/{loss) from significant items 12 - {35) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 7: Significant Items continued
2006 year

(i) nSeptember 2008, the Group completed the sale and leaseback of ils head ofiice building in Ko'garahA As aresult of the sale, the Group recognised a profit
of 341 million {Bank: $nil} before tax {($57 million after associated tax benefit).

(i) During the year, the Bank recognised a $32 million impairment {$22 million after tax} on intangible assets relating to capitalised computer software.
This impairment comprises software thal has been developed internally where the timing of realisation of associated benefits is uncertain or the value of
futyre benglits arc not expected to be fully realised. The impairment also includes soltware systems that have become obsolete during the year.

(i

As a result of intense competition in the New Zealand market, the Bank and its joint veniure partner Foodstulfs agreed in August 2006 1o discontinue

their supermarkel banking joint venture. Cosis associated with the discontinuation of this business total $9 million (Bank: $Z milhon) before and after tax.

A $3 million minority interest Joss has been recognised in respect of these costs, reflecting Foodstuffs’ share of loss. The total loss incurred in respect of the
joint venturg (including these costs) amounted o $13 million, of which an amount of $5 million was attributable to the minerity interest.

(iv) A $16 million (311 million aiter tax) restructure pravision has been recognised during the year in respect of staff redundancies. The redundancies are
primarily atiributabie to downsizing information lechnology development teams in line with reduced business demand, consolidating interstate loan servicing
sites and outsourcing certain administrative functions.

2005 year

(v} The Bank sold its nen-core unbranded ATM network 1o Customers Ltd. The sale resulted in a profit on sale before tax of $27 million {$19 million after tax).
(vi) From 1 October 2004, the Bank ceased lo defer home lean broker commissions on new introduciory loan business and has recognised an adjustment of
$11 million ($8 million after tax) which represents the unamortised balance of deferred commissions relating to this loan portiolic.

(vii) The Bank recogrised 3 $6 million ($4 million after tax) wrile-off of absclete systems or systems in the process of being decommissioned and a $10 million
(7 miltion after tax) write-oif representing a refinement of St.George's deferred expenditure policy to write-off deferred expenditure whereby the
unamortised balance of deferred expenditure is written off immediately when the carrying value reduces to $500.000.

Note 8: Discontinued operation

In August 2006, the Group announced it would cease its supermarket banking venture in New Zealand with its joint venture partner Foodstuffs.
The Group scld its New Zealand loans and receivable portfolia held by St.George Bank New Zealand Limited in August 2006. The Group entered
into an agreement that following individual customer approval, resulted in the transfer of their New Zealand retail deposits to another Bank, with the
remaining deposit portfolie not transferred repaid to customers by September 2006.

During the year ended 30 September 2006, the New Zealand banking operaticn hiad cash outflows fram operating activities of $7 million
(30 September 2005: $13 million), cash inflows from investing activities of $400 million {30 September 2005: cutflows of $359 million} and cash
outflows from financing activities of $446 million (30 September 2005: inflows of $150 mifion),

Effect of the disposal on individual assets and liabilities is as icllows:

Sm

Loans and receivables 403
Deposits {461)
Carrying amount of net assets sold or transferred (58)
Consideration paid on disposal 58
Gain/{loss) on sale of discontinued operation -

Analysis of profit and loss of the discontinued operation, loss on sale of discontinued operation and related income tax expense is as follows:
Consolidaied Bank

2006 2005 2006 2005

$m $m $m $m

Interest income 33 31 - -
Interest expense 3 27 - -
Net interest income 2 4 - -
Operating expenses 6 13 - -
Doubtful debts - 1 - -
Exit costs @ 9 - 2 -
iNel loss before income tax (13) (10} (2) -
Income tax benefit - - - -
Net loss after income 1ax (13) (10) (2) -
Net loss of discontinued operation (13) {10) (2) -

(i Classified as a significant item.
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Note 9; Dividends Provided For or Paid

Franking

Cents  Consolidated Bank Date of rate Percentage
Type per share $m $m payment % iranked
2006
Interim 2006 - ordinary shares 74.0 388 388 4-Jul-2006 30 100
Final 2005 - ordinary shares 70.0 364 364 14-Dec-2005 30 100
Subordinated Adjustable Income Non-refundable Tier 1 Securities 2 2 21-Nov-2005 30 100
Subordinated Adjustable Income Non-refundable Tier 1 Securities 4 4 20-Feb-2006 30 100
Subordinated Adjustable Income Non-refundable Tier 1 Securities 5 5 22-May-20086 30 100
Subordinated Adjustable Income Non-refundable Tier 1 Securities 5 5 21-Aug-2006 30 100
Subordinated Adjustable Income Non-refundable Tier 1 Securities 2 2 20-Nov-2006 30 100
Step-up Preference Shares ™ 1 1 21-Aug-2006 30 100
Step-up Preference Shares 1 1 20-Nov-2006 30 100

772 772

2005
Interim 2005 - ordinary shares 67.0 347 347 4-Jul-2005 30 100
Final 2004 - ordinary shares 62.0 319 319 17-Dec-2004 30 100
Depositary Capital Securities & 19 (10 6 - 31-Dec-2004 - -
Depositary Capital Securities 14 - 30-Jun-2005 - -
Depasitary Capital Securities 7 31-Dec-2005 - -
Preferred Resetling Yield Marketable Equity Securities ® " 7 21-Feb-2005 30 100
Preferred Resetting Yield Marketable Equity Securities 10 10 22-Aug-2005 30 100
Preferred Resetting Yield Markelable Equily Securities 7 2 2 20-Feb-2006 30 100
Subordinated Adjustable Income Nan-refundable Tier 1 Securities 3 3 22-Nov-2004 30 100
Subordinated Adjusiable Income Non-refundable Tier 1 Securities 4 4 21-Feb-2005 30 100
Subordinated Adjustable Income Non-refundable Tier 1 Securities 4 4 20-May-2005 30 100
Subordinated Adjustable Income Nen-refundable Tier 1 Securities 4 4 22-Aug-2005 30 100
Subordinated Adjustable Income Non-refundable Tier 1 Securities 'V 2 2 21-Nov-2005 30 100

729 702

(1} Atotal dividend of $4 million was paid of which $2 millien relates to the 2006 financial year and $2 million refated to the 2005 financial year.

(2) A total dividend of $4 million will be payable on 20 November 2006 of which $2 mitlion relates Lo the 2006 financial year.

{3) 1,500,000 Step-up Preference Shares were issued on 20 June 2006 at an issue price of $100 each, raising $148 million {net of 2ssociated costs).
{(4) A total dividend of $2 million will be payable on 20 November 2006 of which $1 million relales 10 the 2006 linancial year.

(5)  Atotal disteibution of $14 million was paid of which $7 million is classified as interest expense and relales to the 2006 financial year and $7 million is
a dividend related to the 2005 financial year.

{(6) Atotal dividend of $14 million was paid of which $6 millien related to the 2005 financial year and $8 million related to the 2004 financial year.

(7) Aotal distribution of $8 million was paid of which $2 million is a dividend related to the 2005 financial year and $6 million is classified as interest expense
related to the 2006 financial year.

(8) A total dividend of $9 million was paid of which $7 miliion related to the 2005 financial year and $2 million related 1o the 2004 financial year.
(9) A total dividend of $4 millien was paid of which $3 milfion related to the 2005 financial year and $1 million related to the 2004 financial year.

(10} Distributions paid on Depositary Capital Securities (DCS) will be paid by S$1.George Funding Company LLC to the holders of the securities, out of profits to
which no franking credits are attached.

{11) In accordance with AIFRS, PRYMES and OCS have been reclassified as liabiliies and distributions are included in interest expense from 1 October 2005.
The PRYMES were converted into 10,309,170 ordinary shares in February 2006.

Dividend franking account
It is anticipated that the balance of the consolidated franking account will be $506 million (30 Seplember 2005: $555 millicn) after adjusting for:

(i) iranking credits that will arise from the payment of income tax payable as at the end of the year;

(iiy franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as a liability;

(i) franking credits that will arise from the receipt of dividends recognised as receivables at the reperting date; and

(iv) franking credits that the Group may be prevented from distributing in the subsequent year.

Alter also allowing for the 30 September 2006 final ordinary dividend, the censolidated franking account will be $332 million (30 September 2005:
£401 million).
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St.Geerge Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 10: Earnings Per Share

Consolidated
2006 2005
Basic - ordinary (cents)
- from continuing operations 2014 1777
- from discontinued operation (1.5) {(1.0)
Diluted - ordinary (cents)
- from continuing operations 199.9 176.2
- {rom discontinued operation (1.5) (0.9
No. No.
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic)
Issued shares at 1 October 520,407,464 513,788,050
Effect of share buy back (7,102,575) -
Effect of shares issued in December 2004 - 2,282,906
Effect of shares issued in Cecember 2005 3,573,425 -
Effect of shares issued in july 2005 - 526.600
Effect of shares issued in july 2006 495,782 -
Effect of shares issued under Employee Share Plans 881,738 1,164,245
Effect of shares issued on conversion of PRYMES 6,270,235 -
Less: Treasury shares (244,574} -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 30 September 524,281,495 517,761,805
$m $m
Profit attributable to ordinary sharehalders (basic)
- conlinuing operations 1,076 983
less: preference share distributions
SAINTS 18 17
SPS - 2 -
PRYMES - 19
bCS - 27
Prafit from continuing operations 1,056 920
Loss from discontinued operation after minority interest (8) (5)
No. No,
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)
weighted average number of ordinary shares at 30 September (basic) 524,281,495 517,761,805
Effect of PRYMES on issue 3,986,374 1,032,352
tffect of SAINTS onissue 11,870,846 12,871,078
Effect of sharg options on issue 710,663 750,776
Effect of SPS onissuc 1,435,652 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) 542,285,030 542,416,011
$m $m
Profit attributable o ordinary shareholders (diluted)
- continuing eperations
add: preference share distributions
interest/dividends on PRYMES
dividends on SAINTS
dividends on SPS
Profit from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operation after minority inlerest
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Note 11: Cash and Liquid Assets
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Consolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m $m $m $m
Notes, coing ond cash at bankers 209 237 209 229
Money at call 32 26 32 26
Bills receivable and remittances in transit 15 18 14 18
Clearing house balance 9 2 6 21
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 816 882 816 881
1,081 1184 1,077 1175
Note 12: Receivables Due from Other Financial Institutions
Consolidated
2006 2005
$m $m
Maturity analysis based on remaining term to maturity at 30 September
At call 765 776
Less than 3 months 330 45
Between 3 months and 12 months 35 25
Between 1 year and 5 years 52 265
1,182 1.m
Nate 13: Assets at Fair Value Through the Income Statement
Consolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m sm $m sm
Trading securities
Government and semi-government securities 1,629 1,280 1,629 1,280
Bills of exchange - bank accepted/endorsed 744 1,553 720 1,498
Negotiabie certificates of deposit 1,816 1,769 1,816 1,734
Other marketable securities 2,003 1,405 1,887 1,058
Cther marketable securities - controlled entities - - 539 323
6,192 6,007 6,591 5,893
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entitics

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 3C September 2006

Note 14: Available for Sale Investments

Cansolidated Bark
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m $m $m sm

Unlisted equity securities 29 - 1 -
Bills of exchange 10 - - -
Government sgcurities 19 - - -
Negotiable certificates of deposits 54 - - -
Mortgage backed securilies 608 - - -
Debt securities 537 - - -
Other securities 284 - - -

1,541 - 1 -
Maturity analysis based on remaining term te maturity at 30 September
At call 276 -
Less than 3 months : 89 -
Between 3 months and 12 months 131 -
Between 1 year and 5 years 597 -
Greater than 5 years an -
Non-maturing 37 -

1,541 -
Note 15: Investment Securities (Comparative Period Only)

Censolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m Sm $m Sm

Investments at cost

Geverament and semi-governmenl securilies
Mortgage backed securities

Other marketable securities
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For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 16: Loans and Other Receivables
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Consolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 7005
$m $m $m $m
Housing loans - amortised cost " 62,709 56.298 44,764 42,670
Commercial loans - amortised cost 9,824 9,653 8,868 8,038
Personal loans - amortised cost 4,851 3,649 3,926 2,855
Lease and commercial hire purchase - amortised cost 2,519 2,368 212 508
Structured investments - amortised cost 114 146 114 146
Structured investments - fair value through the incame statement 499 - - -
Credit card receivables - amortised cost 1,268 1,093 1,268 1,093
Other - amortised cost N 30 K] 30
81,815 73.237 59,183 56,240
Less: provisions for impairment (refer Note 17}
Specific pravision for doubtful debts 3 69 K1} 61
Collective provision for doubtful debts 268 - 251 -
Gengral provision for doubtful debis - 219 - 203
Net loans and other receivables 81,516 72,949 58,901 55,976
{1} Includes securitised loans.
{2} Includes loans in asset-backed conduit vehicles.
Maturity analysis based on remaining term to maturity at 30 September
Less than 3 months 28,964 25,672
Between 3 months and 12 months 2,788 2,802
Between 1 year and 5 years 7,195 7.330
After 5 years 42,837 37,364
81,784 73188
Note 17: Provisions for Impairment
Consolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m $m $m Sm
General provision
Balance at the beginning of the year 219 209 203 206
Net provision mavement during the year - 10 - (3
Write-back of general provision on transition to AIFRS (219) - (203) -
Balance at the end of the year - 219 - 203
Collective provision
Balance at the beginning of the year - - - -
Establishment of provision on transition to AIFRS o 245 - 34 -
Nel provision movement during the year 23 - 17 -
Balance at the end of the year 268 - 251 -
Specific provision
Balance at the beginning of the year 69 73 61 67
Write-back of portfclic provisions on transition to AIFRS (35) - (35) -
Nel provision movement during the year Lra) 100 10 i
Recoveries 16 14 14 13
Bad debt write-offs (140) (113) (119) (130)
Balance at the end of the year K] 69 K| 61

(1) Adjusted against opening retained earnings at 1 October 2005,
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 18: Impaired Financial Assets
impaired financial assets are disclosed using the definitions and categories specified by APRA. Impaired financial assets comprise lending assels.

Consolidated Bank

2006 2005 2006 2005
$m $m $m $m

Impaired loans with specific provisions
Gross loans 74 70 A 70
Less: specific provisions M4 26 33 26
40 44 38 44
Impaired loans without specific provisions 11 7 1" 7
Restructured loans without specific provisions 1 - 1 -
Total impaired assets 52 51 50 51
Interest income received on impaired loans - 7 - 7
Interest income forgone on impaired Joans 1 7 L 7
Past due balances @ 181 182 169 158

{a) Past due items - primarily includes the consumer lending portiolio where loans are in arrears for $0 or more conseculive days. (nterest on these loans
conlinues to be recognised in the income statements.

Note 19: Concentration of Credit Risk

Credit

Assets at fair Available Loans and commitments

vaiue through the Derivative for sale other Bank and contingent
income statement assels investments receivables acceptances liabilitics Total
2006 $m $m $m $m $m $m $m
Agriculture, forestry and fishing - 2 - 843 338 6 1,189
Financial, investment and insurance 5,599 1,063 1,078 348 260 772 9,120
Government and public authorities 584 - 95 5 518 6 1,208
Lease finance - - - 313 - - 313
Personal - 2 - 6,758 294 8 7,062
Manufacturing - 2 - 485 597 - 1,084
Mining - - - K] 10 - L1l
Real estate - construction 9 15 - 1,394 607 130 2,155
Real estate - mortgage - - - 62,391 - 977 63,368
Other commercial and industrial - 9 368 9,247 9,284 191 19,099
Total 6,192 1,093 1,541 81,815 11,908 2,090 104,639

Other risk concentrations

Receivables due from other financia! institutions 1,182
Total gross credit risk 105,821
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 Septernber 2006

Note 19: Concentration of Credit Risk continued

Unrealised Credit
Assets at fair revaluation gain Loans commilments
value through the  on derivative investnent and other Bank and contingent
income statement instruments securities receivables acceptances liahilities Total
2005 Sm Sm $m $m $m $m $m
Agriculture, forestry and fishing - - - 748 232 2 982
Financial, investment and insurance 4,271 356 843 184 165 1177 6,996
Government and pubtic authorities 1,328 6 109 6 314 - 1,763
Lease finance - - - 409 - 2 41
Personal - - - 5,594 - 12 5,606
Manufacturing - 1 - 468 352 - 821
Mining - - - 22 & - 28
Real estate - construction - - - 1.632 403 39 2,134
Real estate - mortgage - - - 36,071 - 9N 57,062
Other commercial and industrial 408 5 197 8,103 5,626 129 14,468
Total 6,007 368 1,149 73,237 7,098 2,412 90,271
Other risk concentrations
Receivables due from other financial institutions 1.1
Total gross credit risk 91,382
Note 20: Investments in Controlled Entities
Bank
2006 2005
$m $m
investment at cost 2,492 1,834 ]

The controlled entities of the Bank are:
Percentage of shares held

MNole 2006 2005
Advance Assel Management Limited 100 100
Advance Commercial Finance Limited (c) 100 100
Advance Insurance Agencies Pty Limited (e} - 100
Advance Leasing Limited 100 100
Ascalon Capital Managers Limited ] 50 100
Ascalon Operations and Services Pty Limited () 50 100
Ascalon Funds Seed Pool Trust (d) - -
Asgard Capital Management Limited 100 100
Asgard Wealth Solutions Limited ] 100 100
Assirt Software Pty Limited 100 100
Buchelin Pty Limited 100 100
Canberra Advance Property Limited 100 100
Crusade CP Management Pty Limited 100 100
Crusade Management Limited 100 100
Crusade CP No 1Pty Limited (&) - _
Danaby Pty Limited 100 100
Dragon Investment Services Limited 100 100
Dysty Pty Limited 100 100
HITTCN Pty Limited 100 100
Kerbridge Loyalty Software Pty Limited (c) 100 100
Nationwide Management Pty Limited 100 100
PACT Accountants Investment Group Pty Limited 100 100
Scottish Pacific Business Finance Administration Limited (a) 100 100
Scottish Pacific Business Finance Holdings Pty Limited 100 100
Scottish Pacific Business Finance Limited (a) 100 100
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St.George 8ank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 20: Investments in Controlled Entities continued
Percentage cf shares held

Note 2006 2005
Scotlish Pacific Business Finance Pty Limited 100 100
Scottish Pacific Management Sesvices Pty Limited 100 100
SECURITOR Financial Group Limited 100 100
$t.George (Note Issuing Vehicle Only) Py Lid 100 100
St.George APL Pty Limited 100 160
St.George Bank Employee Share Trust 0] - -
St.George Bark New Zealand Limited (a) 100 100
St.George Business Finance Pty Limiled 100 100
St.George Commercig Credit Corporation Limited 100 100
$t.George Crusade Investment Pty Limited 100 100
St.George Custodial Pty Limited 100 100
St.George Dragon Investment Ply Limited 100 100
$1.George Fquity Finance Limited {c) 100 100
St.George Finance Holdings Limited 100 100
St.George Finance Limited 100 100
St.George Financial [nvestments 1 Pty Limiteg () 100 -
St.George Financial Investments New Zealand Limited (a) 100 -
St.George Financial Services Limited 100 100
St.George Funding Campany LLC () 100 100
St.George Group Holdings Pty Limited 100 100
$t.George HCAL Limited (c) 100 100
St.George Home Finance Py Limited (c) 100 1C0
St.George Insurance Australia Pty Limited (h) 100 -
St.Gearge Insurance Pee Limited {a) 100 100
$1.George Life Limited 100 100
St.George Management Services Pty Limited 100 100
S1.George Motor Finance Limited 75 75
$1.George Motor Wholesale Pty Limited (© 75 75
St.George Procurement Managemen Pty Limited 100 100
St.George Security and Custody Pty Limited (c) 100 100
St.George Staff Retirement Fund Pty Limited (©) 100 100
St.George Wealth Management Pty Limited 100 100
St.George WEL Limited 100 100
St.George Wholesale Finance Pty Limited ) (ch 100 100
Value Nominees Pty Limited 100 100
votraint No. 1182 Pty Limited 100 100
VSE&L Insurance Agency Pty Limited 100 100
VS&L Services Pty Limited 100 100

{a} S$t.George Funding Company LLC is a Delaware limited liability company and carries on business in the USA. St.George Insurance Pie Lid is incorporated in
and carries on business in Singapore. Scottish Pacific Business Finance Limited, Scotlish Pacific Business Finance Administration Limited, St.George Financial
Investments 1 Pty Limited, St.George Financial Investments New Zealand Limited and St.George Bank New Zealand Limited are incorporated in and carry on
business in New Zealand. All other controlled entities are incorporated in Australia.

(b} Formerly SEALCORP Holdings Limited.

{c) In voluntary liquidation.

{d} Control without ownership.

{e) This company was deregistered during the year.

() As at 15 March 2006, these companies ceased Lo be contrelled by the Group.

{g) inaccordance with AIFRS, securitisation Irusts and asset-backed conduit vehicles are conselidaled without ownership.

{h) This entity was incorperated during the year to carry on the busingss of lenders mertgage insurance.

(i) This trust was established during the year to purchase shares to satisfy grants under the Group's equity based compensation schemes.
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St.George Bank Limited and ils Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006
Note 21: Other Investments {Comparative Period Only)
Consolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m Sm $m $m
Equily investments - Unlisted - 43 - 2
Other investments - 2 - -
- 45 - 2
Note 22: Property, Plant and Equipment
Consolidated Bank
Furniture, Furniture,
fittings and Leaseheld fittings and Leaschold
Land Buildings  equipment  improvements Total Land Buildings equipment  improvements Total
sm $m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m s$m
Balance at 1 October 2004
Deemed cost
(gross carrying amount) 97 286 584 9 976 78 185 514 9 786
Accumulated depreciation - (46} (451) 7y  (504) - (20) {399) (7)  (426)
Net carrying amount 97 240 133 2 471 78 165 15 2z 360
Year ended 30 September 2005
Opening balance 97 240 133 2 472 78 165 115 2 360
Acquisilions during the year - 2 62 1 65 - 2 59 1 62
Disposals during the year {5) {6 7 - (18) (5) (6 (7 - (18)
Depreciation cxpense for the year - {8) (59) - {67) - (4) {52) - (56)
Closing balance 92 228 129 3 452 73 157 115 3 348
Balance at 30 September 2005
Cost (gross carrying amount) 92 280 615 10 997 73 181 541 10 805
Accumutated depreciation - {52) (488) (7} (545) - (24) {426) 7y (457)
Net carrying amount 9z 228 129 3 452 73 157 15 3 348
Year ended 30 September 2006
Opening balance 92 228 129 3 452 73 157 15 3 348
Acquisitions during the year - 4 60 2z 66 - 3 55 2 60
Disposals during the year {23) (87 ] - (117) 3] (29) ) - (35)
Depreciation expense for the year - @ (59) () 67) - @ (52) ) (57)
Closing balance 69 138 123 4 334 67 132 13 4 316
Balance at 30 September 2006
Cost (gross carrying amount} 69 167 649 13 898 67 158 577 13 815
Accumulated depreciation - (29) (526) 9 (5649 - (26) 464) 9 (499
Nel carrying amount

ST.GEORGE BANK FULL FINANCIAL REPORT 2006




34

St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entitics

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 23: Intangible Assets

Consolidated Bank
Computer Computer
Goodw software Total Goodwill software Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m

Balance at 1 October 2004
Cost (grass carrying amount} 1,933 362 2,295 1,266 309 1,575
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (768} (259) (1.027) {(504) (227) (731)
Net carrying amount 1,165 103 1,268 762 82 844
Year ended 30 September 2005
Opening balance 1,165 103 1,268 762 82 844
Acquisitions - internally developed - 7 17 - 13 13
Other acquisitions - A1 41 - A0 40
Impairment (4) {16) (20) - (16) (16)
Amortisation - (38) (38) - {29) (29)
Closing balance 1,161 107 1,268 762 90 §52
Balance at 30 September 2005
Cost (gross carrying amount) 1927 364 2,291 1,266 307 1,573
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (766) (257) (1,023) {(504) (217} (721
Ne1 ¢arrying amount 1,161 107 1,268 762 50 852
Year ended 30 September 2006
Opening balance 1,161 107 1,268 762 90 852
Acquisitions through business combinations 26 - 26 26 - 26
Acquisitions - internally developed - 22 22 - 18 18
Qther acquisitions - a9 39 - 34 34
Impairment - (32) (32) - (32) (32)
Amortisation - (32) (32) - (25) (25)
Closing balance 1,187 104 1,2N 788 85 873
Balance at 30 September 2006
Cost (gross carrying amount) 1,953 365 2,318 1,292 304 1,596
Accumnulated amortisation and impairment (766) (261) 1,027 (504) (219) {723}
Net carrying amount 1,187 104 1,29 788 85 873

{1) The amortisation of computer software is included within operating expenses in the income statement.
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Note Z3: Intangible Assets continued

Impairment of computer software

During the year, the Bank recognised an impairment loss of $32 million ($22 million aiter tax) in relation to capitalised computer software. This impairment
loss related to computer software ond systems which were assessed as obsolete or where the timing of realisation of benefits is uncertain and the value of
these benefits is not expected to be fully realised.

Impairment tests for goodwill

Cash generating units

Cash generating units (CGUs) have becn combined at the segment level for the purposes of impairment testing. The carrying amount of goodwili has been
allocated 1o operaling segments as follows:

Gaodwill allocations tc segments Consolidated Bank
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
amount amount amount amount
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000
BankSA 277,337 277,337 238,521 238,521
Retail Bank 460,142 460,142 392,884 392,884
Instituticnal ond Business Banking 180,41 180,411 115,265 115,265
Wealth Management 268,933 247,894 40,908 14,869
Total 1,186,823 1,160,784 787,578 761,539

During the years ended 30 September 2005 and 30 September 2006, the Group determined that there was no impairment of goodwill.

The recoverable amounts for the CGUs have been determined based upon “value in use” calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections
based upon financial budgels approved by senior management covering a three-year period and are based upon key assumpticns in relation to net
interest income and fee income. Cash flows beyond the budgeted period have been extrapolated using a8 GOP growth rate of 3.75% which are reflective
of management expectations of growth in lending volumes and funds under management where applicable. The discount rates spplied to projected cash
flows are between 13% and 18%.

The Group has determined that the “value in use™ calculations are most sensitive to changes in the assumptions identified above. Sensitivity analysis of
these assumptions has been completed to determine whether changes in estimates would materially affect the carrying value of goodwill allocated to each
CGU. This analysis has indicated that no malerial impairment issue is expected to arise from reasonably foreseeable changes in the key assumptions.
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Note 24: Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities

The tax assets have been applied against deferred tax liabilities to the extent they are expected to be realised in the same period, within the same tax

paying entity.
Consolidated Bank
2006 20056 2006 2005
Sm Sm $m Sm
Deferred tax assets
Loans and other receivables 18 - 3 -
Other provisions 56 47 o1 44
Property, plant and equipment 9 15 9 5
Provisions for impairment 91 24 85 22
Sundry creditors and accruals 12 1 10 5
Qther 7 6 5 17
Total deferred income tax assets 193 93 163 93
Deferred tax liabilities
Financial instruments (28) (S) (35) (4
L.oans and other receivables 168 777 141 156
Property, plant and equipment 3 43 28 27
Qther 1 yi 3 28
Total deferred income tax liabilities 172 217 137 207
Net deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) 21 (124) 26 {(174)
Deferred tax recognised directly in equity
Cash flow hedges 6 - 7 -
6 - 7 -
Note 25: Other Assets
Consolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m $m $m $m
Sundry debtors and prepaymenis 643 635 643 586
Unrealised revaluation gain on derivative instruments - 368 - 299
643 1,003 643 885
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Note 26: Deposits and Other Borrowings

Censolidated Bank

2006 2005 2006 2005

$m Sm $m $m

Certificates of deposit 1,110 8,285 11,10 8,285

Term and other deposits 42,284 39,498 42,282 39,138

Secured borrowings 1,226 1378 43 352

Unsecured borrowings 13 14 - _

54,633 49175 53,435 47775

Maturity based on remaining term to maturity at 30 September

Al call 31,219 28,750
Less than 3 months 12,893 10,035
Between 3 months and 12 months 6,848 6,080
Between 1 year and 5 year$ 3,658 3,630
After 5 years 15 680
54,633 49,175

Note 27: Payables Due to Other Financiat Institutions

Maturity based on remaining term to maturity at 30 September
Consolidated

2006 2005
$m $m
At call 266 91
Less than 3 months 19 -
Between 1 year and 5 years 116 -
401 N
Note 28: Liabilities at Fair Value Through the Income Statement
Consolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m $m $m sm
Depositary capital securities at fair value 390 - - -

There was no change in the fair value of the lisbility that is not attributable to changes in benchmark interesi rates. The Group would be contractually
recuired to pay an amount of 37 million iess than the carrying amaunt o holders al matuiity of the instrument.

Subject 1o APRA approval, the Bank has an option to redeem the depositary capital securities on or after 30 June 2007.

Note 29: Provision for Dividends

Consolidated Bank
20086 2005 2006 2005
$m $m $m Sm
Deposilary Capital Securities (DCS) @ - 7 - -
Preferred Resetting Yield Marketable Equity Securities (PRYMES) @ 2 2
Subordinated Adjustable Income Non-refundable Tier 1 Securities (SAINTS) 2 3 2 3
Step-up Preference Shares (SPS) 1 - 1 -
3 12 3 5

{a) Inaccordance with AIFRS, from 1 Octaber 2005, the DCS and PRYMES have been reclassified as debt instruments.

ST.GEORGE BANK FULL FINANCIAL REPORT 2006




38

St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 30: Other Provisions

Consoligated Bank

2006 2005 2006 2005

$m $m $m Sm

Provision for annual leave 51 48 46 44
Provision for long service leave 55 53 52 49
Provision for restructuring cosis ) 16 5 16 3
QOther 3 3 1 2
125 109 1s 100

{3} The Group has established a provision for restructuring relating to staff redundancy costs that arc primarily attributable o downsizing information technology
development teams in line with reduced demand, consolidating interstale loan servicing sites and outsourcing certain administralive funclions.

Note 31: Bonds and Notes

Consolidated

2006 2005
$m $m

Commercial paper by currency of denomination
AUD euro commercial paper 189 204
CAD euro commerciai paper - 11
CHF euro commerciat paper 85 -
EUR euro commercial paper 1,173 1,552
GBP euro commercial paper 999 797
HKD euro commercial paper 359 54
NZD euro commercial paper 22 12
SGD euro commercial paper 55 -
UsSD euro commercial paper 1,423 835
USD US commercial paper 1,779 1,050
5,484 4,515

Medium term debi by currency of densmination
AUD medium term debt 7,094 5,255
CAD medium 1erm debt 182 170
EUR medium term debt 10,550 7,262
GBP madium term debt 1,978 850
HKD medium term dedt 598 499
SGD medium term debt 85 78
USD medium term debt 8,622 7,289
29,109 21,403
Totat Bonds and Notes 34,593 25,918

Maturity analysis based on remaining term to maturity at 30 September

Less than 3 menths 5,244 4,462
Between 3 months and 12 menths 4,278 1,709
Between 1 year and 5 years 10,734 12,167
After 5 years 14,337 7,580
34,593 25918
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Note 32: Loan Capital

39

Consolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m $m $m $m
USD 200m fixed rate notes due 2005 - 27N - 27
USD 150m fixed rate notes due 2007 205 201 205 201
AUD 140m floating rate notes due 2007 1Ly 141 11 141
AUD 160m fixed rate notes due 2007 161 161 161 161
AUD 100m fixed rate notes due 2008 102 101 102 101
AUD 150m floating rate notes due 2008 151 151 151 151
EUR 250m floating rate notes due 2010 425 396 425 396
AUD 225m fixed rate notes due 2011 225 - 225 -
AUD 75m floaling rate notes duc 2011 76 - 76 -
USD 400m fixed rale notes due 2015 546 534 546 534
2,032 1,956 2,032 1,956
Maturity analysis based on remaining term to maturity at 30 September
Between 3 months and 12 menths 507 21
Between 1year and 5 years 979 755
Aiter 5 years 546 930
2,032 1,956
Loan capital ts measured at amortised cost.
Note 33: Bills Payable and Other Liabilities
Consolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m $m $m $m
Bills payable 173 131 173 131
Sundry credilors and accruals 500 478 388 318
Unrealised revaluation loss on derivative instruments - 1,604 - 719
Uncarned Income mortgage insurance premiums - 26 - -
673 2,239 561 1,168
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Note 34: Share Capital
Consolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m Sm $m $m
Fully paid ordinary shares® 3,878 3.454 3,878 3,454
Treasury shares (10) - - -
3,000,000 fully paid PRYMES ® {2005: 3,000,000) - 291 - 29
3,500,000 fully paid SAINTS (2005: 3,500,000} 345 345 345 345
1,500,000 Step-up Preference Shares 148 - 148 -
Perpetual notes - - 34 3
General reserve 15 15 15 15
4,376 4105 4,420 4,136
2006 2005 2006 2005
Sm $m No.ofshares  No. ol shares
Issued and uncalled capital
Borrowers’ shares unpaid - - 3,382 4,088
Depositors’ shares unpaid - - 236,981 256,180
{3) Movements in ordinary share capital
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m $m  No. of shares  No. of shares
Balance at Lhe beginning of the financial year 3,454 3,313 | 520,407,464 513,788,050
Buy back an - | (11,677,657 -
PRYMES conversion @ 307 - | 10,309,170 -
Issue of shares on 17 December 2004 pursuant to
Dividend Reinvestment Plan (ORP) at $24.45 per share - 7¢ - 2,893,267
1ssue of shares an 4 July 2005 pursuani to DRP at $26.02 per share - 65 - 2,496,221
Issue of shares an 14 December 2005 pursuant to ORP at $28.38 127 - 4,482,131 -
Issue of shares on 4 July 2006 pursuant to DRP at $28.53 59 - 2,033,263 -
Issue of shares on exercise of options 9 6 513,522 338,270
Issue of shares pursuant to Employee Reward Share Plan® - - 241,366 288,763
Issue of shares pursuant to Executive Performance Share Plan &l - - 269,314 602,893
Issue costs (1) - - -
Treasury shares {10) - (331,213) -
Balance at the end of the financial year 3,868 3,454 | 526,247,360 520,407,464

{1) In February 2006, the Bank completed its off-market buy back of ordinary shares. A total of 11,677,657 ordinary shares were bought back at a price
0f $25.69, 3 total cost of $300 million. An amount of $6.54 per share of the consideration paid to buy back the shares was charged to share capital
(10tal $76.7 million including associated buy back costs). The difference between the buy back price of $25.69 and the capital component of $6.54 was
deemed tc be a fully franked dividend for tax purposes and charged 1o retained earnings ($223.6 million).

For capital gains tax purposes, the deemed disposat price applicable to shareholders {other than corporate tax entities} pariicipating in the buy back
is $10.59 for each share sold into the buy back.

{2) InFebruary 2006, the Bank's 3,000,000 PRYMES were converted into 30,305,170 ordinary shares al a price of $29.07.

{3} Equity value recognised in equity compensation reserve.
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Note 34: Share Capital continved
{b) Movements in PRYMES

2006 2005 2006 2005

$m $m No.of shares  No. of shares

Balance al the beginning of the financial year 29 291 | 3,000,000 3000000
AIFRS transition adjustment 16 - - -
Conversion into ordinary shares (307) - | {3,000,000) -
Balance at the end of the financial year - 291 - 3,000,000

{c) Step-up Preference Shares (SPS)

The Bank issued 1.5 million SPS a1 $100 each on 20 June 2006 raising $148 million (net of issue costs). The SPS qualify as Tier 1 capital for
capital adequacy purposes. The SPS are classified as equity in accordance with AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation.

Interest is paid quarterly at a floating rate of 70% of the sum cf BBSW plus a margin of 1.10%. The Bank may canvert the SPS into ordinary
shares, redeem, buy back or cancel the SPS for their face value, or undertake o combination of these options on or after 20 August 2016, subjct

to APRA approval.

Note 35: Reserves

Consolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m $m Sm $m
Depositors’ and borrowers’ redemption reserve
Opening balance 2 2 2 2
Add nel transfers from retained profits - - - -
Closing balance 2 2 2 2
Asset revaluation and realisation reserve
QOpening balance - 83 - 10
AIFRS transition adjustments - (83) - {(110)
Restated opening balance - - - -
Closing balance - - - -
Foreign currency translation reserve
Opening balance 4 7 - -
Currency translation differences (5) 2 - -
Closing balance \)] 4 - -
Cash flow hedge reserve
Opening balance - - - -
AIFRS transition adjustments ) (19) - {17) -
Restated opening balance 19) - (17} -
Gains on cash flow hedging (net of tax):
Recognised in equity 20 - 17 -
Transferred to income statement (M - {1 -
Closing balance - - 1) -

{1} Upon AIFRS transition, the deemed cost election was adopled, resulting in the transier of the opening balance to retained earnings.

{2) Initial recognition of the cash flow hedge reserve (net of tax} upon AIFRS transition on 1 October 2005.
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Note 35: Reserves continued

Consolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m $m $m $m

Equity compensation reserve
Opening balance 17 - 16
AIFRS transition adjustments & - 4 - 4
Restated opening balance 17 4 16 4
Expense for the year 12 13 H 12
Clesing balance 9 17 7 16
Available for sale reserve
Opening balance - - - -
AIFRS transition adjustments 5 - - -
Restated opening balance 5 - - -
Losses on available for sale investments {net of tax):

Recognised in equity )] - - -
Closing balance ' 4 - - -
General reserve for credit losses
Opening balance - - - -
AIFRS transition adjustments ' 68 - 79 -
Restated opening balance 68 - 79 -
Current period movement appropriated from retained profits 7 49 - 62 -
Closing batance 17 - 141 -
Total reserves 151 23 169 18
Shareholders’ equity attributable to members of the Bank 5,325 5,034 5,512 5.080
Shareholders’ equity attributable to minority interests 18 353 - -
Total shareholders’ equity 5,343 5,387 5,512 5,080

(3} Initial recognitien of equity compensation reserve on 1 Ociober 2004,
(4) 1nitial recognition of the availabfe for sale reserve {net of 1ax} on 1 October 2005,

(5) The after tax equivalent of the "eligible” companent of the collective provision and the batance of the general reserve for credit losses represent 0.5% of risk
welghted assets.

(6) Initial recognition of a general reserve for credit losses on 1 Gctober 2005,

(7) The current year movement includes a $42 million adjustment 1o satisfy APRA’s General Reserve for credit losses requirements.
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Note 36: Retained Profits

Consolidated Bank

2006 2005 2006 2005

$m Sm $m Sm

Opening balance 906 619 926 619
AIFRS transition adjustments {(Note 52) (131) 38 z7) 77
Operating profit attributable to members of the Bank 1,068 978 1,182 932
Total available for appropriation 1,843 1,635 1,981 1,628
Transfer to gencral reserve for credit losses (49) - (62) -
Buy back (224) - (224) -
Interim dividend - cash component (329) (282) (329} (282}
Interim dividend - dividend reinvestment plan (59) {65) (59) {65)
Final dividend - cash component (237 (24%9) (237) {249)
Final dividend - dividend rcinvestment plan {127) {70) (1z7) (70)
Preference share dividends (20) (63) (20) (34)
Closing balance 798 906 923 926

Note 37: Equity Attributable to Minority Interests

Consolidated

2006 2005
$m Fin
Depositary Capital Sceurities W - 334
Porpetual netes @ 34 31
Share capital 2 2
Accumulazed losses ¥ {18) (4)
18 353
Movements in minority interests
(1) Depositary Capital Securities
Cpening balance KX 2] 334
Reclassificd to lisbilities at fair value through the income statement on AIFRS transition (334) -
Closing balance - 334
(2} Perpetual notes
Opening balance 31 29
Notes issued during the year 3 2
Closing balance 34 31
The perpetuai notes have been issued to Foodstuffs 35 part of the Bank's New Zealand supermarket venture.
(3} Accumulated losses
Opening balance 14 6
Minority share of loss for the year 4 8
Closing balance 18 14

The accumulated losses relate primarily to the Bank's New Zealand Supermarket banking operations.
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Note 38: Remuneration of Auditor

Details of the amounts paid to the auditor of the Bank, XPMG and its related practices, for audit and non-audit related services provided during the year

are set out below.

Consclidated Bank
2006 7005 2006 2005
$°000 $°000 $'000 3000
Audit services
Amounts paid, or due and payable to the auditor of the Bank (KPMG) for:
Audit and review services of consolidated financial statements 1,410 1,397 1,091 a1
Audit and review of managed funds aciivities 1,700 1,255 740 367
Audit services in accordance with regulatory requirements ) 1,568 1,033 1,540 589
Other assurance services ™ 338 441 387 433
5,066 4120 3,758 2703
Other services
Taxation compliance services in respect of managed funds 138 214 116 188
Taxation and compliance services in respect of consolidated entities 465 1,024 3n 878
Other © 269 66 269 66
872 1,304 776 1,132
Total remuneration 5,938 5,424 4,534 3,835

Financial Services Licences.

{c) Primarily relates to payment for technical advice.

services and the amount of fees paid are appropriate in terms of maintaining auditor independence.

Note 39: Remuneration of Executives and Directors
A1 - Key Management Personnel (KMP) and Other Senior Executives

Directors include the Bank's Managing Director and Non-Executive Directors of the Bank,

highesl paid executives of the Group for the 30 September 2006 financial year.

AZ - Executive Remuneration Strategy

to achieving sustained improvements in the Group’s performance is through its pecple,
The key orinciples of the Group's Executive Remuneration Strategy are:

« alignment with the interests of and creation of value for sharcholders;

« afocus on short, medium and long term performance outcomes; and
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This note covers the remuneration arrangements for Directors, Group Executives and other senior exccutives.

{b} Includcs assurance services in respect of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards transition services.

Other senior execulives are those executives who are participants of the Group's Medium Term Incentive Plan (MTIP).

« the application of rigorous individual and corporate performance measures including financial and non-financial measures:

« the delivery of competitive performance based rewards designed to altract, motivate, reward and retain key executives.

{a) Includes prudential supervision revicws for APRA, Basel Il application reviews, audits of sceurilisation trusts, audit of workers' compensation and Auystralian

The amounts paid for ather services are in accordance with 51.George's sudit independence poticy as cutiined in the Corparate Governance section of
the Concise Annual Report. The Board Audit Committee has considered the other services provided by KPMG and is satisficd that the nature of the

Group Exceutives are those exccutives with the greatest autherity for managing ond setting the sirategic direction of the Group and include the five

The Board Nomination and Remuneration Committee (*the Commitlee”} recognises that the Group operates in a competitive environmeni where the key
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Note 39: Remuneration of Executives
and Directors continued

A3 - Executive Remuneration Structure
S1.George operates a Total Reward Opportunity
(TRO) structure for executives. The TRO
consists of two components:

« base (fixed) remuncration; and

= atrisk remuneration (including short,
medium and leng term incentives).

The Commiltee reviews and recommends to
the Board the TRO for the Managing Qirgclor
and Group Execulives annually. The Group
Executives review and in turn recommend to
the Managing Director the TRO for other senior
executives annually.

The TRO lor each executive is sct having
regard 1o independent advice from external
consultants, Egan Associates, on compelitive
market practice for that position. When
reviewing the TRQ, each component is
reviewed with a view to ensuring thal the right
halance is achieved between fixed and at risk
remuneration.

The executive’s TRO Is targeled ai the

751h percentile of comparable positions, and
wilt only be achieved if the individual executive’s
and the Group's performance targets are met,

The Group has endorscd a move to a greater
component of at risk remuneration for
executives, where il is competitive within the
markei 1o do so. The Commitlee has sel targets
for the praportion of at risk remuneration Lo

be achieved as a proportion of TRO. These
indicative targets and prevailing market data for
the position may vary depending upon the level
and the nature of the cxecutive's position.

Base (fixed) remuneration

Base remuneration provides fixed remuneration
on a lotal cost-to-company basis, which
includes any fringe benefits tax charges relating
to employee benefits and also employer
superannuation contributions. The amount of
base remuneration is ¢stablished with reference
to independent market research, considering the
scope and nature of the role and the executive's
individuat performance and experience.

There are no guaranieed increases to base
remuneration in any of the service agreements
of the Managing Director, Group Executives or
ather senior executives.

The base remuneration of ihe Managing
Director and Group Executives for the

30 Seplember 2006 and 30 September 2005
years is disclosed in sections A5 and A7 of this
note. RBase remuneration is generzlly reviewed
annually and applics for the period  October 1o
30 Septemnber each year.

At risk remuneration
Al risk remuneration comprises Short, Medium
and Long Term incentives.

Short Term Incentive (STI)
Short term incentives may be delivered in
two forms:

«  Annual (STIA) - An annual cash incentive
opportunity that is subject to the
achigvement of targets (Key Performance
Indicators {KPP1s)) set at the beginning of
the financial year. The STIA can be paid in
cash, or salary sacrificed and received as
shares or as a supgrannuation contribution
3t the individual's election.

» Deferred (STID) - A deferred incentive
opporiunity that is also an outcome of
the KPI achicvements, and is subject 1o
tenure based restrictions. The STID may
be satisfied (depending on the level of
the participant) by the granting of awards
under the Performance Plan or paid as
cash, or salary sacrificed and received as
shares or as a superannuation contribution
at the individual’s election.

Medium Term Incentive (MT1)

MTIs arc delivered by the granting of an
award under the Performance Plan. The award
represents a right to an ordinary share in the
Bank that is restricted and at risk subject 1o
the achievement of applicable performance
canditions and tenuse.

Long Term Incentive {LT1)

LTls are delivered by the granting of options
under the Option Ptan and awards under the
Perfarmance Plan. The oplions or awards
represent @ right to ordinary shares in the
Bank, subject to the achievement of applicable
tenure and performance conditions. In the case
of options, the cxercise price must be paid by
the holder tc exercise the option. The exercise
price represents the markel value of the Bank's
ordinary shares at the grant date. The market
value represents the volume weighted average
price {(VWAP) traded during the five trading
days prior 1o and including the grant dale,
cateutated in accardance with the Performance
and Opticn Plan rules.

Managing Director’s Remuneration

The service agreement of the Managing
Director, Mrs G P Kelly, was amended on

17 November 2004 from a five-year fixed torm
agreement to an agreement that will continue
indefinitely until terminated in accordance
with its notice periods specified in point

10 below. The Managing Director commenced
employment on 14 January 2002.

Each year, the Commitlee reviews and
recommends to the Board the TRO and KPls
in the form of a Balanced Scorecard to apply
to the Managing Cirector for the coming year
and deciermings the STI to be awarded based
on performance achigvernents over the past
financial year.

The remuneration of the Bank’s Managing
Direclor comprises base remunearation and
at risk remuneraticn. At risk remuneration
includes both short and long term incentives.

The at risk remuneration of the Managing
Director forms a substantial part of the TRO
for that positfon and is contingent cn the
achigvement of Group and individual goals set
by the Board, including Financial, Customer,
People, Risk and Compliance and Strategy
outcomes. The Managing Director does not
participate in the Commitiee's deliberations on
her own remuneration.

The principal features of the remuneration
arrangements for the Bank's Managing Director
for the year ended 30 September 2006 arg as
follows:

(1)

base annual remuneration of $1,770,000
and an STl oppertunity of up to 120% of
base annual remuneration that is subject 1o
the achievement of KPIs (as determined by
the Board of Directors);

where the STl outcome exceeds 10G% of
the base annual rermuneration in the Bank's
30 September 2006, 30 September 2007
or 30 Seplember 2008 financial years,

the Bank will satisfy this component
through the granting of awards under the
Perfoermance Plan. Shares 1o satisfy 1his
grant arc purchased on markel, held in
trust and restricted for a period of threg
years from the grant date {sharenholders
having approved at the 2005 Annual
Genera! Meeting the use of up to 100,000
ordinary shares over the three year

pericd for this purpose). The Managing
Director will be entitled to receive dividend
distribution payments following the
Board's determination on awards granted.
The number of awards to be granted will
be determined using the VWAP traded
during the five trading days prior to and
including the commencement of the
remuneration year, i.e. 1 October 2005
for the 2005/06 financial year. The grant
date will be 1 October each year, being
the commencement of the performance
pericd, though the Managing Director must
remain an employee of the Bank for the
duration of the three year period in order
for a beneficial interest in the shares to be
transferred to the Managing Director.
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The awards will be forfeited if the
Managing Director leaves her employment
with the Bank before the end of the three
year period and the dividend payments
will cease. In circumstances where the
Board exercises its discretion to waive
this condition, for exarmple, redundancy,
retirement or death, the shares held on
trust will be transferred 1o her at the end of
the relevant three year period or earlier at
the Board's discretion;

—
“

payment of lermination benefits - there

is no specific entitlement to receive a
payment if the Bank is acquired, except
for a bona fide takeover where the options
and awards become exercisable {refer
point (4)), or where there is a material
diminution in the Managing Director’s role
or responsibilities {refer point {8)). STI
shares held in trust may be transferred

10 the Managing Director at the Board's
discretion (refer point {2));

{4

—

1,000,000 options were granted on

12 December 2001, subject to performance
conditions and vest over 4.5 years

from the grant date. The first tranche

of 250,000 options vested and were
exercised on 23 November 2004. The
second tranche of 250,000 options vested
and were exercised on 7 November 2005.
The third tranche of 500,000 options
vested and werg exercisable from

12 June 2006. Cn 1 Qctober 2004,
500,000 optiens and 57,600 awards were
granted, subject 1o performance conditions
as outlined in section A8, The first

tranche of 125,000 options and 14,400
awards vested and were exercisable from
30 Scptember 2006. The second tranche
of 125,000 options and 14,400 awards

will be assessed on 30 September 2007
and the final tranche of 250,000 options
and 28,800 awards will be assessed on

30 September 2C08. These options and
awards are exercisable at the discration of
the Board if a bona fide takeover bid for
the Bank becomes unconditional;

—~
£

should the Managing Cirector terminate
the service agreement (unless she does

50 because there has been a material
diminution in her role and responsibilities),
she will only receive statutory entitlements;

6

—

should the Bank terminate the service
agreement because of a breach by
the Managing Director, only stalutory
enlitlements will be payable;
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(7) should the Bank terminate the service
agreement for reasons other than & breach
by the Managing Director, an amount
equal to the base annual remuneration
then applying is payable by the Bank;

—
=]

should the Managing Director terminate
the contract because there has heen

a material diminution in her role and
responsibilities, an amount equal 1o
wice her base annual remuneration then
applying will be payable by the Bank as
well as statutory entitlements;

—_
X

in situgtions (7) and (8), the Bank must
also pay the Managing Directer an amount
as approved by the Board 1o reflect both
the Managing Director's performance
and that of the Bank against the KPls
established by the Board for paying her
STL In addition, should situaticn (7} o
(8) oceur, then within 12 months of that
occurrence, the Managing Director will
also be entitled to exercise some or all of
those awards and options referred (o in
point (4} above, subject 1o satisfaction of
relevant performance conditions relating
to Earnings Per Share (EPS) and/or Total
Shareholder Return (TSR) as applicable;

(10)the notice periods for termination without
cause of the agreement relating to the
Managing Director’s employment are:

(3) by the Board - 12 months; and
{b) by the Managing Director - six months.

Group Executives’ At Risk Remuneration
The remuneration of the Group Executives
comprises base remuneration and at risk
rermuncration. At risk remuneration includes
both short and long term ingentives.

The Long Term Incentive (LT1) is delivered
under the Executive Performance Share Plan
{Performance Plan) and Executive Option
Plan (Option Plan).

$TIA and STID

Each year, the Managing Director sets the
KPls in the form of a Balanced Scorecard for
the Group Executives that the Commitiee
recommends for approval by the Board.

The KPIs generally include measures relating
to the Group, the Division and the individual,
and include Financial, Customer, People, Risk
and Compliance and Strategy outcomes. The
KPls have been chosen because they directly
align the individual's rewards to the key
performance drivers of the Group that are set
at the beginning of the financial year. In ali
cases, these KPIs are transparent, challenging,
and relevant to the Group's strategy and
performance.

At the end of the financial year, the Committze
assesses the actual performance of the
Group, the Division and the individual against
the KPIs set al the beginning of the financial
year, Based on the cutcome, the Committee
then recommends the STIA and STID to be
paid to the Group Executives for approval by
the Board. This method of assessment was
chosen as it provides the Commitiee with an
objeciive assessment of the Group Executives’
nerformance.

Once the Board has approved the STIA

and STID amounts, the STIA is paid to the
participant as cash or salary sacrificed into
superannuation or shares (at 1he individual's
election). The STID is satisfied through the
granting of an award under the Performance
Plan. Shares to satisfy this grant are purchased
on market, held in trust and restricted from
sale for a period of three years from the grant
date. The Group Executive will be entitled

to receive dividend distribution payments
following the Board's determination, The grant
date for the STID is 1 October each year, being
the commencement of the STID performance
period, though the Group Execulive must
remain an employee of the Bank for the
duration of the three year period in order

for 1he beneficial interest in the shares to be
transferred to the Group Executive. The STID
will be forfeited if the Group Execulive leaves
the Bank betare the end of the three year
vesting period and the dividend distribution
payment will cease. In circumstances where
the Board exercises its discretion Lo waive this
condition, for example, redundancy, retirement
or death, the shares held on trust will be
transferred at the end of the relevant threg year
period or earlier at the Board's discretion.

LTt

LTls are provided by participation in the
Performance and Option Plans, both approved
by Shareholders on 3 February 1993.

LTl allocations are subject to tenure and
performance hurdles established by the
Comimittee and approved by the Board from
time to time.

The existing perfermance conditions ore based
on the achievement of EPS and TSR outcomes
over the measurement period, and provide for
substantial growth in St.George's EPS as well as
an appropriate market focused TSR hurdle.

An overview of the performance conditions for
each grant of awards and options impacting
remureration in the 2006 and 2005 years are
outlined in section A8,
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Other Senior Executives - At Risk Reruneration
Other senior execulives’ remuneration
comprises base and at risk remuneration.

Al risk remuneration includes both Short and
Medium Term Incentives (MT1}. The MT1is
delivered under the Performance Plan.

Each year, participants have KPls established
in the form of 2 Balanced Scorecard. The KPls
include measures relating to St.George and
the individual and include Financial, Customer,
Peoplc, Risk and Compliance and Strategy
outcomes.

The performance against Lhe Balanced
Scorecard is used to determine both the
quantum of the STIA and STID to be paid and
the number of awards that will be granted to
the exceutive under the MTL. The grant date for
purposes of establishing the five day VWAP of
St.George shares awarded under the MTlis 1
Octeber each year, being the commencement
of the performance period that the MTI is being
assessed againsl.

Individual performance autcomes against
Balanced Scorecard KPIs are assessed at
the end of the financial year and payment
recommendations submitted to the Managing
Director for approval. Once the Managing
Director has approved individual STIA and
STID puicomes, the STIA is paid to the
participant as cash or salary sacrificed into
superannuation or shares at the individual's
clection. The STID will only be paid if the
executive remains employed one year from
the end of the performance period.

The MTI companent of the incentive plan is
subject Lo the same performance measures
outlined in the LTI, being EPS and TSR. The
exercise conditions provide for substantial
growth in S1.George’s EPS as well as market
based comparative TSR performance.

A4 - Service Agreements - Group Executives
The Bank has entered into service agreements
with each Group Executive that provide for
the paymeant of benefits where the service
agreement is terminated by the Bank or the
Group Executive. The service agreements

are not fixed term and generally provide for
the following:

(1) where the Bank terminates the service
agreement other than for misconduct, then
a payment of between 12 and 15 months
base remuneration is payable by the Bank
depending upon the conditions of each
individual service agreement as well as
statutory entitlements;

{2) where the Group Executive terminates the
service agreement because of a material
diminution in his/her role or responsibility,
then in addition to point (1) a further
amount will be payable by the Bank as
detailed below:

(a) seven weeks base remuneration in
respect of the first year of the Group
Executive's service or pari thereof;

(b) four weeks base remuneration for each
addilional year’s service between
wo-10 years;

{c) three weeks base remuneration for
each additional year’s service between
11-16 years;

(d) two weeks base remuneration for each
additional year's service between
17-25 years; and

(e} an additional one week's base
remuneration for each year of service
where the executive is age 45 years
or more;

provided any such payment does not
exceed the maximum of 104 weeks of base
remuneration;

—
o)
=

where the Group Executive is terminated
immediately and without natice for
misconduct, statutory entitlements only
are payable.

Group Executives whe exit the Bank during

a given performance year (1 October to

30 September) will generally not receive an
STIA or STID payment for that year except in
the circumstances of redundancy, retirement
or death. In those circumstances a pro-rata
payment may be made based upon the {ength
of service during the performance year and
their performance.

LTI grants are generally forfeited where the
Group Executive resigns or is dismissed. In
circurnstances of redundancy, retirernent or
death, the Group Executive, or their estate,
may be entitled to exercise some or all of the
awards and options that have been granted,
subject to satisfaction of relevant performance
conditions relating 1o EPS and/or TSR as
applicable.

The name, pesition held, employment commencement date and resignation date (where applicable} of the Bank’s Group Executives are as follows:

Name Position Employment Commencement Date
Current

G Bartlett Group Executive - Institutional and Business Banking 8 mMarch 1982

R Chapman Managing Director BankSA 1July 2002

P Clare Group Executive - Sirategy 25 February 2002
P Fegan Group Executive - Wealth Management and Retail Financial Services 22 July 2002

D Gall Group Executive - Retail Business 17 Aprit 1989

] Loebenstein Group Executive - information Technology 20 February 1995
S McKerihan Chief Financial Officer 4 November 1985
B Wright Group Executive - Hurnan Resources 3 July 2000
Former

A Thorburn Group Executive - Personal Customers (resigned 1 December 2004) 24 lune 2002
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A5 - Remuneration of Group Executives

Details of the nature and amount of each major element of remuneration for $t.George’s Group Executives are as follows:

«———Short term benefits ————

Long term
benefits

Post
employment
benctits

Share based payments

Base

Short term

Non monetary

Long service

Superannuation

remuneration incentive benefis leave contributions Options Shares

$'000 (" (®) © 0) e ) (G 1) Tolal
2006
G Bartlett ™V 706 650 10 49 12 102 253 1,782
R Chapman 503 450 - 15 12 81 139 1,200
P Clare 631 450 - 13 12 134 17 1,357
P Fegan 733 743 - 14 12 106 333 1,941
D Gall® 626 450 2 35 12 93 123 1,341
J Loebenstein 626 400 - 19 12 55 179 1,291
S McKerihan ® ¢ 830 550 - 46 12 89 288 1,815
B Wright 571 375 - 13 12 107 82 1,160

5,226 4,068 12 204 9 767 1514 11,887
2005
G Bartlett © 597 £00 9 28 12 106 137 1,489
R Chapman 468 400 - 16 12 78 63 1,037
P Clare 501 400 - 17 17 114 58 1,096
P Fegan ©© 637 650 - 13 12 97 186 1,595
D Gall 321 305 3 53 7 23 59 771
| Loebenstein ™ 536 360 - 18 12 45 125 1,096
S McKerihan 726 475 - 35 12 70 194 1,512
B Wright 524 325 - 12 12 86 45 1,004

4,310 3,515 12 186 91 519 867 9,600
A Thorburn
{resigned 1 December 2004) 131 - - - 2 - - 133

{A} Base remuneration comprises cash salary, available salary package options grossed-up by related fringe benefits tax where applicable and

annual leave expense.

{(B) The Short Term Cash Incentive relates to the Group Executive's performance in the nominated financial year.

{C) Includes the benefit relating to an interest free loan provided to Mr G Bartlett and Mr D Gall. Excludes insurance premiums paid in respect of officers’
liability insurance conlracts. The premium paid has not been allocated to individual officers covered by the insurance policy as, based on all available
information, the Directors consider that no reasanable basis for such allocation gxists.

D

Represents the long service leave expense recognised during the financial year.

(E) Includes applicable Superannuation Guarantee Charge. For Group Execulives with defined benefit fund entitlements, includes the allocation of Lhe expense
for the year determined in accordance with AASB 119 Employee Benefits. Mr G Bartlctt and Mr 5 McKerihan are members of the defined benefit section

of the Bank's defincd contribution superannuation plan. Their contributions are presently funding their entitlements under this Plan.
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(F) The fair value of options is calculated al the grant date using the Binomial method. The number of optiens used 1o determine share based remuneration value
is adjusted for estimated forfeiture and then further adjusted for actual forfeiture aver the vesting period. The resultant expense is allocated evenly to each
reporting period over the period fram the grant date to the prescribed exercise date. The following factors were used in determining the fair value of options cn
the grant date:

Grant dote Date first Fair value Exercise  Price of shares Estimated Risk-free Dividend Expected

cxercisable per option price  on grant date volatility interest rate yield life (ycars)

$ $ % Yo %

1-0ct1-2003 30-Sep-2006 210 20.40 20.32 17.20 492 4.28 3.5
1-0c1-2003 30-Sep-2007 2.12 20.40 20.32 17.20 498 4,28 45
1-Cct-2004 30-Sep-2006 192 21.70 22.01 15.00 5.25 5.70 2.5
1-Oct-2004 30-Sep-2007 2.07 21.70 22.01 15.00 5.25 570 3.5
1-0ct-2004 30-Sep-2008 2.21 21.70 22.01 15.00 5.25 570 45
1-Mar-2005 30-Sep-2006 214 24.56 24.67 15.00 5.50 5.30 2.0
1-Mar-2005 30-Sep-2007 2.44 24.55 24.67 15.00 5.50 5.30 3.0
1-Mar-2005 30-5ep-2008 2.61 24.56 24.67 15.00 5.50 5.30 4.0
1-0ct-2005 30-Sep-2007 2.34 28.01 27.89 14.50 5.28 5.03 25
1-0Oct-2005 30-5ep-2008 2.63 28.01 27.89 14.50 530 5.03 35
1-0ct-2005 30-5ep-2009 2.87 28.01 27.89 14.50 5.32 5.03 4.5

In accordance with the election available under AASB Z Share Based Payments, only opticns granted on or after 7 November 2002 that vested on cr after
1January 2005 have been included in remuneration.

(G) The fair value of awards is determined as follows:
(1) Awards granted on 1 October 2003
- Awards with non-market related performance condition components have their fair value determined using the share price on the grant date.
- Awards with market related performance condition components have their fair value determined using the Binomial method at the grant date.
(2) Awards granted after 1 October 2003
- These awards require efther an EPS or TSR performance hurdle 1o be satisfied. The fair value is determined using the share price at the grant date.
The fair valugc is discounted for the present value of dividends not received during ihe vesting period.
The number of shares used to determine share based remuneratien is adjusted for estimated forfeiture at the grant date and then further adjusied over the
vesting period for actual forfeiture. The resultant expense is allocated evenly to each reporting period over the period from the grant date to the prescribed
exercise date.
In accordance with the election available under AASB 2 Share Based Payments, only awards granted on or after 7 November 2002 that vested on or after
1}anuary 2005 have been included in remuneration.
{(H) Includes the fair value of shares allotted under the Employee Reward Share Plan (Reward Plan) during the year. The Reward Plan provides eligible employees

with up 10 $1,000 of ordinary shares per annum a1 no cost.
{1} Five highest paid officers of the Bank.

In the year ended 30 September 2006, Group Executives became entitled 1o receive between 100% and 113% of their STIA opportunity and between
100% and 113% of their STID opportunity for that year (30 September 2005: entitlement was between 100% and 115% of the STIA opportunity for
those Group Executives who had not departed 1he Bank).

A6 - Non-Executive Directors’ Remuneration Policy

The Bank’s Constitution provides that the Directors shail be paid an aggregate remuneration as is determined by shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting. The fees are determined having regard to advice from external consultants, Egan Associates, on competitive market practice.
The amount so determined is divided between the Directors at their discretion. The last determination made was at the Annual General Meeting
held on 16 December 2005, where shareholders approved an aggregate amount to not exceed $2,500,000 per annum, such sum being inclusive
of all statutory superannuation guarantee contributions that the Bank makes on behalf of Birectors.

The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors is a total package, which comprises fees, superannuation, prescribed benefits and cost of shares acquired
under the Non-Executive Oirectors’ Share Purchase Plan.

Until December 2003, the Bark's Constitution made prevision for the maximum retirement allowance that the Board may approve for a Director

by reference 16 the maximum amount permitted to be paid under the Corperations Act 2001. However, at the Annual General Meeting held on

19 December 2003, shareholders approved an amendment to the Consiitution such that no retirement benefits will be payable 10 any Non-Executive
Directors appointed after 30 September 2003 and the entitlements of each Non-Exccutive Director in office al 30 September 2003 wilf not increase from
that smount accrued to the Non-Executive Director on 30 September 2003.
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A7 - Remuneration of Executive and Non-Executive Directors
Details of the naiure and amount of each major element of remuneration for St.George's Directors are as foliows:

Post
Long terin employment
Short term benefits (D) Benefits oenefits Share based payments
Basc fee/ Short term Long service  Superannuation Retirement
remuneration incentive leave  contributions Options Shares provisicn
$000 (A (B) ) (E) (3] {G) (H) Total [}
2006
Executive Director
G P Kelly (MD and CEO} 1,729 1,770 37 12 286 497 4,331 -
Non-Exéecutive Directors
J M Thame {Chairman}) 503 - - 12 - - 515 348
] 5 Curtis 224 - - 12 - - 236 340
T) Davis 195 - - 12 - - 207 -
RAF England 216 - - 12 - - 228 -
P D R Isherwood 229 - - 12 - - 241 342
L B Nicholls 213 - - 12 - - 225 145
G ) Reaney 223 - - 12 - - 235 367
L F Bieasel (retired) 46 - - 3 - - 49 -
1,849 - - 87 - - 1,936 1,542
2005
Executive Director
G P Kelly (MD and CEOQ} 1,527 1,725 3 12 286 386 3967 -
Non-Executive Directors
| M Thame {Chairman) 443 - - 4 - - 457 348
S Curtis 200 - - 14 - - 214 340
T) Davis 135 - - 12 - - 147 -
R AF England 193 - - 14 - - 207 -
P D R Isherwood 207 - - 14 - - 221 342
L B Nicholls 195 - - 14 - - 209 145
G| Reaney 214 - - 14 - - 228 367
L F Bleasel 198 - - 14 - - 212 346
F | Conroy {retired) 102 - - 3 - - 105 -
1,887 - - 13 - - 2,000 1,888

MD and CEO: Managing Director & Chief Executive Cificer.

(A} Base fees for Non-Exccutive Dircctors are inclusive of the cost of shares scquired under the Non-Executive Directors’ Share Purchase Plan. During the ycar,
13,299 shares were acquired and allocated to four Directors under this plan. Brokerage of 3778 was paid by the Bank in acquiring these shares.

(B) Base remuneration for Mrs G P Kelly comprises cash salary, available salary package options grossed-up by related fringe benefits tax, where applicable, and
annual leave expense.

{C) The shart term incentive relates to Mrs G P Kelly's performance in the 30 September 2006 year. Mrs Kelly's STI opportunity for the 30 September 2006 year
was 120% of her base remuneration. Based on the Group's and Mrs Kelly's performance during the year, Mrs Kelly became entitled 1o receive 100% of her
STt opportunity. As approved by shareholders at the Bank's 2005 Annual General Meeting. any ST payable to Mrs Kelly which exceeds 100% of her base
remuneration will be granted to Mrs Kelly as an award with shares Lo salisfy this grant held in trust for a period of three years from the effective grant date of
10ctober 2005. Subject to remaining emplayed by the Bank, the shares will be transferred 1o Mrs Kelly three years from the grant date.
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(D) Remuneration in respect of short term benefits excludes insurance premiums paid by the Group in respect of Directors’ and officers' lishility insurance
contracts. These contracts cover both current and former Directors and officers. Under the terms of the insurance policy, the Group is prohibited from
disclosing the total premium paid. The premium has not been allocated to individuals covered by the insurance policy 83, based on all available information,
the Directors consider that ne reasonable basis for such aliocation exists.

(E) Represents the long service leave expense recogniscd during the financial year.
{F) Includes superannuation guarantee charge applicable 1o Directors under 70 years of age.
G

In the case of the Managing Director, the fair value of options is calculated at the grant date using the Binomial method. The number of options used lo
determine share based remuneration is adjusted for estimated forfeiture and then iurther adjusted for actual forfeiture over the vesling period. The resultant
expense is sllocated evenly to cach reporting period over the period from the grant date to the prescribed exercise date. The following factors were used in
determining the fair value of aptions on the grant date:

Date first Fair value Exercise  Price of shares Estimated Risk-free Dividend Expected
Grani date exercisable per oplion $ price $ ongrant date $ volatility %  interest rate % yield % lite {years)
1-0ct-2004 30-Sep-2006 1.92 21.70 220 15.0 5.25 5.70 2.5
1-0ct-2004 30-Sep-2007 2.07 2170 22,01 15.0 525 5.70 3.5
1-Oct-2004 30-Sep-2008 .21 21.70 22.01 15.0 5.25 5.70 4.5

(H) In the case of the Managing Direclor, the fair value of awards, comprising rights over unissued shares granted under the Periermance Plan, has been
determined using the share price of the Bank's ordinary shares on the grant date. The number of shares vsed 1o determine share based remuneration is
adjusted for estimated forfeiture at the grant date and then further adjusled over the vesting period for aciual forfciture. To determine the amount disclosed
as remuneration in each year, the fair value is allocated evenly to each reporting period over the period from the grant date 1o the prescribed exercise date.

(1} Atthe Bank's Annual General Mceting on 19 December 2003, shareholders approved o resolution that Nen-Exccutive Directors sppointed after
30 September 2003 would not be cntitled to retirement benelits. Payment of retirement benefits that have already been accrucd will not exceed the
entitlement at 30 September 2003.

The value of options included in remuneration as a percentage of total remuneration for Mrs G P Kelly in the 2006 year is 6.6% (2005: 7.2%).
The proportion of total remuneraticn at risk for Mrs G P Kelly in the 2006 year was 58.9% (2005: 60.4%).

A8 - Performance Conditions for Options and Awards

1. Managing Director - options and awards granted on 1 October 2004

500,000 options were granted to the Managing Director on 1 Octaber 2004, which vest in three tranches, comprising two tranches of 125,000 options
and one tranche of 250,000 options. 57,600 awards were granted to the Managing Director on 1 October 2004, which vest in two tranches of

14,400 awards and one tranche of 28,800 awards.

Subject 1o tenure, cach tranche will fully vest if;

= the Group achieves greater than or equal to 10 percent compeund growth in EPS over the financial years from the grant date until the first prescribed
exercise date or, if not achieved at that date, inclusive of each subsequent financial year until the final prescribed exercise date of the relevant
ranche; of

» TSR for the Group meets or exceeds the 75th percentile of the S&P ASX 50 Accumulation Index over the period fram the grant date until the first
prescribed exercise date or, if not achieved st that date, on the last trading day of any subsequent month until the final prescribed exercise date of the
relevant tranche.

If neither of the above outcomes are achieved and:

« TSR for the Group meets or exceeds the S&P ASX 50 Accumulation Index either at the first prescribed exercise date or on the last trading day of any
subsequent month until the fina! prescribed exercise date of the relevant tranche, then half of that tranche will vest; or

« 10 percent growth in EPS is achieved in the financial year pricr to the prescribed exercise date then that tranche will fully vest.
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2. Group Executives - options and awards
granted on 1 October 2003

EPS entitlement

Subject to tenure, half of the relevant tranche’s

options and awards will vest if the following

EPS conditions are satisfied:

Half of trenche 1
EPS for the year ended 30 September 2005
must exceed:

(a) the EPS for the year ended 30 September
2004 by more than 10 percent; or

(b} that figure which EPS would have reached
had EPS for the year ended 30 September
2003 grown at an annual rate of
10 percent compounded annually.

If the half of tranche 1 does not vest it is carried
forward and retested with tranche 2.

Haolf of tranche 2
EPS for the year ended 30 September 2006
must exceed:

(a) the EPS for the year ended 30 September
2005 by more than 10 pereent; or

(b) that ligure which EPS would have reached
had EPS far the year ended 30 September
2003 grown at an annual rate of
10 percent compounded annually.

If the tranche 1 and tranche 2 halves have not
vested they are carried forward and retested
with tranche 3.

Holf of tranche 3
EPS for the year ended 30 September 2007
must exceed:

(3} the EPS for the year ended 30 September
2006 by mare than 10 percent; or

(b) that figure which EPS would have reached
had EPS for the year ended 30 September
2003 grown at an annual rate of
10 percent compounded annually.

Final test

If the tranche 1, 2 and 3 halves remain unvesied

they will vest where:

EPS for the year ended 30 September 2008
either:

(a) exceeds EPS for the year ended
30 September 2007 by more than
10 percent; or

(b) at least equals the figure EPS would have
reached had EPS for the year ended
30 September 2003 grown at an annual
rate of 10 percent compounded annuatly.
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TSR entitlement

Subject to tenure, the remaining 50% of the
Tranche 1, 2 and 3 options and awards will
vest if the Group's TSR is equal to or exceeds
the S&P ASX S0 Accumulation Index over

the period from the grant date until the first
prescribed exercise date if not achieved at
that date, on any subsequent month uniil the
final prescribed exercise date of 30 September
2008, as measured on that date.

3, Group Executives - options and awards
granted on 1 October 2004

Subject 1o tenure, each tranche will fully

vestif:

« the Group achieves greater than or equal
10 10 percent compound growth in EPS
over the financial years from the grant date
until the first prescribed exercise date or, i
not achieved at that date, inclusive of each
subsequent financial year until the finai
prescribed exercise date of the relevant
tranche; or

+ TSR for the Group meets or exceeds
the 75th percentile of the S&P ASX 50
Accumulation Index cver the period from
the grant date until the first prescribed
exercise dale or, if not achicved at that
date, on the last trading day of any
subsequent month until the final prescribed
exercise date of the relevant tranche.

If neither of the ahove outcomes are
achieved and:

« TSR for the Group meets or exceeds the
S&P ASX 50 Accumulation Index either at
the first prescribed exercise date or on the
last trading day of any subsequent month
until the final prescribed excrcise date
of the relevant tranche, then half of that
tranche will vest: or

« 10 percent growth in EPS is achieved in
the financial year prior to the prescribed
exercise dale then that tranche will
fully vest.

4. Group Executives - shares granted under
the Employee Reward Share Plan on
18 November 2005
The performance hurdles for the 2005 year
subject to Board discretion were:

{1) EPS (before goodwill and significant
iterns) equals or exceeds the EPS of the
previous year by 10 percent or more, then
50 percem of the shares will vest; and

(2) Customer Service
{a) obtaining an overall Group Customer
Satisfaction rating of at least 78%, then
25% of the shares will vest; and

{b) divisicns achieving their service targets,
then the remaining 25% of the shares
vesl.

5. Group Executives - options and awards
granted on 1 October 2005

Subject t¢ tenure, each tranche of options

and awards will vest if, as measured from the

grant date:

« the Group achieves greater than or equal
10 10 percent compound growth in EPS
either at the prescribed measurement date
or on subsequent measurement annually
over the vesling period; or

e TSR for the Group is greater than or equal
1o the 75th percentile of the S&P ASX 50
Accumulation Index at the prescribed
measurement date or on subseguent
menthly measurement during the
vesting period.

If neither of the above outcomes are achieved,
half of the tranche will vest if, as measured
from the grant date:

« TSR for the Group is greater than the
S&P ASX 50 Accumulation Index at the
prescribed measurement date or on
subsequent monthly measurement during
the vesting period.

As per the rules of the Share and Option Plans,
the Board retains overall discretion 10 waive
all or part of the exercise conditions of awards
and options. For example, the Board could
exercise its discrelion where certain events
occur, such as redundancy, retirement, death,
where a bona fide 1akeover offer becomes
unconditional or where it forms the view that
the exercise conditions do not preperly reflect
the financial performance of the Group over
the performance period.




St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 40: Share and Option Plans

(a) Employee Reward Share Plan

(Reward Plan)
The Reward Plan provides eligible employees
with up to $1,000 worth of fully paid ordinary
Bank shares per annum for nil consideration.

Shares issued under the Reward Plan cannot be
sold until three years after allotment or at the
time the participant ceases employment with
the Group.

The number of shares allocated to each
participant is calculated by taking $1,000
divided by the average weighted share price,
rounded down to the nearest whole share.

The average weighted share price is bascd on
the share price and trading volumes on the five
trading days prior to the allotment date.

Generally, full-time, part-time, fixed term and
casual staff with 12 months or more secvice
with the Group are eligible o participate in the
Reward Plan from 1 October of each relevant
year, provided they are slill employed by the
Group on the relevant allotment date.

Allatments under the Reward Plan are
subject to the achievement of predetermined
performance targets as set by the Board

and communicated (o staff prior to the
commencement of each financial year.

The perfarmance targets for shares granted
to participants on 1 October 2005 relating to
performance in the 30 September 2006 year
were as follows:

Subject to Board discretion,

{1) EPS on previous GAAP basis (before
goodwill amortisation and significant items)
equals or exceeds the EPS of the previous
year by 10% or more, then 50% of the
shares will vest; and

(2) Customer service:
{a} obtaining an overall Group Customer
Satisfaction rating of at least 78%, then
25% of the shares will vest: and

{b) divisicns achieving Lheir service
targets, then the remaining 25% of
the shares will vest.

Shares granted under the Reward Plan are
recegnised as an expense in the Group's
income statement over the 12 month vesting
period commencing on 1 Oclober cach year.
The expense for the 30 September 2006
financial year was $6 million (30 September
2005: $7 million). During the year 241,366
(30 September 2005: 288,763) shares were
issucd in relation to the Reward Plan. A total
of 7,099 {30 September 2005: 7,043) staff
participated in this offer, with each participant
recciving 34 (30 Scplember 2005: 41) fully
paid ordinary shares based on the offer amount
of $1,000 for nil consideration. The shares
had a market value of $29.37 per share at the
allotment date,

Details of ordinary shares allocated under the Purchase Plan are as follows:
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{b) Employee Share Purchase Plan
{Purchase Plan)
All permanent employees with continuous
service of at least one year as at any relevant
share acquisition date are eligible tc participate
in the Purchase Plan. Participants are given
the opportunity during the year to nominate
an amount of their pre-tax remuneration to
purchase fully paid ordinary shares in the
Bank. Participants may nominate up to 20%
of their Total Employment Cost and 100% of
their Shart Term Incentive Opportunity {less
any compulsory superannuation} towards
the purchase of shares. Shares are acquired
al prevailing market prices. Brokerage is
subsidised by the Bank. Participants may elect
to acquire shares under the Purchase Plan
as unrestricted, restricted for four years or
restricted for 10 years. Where the shares are
restricied, they may not be sold or transferred
until the period of restriction is lifted or at the
time the participant ceases employment with
the Group. Shares purchased under this Plan
are expensed in the Group's income statement.

Average purchase price

Number of ordinary Number of of shares acquired
Date of aflocation shares allocated employees participating $
2006 year
25 November 2005 140,831 234 29.25
26 May 2006 18,708 83 29.67
Total 159,539 37
2005 year
26 November 2004 47,986 95 24.35
17 Decemnber 2004 101,487 128 24.42
7 January 2005 132 1 24.42
7 Junc 2005 20,761 82 25.92
Total 170,366 306
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S1.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 40: Share and Option Plans
continued
(¢c) Executive Performance Share Plan
{Performance Plan)
In accordance with the rules of the Performance
Plan and as approved by shareholders, share
allocations may occur by either allotment or by
purchase on market. The Board wil! determine
the most appropriate basis of allocation.
The Managing Director, Group Executives and
other senior executives are eligible 1o be invited
Lo participate in the Performance Plan. Awards
granted to the Managing Director, the Group
Executive and other senior execulives are
satisfied under this plan.

The fair value of awards granted under the
Performance Plan is recognised as an expense
in the Group's income statements over the
vesting period of the awards. The fair value is
discounted for estimated forfeitures. The fair
value is determined on the following bases:

(1) Shares issued or shares purchased on
market on satisfaction of non-market
related performance hurdles - prevaifing
market price at grant date for grants before
1 October 2005. For grants after this date,
the fair value has been discounted for the
present value of dividends paid by the
Bank during the vesting period when they
are not received by the participant.

Shares purchased or shares issued on
satisfaction of marke! related performance
hurdles - the fair value has been
determined using the Binomial method at
the grant date.

Awards granted to participants are issued

or ransferred at the end of the relevant
vesting period subject to salisfying applicable
performance hurdies (refer Note 39).

As at 30 September 2006, there were 79
{30 September 2005: 76) participanis in the

Performance Plan. Awards are granted for no
consideration at prevailing market prices.

Awards granted prior lo 7 November 2002
that have not vested on or before 1 January
2005, have nat been expensed in accordance
with the transitional provisions of AASB 1.

The expense recognised during the year in
respect of the Performance Plan was 35 million
(30 September 2005: $5 million).

For awards granted on 1 October 2003,

1 Octaber 2004 and 1 Qclober 2005, shares
will be issued 1o participants upon satisfaction of
applicable performance hurdles {refer Nate 39).

For awards granted on 1 October 2005, shares
have been purchased on market and are held in
trust until applicable perfermance hurdles have
been satisfied.

The following is a summary of grants under the
Performance Plan:

«——— Movements during the year —————

fair value
Awards Number of Number of Awards Senior per oward
outstanding awards awards Number of outstanding execulives  granted during
Datg awards granted Vesting date 1 0ct 2005 granted forfeited  shares allotted 30 Sep 2006 in plan the year {$)
2-Jun-2002 22-Jul-2005 20,000 - - 20,000 - -
1-0ct-2002 15-Nov-2005 19,781 - - 19,781 - -
1-0ct-2002 15-Nov-2005 19,781 - - 19,781 -
1-0ct-2003 30-5ep-2005 17.034 - - 14,83 2,203 2
1-0ct-2003 30-Sep-2006 17,034 - - - 17,034 ] .
1-0ct-2003 30-Sep-2007 17,034 - - - 17.034
1-0ct-2003 30-Sep-2004 1,037 - - 1,037 - -
1-0ct-2003 30-5ep-2005 84,624 - - 84,624 - -
23-Dec-2003 31-Dec-2005 10,000 - - 10,000 - -
1-Qct-2003 30-Sep-2005 99,653 - - 99,260 393 1
1-0ct-2003 30-Sep-2006 98,992 - 7,742 - 91,250 62
1-0ct-2004 30-Sep-2006 14,400 - - - 14,400
1-0ct-2004 30-5ep-2007 14,400 - - - 14,400 } 1
1-0ct-2004 30-Sep-2008 28,800 - - - 28,800
1-0ct-2004 30-8ep-2006 23,658 - - - 23,658
1-0ct-2004 30-Sep-2007 23,658 - - - 23,658 ] 7
1-Oct-2004 30-Sep-2008 23,658 - - - 23,658
1-Mar-2005 30-Sep-2006 718 - - - 718
1-Mar-2005 30-Sep-2007 718 - - - 718 1
1-Mar-2005 30-Sep-2008 718 - - - 718
1-Ocl-2004 30-8ep-2006 - 89,620 5193 - 34,427 59
1-0ct1-2004 30-Sep-2007 - 89,620 9,656 - 79,964 h4
15-Aug-2005 30-Sep-2006 - 110 - - 10 ] 1
15-Aug-2005 30-Sep-2007 - 10 - - MG
1-0ct-2005 30-Sep-2007 - 14,498 - - 14,498 25.19
1-Oct-2005 30-Sep-2008 - 14,498 - - 14,498 ] 8 23.93
1-Qct-2005 30-Sep-2009 - 14,498 - - 14,498 22.75
17-May-2006 17-May-2007 - 2,424 - - 2,424 28.55
17-May-2006 17-May-2008 - 2,424 - - 2,424 1 26.89
17-May-2006 17-May-2009 - 2,424 - - 2,424 25.06
Total 535,698 230,226 22,591 269,314 474,019

Performance hurdles in respect of awards granted during the year are subject to tenure and vest fer $nil consideration subject 1o the satisfaction of

perforinance conditions contained in Note 39.
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 40: Share and Option Plans continued
(d) Executive Option Plan (Option Plan)
The Managing Director and Greup Execulives are eligible to participate in the Option Plan. Exercise is conditional upon the Bank achieving a prescribed
performance hurdle. The options do not grant rights to the option holders to participate in a share issue of any other body corparate. Non-Executive
Directors are not eligible to participate in the plan. Options granted to the Managing Director and the Group Executive are satisfied under this plan.
Detsils of the Option Plan arc s follows:

<— Movements during the year —

Fair valuc
per aption
Options Number of  Number of  Number of Options Senior granted
Exercise autstanding  options oplions options outstanding  executives during the
Date oplions granted Exercise perind’  price (3P 102005 pramed iprieited  exercised 30 Sep 2006 inplan®™  year (§)"
12-Deec-2001 12-Jun-2005 to 12-Dec-2006 16.51 250,000 - - 250,600 - -
12-Dec-2001 12-Jun-2006 to 12-Dec-2006 16.91 500,600 - - - 500,000 1
1-0c1-2002 15-Nov-2004 to 1-0¢i-2007 18.16 60,159 - - 16,095 44,064 2
1-0ct-2002 15-Nov-2005 to 1-Ocl1-2007 18.16 118,386 - - 94,351 24,035 1
1-0c1-2002 15-Nov-2005 to 1-Cet-2007 18.16 118,386 - - 78,256 40,130 i
1-Oct-2003 30-5ep-2005 to 1-Cci-2009 20.40 178,862 - - 74,820 104,042 5
1-Cct-2003 30-5ep-2006 to 1-Cct-2009 20.40 178,862 - - - 178,862 7
1-Qct-2003 30-Sep-2007 10 1-0ct-2009 20.40 178,862 - - - 178,862
1-Oct-2004 30-Sep-2006 to 1-0c1-2010 21.70 125,000 - - - 125,000
1-Oct-2004 30-Sep-2007 0 1-0ct-2010 2170 125,000 - - - 125,000 1
1-Cct-2004 30-Sep-2008 to 1-0ct-2010 21.70 250,000 - - - 250,000
1-0ct-2004 30-5ep-2006 to 1-0ct-2010 21.70 141,336 - - - 141,336
1-0ct-2004 30-Sep-2007 10 1-0ct-2010 21.70 141,336 - - - 141,338 7
1-0ct-2004 30-5¢p-2008 10 1-0ct-2010 2170 141,336 - - - 141,336
1-Mar-2005 30-Sep-2006 to 1-0ct-2010 24.56 15,786 - - - 15,786
1-Mar-2005 30-3ep-2007 10 1-0ct-2010 24.56 15,786 - - - 15,786 1
1-Mar-2005 30-8ep-2008 t0 1-0c1-2010 24.56 15,786 - - - 15,786
1-Oct-2005 30-Sep-2007 0 1-0ct-2011 28.01 - 138,762 - - 138,762 2.34
1-Oct-2005 30-Sep-2008 to 1-Oct-2011 2801 - 119,104 - - 119,104 8 2.63
1-Oct-2005 30-Sep-2009 t0 1-0ct-2011 28.01 - 108,276 - - 108,276 2.87
Total 2,554,883 366,142 - 513,522 2,407,503

(1) The options may be exercisable at an carlier date as prescribed by the Option Plan rules.

{2) A premium may be added to the exercise price of the options, granted 12 December 2001, which represents the time value of money component of the value
of the options (calculated as the differcnce between the actual dividend and bond yields {or the yoar from the Grant Date of the options o the earlicst exercise
dale). The exercise price represents the market value of the Bank's ordinary shares at the Grant Date of the options. This market value represents the weighted
average trading price during the five trading days prior to and including the Grant Date, calculated in accordance with the Option Plan rules.

(3) Participating execulives are required 10 hold a minimum of 5,000 ordinary shares in the Bank in order to participate in the Option Plan.

(4) The fair value of options granted during the year has been determined using the Binomial method. The fair value is recognised as an expense in the Group's
income statement cver the vesting period. An expense of $1 million {30 September 2005: $1 miltion) was recognised during the year.

During the financial year, 513,522 ordinary shares were issued following the exercise of 513,522 options. The amount paid on exercise of these options
is disclosed in the above table. No amounts remain unpaid on any of ihese shares, The morket value of shares issued during the year as a result of the
exercise of these opticns as at 30 September 2006 was $16 million (30 September 2005: $9 million).

The market value of shares that could be issued from the exercise of cutstanding options at 30 September 2006 is $73 million
(30 September 2005: $71 million).

The exercise of options is subject 10 the achievement of performance hurdles contained in Note 39.
(e) Non-Executive Directors’ Share Purchase Plan {Directors’ Plan)
All Non-Exceutive Dircctors are eligible to participate in the Directors’ Plan. Each financial year, Non-Executive Directors are provided with the opportunity

to contribute a part or all of their pre-tax remuneration from the Group to acquire fully paid ordinary shares in the Bank. Shares are acquired at prevailing
market prices and brokerage fees are payabie by the Bank. Shares purchased under the Directors’ Plan are expensed in the Group's income statements,

During the vear, 4 (30 September 2006: 4) Non-Exccutive Directars were allocated 13,299 shares (3¢ September 2005: 9,706} that were acquired on
market at an average purchase price of $29.27 per share (30 September 2005: $24.83).
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 Septemnber 2006

Note 41: Average Balances and Related Interest

The following table shows the major categories of interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities and the respective interest rates earned or paid by
the Group for the years indicated. Averages are month-end averages, which are not materialty different from daily averages and have not been adjusted to
exclude the impact of the discontinued operation.

2006 2005
Average Average
balance Interest  Average rate batance Interest  Average rate
$m Sm % $m $m %

Interest earning assets
Cash and liquid assets 885 38 4.29 879 37 4.21
Receivables due from other financial institutions 1,255 61 4.86 951 10 4.21
Assets at fair value through the income statement 6,814 380 5.58 7.993 427 534
Loans and other receivables 86,529 6,335 7.32 68,879 5,001 7.26
Total interest earning assets 95,483 6,814 714 78,702 5,505 6.99
Non-interest earning assets
Bills receivables 14 1
Property, plant and equipment 434 459
Other assets 3,846 9,247
Provision for doubtful debts (280) (296)
Total non-interest earning assets 4,014 9,421
Total assets 99,497 88,123
Interest bearing liabilities
Retail funding 40,187 1,779 443 36,354 1,513 416
Other deposils 14,670 882 6.01 8,109 544 5.97
Payables due to other financial institutions 449 19 4.23 741 3 478
Domestic berrowings 10,857 671 6.18 7.838 462 5.89
Offshore borrowings ¥ 25,989 1,448 5.57 20,934 1154 5.51
Total interest bearing liabilities 92,152 4,799 5.21 74,976 3,704 4.94
Non-interest bearing liabilities
Bills payable 199 172
Other non-interest bearing liabilities 2,262 7,847
Total non-interest bearing lisbilities 2,461 8019
Total liabilities 94,613 82,995
Shareholders’ equity 4,884 5128
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 99,497 88,123
Interest spread ™ 1.93 2.05
Interest margin 2N 2.29
(1) Includes foreign exchange swap costs.
(2) Basic weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the year were 524.3 million,
(3) Interest spread represents the difference between the average interest rate earned on assets and the average inlerest rate paid on funds.
(4) Interest margin represents net interest income s a percentage of average interest earning asscts.
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 41: Average Balances and Related Interest continued

Volume and rate analysis

The 1ablz below sllocates changes in interest income and interest expense between changes in volume and changes in rate for the years ended

57

30 September 2006 and 30 September 2005. Volume and rate variances have been calculated on the movement in average batances 2nd the change in

the interest rates on average interest earning assets and average interest bearing liabilities.

2006 over 2005 2005 over 2004
Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Totat
$m $m Sm Sm Sm $m

Interest earning assets
Cash and liquid asscts - 1 1 6 (2} 4
Receivables due from other financial institutions 15 6 | 27 1 28
Investment securities/assets at falr value (66} 19 (47) 102 6 108
Leans and other receivables 1,292 42 1,334 1,190 59 1,249
Change in interest income 1,241 68 1,309 1,325 64 1,389
Interest bearing liabilities
Retall funding 170 96 266 80 142 222
Other deposits 334 4 338 (30) 23 (7)
Payables due to other financial institutions (12) - (12) 5 3 8
Domestic borrowings 187 22 209 298 (4) 294
Offshore borrowings 282 12 294 647 36 683
Change in interest expense 961 134 1,095 1,000 200 1,200
Change in net interest income 280 (66) 214 325 (136) 189

Note 42: Segmental Results

(a) Business segments

Business sepments are based on the Group's organisational structure, The Group comprises four business divisions, namely:

= Retail Bank (RB) - responsible for residential and consumer lending, provision of personal financiat services including transaction services, call and
term deposits, smalt business banking and financial planners. This division manages retail branches, call centres, agency networks and clectronic
charnnels such as EFTPOS terminals, ATMs and internet banking.

» Institutional and Business Banking (IBB) - responsible for liquidity management, securitisation, wholesale funding, capital markets, treasury

markel activities including foreign exchange, money market and derivatives. corporate and business relationship banking, international and trade
linance banking services, leasing, hire purchase, automotive finance, commercial property lending and cash flow financing including factoring

and invoice discounting,

«  BankSA (BSA) - responsible for providing retail banking and business banking services 1o customers in South Australia and Northern Territary.
These services have extended into country New South Wales and Victoria a5 part of the Group's initiative to expand rural banking. Customers are
serviced through branches, electronic agencies, ATMs, call centres, EFTPOS terminals and Internet banking.

+  Wealth Management {(WM) - respensible for providing wealth management and administration, asset management, dealer group services, margin
lending, financial advice, private banking services and general and life insurance.

Segmental results are not comparable to prior periods as comparative figures do not refiect the impact of AIFRS financial instrument accounting standards

that have becn adopted from 1 October 2005.
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$t.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 42: Segmental Results continued

Institutionat
& Business wealth
Retail Bank Banking BankSA  Management Other  Consolidsled

For the year ended 30 September 2006 $m $m $m $m $m Sm
Segment revenue
Net interest income 1,063 569 303 78 - 2,013
Non-interest income 436 135 82 286 14 953
Significant item - - - - 41 41
Total segment revenue 1,499 704 385 364 55 3,007
Segment expenses
Bad and doubtful debts 105 29 9 1 - 144
Operaling expenses
- Other provisicns 27 7 6 4 - 74
- Depreciation 49 7 9 2 - 67
- Deferred gxpenditure amortisation 24 3 4 1 - 32
- Other expenses 593 217 144 166 - 1,120
Total operating expenses 693 254 163 183 - 1,293
Significant items - - - - 48 48
Total segment expenses 798 283 172 184 48 1,485
Profit before income tax expense
from continuing operations 701 421 213 180 7 1,522
Income tax expense 445
Profit aiter income tax from continuing operations 1,077
Loss of discontinued operation after tax 13
Minority interest - continuing operations 1
Minority interest - discontinued operalien {5)
Profit after income tax and minority interests 1,068

Institutional

& Busingss wealth

Retail Bank Banking BankSA  Management Other  Consolidaled

As at 30 September 2006 Sm Sm Sm Sm $m $m
Investment in Associales - - - - 28 28
Cther Assets 54,237 33,267 12,029 4,834 2,607 106,974
Total Assels 54,237 33,267 12,029 4,834 2,635 107,002
Total Liabilities 16,002 65,600 7,71 1,025 1,261 101,659
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Note 42: Segmental Results continued

59

Institutional
& Business wealth
Retail Bank Banking BankSA  Management Other  Consolidated

For the year ended 30 September 2005 $m $m $m $m $m $m
Segment revenue
Net interest income 1,057 409 267 64 - 1,797
Non-interest income 366 258 90 258 - 972
Significan( item - - - - 16 16
Total segment revenue 1,423 667 357 322 16 2,785
Segment expenses
Bad and doubtful debts 67 29 9 4 - 109
Operating expenses
- Other provisions 24 25 8 13 - 70
- Depreciation 50 7 9 1 - &7
- Delerred expenditure amortisation 30 3 4 1 - 38
- Other expenses 591 202 138 157 - 1,088
Total operating expenses 695 237 159 172 - 1,263
Significant item - - - - 16 16
Goadwill impairment - - - - 4 4
Total segment expenses 762 266 168 176 20 1,392
Share ¢f profit of investiment in associates - 3 - - - 3
Profit/(loss) before income tax expense from
continuing operations 661 404 189 146 {4) 1.396
Income tax expense 413
Profit after income tax from continuing eperations 983
Loss of discontinued operation after tax 10
Minority interest - continuing operations -
Minorily interest - discontinued cperation (5)
Profit after income tax and minority interests 978

Institutional

& Business Wealth

Retail Bank Banking BankSA  Management Other  Consolidated

As at 30 September 2005 $m $m &m $m sm Sm
Total Assets 48,778 26,530 10,441 3,806 2804 92,359 |
Total Liagilities 24,802 53,307 5,785 1,027 1,051 86,972

(b} Geographical segments
The Group predominantly operates in Australia.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 43: Deed of Cross Guarantee
Pursuant 1o ASIC Class Order 98/1418 {as mendcd) dated 13 August 1998, the wholly-owned subsidiaries listed below are relieved from the
Corporations Act 2001 requirements for preparation, sudit and lodgement of financial reparts, and Directors’ reports.

Itis 3 condition of the Class Order that the Bank and each of the subsidiaries enter into a Deed of Cross Guaraniee. The efiect of the Deed is that the
Bank guarantees to each creditor payment in full of any debt in the event of winding up of any of the subsidiaries under certain provisions of the
Corporations Act 2001, If a winding up occurs under other provisions of the Act, the Bank will only be liable in the event that after six menths any
creditor has not been paid in full. The subsidiaries have also given similar guarantees in the event that the Bank is wound up.

The subsidiaries subject to the Deed are:
«  St.George Financial Services Limited;
« Advance Leasing Limited;

= Canberra Advance Property Limited;
= Crusade Management Limited.

A consolidateg income statement and consolidated balance sheet, comprising the Bank and controlled entities, which are a party (o the Deed,
afler eliminating all transactions between perties 1o the Deed of Cross Guarantee, 3t 30 September is sei out below:

Consolidated

2006 2008
Summarised income statement and retained profits $m $m
Profit before tax 1,540 1,271
Income tax expense (370) {353)
Prefit after tax 1,170 918
Retained profits at the beginning of the year 844 551
Adjustment to retained profits on transition to AIFRS net of tax (128) 77
Transfer to reserve {62) -
Reduction in retained profits on share buy back (z24) -
Dividends recognised during the year (772) (702)
Retained profits at the end of the year 828 844
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Note 43: Deed of Cross Guarantee continued

Balance sheet
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Consolidated
2006 2005
$m $m

Assets
Cash and liquid assets 1,077 1,175
Receivables due from other financial institutions 510 505
Assets at fair value through the income statement 6,617 5918
Derivative assels 916 -
Available for sale investments 1 -
Loans and other receivables 58,901 55,976
Bank acceptances of customers 11,908 7,098
Investment in controlled entities 1,619 G61
Amounts reeeivable from controlled entities 3,925 2,767
Investments in associated companies 24 -
Cther investments - 2
Property, plant and equipment 316 348
Intangible assets 1,039 1,018
Deferred tax assets 174 93
Other assets 744 967
Total Assets 87,771 76,828
Liabilities
Deposits and other borrowings 53,435 47,775
Payables due to other financial institutions 401 91
Derivative liabitities 737 -
Bank acceptances 7,287 7.098
Provision for dividends 3 5
Amounts payable to centrolled entities 980 146
Current 1ax liabilities 140 145
Deferred tax liabilities 137 207
Other provisions 115 100
Bonds snd notes 16,526 13,139
Loan capital 2,032 1,956
Bills payable and other liabilities 561 1,168
Total Liabilities 82,354 71,830
Net Assets 5417 4,998
Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital 4,420 4,136
Reserves 169 18
Retained profits 828 844
Total Shareholders’ Equity 5,417 4,598
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Note 44: Commitments

Consolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m 3m $m $m
Capital expenditure

Less than one year 16 8 16 8

Non-cumulative operating leases expiring
Less than one year 86 69 82 63
Between one and five years 207 122 195 112
Mare than five years 159 54 153 48
452 245 430 223

The Group leascs a number of commercial buildings and computer hardware under operating leases. The lease terms typically run for a period of
five years for buildings and three years for computer hardware.

Note 45: Contingent Liabilities, Assets and Commitments

The Group has 3 variety of contingent fiabilities arising from transacticns including endorsed bills of exchange, letters of credit, guarantees and
commiiments to provide credit. The notional amounts of contingent liabilities represent the maximum credit risk. The credit equivalent represents the
maximum or total petential loss if the counterparty were to defaull, determined in accordance with APRA’s risk weighted capital odequacy guidelines.

Contingent liabilities and commitments exist in respect of:

Consalidated Bank
Face value Credit equivalent amount Face value Credil equivalent amount
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
$m Sm $m $m $m Sm Sm $m

Contingent liabilities
Bills endorsements 350 413 350 413 350 413 350 413
Guarantees 538 415 538 415 538 415 538 415
Documentary letiers of credit 173 180 138 138 164 180 128 138
Documentary letters of credit
- controlled entities - - - - 23 15 23 14
Performance related items 15 24 8 12 15 24 8 12
Commitments
Undrawn credit facilities 19,301 17M 1,056 1,434 19,018 16,910 1,056 1,434
Undrawn credit facilities
- controlled entities - - - - 219 258 - -
Total credit risk related
instruments 20,377 18,143 2,090 2,012 20,327 18,215 2,103 2,426

Contingent liabilities exist in respect of claims ond potential claims against entities in the Group, Where necessary, appropriate provisions have been
made in the financial statements. Information regarding the Bank's dispute with the Australian Taxation Office over deductions claimed on the Group's
depositary capital securities is contained in Note 6,

The credit risk related contingent liabilities of $20,377 million (30 September 2005: $18,143 million) also represent contingent assels of the Group.
These commitments 1o provide cradit may in the normal course convert to loans and other receivables,

The Bank is subject to a credit risk expasure in the event that another financial institution falls to settle for its payments clearing activities, in accordance
with the regulations and procedures of the following clearing systems of the Australian Payments Clearing Association Limited: The Australian Paper
Clearing System (*Clearing Stream 1), the Bulk Electronic Clearing System (" Clearing Stream 2"}, the Consumer Electronic Clearing System (“Clearing
Stream 3"} and the High Value Clearing System (* Clearing Stream 4, only if operating in "bypass mode"). This credit risk exposure is unquantifiable in
advance, but is well understood, and is extinguished upon setilement at 9am each business day.

Service contracts have been enlered into with the Managing Director and Group Executives. The maximum contingent liability for termination benefits
under these employment contracts that has not been provided for in the financial statements s $14 million {30 September 2005: $12 million).
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Note 46: Liability for Defined Benefit Fund Obligation

The Group makes contributions to multiple superannuation funds in accordance with “Superannuation Choice of Fund”, including the employer sponsored
fund which has two defined benefil sections with 240 members in total. No new members are accepted into these defined benefit sections. All employees
who are members of these defined benefit sections are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death. The defined benefit sections guaraniee lump
sum benefits based on years of service and final average salary. The defined contribution section of the fund receives fixed contributions from the Bank
and certain controlled entities and the Group's legal or constructive cbligation is limited to these contributions.

The following sets out details in respect of the defined benefit section only.

Consolidated Bank
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m $m $m $m
Present value of defined benefit obligation 56 56 56 56
Fair value of plan assets 51 51 51 51
Deficit in the plan 5 5 5 >

Note 47: Financial Risk Management
The Group in its daily operations is exposcd Lo a range of risks including credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. These risks are managed through
specialised commitiees responsible for policy setting and maonitoring and analysing risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential for loss arising from a debtor or counterparty failing 1o meet their financial contractual obligations. This risk is inherent in

the Group's lending activities, as well as transactions involving derivatives and foreign exchange. Credit risk is managed principally through embedded
controls upon individual lending divisions and business managers who are responsible for the lending. Lending is carried out within the parameters

of fending policies (covering approvals, documentation and management), which have been developed having regard to siatistical data and historical
risk experience.

To maintain the quality of the lending portfolia, prudential standards and lending policies have been established throughout the Group. Credit processes
are typically structured so that loan origination, approval, document preparation, settlement and account monitoring and control are segregated to
different individuals or areas. Credit must be evaluated against established credit policies and within authorities and be structured, particularly in terms
of security, to be prudent for the risk incurred.

The Group Credit division assesses credit beyond the lending authorities of business divisions and/or outside normal Group Credit policies or guidelines.
This division assesses specific pravision requirements where loan defauls has occurred and aiso controls the Loans Management Unit, which manages
large impaired assets with the aim of achieving the optimum result from such assets.

Through its credit inspection functian, Group Credit tests internal contrels and adherence to credit policies and procedures, which are standard
threughout the Group and contained in credit manuals administered by Group Credit.

The Group appiics standard credil risk assessment criteria to all extensions of credit, from credit scoring systems for basic retail products to complete
credit assessment for commercial and trade related transactions.

Standard risk grading methodologies for commercial lending are set at the transaction level and will drive pricing.
The portfolic maintenance function within Group Credit moniters and refines proprietary risk grading systems to ensure on-going predictability.

Various prudential {imits are in place to assisi with the diversification of the portfalio. These include limits on counterparties, individual securities or
developments, industries and geographies. Prudential limits are approved by the Bank's Board Risk Management Committee.

Group Credit regularly reports to the Management Credit Committee and the Board Risk Managernent Committee on the status of large impaired assets,
arrears and trend analysis, compliance reports, portfolio analysis and all approvals above $25 miliion.
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Note 47: Financial Risk Management
continued

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers ta the inability 10 meet
financial commitmments when they fafl due.
Liquidity risk arises from mismatches in the
cash flows from financial transactions.

Liquidity is managed to policies and strategies
determingd by the Bank’s Asset and Liability
Committee (ALCO).

These include:
«  maintaining 3 core of high quality and
readily liquefiable securities;

« sourcing the majority of funds from the
retail sector and committed medium term
wholesale facilities;

» maintaining a diversified used funding
capacity in wholesale and retail markets;
and

+ monitoring liquidity flows while quickly
identifying any anomalies.

Market risk

(a) Funding risk

Funding risk is the risk of over-reliance on @
particular funding source. The risks associated
with such a concentration include volatility in
funding costs or availability.

To minimise funding risk, the Group raises
wholesale funds from well diversified sources
encompassing both internationa! and domestic
capital markets.

{b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate cisk arises from a variety of
sources including mismatches between the
repricing periods of assets and liabilities.
Movements in interest rates can affect
earnings and the value of the Group. Interest
rate risk management policy aims to minimise
fluctuations in earnings over time from
volatility in movements in interest rates while
maximising sharehalder value.

(i) Interest rate risk in non-troding activities
Interest rate risk is monitored by the Bark's
Balance Sheet Risk Management unit to ensure
that aggregate exposure Lo interest rate risk

is contained within policy guidelines and
defined limits set by ALCO. The Balance

Sheet Risk Management unit reposts to ALCO
at least monihly.

The “gap positicn” between assets and
liabilities repricing is managed with derivative
products, particularly swaps and options, and
on balance sheel strategies.

Interest rate fisk also arises from the impact of
interest rate changes on pricing relationships
between retail and wholesale assets and
liabilities. The risk is monitored through
simulation modelling which estimates the
impact on net interest earnings due Lo changes
in interest rates and/or the size and mix of the
Balance Sheet.

The simulation model integrates risk
paramelers, product design and pricing policies
and balance sheet and yield curve forecasts.
The model’s key assumptions are regularly
reviewed to take account of both historical
refationships and the current competitive and
interest rate environment.

Risk 10 earnings is measured Dy calculating the
fluctuation in net interest earnings based on a

1% parallel increase in the bank bill swap curve.

The risk is managed to ensure the net interest
earnings fluctuation in the next 12 months is
limited to a maximum of 10% of operaling
profit after tax. This measure captures spread
and market risk exposures.

(i) Market risk from trading activities

Market risk is the potential for losses arising
from the adverse movements in the level of
market factors such as foreign exchange rates.
interest rates or exchange rate volatilities.
Trading activities give rise 1o market risk.

This risk is controiled by an overall risk
management framework that incorporaies a
number of market risk measurements including
value at risk (VaR). VaR is a statistical eslimate
of the potential loss that could be incurred if
the Bank's trading positions were maintained
for a defined period of time. A confidence level
of 99% is used at St.George; this implies that
for every 100 days, the lass will not exceed
the VaR limit of $9 of those days. VaR is

nat an estimate of the maximum loss the
trading activities could incur from an extreme
market event.

VaR measurements are supplemented by a
series of stress tests that are used to caplure
the possibility of extreme events or market
shocks. Additionally, the market risk framework
includes enforcing stop loss limits on all
portfolios, basis point sensilivity limits, specific
options limits and control of targe or unusual
trading activity.

The Group uses Monte Carlo simulation to
calculate VaR. This model takes inlo account
all relevant market variables. 1t is approved by
APRA for regulatory purposes and is operated
within the overall framework outlined in the
APRA Prudential Standards.

The follewing table provides a summary of
VaR by total risk taken and by trading unit
for the years ended 30 Septermber 2006 and
30 Sepiember 2005.

2006 2005
For the year ended 30 September High Average High Average
Foreign exchange VaR 744 294 775 273
Domestic VaR 1,582 596 1,105 385
Tota! room risk 1,546 660 1,088 479

Nate: The table above incorporates all options fisk. VaR is calculated at a 99% conlidence interval for 3 ane day helding period.

Actual and hypothetical profit and loss outcomes are monitored against VaR on a daily basis s part of the mode! validation process. Hypethetical profit
and loss involves holding a portfolio constant, thereby excluding any intraday trading activity.
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Note 48: interest Rate Risk
The Group's objectives and pelicies in relation to the management of interest rate risk arising from financial instruments are set out in Nole 47.

Interest rate risk arises from a variety of sources including mismatches between the repricing period of assets and liabitities. As a result of these
mismatches, movernents in interest rates can affect earnings or the value of the Group.

The “gap position” between when assets, libilities and derivative instruments are contractually due to reprice represents one measure of the

Group's interest rate risk position. The table befow provides the repricing profiles of the Group's assets and liabilities and the resulting gap position al

30 September, based upon allocation of assets and liabilities to time periods by reference to the earlier of the next contractual interest rate repricing date
and the maturity date. The Group does not use the repricing information in the way presented in this table to manage interest rate risk, as the contractual
repricing gap position does not reflect the Group's anticipated repricing gap position.

The amounts shown in the table represent the carrying amount of the Group's assets and liabilities. The interest rate shown is the effective interest rate
or weighted average effective interest rate in respect of each class of asset and liability. For floating rate instruments, it is the current market rate and for
fixed rate instruments it is the historical rate.

Weighted
average
within Non-interest efiective
Tmonth  1to3months 3 to 12 months 1to 5 years Over 5 years bearing Total interest ratc
As a1 30 September 2006 $m gm $m $m Sm sm Sm %
Assets
Cash and liquid assets 1,081 - - - - - 1,081 4.79
Receivables due from other
firancial institutions 1,106 6 70 - - - 1,182 5.47
Assets at fair value through
the income statement 3,327 1,694 1,015 60 - 96 6,192 6.04
Derivative assets - - - - - 1,093 1,093 -
Available for sale investments 136 1,228 - - - 177 1,541 5.52
Loans and other receivables 59,937 767 3,297 17,582 232 (299} 81,516 7.67
Bank acceptances of customers 10,156 1,583 169 - - - 11,908 7.34
Other assets - - - - - 2,489 2,489 -
Total Assets 75,743 5,278 4,551 17,642 232 3,556 107,002 7.20
Liabilities
Deposits and other borrowings 37,550 8,623 6,819 1,627 14 - 54,633 490
Payables due to other
financial institutions 400 1 - - - - 401 5.98
Liabilities at fair value through
the income statement - 390 - - - - 390 7.68
Derivative liabilitics - - - - - 1,190 1,190 -
Bank acceptances 5,998 1,153 136 - - - 7,287 614
Bonds and notes 14,71 18,706 707 469 - - 34,593 6.39
Loan capital 76 nz 366 327 546 - 2,032 6.58
Other liabilities - - - - - 1,133 1,133 -
Total Liabilities 58,735 29,590 8,028 2,423 560 2,323 101,659 5.44
Total Shareholders’ Equity 5,343 5,343
Off-balance sheei items
affecling interest
rate sensitivity {4,852) 8,120 940 (4,704) 496 - -
Net mismatch 12,156 (16,192) (2,537) 10,515 168 {4,110)
Cumulative mismatch 12,156 (4,036) (6,573) 3,942 4,110 -
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Note 48: Interest Rate Risk continued

Weighted
average
Within MNon-interest effective
imenth  1te3months 3 to 12 months itoS5years  Qver5years hearing, Total interest rale
As at 30 September 2005 $m $m $m sm Sm $m $m %
Assets
Cash and liquid assets 1,184 - - - - - 1,184 427
Receivables due from
other financial instilutions 774 45 25 - 265 2 1111 5.49
Assets st fair value through
the income statement 2,798 2,324 619 78 £9 18 6,007 5.62
Investment securities 18 1131 - - - - 1,149 5.75
Loans and other receivables 55,391 755 3192 13,713 186 (238} 72,548 735
Bank acceptances of customers - - - - - 7,098 7,098 -
Other assels - - - - - 2,861 2,861 -
Total Assets 60,166 4,255 3,836 13,791 520 9,791 92,359 6.36
Liabilities
Deposits and other borrowings 33,8550 734 6,058 1,500 9 ? 49175 4.56
Payables due 1o other
financial institutions 91 - - - - - 9 5.08
Bsnk scceptances - - - - - 7,098 7,098 -
Bonds and notes 4131 70,106 1,210 471 - - 25,918 478
Loan capital 277 688 - 463 524 - 1,956 6.16
Other liabilities - - - - - 2,734 2,734 -
Total Liabilities 38,348 28135 7,268 2,834 553 9,834 86,972 415
Total Shareholders’ Equity 5,387 5,387
Off-balance sheet items
affecting interest rate
sensitivity {9,613} 11,274 (595) (1,581) 515 - -
Net mismatch 12,205 (12,606} (4,027) 9,376 482 {5,430}
Cumulative mismatch 12,205 (401} {4,428) 4,948 5,430 -

The interest rate risk table for the Group at 30 September 2005 is prepared in accordarice with the requirements of the previous GAAP standard AASB
1023 Presentation and Disclosure of Financial Instruments and secordingly does not include the classification and measurement requirements
of AASR 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
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Note 49: Derivatives

Definition

A derivalive is a financial instrument that
provides the holder with the ability to
participate in some or all of the price changes
of an underlying financial assel, reference rate
or index. Derivatives are carried a1 fair value
and shown in the balance sheet as assets and
liabilities. Cerivative assets and liabilities on
different transactions are only set-off if the
transsctions are with the same counterparty, 8
lepal right of set-olf exists and the cash flows
are intended 1o be settled on a net basis,

Common derivatives used by the Group are
swaps, oplions, futures, forwards and foreign
gxchange contracts. The major characteristics
of these are summarised below.

Swaps

Aninterest rate swap is an agreement between
Iwo parties (o exchange interest obligations
periodically based on an underlying notional
principal. A cross currency swap involves a
principal exchange of amounts in one currency
for anothier curreney and a re-exchange of the
same principal amounts at maturity. Interest
payments and receipts on the principal smounts
are exchanged periodically throughout the teren.

Options

An option is a contract that grants the holder
the right but not the obligation 1o buy or sell
the underlying osset at a specific price on 3
specified date. A call option grants the holder
the right but not the obligation 1o buy at a
specified price whereas a put option granis the
holder the right but not the obligation 1o sell at
a specificd price. The purchaser or holder of
the option pays o premium upfront to acquire
the rights in the option. The risk to the holder
is limited to the premium whilst the risk 1o the
scller of the option is unlimited.

Futures

A futures contract is 3 binding obligation to buy
or sell a specific quantity of a specific type of
goods ot an agreed price. Every contract has

a buyer and a scller. Mest contracts dealt on
exchanges are closed out prior to delivery date.

Forwards

A forward rate agreement (FRA) is an agreement
to fix an interest rate en an agreed notional
amount, term and date. The parties then setile
the difference between the agreed interest rate
ond the market raie on the FRA settlement date.

Objectives for holding derivative instruments
The consolidated entity makes use of the
derivatives market both for trading purposes
and to manage balance sheet risk.

Trading

Derivatives held for trading inctude those used
in proprictary trading activities and servicing
selected client needs, and those instruments

that are used for risk management purposes
but which for various reasens do not meet the
criterig for the application of hedge accounting.
Gains and losses from changes in the {air
value of "trading derivatives” ore reported in
“trading income” and those relating to “non-
qualifying™ hedging derivatives are reported in
“non-trading derivatives”. Strict controls and
trading limits are used to monitor the price risk
resulting from interest rate and exchange rate
fluctuations on net open positions. The credit
risk associated with the instruments is limited
to the current fair value, which represents a
small portion of the notional amount.

Hedging

Derivatives provide protection to income
streams in a volatile financial envirgnment.
Derivatives enable holders of actual or
anticipated assels and liabilitics (those with a
value that may vary with changes in foreign
exchange, interest or other market rates) to
modify and eliminate the risk of varying values
by transferring it to another entity that is willing
1o assume the risk.

The Group's objective when entering the
derivative market for asset and liability
management purposes is 1o protect future
incame sireams in light of uncertain economic
variables. The core operations of the Group are
subject to the risk of interest rate fluciuations
te the degree that the interest carning assets
exceed the interest bearing liabilities or vice
versa, in any given maturity or repricing period.

The accounting treatment of hedging
derivatives varies according to whether they
are fair value or cash flow hedges.

Fair value hedges principally consist of cross
currency interest rate swaps used ta protect
against changes in the fair value of foreign
denominated debt issues. Changes in the fair
value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the
income statement, together with any changes
in the fair value of the hedged item thal are
atiributable to the hedged risk.

Cash flow hedges principally consist of
interest rale swaps uscd te protect against the
variability in future interest cash flows on non-
trading assets and liabilities that bear interest
al variable rates or that are expected to be
refunded or inwvesied in the future.

The amounts and diming of future cash flows,
representing both principal and interest flows,
are projected for each portfolio of financial assct
and liability on the basis of their contractual
terms and other relevant factors, including
estimates of prepayments and defaults. The
aggregaie principal balances and interest cash
flows across all portiolios over time form the
basis for identifying gains and losses on the

effective portions of derivatives designated as
cash flow hedges of forecast transactions.

The effective portion of changes in the fair volue
of derivatives that are designated and qualify

as cash flow hedges are recognised in equily.
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income
statement. This represents the amount by which
the changes in ihe fair value of the expected
cash flow of the derivative differ from the fair
value of the changes (or expected changes) in
the cash flow of the hedged item.

Amounts from the cash flow hedge reserve are
transferred 1¢ the income statement when the
cash flows on the hedged itlem are recognised
in the income statement.

When s hedging instrument expires or is sold,
or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or
less existing in equity at that time remains in
equity and is amortised to the income statement
over the remaining 1erm of the original hedge.
Where the hedged item is derecognised,

the cumulative gain or lass is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Strategies for achieving objectives of
holding derivative instruments

The primary objective in asset and lability
management is 1o pravide the maximum level
of income while maintaining prudent levels of
intcrest rate, liguidity and funding risk. In order
to achieve these objectives a variety of interest
rate forwards, swaps and options as well as
cross currency derivatives are employed.

For all activities, the Group monitors future
interest rate risk by simulating future net intcrest
income resulting from applying a variety of
different rate scenarios 10 its projected balance
sheet. The Group also seeks to manage net
interest income by hedging interest rate exposure
arising from anticipated future transactions.

This process is controlled and managed
through ALCO, which addresses risk exposures
and hedging requirements en a monthly basis
{or more frequently if required). Where an
an-balance sheet solution cannot be employed
10 position the Balance Sheet eifectively, the
derivatives market is used.

The risks associated with derivatives are
identical to the risks that are encountered by
the Group for normal retail and commercial
banking business (credit risk, market risk

and liquidity risk). These risks are managed
consistently in ling with the Group's gverall risk
management policies.

The following table provides an cverview of
the Group’s exchange rate and interest rate
derivatives as at 30 September.
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Note 49: Derivatives continued

Consolidated 2006 Consolidated 2005

Notional <« Fair value —— Mational —— Fairvalug ——
sm amount Assets Liabilities Net amount Assels Liabilities Net
Derivatives held for trading
Futures 15,058 2 ] 1 12,567 3 (2) 1
Forward rale agreements 57,300 10 (2) 8 32,440 2 (1 1
Interest rate swaps 68,055 2497 (257) (10) 60,754 145 (128) 17
Interest rate options 661 1 (1) - 370 1 - 1
Foreign exchange 18,131 175 (121) 54 13,990 62 (117) {55)
Cross currency swaps 3,509 59 (43) 16 2,208 25 (93) (58)
Foreign exchange options 3,573 13 {n 2 2,708 14 (9} 5

166,287 507 (436) 71 125,037 252 (350) (98}
Derivatives held for cash
flow hedging
Interest rate swaps 15,657 62 (40) 22 9,907 7 {24) (17}

15,657 62 (40) 22 9,907 7 {24} (17}

Derivatives held for fair
value hedging
Interest rate swaps 1,397 8 (20) (12) 1,430 1 {3) 8
Cross currency swaps 27,463 516 (694) (178) 21,481 197 (1,290 {1,093)

28,860 524 (714) (190) 22,91 208 (1,293 {1,085)
Total derivatives 210,804 1,093 (1,190) (97) 157,855 467 (1,667) (1,200)

The noticna! amounts for derivatives do not represent asseis or liabilities on the balance sheet, but represent the basis for calculating net amounts from
underlying reference rates. The Group's exposure to counterparty risk is, therefore, limited to the positive value attached 1o the derivative arising from
favourable movements in the underlying reference rates.

The credil risk associated with futures contracts is negligible as contracts are collateralised by cash with any changes in markel value of contracts being
setiled on a daily basis with the clearing house.

As the Group’s primary reason for holding derivatives is for balance sheet hedging purposes, the majority of derivatives have been transacted with
financial institutions of investment grade quality. The Group's credit policy and procedures ensure that exposures 1a counterparty risks are constantly
monitored, thereby limiting credit risk concantration to any individual counterparty through risk limits approved by the Board.

Note 50: Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The fallowing disclosures provide an analysis of the fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value in the balance sheet. The fair values
provided are stated at a specific date and may be significantly different to amounts paid or received on maturity of the financial instruments. As a result,
the fair value shown does not reflect the value of these financial instruments to the Group on a going concern basis.

Fair value represents the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liabitiy setiled in an arms length transaction between willing parties.
The value of the Group's relationship with customers together with nen-financial instruments s nat included in the disclosure below,

Quoted market prices are used as the measure of fair value. Where quoted market prices are noi available, fair values are based on valuation techniques
based upon observable market data. The fair value of short-term financial instruments is estimated to equal their carrying value as these insiruments
reprice or mature in 180 days or less with no significant change in credit risk.

The estimates of fair value are subjective and invoive the exercise of judgement. Changes in assumptions used could have a material impact on the
amounts disclosed. As a result, it is difficult to make reasonable comparisons of the Group to other financial institutions due to the wide range of
valuation techniques and numerous estimates that must be made.
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Note 50: Fair Values of Financial Instruments continued

Carrying value Fair value

sm 20056 2005 2006 2005
Financial assets

Cash and liquid assets 1,081 1,184 1,081 1,184
Receivables due from other financial institutions 1,182 1.4 1,182 1M
Investment sgcurities - 1,149 - 1,149
Loans and other receivables 81,516 72,949 81,506 73,033
Bank acceptances of customers 11,908 7098 1,908 7,098
Financial liabilities

Deposits and other barrowings 54,633 48175 54,627 49,179
Payables due to other financial institutions 401 91 401 9N
Bank acceptances 7,287 7098 7,187 7,098
Bonds and nates 34,593 25918 34,566 25,921
Loan capital 2,032 1956 2,023 1,968

Cash and liquid assets, receivables due from other financial institutions and bank acceptances of customers
The carrying value of cash and liquid assets, due from other financial institutions snd bank acceptances of customers approximate their fair value as they
are short-term in nature or are receivable on demand.

Investment securities (comparative period only)
Fair value is based on quoted market prices, broker or dealer price guotations. Where such prices are not available, fair value is estimated using quoted
market prices for securities with similar characteristics.

Loans and other receivables

The carrying value of loans and other receivables is net of specific and collective provisions for doubtful debts and unearned income. For variable rate
loans {excluding impaired loans), the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value. The fair value of fixed rate loans was calculated by discounting
the expecied future cash flows using current market rates.

For impaired assets the fair value is calculated by discounting expected future cash flows over the time period they are expected to be recovered.

Deposits and other borrowings
The fair value of at call and variable rate deposits is the carrying value at 30 September. For other deposits, discounted cash flow models based upon
current market rates for debt with similar characteristics and maturities were used 1o caiculate fair values.

Payables due to other financial institutions
The carrying value of balances due to other financial institutions is considered to approximate their fair value.

Bonds and notes and loan capital
The fair value of bonds and notes and loan capital was calculated based on guoted market prices at 30 September. Where quoted prices were not
available, a discounted cash flow model using a yield curve appropriate for the remaining maturity of the instrument was used,

Note 51: Related Parties

Key management personnel

The following were key management personnel of the St.George Bank Group at any tlime during the financial year and unless otherwise indicated were
key management personnel for the entire period.

Executive Director Executives
G P Kelly {Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer} G Bartlett Group Executive - Institutional and Business Banking
Non-Executive Directors R Chapman Managing Director 8ankSA

J M Tharne (Chairman) P Clare * Group Executive - Strategy

L F Bleasel {retired 16 December 2005) P Fegan Group Executive - Wealth Management and Retail
1§ Curtis ) Financial Services

T) Davig D Gall Group Executive - Retail Business

R A F England J Loebenstein  Group Executive - Information Technology

P D R Isherwood S McKerihan Chief Financial Officer

L B Nichtolls 8 Wright Group Executive - Human Resources

G ) Reaney
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Note 51: Related Parties continued

Equity instrument disclosures relating to key management personnel

(i} Options and awards provided as remuneration and shares issued on exercise of such optians and awards
Details of options and awards providad as remuneration and shares issued on the exercise of such options and awards, logether with their terms and
conditions, can be found in the remuneration repart which is contained in the Directors’ Report in the Group's Concise Annual Report.

{i) Option holdings of key management personnel and their related parties
All options refer to options aver ordinary shares of $t.George Bank Limited, which are exercisable on a cne-for-one basis under the Executive Option Plan,

The following tables sel out the movement during the financial year in the number of apiions over ordinary shares in the Bank held directly, indirectly or

beneficially, by each key management person, including their related parties.

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Options granted Oplions Mumber of Number of
as compensation  exercised during Numberof  oplionsvested  options vested
Number of options in the current Lhe current Other  options held at inthe current  and exercisable

Name held a1 1 Oct 2005 financial year financiat year changes 30 Sept 2006 financial year  at 30 Sept 2006
Executive Director
G P Kelly 1,250,000 - (250,000) - 1,000,000 625,000 625,000
Executives
G Bartlett 197,112 38,428 (66,016) - 169,524 84,016 37,274
R Chapman 185,643 32,024 (40,058) - 177,609 81,910 74,473
P Clare 255,621 59,778 - - 315,399 109,242 148,696
P Fegan 186,356 44,834 {60,148) - 171,042 82,148 37,052
D Gall 47,358 68,318 - - 115,676 15,786 15,786
) Loebenslein 91,892 25,620 (25,052) - 92,460 43,220 24,336
S McKerihan 161,457 44,834 {32,190} - 174,101 69,914 63,181
B wWright 179,444 52,306 (40,058} - 191,692 86,520 58,026
For the year ended 30 September 2005

Options granted Options Number of Nuymber of

as compensation  exercised during Number of options vested options vested

Number of opiions in the current the current Other  options held at in the current  and exercisable

Name held at 1 Oct 2004 financial year financial year changes("‘ 30 Sept 2005 financial year a1 30 Sept 2005
Executive Director
G P Kelly 1,000,000 500,000 (250,000) - 1,250,000 250,000 250,000
Executives
G Bartlett 156,846 54,000 (13,734) - 197,112 33,008 19.274
R Chapman 135,639 50,004 - - 185,643 32,621 32,621
P Clare 164,619 91,002 - - 255,621 39,454 39,454
P Fegan 135,378 66,000 (15,022) - 186,356 30,074 15,052
D Gall - 47,358 - - 47,358 - -
) Loebenstein 65,334 36,000 (9,442) - 91,892 15,610 6,168
$ McKerihan 104,457 57,000 - - 161,457 25,457 25,457
B Wright 129,471 70,002 (20,029) - 179,444 31,593 11.564
Former
A Thorburn @ 198,060 - (30,043) (168,017) - - -

{a) Mr A Therburn departed the Bank during the 2005 financial year and forfeited his options.

No options held by key management persannel are vested but not exarcisable st 30 Septentber 2005 or 2006.
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Note 51: Related Parties continved

{iii) Awards held by key management personnel and their related parties
All swards refer Lo rights over ordinary shares of St.George Bank Limited, which are exercisable on a one-for-one basis under the Performance Plan or

Reward Plan.

/1

The following tables set out the movement during the financial year in the number of rights over ordinary shares of the Bank, held directly, indirectly or
beneficially, by each key management person, including their related partics.

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Awards granted Awards Number of Number of
as compensalion  exercised during Number of awards vested awards vesled
Number of awards in the current the current awards held at inthe current  and exercisable
Name held a1 1 Oct 2005 financial year financial ycar ~ Other changes 30 Sept 2006 financial year a1 30 Sept 2006
Executive Director
G P Kelly 57,600 - - - 57,600 14,400 14,400
Executives
G Bartlett 28,264 7,534 (10,098) - 25,700 14,938 5,760
R Chapman 1,570 6,286 (2,839) - 15,017 5,360 3122
P Clare 11,554 2,182 (4,150) - 9,586 5,648 2,234
I Fegan 56,786 8,782 (32,378) - 33,190 18,292 7,589
D Gall 8,765 3,250 {4,359) - 7,656 3,038 1,861
) Loebenstein 24,944 5,038 (7,290) - 22,692 12,118 6,430
$ McKerihan 39,548 8,782 (14,534) - 33,796 19,642 7,539
B Wright 8,972 1,912 (3,342) - 7,542 4,494 1,704
For the year ended 30 September 2005
Awards granted Awards Number of Number of
as compensation  exercised during Number of awards vested awards vested

Number of awards in the current the current Other changes awards held at inthe current  and exercisable
Name held at 1 Oct 2004 financial year financial year (a) () 30 Sept 2005 finangial year  at 30 Sept 2005
Executive Director
G PEKelly 25,000 57,600 (25,000) - 57,600 25,000 -
Executives
G Bartlett 37,646 14,561 (23,943) - 28,264 24,863 920
R Chapman 1,21 5,801 (5.442) - 11,570 1,744 601
P Clare 18,637 4,535 (11,618) - 11,554 4,893 736
P Fegan 65,851 17,783 (26,848) - 56,786 26,213 21,675
D Gall - 2,154 - 6,611 8,765 8,907 3182
] Loebenstein 33,499 9,719 {18,274} - 24,944 19,878 1,602
S McKerihan 52,891 15,365 {28,708) - 39,548 31139 2,431
B Wright 22,994 3,497 {17.519) - 8,972 18,071 552
Former
A Thorburn 16,756 41 (8,345) (8,452) - - -

{a) On1March 2005, Mr D Gall was appointed to the position of Group Exccutive, At this date, Mr Gall held 6,611 awards,

(b} Mr A Thorburn departed the Bank during the 2005 financial year and forfeited his awards,

No awards held by key management personnel are vested but not exercisable a1 30 September 2005 or 2006.
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Note 51: Related Parties continued

{iv) Equity holdings of key management personnel and their related parties
The following tables set out the movement during the financial year in the number of ordinary shares, PRYMES and SAINTS of St.George Bank Limited
held directly, indirectly or beneficially, by each key management person, including their persanally related entities.

dAovements during the year

Held at Exercise Exercise Other Held at
10ct 2005 Purchases of options of rights Sales changcs“' 30 Sep 2006
SHARES
Directors
J M Thame 150,000 - - - - 216 150,216
G PKelly 275,000 - 250,000 - - - 525,000
)5 Curtis @ 19,807 2,734 - - - - 22,541
T) Bavis 4,988 6,635 - - - - 11,623
R A F England 2,551 50 - - - - 2,601
P D R isherwood 26,596 1,352 - - - - 27,948
L B Nichalls 4,669 1,150 - - - - 5,819
G ) Reaney 44,440 3,076 - - - - 47,516
528,051 14,997 250,000 - - 216 793,264
Former Director
L F Bleasel 48,720 - - - - {48,720) -
Executives
G Bartlett 519,651 - 66,016 10,098 - - 595,765
R Chapman 9,797 - 40,058 2,839 (3,071} - 49,623
P Clare 16,667 - - 4,150 - - 20,817
P Fegan ™ 109,122 24,080 60,148 32,378 - - 225,728
D Gall 31,729 - - 4,359 - - 36,088
) Leebenstein 300,229 - 25,052 7,290 - - 332,571
S McKerihan 403,387 - 32,190 14,534 - - 450,111
B Wright 78,027 - 40,058 3,342 - - 121,427
1,468,609 24,080 263,522 78,990 (3,071) - 1,832,130
PRYMES
Director
J M Thame @ 63 - - - - (63) -
Former Director
L ¥ Bleasel ™ 427 - - - - (427) -
SAINTS
Directors
G P Kelly 208 - - - - - 208
) S Curtis 318 - - - - - 318
P DR Isherwood 263 - - - - - 263
789 - - - - - 789
{1} During the year, Mr L F Bleasel retired as a Director of the Bank.
{2} Mr) S Curtis also holds an interest in 15.000 instaiment warrants in {ully paid ordinary shares of the Bank.
(3) A put option has been entered into with an entity outside the Group in respect of 40,000 shares held at 30 September 2006.
(4) Mr ] M Thame's PRYMES were converted into 216 ordinary shares on 21 February 2006.
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«————  Movements during the yeaf —M88 ——
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Held at Exercise Exercise Cther changes Held at
10c¢t 2004 Purchases of options of rights Sales Mm@ 30 Sep 2005
SHARES
Directors
] M Thame 150,000 - - - - - 150,000
G P Kelly 25,000 - 250,000 25,000 (25,000) - 275,000
L F Bleasel 46,471 2,249 - - - - 48,720
J 5 Curtis ¥ 18,166 1,641 - - - - 19,807
T Davis - 4,988 - - - - 4,988
R AF England 500 2,051 - - - - 2,551
P D R Isherwood 25,287 1,309 - - - - 26,596
L B Nicholls 3,617 1,052 - - - - 4,669
G ) Reaney 42,388 2,052 - - - - 44,440
311,429 15,342 250,000 25,000 {25,000) - 576,771
Former Director
F ] Conroy 14,578 418 - - - (14,996) -
Executives
G Bartlett 481,974 - 13,734 23,943 - - 519,651
R Chapman 6,555 - - 5.442 (2,200) - 9,797
P Clare 5,049 - - 11,618 - - 16,667
P Fegan ¥ 41,266 25,986 15,022 26,848 - - 109,122
b Gall - - - - - 31,729 31,729
} Loebenstein 272,513 - 9,442 18,274 - - 300,229
$ McKerihan 374,679 - - 28,708 - - 403,387
B Wright 40,479 - 20,029 17,515 - - 78,027
1,222,515 25,986 58,227 132,352 (2,200} 31729 1,468,609
Former Executive
A Thorburn 5,889 - 30,043 8,345 - (47,277) -
PRYMES
Directors
I M Thame 63 - - - - - 63
L F Bleasel 427 - - - - - 427
490 - - - - - 490
Former Director
F ) Conroy 63 - - - - (63) -
SAINTS
Directors
G P Kelly 208 - - - - - 208
J S Curtis 318 - - - - - 318
P D R Isherwood 263 - - - - - 263
789 - - - - - 789
Former Director
F | Canroy 109 - - - - (109) -

(1) During the year, Mr F | Conroy retired as Chairman and Mr A Thorburn resigned from his position as Group Executive - Personal Customers. Accerdingly,

Mr F J Conroy and Mr A Thorburn are no longer a Director and executive respectively. On resignation, Mr A Thorburn forfeited 168,017 options and 8,452 awards.

(2) On1March 2005, Mr D Gall was appointed to the position of Group Executive - Retail Business. At that date, Mr Gall held 31,729 shares.

{3) Mr ]S Curtis also holds an interest in 15,000 instalment warrants in fully paid ordinary shares of the Bank.

{4) A put option has been entered into with an entity cutside the Group in respect of 40,000 shares held at 30 September 2005.

Key management personne! and their related parties received dividends on these equity instruments on conditions that are no more favourable than

other equity holders.
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Note 51; Related Parties continued

Loans to key management personnel
Details regarding the aggregate of loans made, guaranteed or secured to key management persennel and their related parties, and the number of
individuals are as follows:

Opening Clesing Interest Interest Number in

batance balance charged not charged Group al

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 30 Sept

Total for key management personne! 2006 13,946 17,122 1,132 12 9

2005 13,390 13,946 951 12 10

Total for other related parties 2006 - 805 14 - -
. 2005 - - - -

Tolal for key management personnel and their related partics 2006 13,946 17,927 1,146 12 9

2005 13.390 13,946 951 12 10

Details of loans to key management personnel and their related parties, where the individual's loan(s) batances exceeded $100,000 ai any time
during the year are as follows:

. Balance at Balance a1 Highest balance Intcrest Interest
For the year ended 30 September 2006 10ct 2005 30 Sept 2006  during the year charged not charged
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Director
L B Nichells 205 343 343 27 -
Executives
G Bartlett 4,012 4,517 4,666 268 10
R Chapman - 326 326 5 -
P Clare 1,069 743 1,069 49 -
P Fegan 3,033 5,179 5,509 348
G Gall 799 823 1,023 38 6
} Loebenstein 2,374 3,647 4,124 236 -
§ McKerihan 2,007 1,7H 2,320 139 -
Balance at Balance a1 Highest balance Interest Interest
For the year ended 30 September 2005 10ct 2004 30 Scpt 2005  during the year charged not charged
$'000 3000 $'000 $'000 %000
Director
L B Nicholls 315 205 353 27 -
Executives
G Bartleut 3,894 4,012 4,061 247 9
P Clare 1,219 1,069 1221 71 -
P Fegan 2122 3,033 3,066 231 -
D Galt {appointed 1 March 2005) - 799 835 28 -
) Locbensigin 2,343 2,374 2,627 180 -
S McKerihan 2,734 2,007 3,005 144 -
B Wright 109 65 109 6 -
Former Executive
A Thorburn (resigned) 631 - 644 6 -
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Note 51: Related Parties continued

Ne loans to key management personnel and
their relsted parties have been guaranteed or
secured against the assets of any entities in the
Group. No amounts have been written down or
pravided for as the loans are considered fully
performing. With the exception of an interest
free loan 1o Mr G Bartlett of $140,785 that was
advanced in 1989, and the interest free loan

to Mr D Gall of $44,074, which was repaid
during 2006, all loans provided by the Bank

to key management personnel are made in the
ordinary course of businegss on an arms length
basis and are entered into under normal terms
and conditions consistent with these offered
by the Bank to its customers. For loans that
have loan interest offset facilities, the interest
charged that is disclosed above is calculated
after the offset.

Other transactions with key management
personnel and their related parties

All other transactions with key management
personnel (including their related parties)
were conducted on an arms length basis in
the ordinary course of business and on normal
terms and conditions for customers, employecs
or suppliers. These transactions were trivial or
domestic in nature and consisted principally
of normal personal banking and deposit
transactions or the provision of financial,
utility or postal services.

The Ban' has agrecments with certain Non-
Executive Directors providing for benefits
to be paid on their retirement or death. The
maximum benefit payable is disclosed in
Note 39.

The Bank has agreements with key
management personnel providing for
termingtion payments in certain circumstances.
Details of these service contracts are disclosed
in Note 39.

Controlled entities

The Bank's aggregate investment in amaunts
receivable from and amounts due to controlled
cntities are disclosed in the Balance Sheet of
the Bank.

Details of amounts paid or received from
controlled entities in the form of dividends or
inierest are set out in Notes 2 and 3.

Note 52: Explanation of Transition
to AIFRS

Ag stated in Note 1, these are the Bank's and
Group's first consolidated annual financial
statements to be prepared in accordance
with AIFRS.

The policies sct out in the significant accounting
policies section of this report have been

applied in preparing the financial statements

for the year enced 30 September 2006.

With the exception of financial instruments,

the comparative figures in respect of the

30 September 2005 year and opening AIFRS
balance sheet at 1 October 2004 have been
prepared in accordance with AIFRS.

The Group has taken the exemption available
under AASB 1 First-time Adoption of
Australian Equivalents to internaticnal Financial
Reporting Siandards {AIFRS) to only apply
AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosure
and Presentation and AASB 139 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
from 1 October 2005. Accordingly, AIFRS
adjustments relating to these standards have
only been included in the 1 Octaber 2005
balance sheet reconciliation.

In preparing its opening AIFRS balance sheet
and comparative period resulls, amounts
reporled previously in financial statements
prepared in accordance wilh the previcus basis
of accounting (previous GAAP) have been
adjusted. An explanation of how the transition
from previous GAAP (0 AIFRS has affected

the Bank's and Group's financial position and
financial performance is set out in the following
tables and the notes that accompany the tables.

In explaining the impact of adopting AIFRS,
adjustments have been categorised inic
reciassificaiions of existing assets, liabilities
and equity, censalidation of new entities into
the Group and changes in the recognition and
measurement of items in the income statement
and balance sheet.

() Reclassifications

In accordance with AIFRS classification
requirements, assets and liabilitics reported
under previous GAAP have been reclassified.

Key items reclassified for periods prior to
1 Oclober 2005 include:

+ Deferred computer software expenditure
has been reclassified from other assels 1o
intangible assets (refer Note (ix)).

« Deferred tax assets and fiabilities have
keen seporately identified within the
balance sheet {refer Note (vii)).
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Key items reclassified from 1 October 2005
include:

¢ Derjvative assets and tigbilities recognised
under previous GAAP have been
reclassified from other assets and other
liabilities 1o derivative assets and derivative
lisbilities respectively (refer Note {xii)).

» Trading assets and part of other
investments have been reclassified 1o
assels at fair value through the income
statement (refer Note (xiv)}.

» Investment securities and part of other
investments have been reclassified to
available for safe investments {refer
Note (xiv}).

= Deferred origination costs previously
recognised within other assets have been
reclassified 10 loans and other receivables
{refer Note (xi)).

« Reclassification of Depasitary Capital
Securities included within minority
interests under previous GAAP Lo liabilities
at fair value through the income statement
(refer Note (x)).

= Reclassification of Preferred Resetting
Yield Marketable Equity Securities included
within sharehalders' equily under previous
GAAP 1o bonds and notes {refer Note {x}}.

« Reclassification of income earned on bank
acceptances from oiher income to interast
income (refer Note (xvi)).

(i) Consolidation

AIFRS has resufted in the consolidation of

both St.George's securitised assels and

certain asset-backed conduit vehicles.

The consolidation of these vehicles from

1 October 2004 results in a “gross-up” of the
balance sheet and income statement, however,
there is no significant impact on profit or
shareholders’ equity.

{iif) Recognition and measurement

AIFRS has required a change from previous
GAAP recognition and measurement practices
for both income statement and balance sheet
items.

Key items for periods prier to 1 October 2005

include:

+  Goodwill is no longer amortiscd, instead
being subject 1o an annual asscssment for
impairment,

+  The fair value of equity instruments granted
1o employees after 7 November 2002 which
are unvested at 1 January 2005 is recognised
as an expense over the vesling period.
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Note 52: Explanation of Transition
to AIFRS continued

» Leveraped lease income is recognised over
the lease term on an eifective pre-tax yield
basis.

» Land and buildings are recognised at deemed
cost, with the previous assel revaluation
reserve transferred to retained earnings and
the recognition of a deferred tax liability.

= The defined benefit plan deficit is
recognised as a liability.

«  Cenain tems previously included within
deferred expenditure are no longer eligible
for recognition within intangible assets and
have been written off.

Income statement reconciliation

« Income tax deferred assets and liabilities
are recognised based upon a “balance
sheet approach™.

Key itemg fram 1 Qetober 2005 include:

»  Share issue and redemption costs relating
1o the PRYMES are included in the
measurement value of the liability.

»  Certain fees previously recognised as
income are deferred and recognised on an
effective yield basis.

» Al derivatives are recognised at fair
value, with hedge accounting applied in
circumstances where sirict criteria are
satisfied.

The following table reconciles comparative income statement figures from previous GAAP 10 AIFRS.
«——— AIFRS transition adjusiments ¥ ——

Loan provisioning methodologies have
changed., resulling in the write-back of
general provisions under previous GAAP
and the recognition of AIFRS collective
provisions.

Certain financial instruments have

been recognised as available for sale
investments at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in an equity reserve.
Depositary Capital Securities and related
derivatives are fair valued through the
income statement.

AGAAP Group  Consolidation Recognition and Towal AIFRS  Reclassification  AIFRS Group
measurement transiticn  of discantinued
Consclidated $m operation
For the year ended 30 September 2005
interest income 4,686 819 - 819 (31 5474
Interest expense 2,979 725 - 725 {27 3,677
Net intcrest income 1,707 94 (iii) - 94 (4} 1,797
Other income 1,084 (96) (iil) - {96) - 988
Total operating income 279 (2) - 2 (4 2,785
Bad and doubtful debts expense 1o - - - () 109
Operaling expenses 1,279 (2) i) 15 ()W) 13 (13) 1,279
Share of profit of equity accounted associates 3 - - - - 3
Goodwill amertisation and write-off 105 - {101} (i} (101 - 4
Profit before income tax 1,300 - 86 86 10 1,396
INCome tax expense 114 - m (1 - 413
Profit after income tax 886 - 87 87 10 983
Loss from discontinued operation - - - - {10) {10)
Profit aiter tax and discontinued operation 886 - 87 87 - 973
Attributable 1o:
Minority interests {5) - - - - {5)
Equity holders 891 - 87 87 - 978
«—— AIFRS transition adjustments ') ——
Recognition and Total AIFRS AIFRS Bank
Bank $Sm AGAAP Bank  Consclidation  measurement transition
For the year ended 30 September 2005
Interest income 4,586 - - - 4,586
Interest expense 2,995 - - - 2,995
Net interest income 1,591 - - - 1,591
Other income 943 - - - 943
Total operating income 2,534 - - - 2,534
Bad and doubtful debts expense 108 - - - 108
Qperating expenses 1150 - 15 {ii).{v) 15 1165
Goodwill amortisation and write-aff 62 - 6 () 62) -
Profit before income tax 1,214 - 47 47 1,261,
Income tax expense 330 - (1) (v) () 329
Profit after income tax 884 - 48 48 932

(1} Further explanation of AIFRS transition adjustments is set cut on pages 86 10 88.
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Note 52: Explanation of Transition to AIFRS continued

Balance sheet reconciliation
«— AIFRS transition gdjustments (¥ ———

Consolidated $m Recognition and Total AIFRS  AIFRS Group
1Qctober 2004 AGAAP Group Reclassification  Consolidation  measurement transition
Assets
Cash and liquid assets 1,180 - - - - 1,180
Receivables due from other financial institutions 371 - 631 - 631 1,002
Assels at fair value through the income statement 5,200 - - - - 5,200
Investment securities 415 - 1.022 - 1,022 1,437
Loans and cther receivables 54,782 - 10,552 (13} (iv) 10,539 65,321
Bank acceplances of customers 5132 - - - - 5,132
Investments in associated companies 2z - - - - 2
QOther investments 76 - (22) - (22} 54
Property, plant and equipment 472 - - - - 472
Intangible assets 1,165 103 (ix} - (3) {ix} 100 1,265
Deferred tax assets - 86 (vii) - 2 (vi) 88 88
Other assets 1,165 (189) (vii), (ix)  (50) - {239) 926
Total assets 69,960 - 12,133 (14) 12,119 82,079
Liabilities
Ceposils and other borrowings 46,083 - 1,049 - 1,049 47132
Payables due 1o other financia! institutions 758 - - - - 758
Bank acceplances 5132 - - - - 5132
Provision for dividends 12 - - - - 12
Income tax liability 365 (365) (vii} - - {365) -
Currenl tax liability - 154 {vii) - - 154 154
Deferred tax liability - 211 {vii) - 22 (ivhlv), 233 233
(vl {ix)
Other provisions 106 - - - - 106
Bonds and notes 9,769 - 10,347 - 10,347 20,116
Loan capital 1,619 - - - - 1,619
Bills payable and other liabilities 1,087 - 737 5 (vi} 742 1.829
Total liabilities 64,931 - 12,133 27 12,160 77,091
Net assets 5,029 - - a1 {41} 4,988
Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital 3,964 - - - - 3,964
Reserves 87 - - (79) (i) {v) {79 B
Retained profits 619 - - 38 (N.(vi(v), 38 657
§vi) i) (ix)
Shareholders’ equity sttributable to members of the Bank 4,670 - - (41 (4n 4,629
Minority interests in controlled entities 359 - - - - 359
Total shareholders’ equity 5,029 - - (41) (41) 4,988

(1) Further explanation of AIFRS transition impacts is set out cn pages 86 1o 38.
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Note 52: Explanation of Transition to AIFRS continued

Balance sheet reconciliation
<« —— AIFRS transition adjusiments ¥ ———

Bank $m AGAAP Reclassification  Censolidation Recognition and Total AIFRS AIFRS
1 0ctober 2004 Bank measurement transition Bank
Assets

Cash and liquid assets 1171 - - - - 1,171
Receivables due from other financial institutions 253 - - - - 253
Assels at fair value through the income statement 4,768 - - - - 4,768
Investment securilies 385 - - - - 385
Loans and other receivables 52,388 - - (13) (iv) (13) 52,375
Bank acceptances of customers 5132 - - - - 5,132
Amounts receivable from controlled entities 2,314 - - - - 2.314
Investment in controlled entities 1,797 - 22 - 22 1,819
Other investmeants 26 - {22) - (22) 4
Property, plant and equipment 360 - - - - 360
Intangible assels 762 82 (ix) - - 8Z 844
Deferred tax assets - 85 (vii) - 2 i) 87 g7
Other asseis 980 (167) {vii), (ix} - - (167) 813
Total assets 70,336 - - (11) 1 70,325

Liabilities

Deposits and other borrowings 45,762 - - - - 45,762
Payables due to other financial institutions 758 - - - - 758
Bank acceptances 5,132 - - - - 5132
Amounts payable to centrolled entities 1,168 - - - - 1,168
Provision for dividends 4 - - - - 4
Income tax liability 355 {355) (vii} - - (355) -
Current {ax liability - 147 (vii) - - 147 147
Deferred tax liability - 208 {vii) - 13 (v, 2N 221
{vii)
Other provisions 97 - - - - 97
Bonds and notes 9.769 - - - - 9,769
Loan capiial 1,619 - - - - 1,619
Bills payable and other liabilities 948 - - 5 {vi) 5 953
Total liabilities 65,612 - - 18 18 65,630
Net assets 4,724 - - (29) (29) 4,695

Shareholders’ Equity

Share capital 3,993 - - - - 3,993

Reserves 12 - - (106) {ii}.lv), (106} 6

Retained profits 619 - - 77 (i), 77 696
(i), (vii)

Total shareholders’ equity 4,724 - - (29) (29) 4,695

(1} Further explanation of AIFRS transition impacts is sel oul on pages 86 1o 88.
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Note 52: Explanation of Transition te AIFRS continued

Balance sheet reconciliation

79

«———— AIFRS (ransition adjustments Y ——s

Consolidated $m AGAAP  Reclassification  Consolidation Recognition and Toial AIFRS AIFRS
30 September 2005 Group measurement transition Group
Assets
Cash and liquid assets 1184 - - - - 1,184
Receivables due from other financial institutions 529 - 582 - 582 (R
Assels al fair value through the income slatement 6,295 - (288) - (288) 6,007
Investment securities 18 - 1137 - 1,131 1,149
Loans and other receivables 59,687 - 13,275 (13)(v) 13,262 72,949
Bank acceptances of customers 7,098 - - - - 7,098
tnvestments in associated companies - - - - - -
Other investments &7 - (22 - (22) 45
Property, plant and equipment 459 - - (7) (v} 7 457
Intangible assels 1,060 10 (ix) - 98 (i){ix) 208 1,268
Deferred tax assels - 91 (vii} - 2 {vi) 93 93
Other zssets 1,192 (201) (vii), (%) 12 - (189) 1,003
Total assets 77,589 - 14,690 80 14,770 92,359
Liabilities
Depasils and other borrowings 48,149 - 1,026 - 1,026 49,175
Payables due to other financial institutions N - - - - 91
Bank acceptances 7,098 - - - - 7,098
Pravision for dividends 12 - - - - 12
Income Lax liability 353 (353) {vii) - - (353) -
Current tax liability - 157 {vii) - - 157 157
Deferred tax liability - 196 (vii) - 21 (iv)(v), 217 217

(vii},{ix)
Other provisions 1G9 - - - - 109
Bonds and noles 13,139 - 12,779 - 12,779 25,918
Loar capital 1,956 - - - - 1,956
Bills payable and cther liabilities 1,349 - 885 5 (vi) 890 2,239
Total liabilities 72,256 - 14,690 26 14,716 86,972
Net assets 5,333 - - 54 54 5,387
Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital 4,105 - - - - 4,105
Reserves 94 - - WAV (71) 23
Retained profits 781 - - 125 (i), Gi)(iv), 125 906

{v).vi)

{vii) {ix}
Shareholders’ equity attributable to members of the Bank 4,980 - - 54 54 5,034
Minorily interests in controlled entities 353 - - - - 353
Total shareholders’ equity 5,333 - - 54 54 5,387

{1} Further explanation of AIFRS transition impacts is set out on pages 86 to 88.
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Note 52: Explanation of Transition to AIFRS continued

Balance sheet recanciliation

«— AIFRS transition adjustments ! ———

Bank $m AGAAP Reclassification  Consolidation Recognition and Total AIFRS AIFRS
30 September 2005 Bank measurement transition Bank
Assets
Cash and liquid assets 1,175 - - - - 1,175
Receivables due from other financial institutions 505 - - - - 505
Assets at fair value through the income statement 5,893 - - - - 5.893
Investment securities - - - - - -
Loans and other receivables 55,989 - - {13) (iv) (13) 55,976
Bank acceptances of customers 7,058 - - - - 7.098
Amounts receivable from contrelled entities 2,837 - - - - 2,837
Investment in controlled entities 1,812 - 22 - 22 1,834
Invesiments in associated companies - - - - - -
Other investments 24 - (22 - (22 2
Property, plant and equipment 348 - - - - 348
intangible assets 700 90 (ix) - 62 (i) 152 852
Deferred tax assets - 91 {vii) - 2 (Vi) 93 93
Other assets 1,066 (187) (vii}, (ix) - - (181} 885
Total assets 77,447 - - 51 51 77,498
Liabilities
Deposits and other borrowings 47,775 - - - - 47,775
Payables due to other financial institutions 91 - - - - N
Bank acceptances 7,098 - - - - 7,098
Amounts payable to controlled entities 734 - - - - 734
Provision for dividends 5 - - - - 5
Income 12x liability 340 (340) (vii) - - (340) -
Current tax liability - 145 (vii) - - 145 145
Deferred tax liability - 195 (vii) - 12 (i) 207 207
Other provisions 100 - - - - 100
Bonds and notes 13,139 - - - - 13,139
Loan capital 1,856 - - - - 1,956
Bills payable and other liabilities 1163 - - 5 {vi) 5 1,168
Total hiabilities 72,401 - - 17 17 72,418
Net assets 5,046 - - 34 34 5,080
Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital 4,136 - - - - 4,136
Reserves 109 - - (o1 (i (51 18
Retained profits 801 - - 125 (0in,0v), 125 978
{v),{vi).{vii)
Total shareholders’ equity 5,046 - - 34 34 5,080

(1) Further explanation of AIFRS transition impacts is set out on pages 86 to 88.
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Note 52: Explanation of Transition to AIFRS continued

Balance sheet reconciliation

<AIFRS Transition adjustments ‘s

81

Consolidated $m AGAAP Total AIFRS Recognition and Total AIFRS AIFRS
1 0ctober 2005 Group adjustments”  Reclassification measurement transition Group
Assets
Cash and liquid assets 1,184 - - - - 1,184
Receivables due from other financial institutions 529 582 - - 582 1111
Assets at fair vatue through the income statement 6,295 (288) (1,313} Cavd(xvid  {2) (xiv) (1.603) 4,692
Derivative assets - - 368 {xii) 99 (xii) 467 467
Available for sale investments - - 1170 {xiv) 7 {xiv} 1177 1177
Investment securitics 18 1,131 (1,149} (xiv} - (18) -
Loans and other receivables 59,687 13,262 73 {xi) (113} (i), (i) 13,222 72,909
Bank acceptances of customers 7,098 - 1,337 {xvi) (29) (xvi) 1,308 8,406
Investments in associated companies - - - - - -
Other investments 67 (22 {45) (xiv) - {67) -
Property. plant and equipment 459 (7 - - (7) 452
intangible assets 1,060 208 - - 208 1,268
Ueferred tox assels 91 2 - 155 ().0d).(xit), 157 248
(xiii), (xvi)
Other assets 1,101 (98) {4471} (i) {xii) (3) (ki) (542) 559
Total assets 77,589 14,770 - 114 14,884 92,473
Liabilities
Deposits and other borrowings 48,149 1026 - - 1,026 49,175
Payables dug to ather financial institutions N - - - - 9
Liabilities at fair value through the income statement - - 382 (x) 17 {x) 359 399
Derivative liabilities - - 1,558 (xii) 109 (xii} 1,667 1,667
Bank acceptances 7.098 - - (28) (xvi) (28) 7,070
Provision for dividends 12 - - - - 12
income tax liability 353 (353) - - (353) -
Current tax liability - 157 - - 157 157
Delferred tax ligbilities - 217 - 47 {xi),(xii) 264 264
(xiv), (xvi)
Other provisions 109 - - - - 109
Bonds and notes 13,139 12,779 293 (x) 12 (x).(xii) 13,084 26,223
Loan capital 1,956 - - - - 1,956
Bills payable and other liabilities 1,349 890 {1,608} (x}.{xii) 34 (xii) (684) 665
Total liabilities 72,256 14,716 625 191 15,532 87,788
Net assets 5,333 54 (625) . 77 (648} 4,685
Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital 4,105 - (291) (x) - (291} 3,814
Reserves 94 (71 - 54 (xii), (i), (17) 77
{xiv)
Retained profits 781 125 - (131) (). {xi),  {6) 775
(xiii), {xiv)
Sharcholders’ equity attributable to members of the Bank 4,980 54 (291) (77) (314) 4,666
Minority interests in controlled entities 353 - (334) (x) - (334) 15
Total shareholders’ equity 5,333 54 (625} 77 (648) 4,685

(1) Rcpresents the AIFRS impact as at 30 September 2005 of the application of all AIFRS standards from 1 October 2004, cxcept AASBE 132 gnd 139
(2) Represents AIFRS transition impacts for AASB 132 and 139 which have been adjusted as at 1 October 2005 (these are explained on pages 88 ta 90).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 52: Explanation of Transition to AIFRS continued

Balance sheet reconciliation

<AIFRS Transition adjustments ks

Bank $Sm AGAAP Total AIFRS Reclassification Recognition and Total AIFRS AIFRS
10ctober 2005 Bank adjustments measurement transition Bank
Assets
Cash and liquid assets 1,175 - - - - 1175
Receivables due from other financial institutions 505 - - - - 505
Assets at fair value through the income statement 5.893 - (1,335) (xiv)ovl) {2} (i) (1,337) 4,556
Derivative assets - - 299 (xii) 237 () {xi) 536 536
Available for sale investments - - - - - -
Investment securities - - - - - -
Loans and other receivables 55,989 (13) 73 {xi) (68} {xi).(xii) (8 55,987
Bank acceptances of customers 7,098 - 1,337 (xvi) (29} (xvi) 1,308 8,406
Amounts receivable from controlled entities 2,837 - - - - 2,837
Investments in controlled entities 1,812 22 - - 22 1,834
Investments in associated companies - - - - - -
Other investments 24 (22} (2} (xiv) - (24) -
Property, plant and equipment 348 - - - - 348
Intangible assets 700 152 - - 152 862
Deferred tax assets 91 2 - 187 {x),(x1),(xii), 189 280
{xiii}, v}
Other assets 975 (50) (372) (xi) (xif} (1) {xii) {463) 512
Total assets 77,447 a1 - 324 375 77,822
Liabilities
Deposits and other berrowings 47.775 - - - - 47775
Payables due to other financial institutions H - - - - 9
Liabilities at fair value through the income slalement - - - - - -
Derivative liabilities - - 719 (xii) 103 (xii) 822 822
Bank acceptances 7.098 - - {28) (xvi) (28} 7.070
Amounts payable to controlled entities 734 - - 189 (x) 189 923
Provision for dividends 5 - (2) (x) - (2} 3
Income tax liability 340 (340) - - {340) -
Current tax liability - 145 - - 145 145
Deferred tax liabilities - 207 - 77 (xLxi) (i) 284 284
{xvi)
Other provisions 100 - - - - 100
Bonds and notes 13,139 - 293 (x) 13 {x).(xii} 306 13,445
Loan capital 1,956 - - - - 1,956
Bills payable and other liahilities 1,163 5 (719) (xii) 35 {xii) (679) 484
Total liabilities 72,401 17 291 389 697 73,098
Net assets 5,046 34 (291) {65) (322) 4,724
Shareholders' Equity
Share capital 4136 - (291} (x) - (291) 3,845
Rescrves 109 (91) - 62 (xi{xii)  (29) 80
Retained profits 301 125 - (127) (x).(xi).kxil),  (2) 799
(xiii), {xiv),
{xvi)
Total shareholders’ equity 5,046 34 (291} (65) (322) 4,724

(1) Represents the AIFRS impact as at 30 September 2005 of the application of all AIFRS standards from 1 October 2004, except AASB 132 and 139.
(2) Represents AVFRS transition impacts for AASS 132 and 13% which have been adjusted as at 1 Oclober 2005 (Ihese arc explained on pages 88 to 20},
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 52: Explanation of Transition to AlFRS continued

Reconciliation of Shareholders’ Equity

83

The following table summarises the AIFRS transition impact on the components of shareholders’ equity at each balance daie shown.

As at Year ended As at
10ct 30 Sept 10ct
Consofidated $m Note 2004 2005 2005 Total
Retained Earnings
AIFRS transition adjustments:
Goodwill (i - 101 - 101
Share based payments (i} (4 (13) - (17)
Leveraged leases {iv} (9 - - (©)
Property, plant and equipment v 54 (0 - 53
Employee benefits {vi) (3 - - (3)
Ingome tax {vii) 2 - - 7
Intangibles (ix) (2) - - (@)
Hybrid financial instruments (x) - - (28) (28)
Transaction fees and costs (i) - - (86) (86)
Hedging {xi) - - {20) {20)
Loan provisicning (xiii) - - 73 73
Loan provisioning (i) - - (68) (68)
Financial instruments {xiv) - - V3] {2
38 87 (131) {6)
Share Capital
AIFRS tronsition adjustments:
Hybrid financial instruments {x) - - (291) (291)
- - {291) (291)
Other Reserves
AIFRS transition adjustments:
Share based payments (i) 4 13 - 17
Property, plant and equipment W) (83) (5) - {&8)
Hedging {xif) - - {19) {19)
Financial instrumems (xiv) - - 5 5
General reserve for credit losses {xiii) - - 68 68
(79) 8 54 (17)
Total AIFRS adjustments to equity attributable to members of the Bank {41} 95 (368) (314)
Minority Interests
AIFRS transition adjusiments:
Hybrid financial instruments {x) - - (334} {334)
- - (334) (334)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 52: Explanation of Transition to AIFRS continued

Reconciliation of Shareholders’ Equity

As 3t Year ended As al
10ct 30 Sept 1 Oct
Bank $m Nole 2004 2005 2005 Total
Retained Earnings
AIFRS transition adjustments:
Goodwil! (i} -
Share based payments (it} )
Leveraged leases {iv) 9
Property, plant and equipment v 81
Employee benefits {vi) {3
Income tax {vii) 12
Hybrid financial instruments () -
Transaction fees and costs {x) -
Headging (i) -
Loan provisioning (xii) -
Loan provisioning {xiii) -
Financial instruments {xiv) -
77
Share Capital
AIFRS transition adjustments:
Hybrid financial instruments (x} -
Other Reserves
AIFRS transition adjustments:
Sharc based payments (i) 4
Property, plant and equipment v} {10}
Hedging, {xi}) -
General reserve for credit losses {xii) -
(106)
Total AIFRS adjustments to equity attributable to members of the Bank (29)
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For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 52: Explanation of Transition to AIFRS continued

Reconciliation of Statements of Cash Flows

85

The adoption of AIFRS has impacied the statements of cash flows. The main differences 1o previous GAAP arise due to the consolidation of special

purpose entities (refer Note (i)} and the reclassification of certain cash flows from investing and financing activities to operating activities.

The impact of AIFRS is reflected below:

$m Previous GAAP  Adjustments AJFRS

Consolidated

For the year ended 30 September 2005

Cash flows (used in)/provided by aperating activities {99) 704 605

Cash flows (used in) investing activities (4,622) 4,522 (100)
Cash fiows provided by/(used in) financing activities 5,203 {(5,275) {72)
Cash movement 482 (49) 433

Cash at the beginning of the year 674 631 1,305

Cash at the end of the year 1,156 582 1,738

Bank

For the year ended 30 September 2005

Cash flows (used in)/provided by operating activities (121) 1,416 1,295

Cash flows (used in) investing activities (4,007) 3,448 (559)
Cash flows provided by/(used in) financing activities 4,699 {4,864) 165)
Cash movement 571 - 571

Cash at the beginning of the year 547 - 547

Cash at the end of the year 1118 - 1118
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 52: Explanation of Transition
to AIFRS continued

AIFRS impacts from 1 October 2004

(i) Goodwili

In accordance with the election available
under AASB 1, the Group has not restated any
husiness combinations that occurred prior to
1 October 2004.

Goodwill is recognised under AIFRS at cost less

accumulated amortisation as at 1 Qctober 2004

and is subject to an annual assessment for

impairment. If there is any goodwill impairment,
| it will be recognised immediately in the income

statement. There is no goedwill impairment in

existence as a1 1 October 2004, 30 September
‘ 2005 or 30 September 2008.

Goodwill will no longer be subject to periadic
amortisation and the goodwill amortisation
charge recognised under previous GAAP has
been reversed. This has resulted in an increase
in profit alter tax of $101 million for the year
ended 30 September 2005 (Bank: $62 million).
In addition, the carrying amount of goodwill
has been increased by $101 million as at

30 September 2005 (Bank: $62 million).

(i) Share based compensation

The Group did not recognise an expense in
relation to its employee share and options
schemes under previous GAAP. Following
transition to AIFRS, the fair value of equity
instruments granted 1o employees has been
calculated and recognised as an expense
through amortisation over the relevant vesting
period, adjusted for the expected and actual
level of vesting for non-market related vesting
conditions.

In accordance with the election available under
AASB 1, the Group has only applicd AASB 2
“Share Based Payment™ to equity instruments
granted after 7 November 2002 which were
unvested at 1 January 2C05.
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Upon transition to AIFRS, a reduction of

$4 million (Bank: $4 million) to retained
garnings at 1 Octaber 2004 was recognised,
representing the expensing of employee equity
grants over the vesting period 1o this date.

In addition, an expensc of $13 million (Bank:
$12 million) was recognised Lo restate the
result for the year ended 30 September 2005,
In conjunction with the recognition of an
expense for employee equily grants, a
corresponding increase is recognised within
an equity compensation reserve.

{iii) Consolidation

AIFRS introduces new requirements for the
recognition of financial assets, including those
transferred to a special purpose vehicle as

part of securitisation lransactions. Existing
securitisations, both of St.George's assets and
assets held in asset-backed conduit vehicles,
had not been consolidated within the S1.George
Group under previous GAAP, However, under
AIFRS the Group is considered to control these
special purpose vehicles and therelore

is required to consolidate thesc entities.

The new AIFRS consolidation requirements
have resulted in a gross-up of assets

and liabilities within the balance sheet

as at 1 October 2004 of $11.1 billion

(30 September 2005: $13.6 hillion} in relation
to the securitisation of St.George's assels and
$1.0 billion {30 September 2005: $1.1 billion)
in relation to asset-backed conduit vehicles.

The consolidation of these vehicles has

no net profit impact, however, it docs

result in a reclassification of items within

the income statement. For the year ended

30 September 2005, net interest income
increased by $94 million, non-interest income
decreased by $96 million and aperating
expenses decreased by $2 million.

In addition, certain assel-backed conduit
vehicle assets recognised upon consolidation
are classificd as available for sale investments,
with movements in their fair value recognised
in an available for sale reserve within equity
from 1 Oclober 2005.

The consclidation of the Ascalon Funds Seed
Pool Trust has resulted in a reclassification
of $22 million (Bank: $22 million} from Other
lnvestments 1o Investment Securilies (Bank:
investrnent in Controlied Entities).

(iv) Leveraged leases

Income from leveraged Icases was recognised
under previous GAAP progressively over the
lease 1erm on an effective yield after tax basis,
with related upfront fee income recognised
upon receipt.

Under AIFRS, all income on leveraged leases is
recopiised progressively over the lease term
on an effective pre-1ax yield basis.

A transitional adjustment was recognised at

1 October 2004 1o increase unearned income
by $13 million (Bank: $13 million) and decrease
deferred tax liabilities by $4 million (Bank:

$4 million), resulting in a $9 millicn (Bank:

$9 million) reduction to retained earnings,

There has been no significant impact on net
profit during 2005 as a result of the revised
AIFRS income reccgnition meihodology.

(v} Property, plant and equipment

The Group recognised land and buildings
under previous GAAP at revalued amounts,
with revaluation increments and decrements
recorded in an assel revaluation and
realisation reserve.




S1.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 52: Explanation of Transition
to AIFRS continued

AIFRS impacts from 1 October 2004
continued

In accordance with the election available
under AA3B 1, the Group has used the
revalued amount for land and buildings undes
previous SAAP as at 1 October 2004 as
"deemed cost” under AIFRS, The balance .
of the assel revaluation and realisation

reserve of $83 million {Bank: $110 miliion)

al 1 October 2004 has been transierred

1o retained earnings and together with the
recognition of a deferred tax liability of

$29 millicn (Bank: $29 million), has resulted in
an increase in retained earnings of $54 million
(Bank: $81 million). In addition, the movement
in the asset revaluation reserve under previcus
GAAP of 37 million {Bank: Snil) {prior to
decrements recognised in the asset revaluation
reserve of $2 mitlion (Bank: $3 million}) for
the year ended 30 September 2005 has

been reversed. At 3C September 2005, this
resulted in a decrease in land and buildings

of $7 million (Bank: $nil), a decrease in the
asset revaluation and realisation reserve of

$5 million {Bank: increase of $3 million) and

a decrease in retained earnings of $2 million
(Bank: $2 million) due to the recognition of

an impairment loss on land and buildings, as
discussed below.

The previous GAAP results for the year ended
30 September 2005 have been reduced by
$1 million {Bank: $2 miliion} after tax under
AIFRS, reflecting the combined impact of the
recognition of land and buildings impairment
that was not reflected in the previous GAAP
Statements of Financial Performance but was
recognised in art assel revaluation reserve of
32 million {Bank: $3 million} and the reversal
of a deferred tax liability of $1 million (Bank:
$1 million) on buildings sald during 2005.

{vi) Employee benefits

The Group did not recognise an asset or
lisbility in its balance sheet for the net position
of the defined benefit section of the defined
contribution superannuation plan sponsored by
the Group.

On adoption of AIFRS, a deficit of $5 million
(Bank: $5 million) within the Group's defined
benefit section of the defined comtribution
superannuation plan was recognised as a
liability, together with a $2 million (Bank:

$2 million) increasc in deferred 1ax assets and
a decrease in retained earnings at 1 Octaber
2004 of 33 million {Bank: $3 million}.

The revised AASB 119 {issued in December
2004) permits a number of options for
recognising aciuarial gains and losses on an
ongoing basis. The Group has adopled the
revised AASE 119 and has elected 10 apply the
option to recognise actuarial gains and losses
directly in retained earnings.

{vii) Income tax

Upon transition to AIFRS, the Group has changed
from the liability method to 2 “balance sheet
approach” 1o tax effect accounting that requires
deferred tax balances to be recognised where
there is a difference between the carrying value
of an asset/liability and its tax base. In addition,
under AIFRS the tax effect follows the underlying
transaction and hence can be recognised in
equity or as an iNcome tax expense.

The tax adjustments 1o deferred tax assels
and liaoilities that arise on transition to AIFRS
as at 1 October 2004, comprise an increase
of 32 million (Bank: $2 miltion) in deferred
1ax assets associoted with the defined

benefit superannuation deficit, a decrease

in deferred tax liabilitics of $1 millign (Bank:
$nil) associated with the write-off of intangible
assets relating to capitalised software, an
increase of 329 million (Bank: $29 million)

in deferred tax liabilities representing the 1ax
effect of the balance of the asset revaluation
reserve transferred to retained earnings and

a decrease of $4 million (Bank: $4 million) in
deferred tax liabilities relating to the change in
revenue recognition for leveraged leases.

In addition, a net transitional adjustment
decrease to deferred tax liabilities of $2 million
{Bank: $12 million) and a $2 million (Bank:

$12 million} increase to retained earnings at

1 Octaber 2004 arises (rom the change in
method of accounting for income taxes from an
income statement approach 10 a balance sheet
approach for items not previously required to
be recognised. This represents the tax effect
of tax and accounting carrying value base
differcnces on buildings of $8 million (Bank:
$41 million},

Deferred 1ax assets have been separately
recognised on the face of the balance

sheel, resulting in a decrease in other

asscts of $86 million at 1 October 2G04
{Bank: $85 million) and $91 million at

30 September 2005 (Bank: $91 million).
Current and deferred tax liabilities, previously
recognised within inceme tax liability, have
been separately recognised on the face of the
balance sheet.

(viii)Life insurance accounting

On transition to AIFRS, the asset representing
the Excess of Net Market Value over Net
Asscts (EMVONA) of a life insurance entity's
controlled entitics can no longer be recognised.
As the Group’s life insurance entity did not
recognise any EMVONA, this requirement has
had no impact.
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 Septemnber 2006

Note 52: Exptanation of Transition
to AIFRS continued

AIFRS impacts from 1 Cctaber 2004
continued

(ix) Intangible assets

On transition to AIFRS, certain items previously
included within deferred expenditure are no
longer eligible for recognition within intangible
assels and have been written off. As at

1 Qctober 2004, this resulted in a reduction in
intangible assets of $3 million (Bank: $nil), a
reduction in deferred tax lizbilities of $1 million
(Bank: $nil) and a decrease 1o retained eamings
of $2 million (Bank: Snil).

In addition, the Group's deferred expenditure
has been reclassified to intangible assets,
resulting in a decrease in other assets and

a corresponding increase in intangible

assels of $103 million (Bank: $82 million}

at 1 Qctober 2004 and $110 million (Bank:
$90 million) at 30 September 2005.

AFRS impacts from 1 October 2005

(x} Hybrid financial instruments

PRYMES and DCS, which were classified as
equity under previous GAAP, are reclassified
as debt under AIFRS. This resulted in &

$625 million {Bank: $291 million} decrease
in shareholders’ equity on transition.

The dividends payable {where applicable)

on these instruments are classified as interest
expense under AIFRS. The SAINTS and the
Perpetual Notes will continue to be classified
as equily under AIFRS.
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The DCS include a number of embedded
derivatives thal are required under AIFRS to be
carried at fair value. The Group has elected to
measure the DCS from 1 Qctober 2005 at fair
value to the income statement in accordance
with the available alternative in AASB 138,
resulting in all changes in fair valuc of the DCS
and its embedded derivatives being recognised
in the income statement. The impact on the
income statement will be partially offset by the
fair valug recognition on the balance sheet of
the derivative that was entered into at the time
of the issue of the DCS, whose changes in fair
value are also recognised within the income
statement. At 1 October 2005, a fair value
adjustrnent to increase the DCS liability by

$17 million was recogrised together with

a deferred 1ax asset of 35 millien, resulting in

a reduction in retained earnings of $12 million.
In addition, $48 million of asscciated derivative
liabilities and distribution pravisions have been
reclassified from other liabilities to liabilities at
fair value through the income statement.

AL 1 October 2005, the Bank recognised a fair
value adjustment to increase smounts payable
to controlled entities of $189 million, together
with a deferred tax asset of $57 million,

A corresponding adjustment was recognised
in respect Lo derivative assets of $161 million,
together with a deferred tax liability of

S48 million. As a result, there was a reduction
in retained earnings of $19 million.

PRYMES are measured at fair value net of
transaction costs at initial recognition and
amortised cost in subsequent periods. Share
issue costs relating to PRYMES have been
netled against the proceeds from the issue

of these securities and classified as equity
under previous GAAP. Under AIFRS, share
issue costs are deferred and recognised as

an adjustment to the yield of the instrumen.
Al 1 October 2005, $15 million (Bank:

$15 million) of share issue costs and a
redemption premium have been recognised as
a reduction to retained earnings. In addition,
the amounts payable to holders of the PRYMES
of $2 million (Bank: $2 million} have been
reclassified and included within the underlying
libility balance.

Share issue costs relating to the DCS had
been deferred and amortised under previous
GAAP. Following the election to recognise

the DCS under the fair value option, the
remaining balance of deferred costs have been
recognised as a reduction o retained earnings
of $1 million (Bank: $nil) at 1 Cctober 2005.

{xi) Transaction fees and costs

AIFRS requires fee income that is integral 10 an
instrument to be recognised as an adjustment
to the vield of that instrument. AIFRS also
requires the deferral of directly attributable
incremental loan origination casis and their
recogniiion as a yield adjustment net of

any fees received. The Group deferred and
amortised certain home loan broker origination
costs under previous GAAP.

On transition, certain fees previously recognised
as income, have been deferred in the balance
sheet with a corresponding adjustment to
retained earnings. This adjustment on transition
at 1 October 2005 has resulted in a decrease

in loans and receivables of $122 million (Bank:
$71 millicn}, an increase in deferred 1ax assets
of $42 million (Bank: $27 million}, an increase
in deferred tax liabifities of $6 millian (Bank:

$6 million), and a reduction in retained earnings
of $86 million (Bank: $50 million).

In additicn, deferred origination costs
recognised within other assets under previous
GAAP of $73 million (Bank: $73 million)

have been reclassified within loans and other
receivables from 1 October 2005.

The classification of certain fee income and
loan origination costs that are integral to

the yield of an instrument will change from
nan-interest income under previous GAAP {o
interest income under AIFRS.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 Septemnber 2006

Note 52: Explanation of Transition
to AIFRS continued

AIFRS impacts frem 1 October 2005 continued
{xii) Derivatives and hedging

Under AIFRS, oll derivatives contracts, whether
used as hedging instruments or otherwise, will
be measured at fair value at initial recognition
and at each subsequent reporting date in the
balance shect, with & carresponding entry to
the incomc statement or an equity reserve,
Under previous GAAP, St.George recognised
trading derivatives on a mark to market basis
on balance sheet and hedging derivatives on an
aceruals basis.

AIFRS introduces new requirements in relation
lo the application of hedge accounting

for derivative contracts. Amongst those
requirements, hedging instruments must satisfy
hedge effcctiveness tests.

To the exient hedges are considered
ineffective, AIFRS requires such ineffectiveness
to be reflected in the inceme statement.
Where ingffectiveness is outside a prescribed
range, AASB 139 precludes the use of hedge
accounting, which may result in volatility in

the income statement. St.George has adepted
cash flow hedging and a combination of fair
value ancl cash flow hedging methods in
relaticn to its interest rate and currency hedges
respectively. To the extent the fair velue hedges
are effective, the fair value movement of the
derivative: instrumnent will largely offset the
movement in the fair value of the underlying
hedged item for the risks hedged, which will
also be recorded in the income statement,

To the extent that cash flow hedges are
effective, the fair value movements in
derivative instruments will be taken to equity
rather than the income statement.

Certain derivatives used lo manage short-lterm
balance sheet structural inlerest rate risks in
the banking book will not be eligible for hedge
accounting such as Overnight Index Swaps
and Forward Rate Agreements. To the extent
these and any other nan-trading derivatives do
nat qualify for hedge relationships, additicnal
volatility will arise.

On transition at 1 Octlober 2005, derfvative
assets of $368 million (Bank: $299 million}
have been reclassified from other assets and
separately recognised and derivative fiabilities
of $1.558 billion (Bank: $719 million) have been
reclassified from other liabilities and separately
recognised. In addition, the recognition of

all derivatives at fair value, together with

the application of fair value and cash flow
hedging, resulied in an increase in derivative
assets and derivative liabilities of $99 million
(Bank: 576 million) and $10% million (Bank:
$103 million) respeclively, an increase in
deferred tax assets and liabilities of $35 million
{Bank: $34 million) and $31 million {Bank:

$15 million) respectively, a hedge fair value
adjustrment reducing bends and notes by

$3 million {Bank: $2 million), a decrease of
other assets of $2 million (Bank: $1 milhon) and
an increase in cther liabilities of $34 million
(Bank: $35 million). This has resulted in a
decrease in retained earnings of $20 million
(Bank: $26 million) and the recognition of a
cash flow hedging reserve of $19 million (Bank:
$17 millien) after tax.

(xiii} Loan provisioning

AIFRS adopls an approach known as “incurred
losses” for loan provisioning and provides
guidance on measurement of incurred

losses. Provisions are raised for losses that
have already been incurred for loans that

are known to be impaired. The estimated

cosh flows on these impaired loans are then
discounted to their present value to determine
their recoverable amount and the asscciated
provision. As this discount unwinds, there

is a resulting recognition cf interest in the
income statement during the period between
recognition of impairment and recovery of the
wrilten down amount.

Loans found not 1o be individually impaired are
placed into pools of similar assets with similar
risks characteristics 1o be collectively assessed
for impairment. A cellective impairment
provision may be required where impairment
events have tccurred but these events cannot
be attributed to individual exposures at the
reporting date. The collective impairment

loss is estimated on the basis of historical

loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the callective
pool. The historical less experience is adjusted
based on current observable data.

The general provision under previous GAAP,
based on 0.5% of risk wcighted assets,
logether with certain penfolio provisions on
retail loans, have been written back against
retained earnings and replaced by a provision
based on collective assessment in accordance
with AIFRS that has been 1ax effected. Specific
pravisions will continue but will be measured
based on AIFRS requirements.

A portion of the specific provision of

$35 million {Bank: $35 million), an associated
deferred tax asset of $10 million (Bank:

$10 milion), and the general provision of
$219 million (Bank: $203 million), which

was recognised under previous GAAP, has
been reversed to relained earnings. This has
resulted in an increase in retained earnings of
$244 million (Bank: $228 million).

In accordance with the requirements of AASB
139, a collective provision of $245 million
(Bank: $235 million), together with a deferred
tax asset of $74 million (Bank: $70 million),
has been rccognised under AIFRS. This has
resulted in a decrease in retained earnings of
%171 million (Bank: $165 million).

The difference between the after tax equivaleni
of the former AGAAP general provision

(based on 0.5% of risk weighted assels)

and the afler tax equivalent of the collective
provision has been appropriated from retained
earnings to a general reserve for credit losses
at 1 Cctober 2005. This has resulted in a

$68 million (Bank: $79 million) increase in

the general reserve for credit losses and a
corresponding decrease in retained earnings.
This decrease in retained earnings offsets a
net increase in retained earnings of $73 million
(Bank: 363 million), which resulied from the
write-back of AGAAP loan provisions, and the
recognition of AIFRS loan provisions,
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 52: Explanation of Transition
to AIFRS continued

AIFRS impacts from 1 October 2005 conlinued
(xiv} Financial instruments

Financial assets carried at fair value and
amortised cost under previous GAAP, have
been reclassificd te assets al fair value through
the income statement, with unrezlised changes
in fair valug recognised within the income
statement. Included within the reclassification
of these securities are trading assets of

$6,295 million (Bank: $5,893 million} and other
investments of $24 million {Bank: $2 million}

as at 1 October 2005.

The use of quoted bid prices in the calculation
of the fair value of trading securities has,

on transition at 1 October 2005, resulted

in a decrease in assets at fair value through
the income statement and a corresponding
decrease in retained earnings of $2 million
{Bank: $2 millicn).

Financizl assets carried at amortised cost under
previous GAAP, have been reclassified under
AIFRS to Available for Sale (AFS) securities,
with unrealised changes in fair value recognised
within an equity reserve. Included within

the reclassification of these securities are
investment securities of $1,149 million

(Bank: $nil) and other investments of

$21 million (Bank: $nil) as at 1 October 2005.
On transition at 1 October 2005, this has
resulted in an increase in available for sale
investments of $7 miflicn (Bank: $nil), the
recognition of a deferred tax lisbility of

%2 million (Bank: $nil}, and the recognition of
an AFS equity reserve of $5 million (Bank; Snil).
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(xv} Income tax

Additional tax effects have arisen In respect

of the 1 Octaber 2005 AIFRS transitional
adjustments. The recognition of the Deposilary
Capital Securities (DCS) at fair value resulied in
an increase of $5 million {Bank: $57 million) in
deferred tax assets of $nil (Bank: $48 million)
in deferred tax liabilities. The deferral of
transaction fees and costs resulted in an
increase in deferred tax assets of $42 million
(Bank: $27 million) and deferred 1ax liabilities of
36 million {Bank: $6 million). The recognition
of hedging derivalives and existing hedging
derivatives not eligible for AIFRS hedge
accounting resulted in the recognition of
deferred tax assets of $35 million (Bank:

$34 million) and an increase in deferred tax
liabilities of $31 million {Bank: $15 million}.

The recognition of assets and liabilities at fair
value resulied in the recognition of a deferred
tax liability of $2 miflion (Bank: $nil} for
available for sale investmenls. The write-back
of loan provisions under previous GAAP

and recognition of AIFRS collective loan
provisions resulted in an increase in deferred
tax assets of $64 miliion (Bank: $60 milkion).
The restatement of the bank acceptance assets
and liabilitics to an amertised cost basis resulted
in a $9 million (Bank: $9 million) increase in
deferred tax assets and an $8 million {Bank:
$8 million) increase in deferred tax liabilities.

(xvi) Bank acceptances

Under previous GAAP, the Group accepled and
discounted bills for customers, classifying these
within trading securities at their market value.
Upon their “on-sale”, customer discounted
hills were reclassified to bank acceptance
assels and recognised at their face value.

A corresponding liability was recognised
representing the Group's obligation to the
holder of the on-scld bill. interest income

on discounted bills was recognised within
interest income and bill acceptlance fee income
recognised within other income.

Under the recognition requirements of

AASE 139, all bank accepted bills (including
both discounted and on-sold bills) and

the associated liability for on-sold bills are
recognised at amortised cost, with interest
income and expense recognised using the
effective yield methodology. Fee income on bill
acceplances (s recognised on an effective yield
basis within interest income.

Al1 October 2005, the Group's bank accepted
and discounted bills recognised within

trading securities of $1,337 milfion (Bank:
$1,337 million) under previous GAAP have
been reclassified 10 bank acceptances.

In addition, bank acceptance assets and
liabilities have been restated to an amortised
cosl basis, As at 1 October 2005, this has
resulted in g decrease in the bank acceptance
assel of $29 million (Bank: $29 millian), with the
recognition of an associated deferred tax asset
of $9 million (Bank: $9 milfion), and a decrease
in the bank acceptance liability of $28 million
{Bank: $28 milliors), with the recognition of an
associated deferred 1ax tiabiiity of $8 millien
(Bank: $& million). There is no significant impact
on retained earnings for these adjustments.




St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Note 53: Change in Accounting Policy
In the current financizl year, the Group adopted
AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosure

& Presentation and AASS 139 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
This change in accounting palicy has been
adopted in accordance with the transition rules
contained in AASB 1, which dces not require
the restatement of comparative information
for financial instruments within the scope of
AASB 137 and AASB 139,

The adoption of AASE 139 and AASB 132

has resulied in changes 10 balance sheet
ctassifications, recognition of ail derivatives

ot fair value, together with certain financial
instruments, and certain loan origination costs
being deferred and recognised on an effective
yicld basis. The PRYMES and DCS have been
reclassifizd from equity to debt. Loan provision
methodclogies have changed. The impact of
Ihese changes logether with explanations is
contained in Note 52.

Note 54: Events subsequent to
balance date

Final dividend

QOn 1 November 2006, the directors declared

a final dividend of 77 cents per ordinary share,

amouniing to $405 millien. This dividend has
not been brought to account in the Group’s
financial statcments for the year ended

30 September 2006.

Capital Raising

The Bank intends to issue a $300 million
non-inngvative Tier 1 capital instrument in
December 2006.
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors’ Declaration

For the year ended 30 September 2006

in the opinion of the Directors of St.George Bank Limited {*the Bank™}
(1} {a) the Financial Statements and nates are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving & true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank and the Group as at 30 September 2006 and of their perfermance,
as represented by the results of their operations and their cash flaws, for the financial year ended on thal date; and

(it} complying with Austrafian Accounting Standards and the Corperations Regulations 2001, and
{b) there are reasonable grounds 1o believe that the Bank will be able 1o pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

(2) there are reasonable greunds 1o believe that the Bank and the controlied entities identifisd in Nate 43 will be able to meet any obligations or
libilities to which they are or may become subject to by virlue of the Deed of Cross Guarantee between the Bank and those controlled entities
pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418,

{3) the Directors have been given the declarations by the Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer for the financial
year ended 30 September 2006 pursuant {0 Section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors and in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

) M Thame
Chairman

/5

G P Kelly
Managing Director & Chief Execulive Officer

Dated at Sydney, New South Wales
7 November 2006
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St.George Bank Limited and its Controlled Entitics
Independent audit report to the Shareholders of St.George Bank
Limited

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Scope

We have audited the Financial Repert of $t.George Bank Limited {*the Bank™) for the financial year ended 30 September 2008, consisting aof the
income statements, stalements of recognised income and expense, balance sheets, statements of cash flows, accompanying notes 110 54, and

the Directors' Declaration set out on pages 2 1o 92. The Financial Report includes the Consolidated Financial Statements of the consolidated entity,
comprising the Bank and the cntilies it controlled at the end of the year or from time 1o time during the financial year. The Bank's Directors are
responsible for the Financial Report. The Directors are alse responsible for preparing the relevant recanciling iniormation regarding the adjustments
required under the Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1 First-lime Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting
Standards. We have conducted an independent audit of the Financial Report in order to express an opinion on il to the Sharehalders of the Bank.

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards to provide reasonable assurance whether the Financial Report is
free of material misstatement. Gur procedures included examination, on a tes hasis, of evidence supporting the amounts and other disclosures in
the Financial Report, and the evaluation of accounting policies and significant accounting estimates. These procedures have been underiaken to
form gn opinion whether, in all material respects, the Financial Report is presented fairly in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
other mandatary professional reporting requirements in Australia and statutory requirements 50 as lo present a view which is consistent with our
understanding of the Bank's and the consolidated entity's financial position, and performance as represented by the results of their operations and
their cash flows.

The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis.

Audit opinion
i our opinion, the Financfal Report of St.George Bank Limited is in accordance with:

a)  the Corporations Act 2001, including:

{i) giving a true ond fair view of the Bank’s and consolidated cntity's finangial position as al 30 Seotember 2006 and of their performance for the
financial year ended on that date; and

(it} complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2007; and

b) other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia.

RPM G

KPMG

Pndl:9

P M Reid

Sydney
7 November 2006
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St.George Bank Lirmited and its Controlled Entities

Supplementary Information

For the year ended 30 September 2006

Capital Adequacy

Capital adequacy has been calculsted in accardance with APRA’s AIFRS regulatory requirements that applied from 1 July 2006. In accordance with

APRA's transitional arrangements, the $261 million Tier 1 regulatary capital shortfall calculated as 1he difference between the Group’s previous

GAAP canital base at 30 June 2006 and AIFRS capital base at 1 July 2006, is subject Lo transitionzl relief until 31 December 2007.

Consclidated

2006 2005

Qualifying capital $m $m
Tier 1
Share capital 3,868 3,454
General reserve 15 15
Borrowers' and depositors’ redemplion reserve 2 2
PRYMES - N
SAINTS 345 345
Perpetual notes 34 31
Step-up preference shares 148 -
Depasitary capital securities 335 328
Minority interests {16) (12)
Assel realisation reserve 33
Other reserves 2 5
Equity compensation reserve 29 -
Retained earnings 798 781
Less: Expected dividend ¥ (344) (237)

Capitalised expenscs @ (295) (184)
Goodwill and other APRA deductions (1,513} {1.366)
Add: APRA AIFRS transition adjustments @ 261 -
Total Tier 1 capital 3,669 3,486
Tier 2
Asset revaluations 28 55
Subardinated debt 1,835 1,600
General provision for doubtful debts - 219
General reserve for credit losses/collective pravision 265 -
Add: APRA AIFRS transition adjustments @ 7 -
Total Tier 2 copital 2,135 1,874
Deductions
Investment in non-consolidated entilies net of goodwill and Tier 1 deductions 27 27
Other 1 1
Total deductions from capital 28 28
Total qualifying capital 5,776 5,332

(1) Nei of estimated reinvestment under the dividend reinvesiment plan.

(2) In accordance with APRA's AIFRS regulatory capital requirements, capitalised software cosls are also required to be deducted from Tier 1 capital from

1)uly 2006,

(3) Transitional relief adjustment approved by APRA ta apply to 31 December 2007. 1n accordance with APRA's AIFRS regulatery requirements applicable
irom 1 July 2006, the difference between the Group's previous GAAP capital base o1 3C June 2006 and AIFRS capital base at 1 July 2006 is subject to

transiticnal relief.
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Risk Weighted Assets
Face value Risk weighted balance
2006 Risk weight 2006 2005
Capital Adequacy $m % $m $m
(i) On balance sheet assets
Cash, claims an Reserve Bank, Australisn Commonwealth, Slate and
Territory Governments, Central Government and Central Banks of OECD countries 9,783 - - -
Longer term claims on Australian Commonwealth, State and Territory governments - 10 - -
Claims on local governments, public secter entitics, Autherised Deposit Taking Institutions 1,538 20 308 164
Loans secured by residential property 48,772 50 24,386 23,507
All other assets 26,059 100 26,059 22,085
Total on Balance Sheet assets ' - credit risk 86,152 50,753 45,756
Credit
Face value equivalent Risk weighted balance
2006 2006 2006 2005
$m $m $m $m
(ii) Off balance sheet exposures
Direct credit substitutes 682 682 682 551
Trade and performance related items 60 16 16 23
Commitments 19,301 1,056 676 938
Foreign exchange, interest rate and other market related transactions 197,196 1,611 347 250
Total off balance sheet exposures - credit risk 217,239 3,365 1,721 1,762
Risk weighted assets - ¢redit risk 52,474 47,518
Risk weighted assets - market risk 508 346
Total risk weighted assets 52,982 47,864
Risk weighted capital adequacy ratios % %
Tier 1 6.9 73
Tier 2 4.0 3.9
Deduclions (0.1} {00
Total capital ratio 10.8 LA

(1} The differcnce between total on balance sheet assets and the Group's balance sheet resulis from the alternative treatment prescribed by APRA for

items such as goodwill, provisions far bad and doubtiul debts and securitisation.
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ABN

St.George Bank Limited
ABN 92 055 513 070
AFSL 240997

Key Dates
Annual General Meeting (Sydney)
20 December 2006

Sharcholder information Meeting
{Melbourne)
27 June 2007*

Announcement of Results

and Ordinary Dividend

o Interim {half year ended 31 March 2007)
2 May 2007*

« Final (vear ended 30 September 2007)
30 October 2007*

Ordinary Shares

Final Dividend {2008) paid

19 December 2006

« Ex-dividend trading 29 November 2006
« Record datc 5 December 2006

Interim Dividend (2007) paid 3 July 2007*
= Ex-dividend trading 13 lune 2007*
+ Record date 19 June 2007*

SAINTS and SPS

Payment date 20 February 2007*

+ Ex-dividend trading 30 January 2007*
* Record date 5 February 2007*

Payment date 21 May 2007*
« Ex-dividend trading 30 April 2007*
= Record date 4 May 2007*

Payment date 20 August 2007*
« Ex-dividend trading 30 July 2007*
+ Record date 3 August 2007

Payment date 20 November 2007*
« Ex-dividend trading 30 October 2007*
= Record date 5 Novermnber 2007*

* Proposed dales only.
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Contact Details

S1.George Registered Office
St.Gearge House

4-16 Montgomery Street
Kogarah NSW 2217, Australia
Telephone (02) 9236 1111
International (612} 9236 1N
Facsimile {02) 9952 1000

Secretary: M H S Bowan

St.George Share Registry
Computershare Investor Services
Pty Limited

Level 3, 60 Carrington Street
Sydney NSW 2000

Postal Address: GPO Box 4515
Melbourne VIC 3001, Australia
Telephone 1800 804 457
International (613) 9415 4000
Facsimite (613} 9473 2500

BankSA

97 King William Sireet
Adelaide SA 5000
Customer Service 131376

Advance Investor Services
Level 10, 182 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000

Customer Service 1800 819 935

Asgard Wealth Solutions
Level 12, 400 George Street
Sydney NSw 2000
Telephone {02) 9947 1255
Facsimile {02) 9511 2366

Deutsche Bank

(American Deposilory Receipts)
Depository Receipls Departiment
60 Wall Street

New York, NY 10005, USA
Telephone (1212) 602 3761

Customer Services
St.George Customer Service Cenlre 133330
New Account Enquiries and Insurarce 13 33 30

dragondirect 1300 301020
Private Bank (02} 9236 1882
Business Direct 133800
St.George Financial Advice

Contact Centre 1300 367 240
St.George Margin Lending 1300 304 065

Automotive Finance and
Business Equipment Finance

Group Treasury

1300 301 315

and Capital Markets {02) 9320 5555
Advance fnveslor Services 1800 819 935
Asgard Investor Services 1800 998 185

Customer Relations 1800 804 728

Email/Internet
Email: stgearge@stgeorge.com.au
Internet: www.stgecrge.com.au

Auditor
KPMG
10 Sheliey Strect
Sydney NSW 2000
Credit Ratings
Short Long
Term Term
Standard & Poor's A-1 A+
Moody's P Al
Fitch Ratings i1 At

Full Financial Report (2006)

St.George's Full Financial Report is

available on the St.George Bank website

al www stgeorge.com.au. Sharecholders
wishing to be mailed a copy of the S1.George
Full Financial Report should contact the
St.George share registry, Computershare
Investor Services, on 1800 804 457,

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held

at the Tumbalong Auditorium (Level 2),

Sydney Convention and Exhibition Centre
South, Darling Harbaur, on Wednesday,

20 December 2006 at 10:00 am {Sydney time).

Shareholder Information Meeting
The Sharehalder Information Meeting will be
heid at Crown Towers (Palladium A and B),

8 Whiteman Street, Melbourne on Wednesday,
27 June 2007™.
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